
BELFAST CITY COUNCIL 
 
SUMMONS TO ATTEND THE MONTHLY MEETING OF THE COUNCIL 
 

TO:    THE LORD MAYOR, ALDERMEN AND THE COUNCILLORS OF BELFAST 

CITY COUNCIL 
 
Notice is hereby given the Council will meet both in the Council Chamber, City Hall, 
Belfast on a proportional representation basis and remotely, via Microsoft Teams on 
Thursday, 1st July, 2021 at 6.00 pm, for the transaction of the following business: 
 
 
1. Summons   
 
2. Apologies   
 
3. Declarations of Interest   
 
4. Minutes of the Council  (Pages 1 - 20) 
 
5. Official Announcements   
 
6. Minutes   
 
 a) Strategic Policy and Resources Committee  (Pages 21 - 110) 

 
 b) Ad Hoc Committee  (Pages 111 - 122) 

 
 c) People and Communities Committee  (Pages 123 - 178) 

 
 d) City Growth and Regeneration Committee  (Pages 179 - 258) 

 
 e) Licensing Committee  (Pages 259 - 274) 

 
 f) Planning Committee  (Pages 275 - 328) 

 
7. Motions   
 
 a) Transfer of Regeneration Powers to Local Authorities  (Pages 329 - 330) 

 
 b) Paid Leave for Miscarriage  (Pages 331 - 332) 

 
 c) Her Majesty The Queen's Platinum Jubilee  (Pages 333 - 334) 

 
 d) Marking the Centenary of the Ulster Memorial Tower  (Pages 335 - 336) 

 
 e) Chat Bench and Tackling Loneliness  (Pages 337 - 338) 

 
 
 
The Members of Belfast City Council are hereby summoned to attend. 

 
 
 
 
 

Chief Executive 

Public Document Pack



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
 

A812 
 
 

Council 
 

ANNUAL MEETING OF BELFAST CITY COUNCIL 
 

Held in the City Hall and also Remotely, via Microsoft Teams on  
Tuesday, 1st June, 2021 at 6.00 p.m., pursuant to notice. 

 
 Members present:    The Right Honourable the Lord Mayor; 
  (Alderman McCoubrey) (Chairperson); 
  The Deputy Lord Mayor, Councillor McCusker; 
  The High Sheriff (Councillor Long); 
  Aldermen Copeland, Dorrian, Haire, Kingston, 
  Rodgers and Sandford; and Councillors Baker,  

Beattie, Black, Bradley, Brooks, Bunting, Canavan, 
Carson, Cobain, Matt Collins, Michael Collins, Corr, 
De Faoite, Donnelly, Ferguson, Flynn, Garrett, 
Gormley, Groogan, Hanvey, Heading, Howard, 
Hussey, Hutchinson, M. Kelly, T. Kelly, Kyle, Lyons, 
Magee, Magennis, Maskey, McAllister, McAteer, 
McCabe, McDonough-Brown, McKeown, McLaughlin, 
McMullan, McReynolds, Mulholland, Murphy, 
Newton, Nicholl, O’Hara, Pankhurst, Smyth, Spratt, 
Verner, Walsh and Whyte. 
 

 

Summons 
 
 The Chief Executive submitted the summons convening the meeting. 
 

Apologies 
 
 An apology for inability to attend was reported for Councillor McCullough.  
 

Declarations of Interest 
 
 No declarations of interest were reported. 
 

Minutes of the Council 
 

Moved by the Lord Mayor (Alderman McCoubrey), 
Seconded by Councillor Beattie and  

 
 Resolved - That the minutes of the proceedings of the monthly meeting 
of the Council of 4th May be taken as read and signed as correct. 

 
Official Announcements 

 
Strike Action 
 
 Councillor Collins voiced solidarity with the Queen’s University Crèche workers on 
their ongoing strike asked Members to lend their support.  
 

Page 1

Agenda Item 4



 
 

Annual Meeting of Council, 
Tuesday, 1st June, 2021 

 
 

 
 

A813 
 
 

 Several Members passed on their support and congratulations to Hovis Belfast 
Workers in securing an eight percent pay rise through their recent strike action. 
 
Thanks 
 
 Councillor Pankhurst expressed his gratitude to the army medics who had been 
assisting with the Covid 19 vaccination programme in the SSE Arena.   
 
Congratulations 
 
 Councillors Ferguson, McAllister and O’Hara congratulated Array Studios and 
Collective on its recent Turner Prize nomination and requested that the incoming Lord 
Mayor write to the group to offer congratulations and wish them luck in the competition.  
The Lord Mayor acceded to pass the request on to the incoming Lord Mayor.  
 
 Councillor Lyons congratulated Queen’s University on the establishment of the 
Michael and Edna Longley scholarship in creative writing.  
 
 Cllr Brooks, along with several other Members, congratulated Linfield Football 
Club on their recent success, winning their 44th Irish Cup and 55th Irish League title, a 
world record equalling achievement.  The Lord Mayor agreed to pass the request to host 
a reception for David Healy and his team, to congratulate them on their achievements, to 
the incoming Lord Mayor.  
 
 Councillor Bunting requested that the Lord Mayor send a letter of congratulations 
to Lisburn and Castlereagh City Council, on the village of Hillsborough receiving Royal 
Status, The Lord Mayor agreed to pass the request to the incoming Lord Mayor.  
 
Expressions of Sympathy 
 
 Councillors Maskey and Ferguson expressed their condolences to the family of 
local musician, Rab McCullough, following his recent death.  
 

Positions of Responsibility Year 3 (2021-22) 
 
 The Chief Executive reminded the Council that, at the Annual Council meeting on 
21st May, 2019, the Council decided on the political parties that would be entitled to hold 
the Positions of Responsibility for each year of the 4-year Term and that Year 3 of the 
Council Term was to commence forthwith.  
 
 She recommended that Council appoint the nominated Members, as identified by 
the Nominating Officers of the political parties concerned, to the Positions of 
Responsibility for Year 3 of the Council Term as outlined below: 
 
  

Page 2



 
 

Annual Meeting of Council, 
Tuesday, 1st June, 2021 

 
 

 
 

A814 
 
 

 
Civic Dignitaries 

Lord Mayor Councillor Kate Nicholl 

Deputy Lord Mayor Alderman Tom Haire 

 
Strategic Policy and Resources Committee 

Chairperson Councillor Groogan 

Deputy Chairperson Councillor Walsh 

 
City Growth and Regeneration Committee 

Chairperson Councillor Murphy 

Deputy Chairperson Alderman Dorrian 

 
People and Communities Committee 

Chairperson Councillor Cobain 

Deputy Chairperson Councillor Smyth 

 
Licensing Committee 

Chairperson Councillor Donnelly 

Deputy Chairperson Alderman Rodgers 

 
Planning Committee 

Chairperson Councillor Carson 

Deputy Chairperson Councillor Hanvey 

 
Brexit Committee 

Chairperson Councillor Baker 

Deputy Chairperson Councillor McKeown 

 
Waterfront and Ulster Hall Ltd Shareholders’ Committee 

Chairperson Councillor McCabe 

Deputy Chairperson Councillor Newton 

 
 The Council agreed to appoint the Positions of Responsibility for Year 3 of the 
Council term, as set out above. 
 

Installation of Lord Mayor 
 
 The Chief Executive reminded the Council that it had, earlier in the meeting, 
approved the Positions of Responsibility for 2021/2022 and that Councillor Nicholl had 
been nominated to serve as Lord Mayor.  
 

Page 3



 
 

Annual Meeting of Council, 
Tuesday, 1st June, 2021 

 
 

 
 

A815 
 
 

 Accordingly, Councillor Nicholl was installed in Office for the period to end on the 
date of the annual meeting of the Council in 2022 and she subscribed to the Declaration 
of Acceptance of Office. 
 
 Councillor Nicholl thanked her Political Party for nominating her to serve as Lord 
Mayor, she outlined her main priorities for the forthcoming year and paid tribute to the 
previous Lord Mayor and Deputy Lord Mayor for the manner in which they had carried 
out their duties.  
 

(The Lord Mayor, Councillor Nicholl, in the Chair.) 
 

Installation of Deputy Lord Mayor 
 
 The Council was again reminded that earlier in the meeting Alderman Haire had, 
under the Positions of Responsibility for 2021/2022, been nominated to serve as Deputy 
Lord Mayor.  
 
 Accordingly, Alderman Haire was installed in Office for the period to end on the 
date of the annual meeting of the Council in 2022 and he subscribed to the Declaration 
of Acceptance of Office.   
  
 Alderman Haire paid tribute to the previous Lord Mayor and Deputy Lord Mayor, 
thanked his Political Party for nominating him to serve as Deputy Lord Mayor and outlined 
his main objectives for his term in office.  
 

(The Deputy Lord Mayor, Alderman Haire, in the Chair.) 
 

Appointment of Members to Committees Year 3 (2021-22) 
 

The Chief Executive drew the Council’s attention to a report which identified the 
following persons who had been nominated by the Nominating Officer of each Political 
Party to the Council’s Standing Committees for 2021/2022: 
 
Strategic Policy and Resources Committee 
 

1 Green Chairperson Councillor Groogan 

2 Sinn Fein Deputy 
Chairperson 

Councillor Walsh 

3 Sinn Fein Councillor Beattie 

4 Sinn Fein Councillor Black 

5 Sinn Fein Councillor Carson 

6 Sinn Fein Councillor Garrett 

7 Sinn Fein Councillor McLaughlin 

8 Sinn Fein Councillor Murphy 

9 Democratic Unionist Party Councillor Bunting 

10 Democratic Unionist Party Alderman Dorrian 

11 Democratic Unionist Party Alderman Haire 

12 Democratic Unionist Party Alderman Kingston 

13 Democratic Unionist Party Councillor Pankhurst 

14 Democratic Unionist Party Alderman Sandford 

Page 4



 
 

Annual Meeting of Council, 
Tuesday, 1st June, 2021 

 
 

 
 

A816 
 
 

15 Alliance Party Councillor Long 

16 Alliance Party Councillor McAllister 

17 Alliance Party Councillor McDonough-Brown 

18 Alliance Party Councillor McReynolds 

19 Social Democratic and Labour Party Councillor Heading 

20 Social Democratic and Labour Party Councillor Lyons 

 
 
City Growth and Regeneration Committee 
 

1 Sinn Fein Chairperson Councillor Murphy 

2 Democratic Unionist Party Deputy 
Chairperson 

Alderman Dorrian 

3 Sinn Fein Councillor Maskey 

4 Sinn Fein Councillor Beattie 

5 Sinn Fein Councillor Donnelly 

6 Sinn Fein Councillor Gormley 

7 Sinn Fein Councillor McLaughlin 

8 Democratic Unionist Party Councillor Brooks 

9 Democratic Unionist Party Councillor Hussey 

10 Democratic Unionist Party Alderman Kingston 

11 Democratic Unionist Party Councillor Spratt 

12 Alliance Party Councillor Long 

13 Alliance Party Councillor Hanvey 

14 Alliance Party Councillor Howard 

15 Alliance Party Councillor McMullan 

16 Social Democratic and Labour Party Councillor Heading 

17 Social Democratic and Labour Party Councillor Lyons 

18 Social Democratic and Labour Party Councillor Whyte 

19 Green Party Councillor O’Hara 

20 People Before Profit Alliance Councillor Ferguson 

 
 
People and Communities Committee 
 

1 Democratic Unionist Party Chairperson Councillor Cobain 

2 Green Party Deputy 
Chairperson 

Councillor Smyth 

3 Sinn Fein Councillor Black 

4 Sinn Fein Councillor Corr 

5 Sinn Fein Councillor Garrett 

6 Sinn Fein Councillor Baker 

7 Sinn Fein Councillor Magee 

8 Sinn Fein Councillor McAteer 

9 Democratic Unionist Party Councillor Bunting 

10 Democratic Unionist Party Councillor Newton 

11 Democratic Unionist Party Councillor Pankhurst 

12 Democratic Unionist Party Councillor Verner 

13 Alliance Party Councillor Michelle Kelly 

14 Alliance Party Councillor McReynolds 

15 Alliance Party Councillor Mulholland 

16 Social Democratic and Labour Party Councillor de Faoite 

Page 5



 
 

Annual Meeting of Council, 
Tuesday, 1st June, 2021 

 
 

 
 

A817 
 
 

17 Social Democratic and Labour Party Councillor McCusker 

18 Green Party Councillor Flynn 

19 People Before Profit Alliance Councillor Michael Collins 

20 Ulster Unionist Party Alderman Copeland 

 
 
Licensing Committee 
 

1 Sinn Fein Chairperson Councillor Donnelly 

2 Ulster Unionist Party Deputy 
Chairperson 

Alderman Rodgers 

3 Sinn Fein Councillor Bradley 

4 Sinn Fein Councillor McCabe 

5 Sinn Fein Councillor Magee 

6 Sinn Fein Councillor Magennis 

7 Sinn Fein Councillor McAteer 

8 Democratic Unionist Party Councillor Bunting 

9 Democratic Unionist Party Councillor Tracy Kelly 

10 Democratic Unionist Party Alderman McCoubrey 

11 Democratic Unionist Party Councillor McCullough 

12 Democratic Unionist Party Alderman Sandford 

13 Alliance Party Councillor Howard 

14 Alliance Party Councillor Michelle Kelly 

15 Alliance Party Councillor Mulholland 

16 Social Democratic and Labour Party Councillor McCusker 

17 Social Democratic and Labour Party Councillor McKeown 

18 Green Party Councillor Smyth 

19 People Before Profit Alliance Councillor Michael Collins 

20 Progressive Unionist Party Councillor Hutchinson 

 
 
Planning Committee 
 

1 Sinn Fein Chairperson Councillor Carson 

2 Alliance Party Deputy 
Chairperson 

Councillor Hanvey 

3 Sinn Fein Councillor Garrett 

4 Sinn Fein Councillor Maskey 

5 Sinn Fein Councillor Murphy 

6 Democratic Unionist Party Councillor Brooks 

7 Democratic Unionist Party Councillor Hussey 

8 Democratic Unionist Party Councillor McCullough 

9 Alliance Party Councillor McMullan 

10 Social Democratic and Labour Party Councillor Whyte 

11 Green Party Councillor Groogan 

12 Green Party Councillor O’Hara 

13 People Before Profit Alliance Councillor Matthew Collins 

14 Progressive Unionist Party Councillor Hutchinson 

 
  

Page 6



 
 

Annual Meeting of Council, 
Tuesday, 1st June, 2021 

 
 

 
 

A818 
 
 

 
Brexit Committee 
 

1 Sinn Fein Chairperson Councillor Baker 

2 Social Democratic and Labour Party Deputy 
Chairperson 

Councillor McKeown 

3 Sinn Fein Councillor McLaughlin 

4 Sinn Fein Councillor Canavan 

5 Sinn Fein Councillor Gormley 

6 Sinn Fein Councillor Magennis 

7 Sinn Fein Councillor Walsh 

8 Democratic Unionist Party Councillor Brooks 

9 Democratic Unionist Party Alderman Haire 

10 Democratic Unionist Party Councillor Tracy Kelly 

11 Democratic Unionist Party Alderman Sandford 

12 Democratic Unionist Party Councillor Spratt 

13 Alliance Party Councillor Hanvey 

14 Alliance Party Councillor Long 

15 Alliance Party Councillor McDonough-Brown 

16 Social Democratic and Labour Party Councillor de Faoite 

17 Green Party Councillor Flynn 

18 People Before Profit Alliance Councillor Ferguson 

19 Ulster Unionist Party Alderman Rodgers 

20 Progressive Unionist Party Councillor Kyle 

 
 
Belfast Waterfront and Ulster Hall Ltd. Shareholders’ Committee 
 

1 Sinn Fein Chairperson Councillor McCabe 

2 Democratic Unionist Party Deputy 
Chairperson 

Councillor Newton 

3 Sinn Fein Councillor Bradley 

4 Sinn Fein Councillor Magee 

5 Sinn Fein Councillor McAteer 

6 Democratic Unionist Party Councillor Cobain 

7 Democratic Unionist Party Alderman Haire 

8 Alliance Party Councillor Michelle Kelly 

9 Alliance Party Councillor Mulholland 

10 Social Democratic and Labour Party Councillor McCusker 

11 Green Party Councillor Flynn 

12 People Before Profit Alliance Councillor Matthew Collins 

13 Ulster Unionist Party Alderman Copeland 

14 Progressive Unionist Party Councillor Kyle 

 
 The Council agreed to appoint the Members to the Council’s Standing Committees 
for 2021/2022, as set out above. 
 
 

Lord Mayor 
Chairperson 

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
 

A 
 
 

Council 
 

SPECIAL MEETING OF BELFAST CITY COUNCIL 
 

Held Remotely via Microsoft Teams on Tuesday, 1st June, 2021 
at 7.45 p.m., pursuant to notice. 

 
 Members present:    The Right Honourable the Lord Mayor; 
  (Councillor Nicholl) (Chairperson); 
  The Deputy Lord Mayor, (Alderman Haire); 
  The High Sheriff (Councillor Long); 
  Aldermen Copeland, Dorrian, Kingston, McCoubrey,  
  Rodgers and Sandford; and Councillors Baker,  

Beattie, Black, Bradley, Brooks, Bunting, Canavan, 
Carson, Cobain, Matt Collins, Michael Collins, Corr, 
De Faoite, Donnelly, Ferguson, Flynn, Garrett, 
Gormley, Groogan, Hanvey, Heading, Howard, 
Hussey, Hutchinson, M. Kelly, T. Kelly, Kyle, Lyons, 
Magee, Magennis, Maskey, McAllister, McAteer, 
McCabe, McCusker, McDonough-Brown, McKeown, 
McLaughlin, McMullan, McReynolds, Mulholland, 
Murphy, Newton, O’Hara, Pankhurst, Smyth, Spratt, 
Verner, Walsh and Whyte. 

 
Summons 

 
 The Chief Executive submitted the summons convening the meeting. 
 

Apologies 
 
 An apology for inability to attend was reported for Councillor McCullough. 
 

Declarations of Interest 
 
 The Deputy Lord Mayor, Alderman Haire, declared an interest in relation to item 
4. b), Chief Executive’s Decisions taken under Delegated Authority for the People and 
Communities Committee, under the heading Request for use of premises - Barnett 
Demesne, in that he was a Trustee of the County Grand Orange Lodge of Belfast.  
 

Request to Address the Council 
 

 The Chief Executive reported that a request to address the Council had been 
received from Ms. Sue Pentel and Mr. Mohammed Samaana in relation to the motion on 
the UK and Irish Governments’ expulsion of Israeli Ambassadors which would be 
proposed by Councillor Ferguson later in the meeting.  
 
 The Council acceded to the request and, accordingly, Ms. Pentel and Mr. 
Samaana joined the meeting via Microsoft Teams and were welcomed by the Lord Mayor.  
 
 Mr. Samaana explained to the Members that he was born and raised in Palestine 
and that, during that period he lived in Jerusalem working as a nurse.  He reported that, 
whilst in Jerusalem, he witnessed ethnic cleansing of Palestinians by the Israeli Council 

Page 9



 
 

Meeting of Council, 
Tuesday, 1st June, 2021 

 
 

 
 

A 
 
 

by means of denial of planning permission for housing, denial of spousal residency for 
Palestinians and the removal of residential status resulting in Palestinians living in a 
disused buildings with no doors, windows or hygiene facilities.   
 
 He pointed out that continuous attacks, intimidation, and denial of attendance at 
places of worship were all used as means of persecution and that most of the attacks 
were on civilian areas.  
 
 He concluded by adding that it was important to support the motion as boycott and 
sanctions were non-violent means of resistance and change and that it was important that 
the world take action only for the sake of peace  
 
 Ms. Pentel thanked Mr. Samaana for his contribution and explained that she was 
a representative of Jewish Voice for Just Peace and the Ireland Palestine Solidarity 
Campaign.  She informed the Council that she was part of a diverse group of Jews living 
in Ireland who support the Palestinian struggle for human rights and justice, a struggle 
that resonated with the Irish journey towards peace. 
 
 She reported that antisemitism was increasing and that the fight against it should 
be joined with racism and xenophobia.  
 
 She stated that she felt strongly that it should oppose the actions of Israeli 
Government and called for support for the motion  
 
 The Lord Mayor thanked the representatives for their attendance, and they retired 
from the meeting. 
       
 The Council noted the information which had been provided and that Members 
would, later in the meeting, have an opportunity to discuss the matter.  
       
 

Decisions of the Chief Executive taken under Delegated Authority 
 

Strategic Policy and Resources Committee 
 
 Moved by Councillor Groogan, 

Seconded by Councillor Beattie, and 
 

 Resolved – That, in accordance with the Council decision of 4th May, 
the decisions of the Chief Executive, taken under delegated authority for 
the Strategic Policy and Resources Committee, and the minute of the 
meeting of the Members of the Committee of 21st May, be approved and 
adopted. 
 
 At the request of Councillor McMullan, the Council agreed that a report 
be submitted to a future meeting of the Committee, to provide an update 
on the potential to work with deaf people and the Department for 
Communities, to promote and roll out classes or training to local 

Page 10



 
 

Meeting of Council, 
Tuesday, 1st June, 2021 

 
 

 
 

A 
 
 

community and voluntary groups and businesses, to train staff in basic sign 
language. 
 

People and Communities Committee 

 
Moved by Councillor Cobain, 
Seconded by Councillor Pankhurst,  

 
 That, in accordance with the Council decision of 4th May the decisions 
of the Chief Executive, taken under delegated authority for the People and 
Communities Committee and the minute of the meeting of the Members of 
the Committee, of 11th May be approved and adopted. 
 

Amendment 
 
Resources and Fleet Update – 
(Waste Collections and Management) 
 
Moved by Councillor de Faoite, 
Seconded by Councillor Smyth, and 
 

 Resolved – “That the minute of the meeting of the Members of the 
People and Communities Committee of 11th May, under the heading 
“Resources and Fleet Update –(Waste Collections and Management)” be 
amended to reflect that Belfast City Council supports the implementation 
of a full bottle deposit return scheme as opposed to an "on the go" 
scheme.” 
 
Adoption of Minutes 
 
 Subject to the foregoing amendment, the decisions of the Chief 
Executive, taken under delegated authority for the People and 
Communities Committee and the minutes of the meeting of the Members 
of the People and Communities Committee of 11th May, were approved 
and adopted.  
 

 
City Growth and Regeneration Committee 

 
Moved by Councillor Brooks, 
Seconded by Councillor Maskey,  

 
 That, in accordance with the Council decision of 4th May, the decisions 
of the Chief Executive, taken under delegated authority for the City Growth 
and Regeneration Committee, the minute of the meeting of the Members 
of the Committee of 12th May, and the minute of the proceedings of the 
City Growth and Regeneration Committee of 28th April, be approved and 
adopted. 
 
 

Page 11



 
 

Meeting of Council, 
Tuesday, 1st June, 2021 

 
 

 
 

A 
 
 

Amendment 
 

 Sustainable Travel - Notice of Motion Update 
 

Moved by Councillor Groogan, 
Seconded by Councillor Kyle, 
 
 That the decision of the Chief Executive, taken under delegated 
authority for the City Growth and Regeneration Committee, under the 
heading “Sustainable Travel – Notice of Motion Update” be rejected and, 
the associated minute of the meeting of the Members of the Committee of 
12th May, be amended to reflect that:  
 
 “This Council agrees to write to the Minister of Infrastructure to state 
that the Experimental Traffic Control Scheme Permitted (Taxis in Bus 
Lanes), which was proposed by her Department, no longer has this 
Council’s support and to urge her to not progress this further. Instead we 
will outline our commitment to sustainable transport modes given the 
dangerous levels of air pollution and congestion across the city and in the 
context of our climate emergency, focusing efforts on further measures to 
enhance the provision of public transport, safe and segregated cycle 
infrastructure, pedestrian priority and a package of measures to support 
taxi drivers to transition to electric vehicles, in line with the principles of a 
just transition.’ 
 

 On a recorded vote, twenty-four Members voted for the amendment and thirty-two 
against, with three no votes, and it was declared lost. 
 

For 24 
 

Against 32 No Vote 3 

The Lord Mayor (Councillor 
Nicholl); and 
The High Sheriff (Councillor 
Long); and 
Aldermen Copeland and 
Rodgers; and 
Councillors de Faoite, Flynn, 
Groogan, Hanvey, Heading, 
Howard, Hutchinson, M. 
Kelly, Kyle, Lyons, 
McAllister, McCusker, 
McDonough-Brown, 
McKeown, McMullan, 
McReynolds, Mulholland, 
O’Hara, Smyth and Whyte.  
 

The Deputy Lord Mayor 
(Alderman Haire); and 
Aldermen Dorrian, Kingston, 
McCoubrey and Sandford; 
and 
Councillors Baker, Beattie, 
Black, Bradley, Brooks, 
Bunting, Canavan, Carson, 
Cobain, Corr, Donnelly, 
Garrett, Gormley, Hussey, T. 
Kelly, Magee, Magennis, 
Maskey, McCabe, McAteer, 
McLaughlin, Murphy, 
Newton, Pankhurst, Spratt, 
Verner and Walsh.  

Councillors Matt 
Collins, Michael Collins 
and Ferguson.  

 
 
 
 

Page 12



 
 

Meeting of Council, 
Tuesday, 1st June, 2021 

 
 

 
 

A 
 
 

Adoption of Minutes 
 
 The decisions of the Chief Executive, taken under delegated authority 
for the City Growth and Regeneration Committee and the minutes of the 
meeting of the Members of the Committee of 11th May, were approved 
and adopted.  

 
Licensing Committee 

 
Moved by Councillor Donnelly,  
Seconded by Councillor McCabe, and 

 
 Resolved – That, in accordance with the Council decision of 4th May, 
the decisions of the Chief Executive, taken under delegated authority for 
the Licensing Committee and the minutes of the meeting of the Members 
of the Licensing Committee of 19th May, be approved and adopted. 

 
Planning Committee 

 
Moved by Councillor Carson, 
Seconded by Councillor Maskey and 
 
 Resolved - That, in accordance with the Council decision of 4th May, 
the decisions of the Chief Executive, taken under delegated authority for 
the Planning Committee and the minutes of the meeting of the Members 
of the Planning Committee of 18th and 20th May, be approved and 
adopted. 
 

 
Belfast Waterfront and Ulster Hall Ltd. Stakeholders' Committee 

 
Moved by Councillor McCabe, 
Seconded by The Deputy Lord Mayor (Alderman Haire) and 

 
 Resolved - That, in accordance with the Council decision of 4th May, 
the decisions of the Chief Executive, taken under delegated authority for 
the Belfast Waterfront and Ulster Hall Ltd. Shareholders’ Committee and 
the minutes of the meeting of the Members of the Belfast Waterfront and 
Ulster Hall Ltd. Shareholders’ Committee of 17th May, be approved and 
adopted. 

 
Brexit Committee 

 
Moved by Councillor Baker, 
Seconded by Councillor McCabe and 

 
 Resolved - That, in accordance with the Council decision of 4th May, 
the decisions of the Chief Executive, taken under delegated authority for 

Page 13



 
 

Meeting of Council, 
Tuesday, 1st June, 2021 

 
 

 
 

A 
 
 

the Brexit Committee and the minutes of the meeting of the Members of 
the Brexit Committee of 13th May, be approved and adopted. 

 
Motions 

 
Private Members Bill to provide Safe Access Zones  
around all facilities providing sexual and reproductive  
health care services and information 
 

In accordance with notice on the agenda Councillor Groogan proposed: 
 

“This Council notes the increasing occurrence of harassment outside 
healthcare facilities in Belfast, Newry and across Northern Ireland at 
healthcare premises that offer reproductive and family planning services. 
This often includes the display of traumatising graphic anti-choice imagery, 
which this Council has already undertaken to seek to regulate, and attempt 
to interfere with the ability of patients and staff to access healthcare.  
   
This Council condemns all forms of harassment and intimidation directed 
at patients and staff within our Health Service.  
   
This Council reaffirms its belief in the right of all individuals to have safe 
access to healthcare, free from attempts to harass, frighten and intimidate 
and supports Clare Bailey MLA's Private Members Bill to introduce 
safe access zones around all facilities providing sexual and reproductive 
health care services and information.” 
 
The motion was seconded by Alderman Copeland.  
 
After discussion, the motion was put to the meeting and passed. 

 
The Employment Rights (NI) Order 1996 
 

In accordance with notice on the agenda Councillor Lyons proposed: 
 
“That this Council notes with alarm the growing number of employers, 
especially in the retail, hospitality and aviation sectors, who are making 
employees redundant before re-employing them on less-favourable  terms 
and conditions; believes that these employers should instead be focused 
on supporting their employees through this pandemic; agrees with Unite 
the union and others that this fire-and-rehire practice makes a mockery of 
workers’ rights. 
 
This Council therefore calls on the Department for Economy to close this 
legal loophole as a matter of urgency, for example by amending The 
Employment Rights (Northern Ireland) Order 1996 to specify that such 
redundancies should automatically be regarded as unfair dismissals.” 

 

The motion was seconded by Councillor Heading. 
 

Page 14



 
 

Meeting of Council, 
Tuesday, 1st June, 2021 

 
 

 
 

A 
 
 

After discussion, the motion was put to the meeting and passed. 
 

Request to the Irish Government and the UK  
Government to expel from office Israeli Ambassadors 
 

In accordance with notice on the agenda Councillor Ferguson proposed: 
 

“The Council notes: 
 
That Palestinians have endured the longest ongoing refugee crisis in the 
world, and respects the right of return as enshrined in international law; 
 
That the current escalation of violence was instigated by the attempt to 
evict 28 Palestinian families from the Sheikh Jarrah area of Jerusalem as 
part of an ongoing and systematic campaign of illegal Israeli settlements 
and ethnic cleansing of Palestinians from their land; 
 
That Israel’s military operation in Gaza amounts to the ongoing ethnic 
cleansing of Palestinians, and illegal settlement expansion, represents 
flagrant breaches of international law; 
 
That a growing list of human rights organisations have determined that 
Israel’s action amount to apartheid, including the latest report by Human 
Rights Watch; 
 
That normal co-operation with the Israeli state is therefore untenable in 
these circumstances. 
 
The Council recognises the rich history of solidarity and activism in this city 
from all communities for Palestine, including very recently when a huge 
demonstration called for an end to Israeli mistreatment of the Palestinians; 
and that such solidarity on the part of our citizens can be an important tool 
in dismantling support for Israel’s actions.  
  
The Council therefore condemns the actions of the Israeli state, as listed 
above, and agrees to write to the Irish Government and the UK 
Government, urging them to expel from office Israeli ambassadors, with 
immediate effect.” 

 
The motion was seconded by Councillor Matt Collins. 
 

Amendment 
 

 Moved by Councillor McAllister, 
 Seconded by Councillor Mulholland, 

 
That the motion standing in the name of Councillor Ferguson and 
seconded by Councillor Matt Collins be amended as follows:  
 

Page 15



 
 

Meeting of Council, 
Tuesday, 1st June, 2021 

 
 

 
 

A 
 
 

To delete the concluding paragraph from: “The Council therefore 
condemns the actions of the Israeli state, as listed above, and agrees to 
write to the Irish Government and the UK Government, urging them to 
expel from office Israeli ambassadors, with immediate effect” and replace 
it with the following:  “This Council calls on the UK and Irish 
governments to make clear to their Israeli counterpart that relations 
cannot continue as normal while Israel persists with its illegal 
settlement policy and disproportionate use of force, and stresses 
that both governments must consider all economic and diplomatic 
measures to ensure Israel upholds international law.” 
 
The motion, as amended, therefore read: 
 
“The Council notes: 
 
That Palestinians have endured the longest ongoing refugee crisis in the 
world, and respects the right of return as enshrined in international law; 
 
That the current escalation of violence was instigated by the attempt to 
evict 28 Palestinian families from the Sheikh Jarrah area of Jerusalem as 
part of an ongoing and systematic campaign of illegal Israeli settlements 
and ethnic cleansing of Palestinians from their land; 
 
That Israel’s military operation in Gaza amounts to the ongoing ethnic 
cleansing of Palestinians, and illegal settlement expansion, represents 
flagrant breaches of international law; 
 
That a growing list of human rights organisations have determined that 
Israel’s action amount to apartheid, including the latest report by Human 
Rights Watch; 
 
That normal co-operation with the Israeli state is therefore untenable in 
these circumstances. 
 
The Council recognises the rich history of solidarity and activism in this city 
from all communities for Palestine, including very recently when a huge 
demonstration called for an end to Israeli mistreatment of the Palestinians; 
and that such solidarity on the part of our citizens can be an important tool 
in dismantling support for Israel’s actions. 
 
This Council calls on the UK and Irish governments to make clear to their 
Israeli counterpart that relations cannot continue as normal while Israel 
persists with its illegal settlement policy and disproportionate use of force, 
and stresses that both governments must consider all economic and 
diplomatic measures to ensure Israel upholds international law.” 
 

 On a recorded vote, ten Members voted for the proposal, as amended, and forty-
nine against, and it was declared lost.  

 

Page 16



 
 

Meeting of Council, 
Tuesday, 1st June, 2021 

 
 

 
 

A 
 
 

For 10 
 

Against 49 

The Right Honourable the Lord Mayor 
(Councillor Nicholl); and 
The High Sheriff (Councillor Long); and 
Councillors Hanvey, Howard, M. Kelly, 
McAllister, McDonough-Brown, McMullan, 
McReynolds and Mulholland 

The Deputy Lord Mayor, (Alderman 
Haire); and 
Aldermen Copeland, Dorrian, Kingston, 
McCoubrey, Rodgers and Sandford; and 
Councillors Baker, Beattie, Black, Bradley, 
Brooks, Bunting, Canavan, Carson, 
Cobain, Matt Collins, Michael Collins, 
Corr, De Faoite, Donnelly, Ferguson, 
Flynn, Garrett, Gormley, Groogan,  
Heading, Hussey, Hutchinson, T. Kelly, 
Kyle, Lyons, Magee, Magennis, Maskey, 
McAteer, McCabe, McCusker, McKeown, 
McLaughlin, Murphy, Newton, O’Hara, 
Pankhurst, Smyth, Spratt, Verner, Walsh 
and Whyte. 
  

 
 The original motion, as proposed by Councillor Ferguson and seconded by 
Councillor Matt Collins, was thereupon put to the meeting and, on a recorded vote, thirty-
one Members voted for the motion and twenty-eight against and it was declared carried. 
 

For 31 
 

Against 28 

Councillors Baker, Beattie, Black, Bradley, 
Canavan, Carson, Matt Collins, Michael 
Collins, Corr, De Faoite, Donnelly, 
Ferguson, Flynn, Garrett, Gormley, 
Groogan, Heading, Lyons, Magee, 
Magennis, Maskey, McAteer, McCabe, 
McCusker, McKeown, McLaughlin, Murphy 
O’Hara, Smyth, Walsh and Whyte. 
 
 
 

The Right Honourable the Lord Mayor 
(Councillor Nicholl); and 
The High Sheriff (Councillor Long); and 
The Deputy Lord Mayor, (Alderman 
Haire); and 
Aldermen Copeland, Dorrian, Kingston, 
McCoubrey, Rodgers and Sandford; and 
Councillors Brooks, Bunting, Cobain, 
Hanvey, Howard, Hussey, Hutchinson, M. 
Kelly, T. Kelly, Kyle, McAllister, 
McDonough-Brown, McMullan, 
McReynolds, Mulholland, Newton, 
Pankhurst, Spratt, and Verner.  
  

 
 
Ballymurphy Massacre 
 

In accordance with notice on the agenda Councillor Corr proposed: 
 
“That this Council commends the Ballymurphy families on their long 
campaign to vindicate the memory of their loved ones murdered by the 
British Army in 1971; welcomes the findings of the Coroner that all 
deceased were entirely innocent of any wrongdoing and acknowledges her 

Page 17



 
 

Meeting of Council, 
Tuesday, 1st June, 2021 

 
 

 
 

A 
 
 

criticism of the British State’s shocking and abject failing to investigate 
what happened as further evidence of its ongoing attempts to frustrate 
truth and justice for bereaved families; reaffirms the Council’s support for 
the full and immediate implementation of the Stormont House Agreement 
legacy mechanisms in a human rights compliant manner; and rejects any 
attempt by the British Government to introduce an amnesty or statute of 
limitations in relation to the conflict.” 
 
The motion was seconded by Councillor Donnelly. 
 

Amendment 
 

 Moved by Alderman Kingston, 
 Seconded by Councillor Pankhurst, 

 
That the motion standing in the name of Councillor Corr and seconded by 
Councillor Donnelly be amended as follows:  

 
“That this Council commends the Ballymurphy families on their long 
campaign to vindicate the memory of their loved ones killed by the British 
Army in 1971; welcomes the findings of the Coroner that all deceased were 
entirely innocent of any wrongdoing and rejects any attempt by the 
Government to advance proposals without the agreement of the Northern 
Ireland political parties.” 
 

 The Council agreed to vote on the amended motion, when fifteen Members voted 
for the motion and forty-one against, with two no votes, and it was declared lost.  

 
 The original motion, as proposed by Councillor Corr and seconded by Councillor 
Donnelly, was thereupon put to the meeting and passed.  

 
 
 

Local Government Pension Scheme –  
Responsible Investment Strategy 
 

In accordance with notice on the agenda Councillor Murphy proposed: 
 

"This council notes that recent weeks have seen the most serious 
escalation of violence in Israel and the occupied Palestinian territory since 
2014, with a tragic impact on innocent civilians and loss of life, including 
the deaths of over 60 children.  Condemns the indiscriminate targeting of 
civilian populations and infrastructure, and the disproportionate impact this 
has had, particularly in the Gaza strip. 
 
This council recognises that the displacement of Palestinian communities 
in East Jerusalem and across the West Bank, and the expansion of illegal 
Israeli settlements, undermines the prospect of peace – not just in recent 

Page 18



 
 

Meeting of Council, 
Tuesday, 1st June, 2021 

 
 

 
 

A 
 
 

weeks but over decades – and represents a flagrant violation of 
international law. 
 
Therefore, this council will write to the Local Government Pension Scheme 
to seek as part of its responsible investment strategy that it will begin the 
process of divesting from any Israeli Sate owned company or private 
company involved in the occupation and the violation of Palestinian human 
rights. This will include any companies listed by the United Nations as 
operating in these illegal Israeli settlements within the occupied Palestinian 
territories. 
 
We will also ask that NILGOSC carry out its own due diligence into any 
other companies which are not included on this list but are known to be 
involved in or with these illegal settlements. 
 
Finally, this council will ask that the divestment process is time bound to a 
period of 12 months from when NILGOSC makes those companies 
involved first aware of the complaint and intention to divest.” 

 

The motion was seconded by Councillor Walsh. 
 
 The Council agreed to vote on the motion, when forty-one Members voted for the 
motion and sixteen against, and it was declared carried.  

 
 
End Child Poverty 
 

In accordance with notice on the agenda Councillor Heading proposed: 
 

“This Council notes the recent report commissioned by the End Child 
Poverty coalition into levels of child poverty. 
 
This Council further notes from the report one in four children are growing 
up in poverty with two thirds growing up in families were parents are in 
work. 
 
The Council therefore calls on the NI Executive to adopt the following: 
 

1. To expedite the recommendations on child poverty by an 
expert panel to the Department of Communities 

 
2. Strengthen the welfare mitigations and drop the two child 

limit within Universal Credit 
 

3. Support the £20 uplift in Tax Credits and Universal 
Credit  by lobbying the Chancellor to continue this increase 
beyond September 2021.” 

 
The motion was seconded by Councillor McCusker. 

Page 19



 
 

Meeting of Council, 
Tuesday, 1st June, 2021 

 
 

 
 

A 
 
 

 
The motion was put to the meeting and passed. 

 
PEACE IV to PEACE PLUS Programmes 
 

In accordance with notice on the agenda Councillor Kyle proposed: 
 

“This Council calls for and supports the seamless transition of the current 
PEACE 4 to PEACE Plus programmes, currently administered under 
SEUPB.  In particular, in light of the projected gap in funding of 18 months, 
it calls for the continuation of the vital youth provision within Belfast under 
the peace4youth STRIVE Programme. 
 
The Council will write to the Executive Office and SEUPB asking that the 
necessary funds are made available to ensure the transition is, as 
promised, seamless.” 

 
The motion was seconded by Councillor Heading.  
 

 The motion was put to the meeting and passed. 
 
 
 
 
 

Lord Mayor 
Chairperson 

Page 20



Document is Restricted

Page 21

Agenda Item 6a
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 6
of the Local Government Act (Northern Ireland) 2014.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 33

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 6
of the Local Government Act (Northern Ireland) 2014.



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
 
 

Ad Hoc Committee 
 
 

Monday, 14th June, 2021 
 

MEETING OF AD HOC COMMITTEE 
HELD REMOTELY VIA MICROSOFT TEAMS 

 
 

 
 Members present: Councillor Carson (Chairperson); and  

Alderman Rodgers; and  
Councillors Baker, Cobain, Donnelly, Groogan, Hanvey, 
McCabe, McKeown, Murphy, Newton, Smyth and Walsh.  
 
 

 Also attended: Councillors de Faoite, Heading Lyons, McAteer and Whyte.  
 
 

 In attendance: Mr. J. Walsh, City Solicitor;  
  Mr. C. Campbell, Divisional Solicitor;  

   Mr. J. Hanna, Senior Democratic Services Officer;  
   and 
  Ms. C. Donnelly, Democratic Services Officer. 
 
 

Election of Chairperson 
 
 After discussion, it was: 
 

 Moved by Councillor Walsh, 
 Seconded by Councillor Baker, 
 
Resolved - That Councillor Carson be appointed to the position of 
Chairperson of the Ad Hoc Committee for the duration of the meeting. 

 
 Councillor Carson took the chair and then proceeded with the business on the 
agenda. 
 
 

Apologies 
 
 Apologies for inability to attend were reported for Alderman Dorrian.  
 
 

Declarations of Interest 
 
 No declarations of interest were reported.  
 
 
  

Page 111

Agenda Item 6b



 
Ad Hoc Committee, 

Monday, 14th June, 2021 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

THE MEMBERS OF THE AD HOC COMMITTEE CONSIDERED THE FOLLOWING 
ITEM IN ACCORDANCE WITH STANDING ORDER 47(8) AND (9): 

 
 

Call-in of the decision regarding the Standards and Business Committee 
 
 The City Solicitor submitted for the Committee’s consideration the undernoted 
report: 
 

“1.0 Purpose of Report/Summary of Main Issues 
 
1.1 To bring to the Committee’s attention Counsel’s opinion on 

the call-in of the decision on extension of the remit of the 
Standards Committee to include a business element.  

 
2.0 Recommendation 
 
2.1 The Members of the Committee are asked to consider the 

opinion and decide how it wishes to proceed. 
 
3.0 Main Report 
 
 Key Issues 
 
3.1 Members will recall that a report on the extension of the remit 

of the Standards Committee to incorporate a business 
element, and to include also a delegated power in relation to 
Notices of Motions, was submitted to the Strategic Policy and 
Recourses Committee on 23rd April, 2021 and subsequently 
agreed.  

 
3.2 This decision was ratified by the Council on 4th May, 2021. 
 
3.3 Subsequently, the decision was called-in and, in accordance 

with Standing Order 47(c)(5), the City Solicitor sought a legal 
opinion.. 

 
3.4 In relation to the Standards and Business Committee it 

concludes, at paragraph 21, ‘There was therefore no 
requirement for the subject decision to be taken by a qualified 
majority vote.  It is my opinion that there is no merit in the 
reason specified for call in.’ 

 
 Next Steps 
 

3.5  
1. This process adopted in coming to the decision which 

is the subject of the procedural call in must now be 
considered by the Ad-Hoc Committee.  As this advice 
has been provided at the request of the City Solicitor to 
assist with addressing the issues raised by the call-in, 

Page 112

https://minutes.belfastcity.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=454&MID=10494#AI61482


 
Ad Hoc Committee, 

Monday, 14th June, 2021 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

the Committee must consider this advice before 
making its decision on the call-in.   

3.6 
2. The powers of the Ad-Hoc Committee are set out at 

Standing Order 47(8) and (9): 
 
 (8)  A committee appointed in accordance with sub-paragraph 

 (4) of this standing order may—  
 

 (a)  refer the decision back to the decision maker;  
 (b)  in the case of a decision taken under delegated 

authority, support the decision;  
 or  

 (c)  in the case of a decision for ratification by the 
council, refer the decision to the council.  

 
 (9)  Where a decision has been supported in accordance with 

 sub-paragraph (8) of this standing order, that decision 
 shall—  

 
(a)  be approved;  
(b)  be inserted in the Register of Decisions; and  
(c)  become operative from the date of the meeting at 
which the committee appointed in accordance with 
sub-paragraph (4) of this standing order confirmed 
support for the decision. 

 
 Voting  
 
3.7 Members should note that the Chairperson and the Deputy 

Chairperson of the (Strategic Policy and Resources) 
Committee which made the decision do not have any voting 
rights. 

 
3.8 Also, it should be noted that, while those Members who 

submitted the call-in are invited to the meeting, they do not 
have voting rights unless they are voting Members of the Ad 
Hoc Committee. 

 
 Financial and Resource Implications 
 
 None. 
 
 Equality or Good Relations Implications 
 
 This decision, if agreed, may have potential equality, good 

relations and rural needs implications and should be subject 
to our normal screening process as appropriate.” 

 

Page 113



 
Ad Hoc Committee, 

Monday, 14th June, 2021 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 Following discussion, the Ad Hoc Committee agreed to accept the 
recommendation from Counsel, and to table the decision at the meeting of Council on 1st 
July, for ratification.  

 
 
 
 

Chairperson 

Page 114



Extract from minutes of:- 

 

STRATEGIC POLICY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE 

 

23rd April, 2021 

 

___ 

 

Standards and Business Committee – 
Draft Terms of Reference 

 
The Committee considered the following report: 

 
“1.0 Purpose of Report/Summary of Main Issues 
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to update the Committee on the 

development of draft Terms of Reference for a new Standards and 
Business Committee. 

 
2.0 Recommendation 
 
2.1 The Committee is recommended to note the report. 
 
3.0 Main Report 
 
3.1 Background 
 
3.1.1 The Strategic Policy and Resources Committee, at its meeting on 

18th September 2020, agreed to introduce additional arrangements 
to ensure that the Council, its officers and Elected Members 
maintain the highest standards of conduct in all that they do.  It 
was agreed that the Council establish a Standards Committee 
whose main functions would be to promote, sustain and safeguard 
the conduct of Councillors within the Council and the probity of all 
the Council’s proceedings.   

 
3.1.2 The role of the Committee will include the promotion and 

maintenance of high standards of conduct by Members and 
officers, a commitment to joint working across political groups 
and between officer and Members, oversight of any training 
required on all matters relating to standards and conduct, advising 
the Council on the Code of Conduct for Councillors and oversight 
of the Members’ Register and Declaration of Interests and 
associated procedures.   

 
3.1.3 The Committee will seek to enhance Member/Officer relations and 

promote a shared understanding of roles and responsibilities 
when working collectively in a political environment. 

 
3.1.4 In response to discussions at subsequent Committee meetings 

and with Party Groups it has been proposed that the new 
committee may also incorporate responsibility for specific roles in 

Page 115



relation to managing some of the business of the Council, 
including reviewing Standing Orders and a delegated power to 
receive Notices of Motion.  The Committee will operate on the basis 
of all Party membership but Members will note that this will require 
a facilitative arrangement with mutual agreement from all parties.  

  
3.2 Standards and Business Committee – 
 Proposed Terms of Reference 
 
3.2.1 The main functions of the proposed Standards and Business 

Committee would be to promote, sustain and safeguard the 
conduct of Councillors within the Council; to promote a 
collaborative working relationship between senior officers and 
Members; to ensure the probity of all the Council’s proceedings; 
and to review and improve processes in relation to bringing 
business before the Council, including any review of Standing 
Orders.   

 
3.2.2 The Committee will have oversight of a Local Resolution Protocol 

which will deal with ‘low level disputes’ between Members alleging 
breaches of the Code of Conduct for Councillors and will aim to 
restore positive working relationships through mediation.   

 
3.2.3 The Committee will have delegated authority to consider any 

recommendation by the Monitoring Officer to refer any Councillor 
to the Local Government Commissioner for Standards in respect 
of any potential breach of the Code of Conduct for Councillors, 
particularly where the alleged breach relates to a matter which 
would potentially have a reputational consequence for the Council.  
In such cases the Monitoring Officer will retain a residual right to 
refer any matter to the Commissioner for Standards regardless of 
whether the Standards Committee has endorsed a 
recommendation from the Monitoring Officer to do so.   

 
3.3.4 A protocol will be developed on how information will be minuted, 

so that personal information cannot be raised or discussed at 
Committee or Council meetings. 

 
3.3.5 The Committee will also consider any update reports 

into investigations carried out by the Public Services Ombudsman 
/ Commissioner for Standards. 

 
3.3.6 The Standards and Business Committee will also seek to improve 

processes in relation to bringing business before the council, 
including referring Notices of Motion and making amendments to 
Standing Orders.  However, it is not proposed that the Committee 
will have any role in relation to the agenda setting of any other 
Standing Committee but it will keep under review the overall 
business brought before the Council. 

 
3.3.7 A copy of the draft terms of reference are attached. These are draft 

Terms of Reference which will be updated based on the detail of 
the processes to be developed. Any updates will be brought back 
to the Committee for approval.    

  

Page 116



3.3 New Process for Notices of Motion 
 
 It is proposed that: 
 

 In the case of urgent Notices of Motion, the proposer will 
have the option to take the Notice of Motion either to the 
Standards and Business Committee or to full Council. 

 

 The Standards and Business Committee will have 
delegated authority to adopt or reject Notices of Motion. In 
either case, the Lord Mayor will indicate at Council those 
Notices of Motion that have been considered by the 
Standards and Business Committee and whether such 
Notices of Motion were rejected or adopted. In either case, 
the proposer only may speak on the issue at Council. 

 

 The Standards and Business Committee will refer all 
Notices of Motion directly to a standing committee when the 
matter to which the Notice of Motion refers falls within the 
remit of that committee. At Council, the Lord Mayor will 
indicate that the Notice of Motion was received and referred. 
There will be no speakers on such Notices of Motion at 
Council.  

 

 The Standards and Business Committee will refer Notices 
of Motion for consideration by full Council when the Notice 
of Motion relates to a strategic or constitutional matter. 

 

 The Standards and Business Committee will not have the 
power to amend the wording of any Notice of Motion that is 
being referred to full Council for debate. 

 

 Any amendments to Notice of Motions to be proposed at 
Council are to be furnished at least one day in advance of 
going to full Council and will be circulated to Party Group 
Leaders in advance of the Council meeting. 

 

 In referring any matter to full Council, the Standards and 
Business Committee may determine to restrict 
contributions to the debate in relation to any Notice of 
Motion to one per political party. At Council, the Lord Mayor 
will clearly indicate if the restriction applies. 

 
 The proposed changes required to the Standing Orders would be 

brought to next months’ meeting of the Strategic Policy and 
Resources Committee if this report is approved.  

 
3.4 Next Steps 
 
3.4.1 It is proposed that the new Committee, consisting of 20 Members, 

be constituted at the next AGM in June 2021. A review of the 
operation of the Committee and its associated processes will be 
undertaken in six months. 

 

Page 117



3.4.2 The Members have indicated a wish to have all party 
representation on the Committee. In order to ensure that this will 
happen, it will need to be mutually agreed, in advance of each new 
term of office, during the annual selection of remaining places on 
Committees, that the requisite spaces are reserved for those 
Parties which do not have a seat automatically allocated on the 
Committee.    

 
3.4.3 It is proposed that amendments to the Standing Orders will be 

brought to the Strategic Policy and Resources Committee to 
provide delegated authority for the new Committee to refer Notices 
of Motion to Council and to amend the defined timescales for 
submission and processing of such motions to fit within the 
monthly meeting cycle. 

 
 Financial and Resource Implications 
 
3.5 There will be minor financial implications associated with 

introducing a new Standing Committee. If the Standards and 
Business Committee is to meet monthly then it will require an 
associated Special Responsibility Allowance be allocated to the 
Chair and Deputy Chair positions of responsibility and funded 
from the reallocation of the existing Special Responsibility 
Allowance fund.  

 
3.6 The Committee will be serviced by existing resources within 

Governance and Compliance Services, including Democratic 
Services. A budget will be required to cover any associated 
training and external mediation services.  

 
 Equality or Good Relations Implications/ 
 Rural Needs Assessment 
 
3.7 Any equality, good relations and rural needs assessments 

implications will be subject to the usual screening processes. 
 

DRAFT TERMS OF REFERENCE 
 

The draft Terms of Reference for the Standards and Business Committee 
may include some or all of the following functions: 

 

 Standards 
 

 promoting and maintaining high standards of conduct by elected 
Members and in their working relationship with officers 

 

 a commitment to encourage positive joint working across political 
groups and between officers and Members and to uphold the high 
standards of values and behaviours in a relationship of mutual 
trust 

 

 supporting and facilitating collaborative working between 
Members and senior officers, particularly to support the 
consideration of strategic priorities by relevant Committees  

 

Page 118



 advising the Council on the Code of Conduct for Councillors 
including any revisions to the Code 

 

 oversight of any training required to train Members and relevant 
officers on all matters relating to standards and the promotion of 
the 12 Principles of Conduct in public life, including the Local 
Government Code of Conduct for Councillors and any associated 
training identified by the Committee 

 

 oversight of the Members’ Register and Declaration of Interests  
 

 to develop, monitor and review any local protocols required to 
support the standards regime within the Council 

 

 to ensure adherence to the Local Government Employee and 
Councillor Working Relationship Protocol  

 

 to consider any minutes of a formal meeting held under Section 
5.9 of the Local Government Employee and Councillor Working 
Relationship Protocol [tbc re GDPR] 

 

 oversight of the Local Resolution Protocol which will deal with 
“low level disputes” alleging breaches of the Code of Conduct for 
Councillors and is designed to restore positive working 
relationships through mediation1 

 

 consideration of any recommendation by the Monitoring Officer to 
refer any Councillor to the Local Government Commissioner for 
Standards in respect of any potential breach of the Code of 
Conduct for Councillors, particularly where the alleged breach 
relates to a matter which would potentially have a reputational 
consequence for the Council 

  
 the Monitoring Officer will retain a residual right to refer any matter 

to the Commissioner for Standards regardless of whether the 
Standards Committee has endorsed a recommendation from the 
Monitoring Officer to do so 

 

 oversight of the procedural requirements of any mediation 
process put in place to restore internal relationships between 
Political Parties, Members and/or officers  

 

 consideration of update reports into investigations carried out by 
the Public Services Ombudsman / Commissioner for Standards 

 

 oversight of the implementation of recommendations made by the 
Public Services Ombudsman / Commissioner for Standards 

 

 providing recommendations to the Strategic Policy and Resources 
Committee in respect of any amendments which need to be made 
to the Council Constitution in relation to the standards regime 
within the Council 

 

                                                           
1 The Local Resolution Protocol will only deal with minor complaints about councillors made by other 
councillors.  The Protocol will not consider complaints made by officers, members of the public or 
other third parties. The Protocol will not consider complaints made about officers. 

Page 119



 In respect of any other matter which may require some 
consideration in the context of standards, acting in an advisory 
capacity, with reports referred to it either directly by the reporting 
officer or by another Standing Committee 

 

 consideration of agenda items for other Standing Committees 
which identify standards implications  

 
 Business  
 

 receiving and reviewing all Notices of Motion and using the 
Committee’s delegated power to recommend either adoption or 
debate at the next Council meeting 

 

 Reviewing Council Standing Orders with a view to making 
recommendations to the Strategic Policy and Resources 
Committee 

 

 initial consideration and review of Council matters that are under 
internal or external investigation 

 

 keeping under review and monitoring the Council’s Scheme of 
Delegation 

 

 keeping under review and monitoring the Council’s administrative 
and procedural arrangements in relation to governance”  

 
Proposal 1 

 
Moved by Councillor Groogan, 
Seconded by Councillor Heading, 
 
 That the Committee agrees, in principle, to establish a Committee, and in 
advance of that, to set up a time bound working group to enable all Political 
Parties to work out recommendations on how to proceed. The working group 
should be facilitated by an external facilitator such as NILGA, if agreeable, and 
be tasked with producing a report on what Members currently view as the 
issues needing resolved and putting forward a set of independent 
recommendations for improvement and/or the remit/role/functions of the 
Standards and Business Committee. 
 

 On a vote, two Members voted for the proposal and seventeen against and it was 
declared lost. 
 

Proposal 2 
 

Moved by Councillor McAllister, 
Seconded by the High Sheriff (Councillor Long), 
 
 That the Committee agrees to remove the Business element from the new 
Committee. 
 

 On a vote, six Members voted for the proposal and thirteen against and it was declared 
lost. 
 

Proposal 3 

Page 120



 
Moved by Councillor Walsh, 
Seconded by Councillor Garrett, 
 
 That the Committee agrees to adopt the proposed draft Terms of Reference 
for the new Standards and Business Committee. 
 

 On a recorded vote, thirteen Members voted for the proposal and six against and it was 
declared carried. 
 
 

For 13 
 

Against 6 

Councillor Black (Chairperson); 
Aldermen Dorrian, Haire, Kingston and 
Sandford; and Councillors Beattie, Bunting, 
Carson, Garrett, McLaughlin, Murphy, 
Pankhurst and Walsh. 
 

The High Sheriff (Councillor Long); and  
Councillors Groogan, Heading, McAllister, 
McDonough-Brown and McReynolds. 
 

 

 

Page 121



This page is intentionally left blank



           CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S DECISIONS, TAKEN UNDER DELEGATED 
AUTHORITY FOR THE PEOPLE AND COMMUNITIES COMMITTEE 

 

DATE OF MEETING: 
COMPILATION OF COMMITTEE 

RECOMMENDATIONS SENT TO CX:  
CX’s COMMENTS RECEIVED: 

 

8th June, 2021 
 
9th June, 2021 
10th June, 2021 
 

FINAL CX DECISION REGISTER PUBLISHED: 11th June, 2021              
 
FINAL DATE FOR CALL-IN (10am): 18th June, 2021 

 Topic Chief Executive’s Decision Subject to call-in 

Presentations 

3a Presentation - Public Health Agency Noted.  

 

No 

3b Presentation - Waste as a resource, changing 
landscape  

Noted.  No 

3c Presentation - DfC Affordable Warmth update Noted. 

 

No 

Restricted Items 

2a Request for The Hire of Boucher Road 
Playing Fields 

In accordance with the Council decision of 4th May, the Chief 
Executive exercised her delegated authority to:  
 
(i) grant authority to Notorious Brands for the use of 

Boucher Road Playing Fields for a local music festival 
Planet Love in association with Cool FM from 6th 
September -13th September 2021; 

 
(ii) delegate authority to the Director of Neighbourhood 

Services to: 
  

 negotiate an appropriate fee which recognises the 
costs to Council, minimises negative impact on the 
immediate area and takes account of the potential 

Yes 

P
age 123

A
genda Item

 6c



wider benefit to the City economy, in conjunction with 
the Counci’ls Commercial Manager;  

 negotiate satisfactory terms and conditions of use via 
an appropriate legal agreement prepared by the City 
Solicitor, including managing final booking 
confirmation dates and flexibility around ‘set up’ and 
take down’ periods, and booking amendments, 
subject to:  

 
 

o the promoter resolving any operational issues to 
the Council’s satisfaction;  

o compliance with Coronavirus restrictions in place 
at the time of the event; and   

o the promoter meeting all the statutory 
requirements of the Planning and Building 
Control Service including the terms and 
conditions of the Park’s Entertainment Licence. 
 

Members noted that the above recommendations were taken 
as a pre-policy position, in advance of the Council agreeing a 
more structured framework and policy for ‘Events’, which was 
currently being taken forward in conjunction with the 
Council’s Commercial team. 
 
 

2b Rosario Youth Club - Funding Request In accordance with the Council decision of 4th May, the Chief 
Executive exercised her delegated authority to agree to 
provide a maximum financial payment to Rosario Youth Club 
of up to £2,000 per month for staff costs subject to vouching 
of fully evidenced expenditure from July 2021 to March 2022  
 

Yes 

2c Requests for the use of Parks for Summer 
Events report 

In accordance with the Council decision of 4th May, the Chief 
Executive exercised her delegated authority to grant authority 
to each of the applicants for the following proposed events: 
 

 Feile; 5th – 15th August at Falls Park; 

 Into the Woods; 9th - 15th August at Botanic 
Gardens; 

Yes 

P
age 124



 Finaghy Cultural Festival; 27th – 29th August at 
Wedderburn Park; 

 Culture Night; 17th September at Cathedral 
Gardens; 

 EastSide Arts Festival; 5th – 15th August along the 
Connswater Community Greenway; and  

 Belfast 24 Hour International Road Race;16th & 
17th October at Victoria Park. 

 
To grant authority to the Director to negotiate satisfactory 
terms and conditions of use, including any relevant fees, via 
an appropriate legal agreement prepared by the City 
Solicitor, including managing final booking confirmation dates 
and flexibility around ‘set up’ and take down’ periods, and 
booking amendments, subject to:  
 

 the promoter resolving any operational issues to the 
Council’s satisfaction; 

 compliance with Coronavirus restrictions in place at 
the time of the event; and 

 the promoter meeting all the statutory requirements of 
the Planning and Building Control Service including 
the terms and conditions of the Park’s Entertainment 
Licence. 

 
Members noted that the above recommendations were taken 
as a pre-policy position, in advance of the Council agreeing a 
more structured framework and policy for ‘Events’, which was 
currently being taken forward in conjunction with the 
Council’s Commercial team. 
 
 

Operational Issues 

4a Extended Producer Responsibility / Deposit 
Return Scheme - consultation update 

In accordance with the Council decision of 4th May, the Chief 
Executive exercised her delegated authority to retrospectively 
adopt the consultation responses to Extended Producer 
Responsibility for Packaging and Introducing a Deposit 
Return Scheme in England, Wales and Northern Ireland.  
 

Yes 

P
age 125



4b Proposal for naming new streets In accordance with the Council decision of 4th May, the Chief 
Executive exercised her delegated authority to approve the 
application for naming a new street in the City as set out 
below: 
 

Proposed 
Continuation of 
Existing Street               

Location   Applicant 

Hampton Park Off Saintfield 
Road, BT7 

Alan Patterson 
Design 

 
 

Yes 

4c Pest Control Update In accordance with the Council decision of 4th May, the Chief 
Executive exercised her delegated authority to: 

 write to NIHE and Housing Associations requesting 
that they communicate their role to their tenants in 
regard to the pest control services that they offer; 

 establish if there was an existing Memorandum of 
Understanding (MOU) with the NIHE and Housing 
Associations.  If so, update accordingly or 
alternatively draft a new document with an update 
report to be submitted to a future meeting of the 
Committee;   

 write to Northern Ireland Water highlighting the issues 
and asking them to reaffirm their preventive role and 
multiagency approach going forward; and    

 establish if the Members could log complaints via the 
Customer Hub which could then be referred via the 
hub to the other statutory agencies.   

 

Yes 

Committee/Strategic Issues 

5a Update on Community Planning and work of 

Living Here Board 

The Members of the Committee noted:  

 the key areas of work currently being progressed by 
the Living Here Board (LHB),  

 the alignment and synergies between the Board and 

No 

P
age 126



the work of the Committee; and  

 the proposed procedure for refreshing the Belfast 
Agenda and the role of Elected Members in supporting 
the process. 

5b Belfast Open Spaces Strategy - Delivery Plan The Members of the Committee noted the final version of the 
Belfast Open Spaces Strategy and the proposed approach 
and next steps in implementing the strategy through the 
development of smart outcomes-based delivery plans. 

 

No 

5c Belfast Healthy Cities In accordance with the Council decision of 4th May, the Chief 
Executive exercised her delegated authority to:  

 agree to extend the current partnership agreement with 
Belfast Healthy Cities to 31st March 2022; and  

 agree to a further report being submitted to committee in 
the Autumn which would detail both the findings and 
recommendations from the final version of the value for 
money review as well as the four core funding partners 
plans for acting on/responding to the 
findings/recommendations. 

 

Yes 

5d Naming of New Park at Colin In accordance with the Council decision of 4th May, the Chief 
Executive exercised her delegated authority to note the 
findings of the public consultation exercise on the name of the 
new park at Colin and approve the name of the new park in 
Colin as Páirc Nua Chollann.  

 

Yes 

Matters referred back from Council/ Motions 

6a Motion: Recent Violence and Public Disorder In accordance with the Council decision of 4th May, the Chief 
Executive exercised her delegated authority to:  

 agree that the Motion be considered at the next 
meeting of the Belfast Area Outcomes Group for CYP 
as the most appropriate forum of the relevant statutory 

Yes 

P
age 127



agencies and third sector organisations to inform a 
consistent, young person led approach for future 
summer periods; 

 

 note the recent engagement with the BHSCT and the 
DfC to discuss any future discretionary funding to 
support youth engagement and intervention and 
commitment to continue the collaborative, flexible, co-
design model successfully delivered by the BAOG and 
Locality groups for CYP Covid response programme 
support; 

 

 note ongoing arrangements to support continued, 
proactive, engagement with Trade Unions to ensure 
the safety of staff; and  

 

 note the historic and ongoing engagement with 
Department of Engagement and Youth Service 
officials to support the ongoing process for the 
formation of a NI Youth Assembly and to seek 
assurances that Youth Citizens' Assemblies would be 
considered as an engagement model to make 
recommendations for the city on addressing poverty, 
inequality, eradicating paramilitarism, integrating 
communities, expanding opportunity and tackling the 
climate crises. 

 
 

 

Please note that the agenda/reports associated with the decisions listed above can be accessed on the app and on the web, via the following 
link:  

http://www.internalminutes/mgChooseDocPack.aspx?ID=10316&SID=30011  

 

P
age 128

http://www.internalminutes/mgChooseDocPack.aspx?ID=10316&SID=30011


 
 

C1907 
 
 

People and Communities Committee 
 

Tuesday, 8th June, 2021 
 

 
MEETING OF PEOPLE AND COMMUNITIES COMMITTEE 

 
 

Members present: Councillor Cobain (Chairperson); 
 Alderman Rodgers; and   

Councillors Baker, Black, Bunting, Cobain, 
Michael Collins, Corr, de Faoite, Flynn, Garrett, 
M. Kelly, Magee, McAteer, McReynolds, Mulholland, 
Newton, Pankhurst, Smyth and Verner. 

 
 Also attended:  Councillors Heading, Lyons and O’Hara.  

  
In attendance: Mr. R. Black, Director of Neighbourhood Services;    
 Mrs. S. Toland, Director of City Services; 

Mr. H. Downey, Democratic Services Officer; and  
Mrs. S. Steele, Democratic Services Officer. 

 
 

Apologies 
  
 Apologies for inability to attend were reported on behalf of Alderman Copeland and 
Councillors Baker and McCusker. 
 

Condolences 
 

 The Chairperson, on behalf of the Committee, extended his condolences to 
Councillor Baker on the recent death of his father.   
 

Minutes 
 
 The minutes of the meeting of 11th May were taken as read and signed as correct.  
 
 It was reported that the minutes had been adopted by the Council at its meeting on 1st 
June, subject to the following amendment:  
 
Resources and Fleet Update  
(Waste Collections and Management)  
 
 At the request of Councillor de Faoite, the minute will now read. 
 
 ‘The Members noted the update and recommended that, in accordance with the 
Council decision of 4th May, the Chief Executive exercise her delegated authority to grant 
permission for Mr. Tim Walker, acting Chief Executive, arc21 to present to a future meeting of 
the Committee on relevant important proposed legislation affecting the future of Waste 
Collections and that Belfast City Council supports the implementation of a full bottle deposit 
return scheme as opposed to an "on the go" scheme.’ 
 

Page 129



 
People and Communities Committee, 

Tuesday, 8th June, 2021 
 
 

 
 

C1908 
 
 

  
Declarations of Interest 

 
 No Declarations of Interest were recorded. 
 

Presentations 
 
Public Health Agency 
 
 The Chairperson welcomed Ms. Frances Dowds, Belfast and South East Area 
Manager, Health and Social Care (HSC).  She commenced by explaining that her remit was 
specifically over drugs, alcohol, and mental health issues. Ms. Dowds then introduced her 
colleagues Mr. J. Brogan, Assistant Director of Integrated Care and Ms. K. Turner, Medicines 
Management Lead for Integrated Care, along with associates from the Public Health Authority 
(PHA), Ms. L. Wylie, Senior Health and Social Well Being Improvement Officer and Mr. M. 
Owen, Health and Social Well Being Improvement Manager. 
 
 Ms. Dowds thanked the Members for the opportunity to present and apologised for the 
delay in attending, which she explained had been a direct result of the Covid-19 pandemic and 
ongoing work pressures.  She advised that she and her colleagues would be presenting in 
regard to the ongoing work to try and reduce alcohol and drug related harm in Northern Ireland 
within the context of the New Strategic Direction for Alcohol and Drugs Strategy (2011-2016) 
and Draft Programme for Government Framework (2016 – 2021).   
 
 Mr. Rogan advised that the Department of Health (DoH) was currently leading on the 
development of a new Substance Use Strategy – ‘Preventing Harm and Empowering Recovery 
– A Strategic Framework to Tackle Substance Use’.  This strategy had been co-produced with 
a wide range of stakeholders and the public consultation had closed on 5th February 2021.  
He advised that the co-production writing group had been reconvened and was currently 
discussing the responses received, once complete, the final strategy would then be forwarded 
to the Minister for Health for his consideration and then to the Executive for final approval.    
 
 He highlighted that most of the responsibility for illegal substances had not been 
devolved and was still the responsibility of the Home Office, therefore, it was important for the 
Members to understand that the PHA did not have the lead in this area and it was trying to 
deliver within the parameters of the existing legislation.  He then provided an overview of the 
remits of both the Health and Social Care Board (HSCB) and the Public Health Agency (PHA).   
 
 The Committee was advised that, in addition to the new Substance Use Strategy, the 
following would also be key policy considerations going forward in 2021: 
 

 New Liquor Licensing Bill being progressed by Department for Communities 
(DfC); 

 Consultation on Minimum Unit Pricing for Alcohol; and  

 Consultation regarding the new Mental Health Strategy.  
 
 Ms. Dowds then provided the Committee with an overview of the PHA Health 
Improvement – Regional and Local Level Approach.  She advised that statistics showed that 
1 in 14 adults with a mental illness also suffered with a substance abuse disorder, therefore in 
terms of drugs and alcohol and mental health and suicide prevention it was essential that there 

Page 130



 
People and Communities Committee, 

Tuesday, 8th June, 2021 
 
 

 
 

C1909 
 
 

was a coordinated multi-agency approach to ensure the sharing of good practice.  She also 
referred to the high drug related deaths in areas of deprivation and stated that they were 
committed to focusing on addressing these inequalities.  
 
 The representative referred to the current treatment and crisis response and she 
outlined the proposed next steps for Belfast, as follows:  
 

 the strategic alignment of Belfast Drug and Alcohol Coordination Team 
(BDACT) and Belfast Protect Life Implementation Group (BPLIG); 

 a ‘whole system’ approach to supporting vulnerable with ‘complex lives’; 

 a Commitment to develop integrated, neighbourhood-based care supported by 
strong partnership with communities 

 establishing a integrated and multi-agency teams - fuelled by diverse skills and 
experience 

 progressing Joint Commissioning Agreement - underpinning partnership 
arrangements 

 Belfast has many of the foundations/elements – these need to be brought 
together; and  

 ‘Integrated and resourced plan ‘Doncaster Model’ as a driver for integrating, 
for example, Health, Social Care and Housing. 

 
 The representative referred to the Strategic Leadership Group, of which Belfast City 
Council was a Member, along with the Belfast Health and Social Care Trust (BHSCT), the 
PHA, the Police Service of Northern Ireland (PSNI), the Northern Ireland Housing Executive 
(NIHE), the Northern Ireland Ambulance Service (NIAS), Translink and the Belfast Drug and 
Alcohol Addition Team (BDACT).  She referred to the linkages that it had with the Community 
Planning Partnership and the Living Here Board and provided an overview of its strategic 
vision to adopt a Complex Lives Model – whole system approach, as follows: 
 

 The formation of a Multi-Agency Delivery Group – aligned with the BDACT 
priorities/action plan; 

 to Develop a SMART action plan and roadmap (short/medium/longer-
term); 

 utilise support from the Doncaster Complex Lives Alliance; 

 identify the potential co-location of teams and/or support (for example, 
community support hubs); and  

 to identifying vulnerable/at-risk people and mobilise the required support.  
 
 The representative then referred to the PHA funded Needle Exchange Service.  She 
explained that community pharmacies and non-pharmacy providers throughout Northern 
Ireland strived to provide a high quality and safe service for all clients, this included the 
provision of sterile injecting equipment and harm reduction advice.  The delivery of this service 
had been maintained throughout the pandemic.  She referred to the figures in respect of visits 
to the service and advised that, year on year, these had increased which was a positive 
outcome for the service and stressed that the PHA were keen to increase and promote the 
benefits of this service to local communities.  She reported that, unfortunately, two NSES 
providers within Belfast had withdrawn from the scheme within the last 20 months due to a 
mixture of antisocial behaviour issues and community protests.  She highlighted that not all 
people were in favour of these services being offered within their local communities.   
 

Page 131



 
People and Communities Committee, 

Tuesday, 8th June, 2021 
 
 

 
 

C1910 
 
 

 She also referred to the Take Home Naloxone (THN) programme which was another 
important lifesaving intervention also funded by the PHA.  This programme aimed to supply 
THN packs to those at risk of opioid overdose as well as opioid overdose responses training.   
 
 Regarding the Drug and Alcohol Monitoring Information System (DAMIS), the 
representative advised that this programme was funded by the DoH, with support from lead 
partners and was coordinated by the PHA, it currently had over 400 network members.  She 
explained that this was an e-mail based ‘early warning system’, aimed at identifying possible 
emerging trends in drug and alcohol misuse.   
 
 The Members welcomed the comprehensive update regarding the wide raging 
programmes that were already in existence and that the focus was on joined up working and 
multi-agency initiatives.   
 
 During discussion, the representatives answered a range of questions in relation to the 
possible establishment of a Citizens’ Assembly, Safe Injection Facilities (Drug Consumption 
Rooms) and the closure of the HSC in March 2022.  
 
 The importance of both the Community Planning Partnership and the Belfast Open 
Spaces Strategy were both discussed in terms of further progressing many of the 
issues/discussion further.  It was also noted that many of the concerns raised were difficult to 
resolve as they were working within the parameters of the existing legislation. 
 
 The representatives advised that more information was available at 
www.drugsandalcoholni.info, this site provided information regarding the services and 
supports systems that were available throughout Northern Ireland. 
 
 The Chairperson thanked the representatives for their comprehensive presentation 
following which they left the meeting.  
 
Waste as a Resource - Changing Landscape  
 
 The Chairperson welcomed Mr. T. Walker, Arc 21 Acting Chief Executive to the 
meeting to present an update on the Extended Producer Responsibility (EPR) and Deposit 
Return Scheme (DRS).   
 
 Mr. Walker commenced by explaining that the Government aimed to establish the 
transfer of responsibility from brands to Councils to ensure the producers paid the full cost of 
dealing with the waste packaging that they each produced. He explained that the original 
producer responsibility scheme did not support the principles of producers paying for the full 
costs, nor that the benefits should be spread across all stakeholders in the supply chain.  The 
aim of the new EPR scheme was to focus on addressing this shortfall to ensure that it was 
fairer to all stakeholders.  He advised that it was anticipated that the proposed changes would 
create an annual bill of over £2.7 billion, this would have profound implications upon the 
Council’s current waste activities and particularly on the financing of collection arrangements 
and revenue arising from the sale of recyclables.   
 
 He then advised the Members of the operational costs and potential infrastructure that 
the Council would require to enable delivery of the proposed scheme along with the following 
key dates: 

Page 132

http://www.drugsandalcoholni.info/


 
People and Communities Committee, 

Tuesday, 8th June, 2021 
 
 

 
 

C1911 
 
 

 

 Autumn 2021 –  Environmental Bill to receive Royal Assent; 

 2022 –  EPR Regulations laid before Parliament; 
 Obligated producers to compile and report packaging data; 
 Scheme Administrator procured in 2022and appointed in 2023; 

 2023 - Phase 1 – first payments to be made to Local Authorities from 
 October 2023 based on modelled costs; 

 2024 -  Phase 2 – Modulated fees, litter and business payments and full 
 net costs to be paid to Local Authorities; 

 2025 -  Packaging re-use targets from 2025; and  

 2026 - Plastic film from 2026.  
 
 In terms of the proposed Deposit Return Scheme (DRS), the representative advised 
that Northern Ireland, England and Wales had committed to introduce the scheme for drinks 
containers subject to further consultation, he advised that it was anticipated that this scheme 
would be implemented in late 2024, as part of the EPR Scheme to ensure that there was no 
gap in funding.  He then provided a comprehensive overview of the proposed scheme 
including information in respect of deposits, return points and digital options.  He stated that 
the recent consultation would help inform final policy decisions on key aspects of the scheme, 
such as governance, targets, and implementation timelines. 
 
 The representative concluded the presentation by advising that he felt that the 
proposals represented an opportunity in progressing the development of a Circular Economy 
and should be viewed as such.  The aim of placing the cost burden on producers would 
hopefully cause them to question whether their packaging was necessary, could be reduced, 
or not used at all, any reduction in waste packaging would be positive and should, in time, help 
to reduce the overall financial burden placed on councils in dealing with packaging waste.   
 
              The Chairperson thanked the representative for his comprehensive presentation 
following which he left the proceedings. 
 
 DfC Affordable Warmth update 
 
            The Chairperson welcome Mr. D. Polley, Director – Housing Supply Policy, and Ms. 
D. Knowes, Head of Affordable Warmth and Energy Branch, both representing the Department 
for Communities, to the meeting to address Member’s queries regarding the Affordable 
Warmth Scheme (AWS).  
 
            Mr. Polley commenced by advising that he was delighted to confirm that funding of 16 
million had been allocated for the overall scheme, this would equate to 30 referrals per month 
per Council. He also confirmed that the affordability threshold was due to increase from 20k – 
23k, it was anticipated that this increase would result in the scheme being available to more 
people. In addition, some of the benefits, including Disability Living Allowance, Attendance 
Allowance, Personal Independence Payment and Carer’s Allowance were being removed 
from the calculation of income, which should result in a fairer scheme for applicants.  
 
            The representative referred to the Covid-19 Pandemic. He advised that delivery of the 
scheme had been interrupted due to the necessary restrictions and it had taken a while to get 
the scheme restarted, which had resulted in an underspend in the scheme.  To try address 

Page 133



 
People and Communities Committee, 

Tuesday, 8th June, 2021 
 
 

 
 

C1912 
 
 

the impact on councils of the reduced funding, DfC had provided an upfront ‘in year’ payment 
to councils and there had also been the option to apply for any additional costs incurred.  
 
            Mr. Polley advised that representatives from the DfC, in conjunction with an officer 
from the Causeway Coast and Glens Borough Council (who was representing the 11 
Councils), were currently drafting a new Service Level Agreement (SLA) for the AWS which 
would be shared for consideration in due course.  
 
            He highlighted that Busines Continuity Services (Department of Finance) was currently 
undertaking a review on the targeted approach and funding models for the AWS, the final 
report on this was likely to be available by the end of June 2021.  Any proposed changes to 
the scheme would have to be signed off by the relevant government departments and it was 
therefore unlikely that this would be completed before the next financial year.  
 
            He also referred to discussion that had taken place with SOLACE regarding a 50:50 
funding model, explaining that this would allow for 50% funding upfront to Council, with the 
remaining 50% payment per referral.   
    
            He concluded by confirming that since 2015 the scheme had allocated 82 million which 
had provided affordable warmth improvement measures to 20,000 homes.  He stated that the 
AWS was vital to the Fuel Poverty Strategy and it was essential therefore that both worked 
hand in hand.  He detailed that he was aware of several issues that the Department were 
currently working on addressing but added that he anticipated an improved scheme going 
forward.  
 
            Following a query from a Member, Mr. Polley confirmed that the Department for 
Communities did liaise with the Department of Finance and Department for the Economy in 
the regard to the Energy Strategy.  
 
            During discussion, the current rise in material costs was highlighted and the fact that 
this was affecting the margins to deliver on individual schemes.  Ms. Knowles noted that the 
Department was aware of the issue but stated that in most instances the current grant covered 
the required measures.  She went on to state that it was unlikely that the grant/allowance 
would be increased in line with the inflated costs as this would require a change in legislation.   
 
              The Chairperson thanked the representatives for attending the meeting following 
which they left the proceedings. 
 

Restricted 
 
The information contained in the reports associated with the following 3 items is 
restricted in accordance with Part 1 of Schedule 6 of the Local Government Act 
(Northern Ireland) 2014. 
 

 Resolved – That the Committee agrees to exclude the Members of the 
Press and public from the Committee meeting during discussion on the 
following 3 items as, due to their nature, there would be a disclosure of exempt 
information as described in Section 42(4) and Section 6 of the Local 
Government Act (Northern Ireland) 2014. 

 

Page 134



 
People and Communities Committee, 

Tuesday, 8th June, 2021 
 
 

 
 

C1913 
 
 

Request for The Hire of Boucher Road Playing Fields 
 
 The Committee considered a request seeking permission to use the Boucher Road 
Playing Fields from 6th September – 13th September 2021 for the purpose of hosting a local 
music festival - Planet Love 2021 in association with Cool FM. 
 
 The Committee noted that this would be a one-day event on the 11th September from 
1.00 p.m. – 11.00 p.m.  This would be a ticketed, licensed event for strictly 18+ patrons and 
identification would be required upon entry to the venue. 
 
 The Event Layout would allow for the safe egress of 15,000 patrons. It was expected 
that there would be maximum capacity of this number. Entertainment would be provided by 
both Live Acts and DJs performing on multiple stages located inside the site. There would also 
be Amusement/fairground rides, Fireworks/Pyrotechnics, Food Vendors, a marquee and the 
pavilion would be being used.  
 
 In accordance with the Council decision of 4th May, the Members agreed that the Chief 
Executive exercise her delegated authority to:  
 

(i) grant authority to Notorious Brands for the use of Boucher Road Playing 
Fields for a local music festival Planet Love in association with Cool FM 
from 6th September -13th September 2021; 

 
(ii) delegate authority to the Director of Neighbourhood Services to: 

  

 negotiate an appropriate fee which recognises the costs to Council, 
minimises negative impact on the immediate area and takes account of 
the potential wider benefit to the City economy, in conjunction with the 
Council’s Commercial Manager;  
 

 negotiate satisfactory terms and conditions of use via an appropriate 
legal agreement prepared by the City Solicitor, including managing final 
booking confirmation dates and flexibility around ‘set up’ and take 
down’ periods, and booking amendments, subject to:  

 
o the promoter resolving any operational issues to the Council’s 

satisfaction;  
o compliance with Coronavirus restrictions in place at the time of 

the event; and   
o the promoter meeting all the statutory requirements of the 

Planning and Building Control Service including the terms and 
conditions of the Park’s Entertainment Licence. 

 
 The Director asked the Members to note that the above recommendations were taken 
as pre-policy position, in advance of the Council agreeing a more structure framework and 
policy for ‘Events’, which was currently being taken forward in conjunction with the Council’s 
Commercial team. 
  

Page 135



 
People and Communities Committee, 

Tuesday, 8th June, 2021 
 
 

 
 

C1914 
 
 

Rosario Youth Club - Funding Request 
 
 The Committee considered a request from Rosario Youth Club seeking ongoing 
additional financial support with staff costs incurred due to longer operating at Ulidia Playing 
Fields, in addition to the contribution paid under their Partnership Agreement. 
 
 The Director reminded the Members of a previous request from Rosario Youth Club 
seeking to progress to an alternative management model for the facility, by way of a potential 
lease arrangement.  He advised that officers had been working with the club to further 
progress discussions around their plans and aspirations for a potential Community Asset 
Transfer, with the club looking at providing detailed information demonstrating clear 
community benefit from their plans, however, due to difficulties arising from the Covid19 
pandemic progress had been delayed. The Committee noted that it was anticipated that this 
would be progressed under a new Community Asset Transfer framework for the Council, 
which officers were currently drafting.  Given the delay in progressing any new arrangements, 
the group was keen to sustain the existing resource support and therefore were seeking 
interim support. 
 
 Following a query from a Member who suggested that Rosario YC was experiencing 
difficulties with the community funding application process, the Director of Neighbourhood 
Services advised that he was unaware of any such issues.  He suggested that if the Member 
had additional information, to contact him directly and he would have it investigated.   
 

 Following a further query, the Director advised that the formation of the Community 
Asset Transfer Policy Framework was in its early stages.  He explained the that the aim of the 
framework was to streamline the numerous arrangements across the City, he highlighted that 
pilot schemes were being considered which would be subject to committee consideration and 
approval. 
 
 In accordance with the Council decision of 4th May, the Members agreed that the Chief 
Executive exercise her delegated authority to agree to provide a maximum financial payment 
to Rosario Youth Club of up to £2,000 per month for staff costs, subject to vouching of fully 
evidenced expenditure from July 2021 to March 2022.  
 
Requests for the use of Parks 
for Summer Events report 
 
 The Committee were advised that, following the recent relaxation on restrictions, 
several requests had been received from organisers seeking to host events in various Belfast 
park locations during coming months.   
 
 The Director of Neighbourhood Services advised that any events would be subject to 
strict criteria and a robust risk assessment. As with all the events, delivery would be fully 
dependent on compliance with NIE restrictions and government guidelines at the time. The 
situation remained fluid and, should the government guidance change, some events might 
need to be amended, postponed, or even cancelled. 
  
 The Members noted that these events would see a return to more animation of the 
Council’s Parks and Open Spaces.  Some of the events were long standing having previously 

Page 136



 
People and Communities Committee, 

Tuesday, 8th June, 2021 
 
 

 
 

C1915 
 
 

taken place for many years, offering many of our Belfast citizens and family’s great fun, 
entertainment, and experiences. 
 
 A Member raised some concern in relation to the proposed Finaghy Cultural Festival, 
given that this was a densely populated area.  The Director of Neighbourhood Services 
undertook to discuss these concerns further directly with the Member but reaffirmed the 
process and the requirement for event management plan to be agreed in advance of any 
formal permission being granted. The Director advised that officers would be liaising with the 
event organisers to discuss and seek the assurances that the Council would require.    

 
 In accordance with the Council decision of 4th May, the Members of the Committee 
agreed that the Chief Executive exercise her delegated authority to grant authority to each of 
the applicants for the following proposed events: 
 

 Feile; 5th – 15th August at Falls Park; 

 Into the Woods; 9th - 15th August at Botanic Gardens; 

 Finaghy Cultural Festival; 27th – 29th August at Wedderburn Park; 

 Culture Night; 17th September at Cathedral Gardens; 

 EastSide Arts Festival; 5th – 15th August along the Connswater Community 
Greenway; and  

 Belfast 24 Hour International Road Race; 16th & 17th October at Victoria 
Park. 

 
 it was further agreed that she grant authority to the Director to negotiate satisfactory 
terms and conditions of use, including any relevant fees, via an appropriate legal agreement 
prepared by the City Solicitor, including managing final booking confirmation dates and 
flexibility around ‘set up’ and take down’ periods, and booking amendments, subject to:  
 

 the promoter resolving any operational issues to the Council’s satisfaction; 

 compliance with Coronavirus restrictions in place at the time of the event; 
and 

 the promoter meeting all the statutory requirements of the Planning and 
Building Control Service including the terms and conditions of the Park’s 
Entertainment Licence. 

 
 The Director asked the Members to note that the above recommendations were taken 
as pre-policy position, in advance of the Council agreeing a more structure framework and 
policy for ‘Events’, which was currently being taken forward in conjunction with the Council’s 
Commercial team.  
 

Operational Issues 
 
Extended Producer Responsibility / Deposit 
Return Scheme - consultation update 
 
 The Committee considered the undernoted report: 
  

Page 137



 
People and Communities Committee, 

Tuesday, 8th June, 2021 
 
 

 
 

C1916 
 
 

“1.0 Purpose of Report or Summary of main Issues 
 
1.1 As agreed at the May 2021 People and Communities Committee, 

this update is to provide Committee with a copy of the relevant 
responses from the Council and arc21 to recent consultations on 
EPR and DRS relating to packaging waste. Both consultations 
opened on 24 March 2021 and closed on 04 June 2021. 
 

2.0 Recommendations 
 
2.1 The Members of the Committee are asked to recommend that, in 

accordance with the Council decision of 4th May 2021, the Chief 
Executive exercise her delegated authority to: 

 

 Retrospectively (as noted as last month’s Committee 
meeting, the consultations formally closed on 4th June) 
adopt the consultation responses to Extended Producer 
Responsibility for Packaging and Introducing a Deposit 
Return Scheme in England, Wales & Northern Ireland. 

 
3.0 Main report 
 
3.1 Members may recall a series of consultations in 2019, relating to 

packaging.  This consultation process was the beginning of an 
approach to reform the arrangements for producer responsibility 
for packaging waste, which has been in place since 1997. The 
responses, to the original consultations, from both Belfast City 
Council and arc21, were presented to Committee in June 2019.  

 
3.2 These consultations collectively represent possibly the biggest 

change in UK Waste Management practices in a generation.  These 
will have profound implications upon BCC’ waste activities and 
particularly on the financing of collection arrangements and 
revenue arising from the sale of recyclables.   

 
3.3 The premise of the EPR consultation is to ensure ‘producers pay 

the full costs of dealing with the waste packaging they produce’.  
The original producer responsibility scheme in its current guise 
has flaws and does not support the principles of producers paying 
for the full costs, nor that the benefits should be spread across all 
stakeholders in the supply chain.  This new EPR scheme is 
focusing more clearly on addressing this shortfall to ensure that it 
is fairer for all stakeholders.   

 
3.4 The EPR consultation has much to commend it in progressing the 

development of a Circular Economy and should be viewed as an 
opportunity, subject to the actual implementation of the detail to 
be contained within the legislation.  The aim of placing the cost 
burden on producers with the expectation that this will cause them 
to question whether their packaging is necessary, could be 

Page 138



 
People and Communities Committee, 

Tuesday, 8th June, 2021 
 
 

 
 

C1917 
 
 

reduced, or not used at all, is a positive change and should reduce 
the  overall financial burden placed on councils in dealing with 
packaging waste.   

 
3.5 Following strong support from the 2019 consultations, Northern 

Ireland, England and Wales committed to introduce a Deposit 
Return Scheme (DRS) for drinks containers subject to further 
consultation. This second consultation is seeking views from 
across the industry, on how the scheme will function to ensure it 
achieves the desired outcomes. Responses to this consultation 
will help inform final policy decisions on key aspects of the 
scheme, such as governance, targets and implementation 
timelines. 

 
3.6 At its meeting on 11 May 2021, Committee agreed to support an 

‘All-in Scheme’ in relation to the size of drinks containers to be 
included within the Deposit Return Scheme and this has been 
reflected in the Belfast City Council response.   

 
3.7 Both consultations opened on 24 March 2021 and closed on 04 

June 2021. The responses to both consultations are contained in 
Appendices 1 and 2.  In preparing the Council’s response, officers 
have also taken on board the views of regional organisations such 
as NILGA, arc21 and LARAC, in order to recognise the regional and 
national importance of this consultation. 

 
 Background 
 
3.8 To help the move towards a more Circular Economy, the UK 

Government for England (DEFRA), the Welsh Government and the 
Department of Agriculture, Environment and Rural Affairs in 
Northern Ireland have all made commitments to develop policy 
which works towards achieving the aims of resource efficiency 
and resource productivity, through the development of producer 
responsibility proposals.  

 
3.9 Government highlights that, in 2019, approximately 11.7 million 

tonnes of packaging was placed on the UK market and that every 
year across the UK, consumers go through an estimated 14 billion 
plastic drinks bottles, nine billion drinks cans and five billion glass 
bottles. 

 
3.10 In March 2021, Government launched these Consultations to 

overhaul the waste and resources sector, in an attempt to boost 
recycling, tackle plastic pollution and reduce litter.  

 
3.11 The proposals within the Consultations are underpinned by 

powers in the new Environment Bill, to make manufacturers more 
responsible for the packaging they produce and incentivise 
consumers to recycle more.  

Page 139



 
People and Communities Committee, 

Tuesday, 8th June, 2021 
 
 

 
 

C1918 
 
 

 
3.12 The new proposals include Extended Producer Responsibility for 

packaging where manufacturers will pay the full costs of managing 
and recycling their packaging waste, with higher fees being levied 
if packaging is harder to reuse or recycle. The scheme is being 
developed on a UK-wide basis. 

 
3.13 Also included is a Deposit Return Scheme for drinks containers, 

where consumers will be incentivised to take their empty drinks 
containers to return points hosted by retailers. The scheme would 
cover England, Wales and Northern Ireland, with a separate 
scheme already under development in Scotland.  

 
 Extended Producer Responsibility for Packaging (EPR) 
 
3.14 The current producer responsibility system for packaging has 

been in place since 1997 and predates the introduction of devolved 
government in Scotland and Wales in 1999.  It operates UK-wide 
under GB and parallel Northern Ireland regulations. In response to 
commitments made by the four governments to reform the existing 
regime and to incentivise producers to take more responsibility for 
the materials and products they place on the market, the UK 
Government, the Scottish Government, the Welsh Government 
and the Department of Agriculture, Environment and Rural Affairs 
in Northern Ireland published a joint consultation in February 2019 
setting out proposals to reform the producer responsibility system 
for packaging. 

 
3.15 Extended Producer Responsibility is an established policy 

approach adopted by many countries around the world, across a 
broad range of products and materials.  It gives producers an 
incentive to make better, more sustainable decisions at the 
product design stage including decisions that make it easier for 
products to be re-used or recycled at their end of life.  It also places 
the financial cost of managing products once they reach end of life 
on producers. 

 
3.16 This second consultation sets out proposals for the introduction 

of EPR for Packaging.  Views are sought from across the industry, 
as well as members of the public, on how the scheme will function 
to ensure it achieves the desired outcomes.  Responses to this 
consultation will help inform final policy decisions on key aspects 
of the scheme, such as governance, recycling targets and 
implementation timelines to help ensure an effective system is put 
in place and inform the regulatory framework required to deliver 
this change. 

 
 A synopsis of the EPR scheme is outlined in the following 

sections. 
 

Page 140



 
People and Communities Committee, 

Tuesday, 8th June, 2021 
 
 

 
 

C1919 
 
 

 Targets 
 
3.17 Under the Packaging Waste Regulations 2007, obligated 

producers are required to meet annual recycling targets, with UK 
packaging waste recycling rates reported annually by Defra. 
Government will separately report overall packaging waste 
recycling rates for England, Northern Ireland, Scotland, and Wales. 

 
3.18 The consultation proposes minimum recycling targets for six 

packaging materials. These equate to an overall recycling rate for 
EPR packaging of 73% by 2030. It also proposes the introduction 
of a recycling target for fibre-based composite packaging such as 
food and drink cartons and single use paper cups.  

 
 Full Net Costs 
 
3.19 Following strong support in the 2019 consultation, subsequent 

evidence development and stakeholder engagement, Government 
intends to progress with the broad scope of full net costs of 
managing packaging waste as set out in the response to the first 
consultation. This includes:  

 

 The collecting, sorting, and recycling of packaging waste 
from households and businesses 

 The collecting and disposing of packaging in the residual 
waste stream from households only 

 Litter and refuse management costs, including bin and 
ground litter 

 
 Obligated Producers 
 
3.20 Government proposes the introduction of a single point of 

obligation (i.e., a single producer is responsible for the cost of 
managing a piece of packaging). This will focus the obligations 
onto those who are best placed to reduce and/or increase the 
recyclability of the packaging they use. The consultation details 
the proposed obligations for reporting and payment of costs for 
the different types of obligated producer. In the current system, the 
obligation for a single item of packaging is shared across multiple 
businesses. 

 
3.21 The consultation proposes lowering current ‘de-minimis’ levels so 

that more producers are obligated and also obligating online 
retailers for any imported packaging. 

 
 Disposable Cups 
 
3.22 The consultation seeks views on whether a mandatory cup 

takeback and recycling requirement should be placed on 
businesses selling filled disposable paper cups to provide for the 

Page 141



 
People and Communities Committee, 

Tuesday, 8th June, 2021 
 
 

 
 

C1920 
 
 

separate collection of used cups (either generated in-store or 
consumed ‘on-the-go’). Currently there are some voluntary 
schemes being operated by retailers in relation to disposable 
cups. 

 
 Modulated Fees 
 
3.33 The consultation proposes that the fees producers will pay to 

cover the disposal costs of their packaging should be varied to 
reflect criteria such as recyclability. For instance, producers 
whose packaging contributes positively to scheme outcomes (e.g., 
easily recyclable) will pay lower fee rates, while fee rates for 
packaging which does not contribute positively to scheme 
outcomes will be increased (e.g., unrecyclable).  

 
 Labelling 
 
3.34 The consultation proposes that mandatory recyclability labelling 

should be introduced on packaging as soon as is feasible and by 
end of 2026/27 at the latest. The expectation is that labelling is 
introduced on different packaging types in line with requirements 
for their separate collection by local authorities (so along the lines 
that the OPRL is designed). It is proposed that the broad 
requirements for labelling are set out in legislation, including a 
requirement to use a label approved by Government (or the 
Regulator).   

 
 Plastic Film and Flexible Packaging 
 
3.35 It is proposed that plastic films and flexibles should be required to 

be collected for recycling as soon as is practical, and the costs of 
achieving this are paid by producers. It is assumed this will be 
possible by end of financial year 2026/27 but views are sought in 
the consultation. 

 
 Bio-degradable Packaging 
 
3.36 This type of packaging will fall under EPR proposals. 

The consultation suggests that until such time as the state of 
evidence, collections and infrastructure for this packaging can be 
improved on this type of packaging, it is unlikely to be considered 
recyclable under packaging EPR and will therefore attract higher 
fee rates than packaging that contributes positively to scheme 
outcomes. 

 
 Payments for Household Waste to Local Authorities 
 
3.37 The consultation sets broad principles underpinning the 

implementation of payment mechanisms. These include the scope 

Page 142



 
People and Communities Committee, 

Tuesday, 8th June, 2021 
 
 

 
 

C1921 
 
 

of ‘necessary costs’ and that costs paid by producers should be 
for the delivery of ‘efficient and effective’ services. 

 
3.38 It proposes that payments should be based on both the tonnages 

and quality of packaging waste collected and recycled, with these 
requirements being phased in and a Scheme Administrator 
encouraged to support local authorities to improve and meet 
performance benchmarks, to obtain their full payments. 

 
3.39 Only local authorities which operate efficient and effective 

systems will have their full net costs recovered via a modelled 
approach based on the tonnage collected. 

 
 Payments for Business Waste 
 
3.40 The consultation seeks views on three different approaches to 

facilitate payments from packaging producers to businesses 
generating packaging wastes. Two of these approaches foresee a 
clear role for compliance schemes, whilst one foresees full 
responsibility for payment, and therefore achievement of targets, 
placed on a Scheme Administrator.  

 
 Data and reporting required 
 
3.41 To support the payment mechanisms proposed, Local Authorities 

will need to report data to the Scheme Administrator. This will 
include data on their collection and disposal services and 
facilities, the types of households and businesses they service, 
the tonnages collected through their systems and local 
communications activities. 

 
3.42 It is proposed that producers pay according to the tonnage of 

packaging they place on the market in the previous calendar year 
as they currently do, and that Local Authorities are paid on a 
financial year basis, based on previous years tonnage data, 
quarterly in arrears.  

 
 Payments for Littered Waste 
 
3.43 The consultation proposes that producers of commonly littered 

packaging items be made responsible for the costs that are 
directly attributable to their management, both as bin and ground 
litter. This includes costs incurred by Local Authorities, other duty 
bodies, litter authorities and statutory undertakers.  

 
 Scheme Administrator and Governance 
 
3.44 The consultation seeks views on two broad approaches:  
 

Page 143



 
People and Communities Committee, 

Tuesday, 8th June, 2021 
 
 

 
 

C1922 
 
 

 A single administrator / management organisation: 
responsible for administering and managing delivery of the 
packaging waste management cost requirements and 
producer compliance with packaging waste recycling 
targets.  

 Multiple compliance schemes with certain functions 
undertaken by a Scheme Administrator: A Scheme 
Administrator would take on functions that are better 
delivered UK-wide such as developing the approach to 
determining packaging waste management costs for 
household waste, setting the fee modulation mechanism, 
and administering payments to local authorities; with 
compliance schemes primarily responsible for managing 
compliance with obligations in respect of non-household 
packaging waste.  

 
 Monitoring and Enforcement 
 
3.45 It proposes that the environmental regulators in England, Northern 

Ireland, Scotland, and Wales will be the primary regulators and 
have the powers to monitor, audit, and use civil and criminal 
penalties to drive compliance and address non-compliance. There 
are no proposals for local authority involvement in aspects of 
regulation relating to the EPR system.  

 
 Implementation Timetable 
 
3.46 The governments intend to have the first phase of EPR established 

in 2023 which would enable payments to local authorities to 
commence from October 2023.  Full cost recovery is anticipated to 
be achievable in Phase 2 from April 2024. 

 
 Deposit Return Scheme  
 
3.47 This consultation focuses on specific policy proposals for the 

introduction of a deposit return scheme, including the scope of 
materials, scheme governance, return points, and collection 
targets. The proposals set out in the consultation work together to 
create a scheme that incentivises consumers to change their 
behaviour, leading to higher recycling rates and lower levels of 
littering. The consultation refers solely to deposit return schemes 
for drinks containers. 

 
3.48 Following the first consultation on a Deposit Return Scheme, in 

2019, Government indicated the intention was to introduce a 
deposit return scheme for drinks containers in England, Wales, 
and Northern Ireland from 2023 and that the introduction of a 
deposit return scheme would be subject to receiving additional 
evidence and carrying out further analysis on the costs and 
benefits of such a scheme.  

Page 144



 
People and Communities Committee, 

Tuesday, 8th June, 2021 
 
 

 
 

C1923 
 
 

 
3.49 Government remains committed to delivering on its commitments 

to introduce a deposit return scheme, but it also recognises that 
the Covid-19 pandemic has disrupted the economy and society in 
unimaginable ways. On this basis, the second consultation builds 
on the first consultation, offering a chance to explore further what 
the continued appetite is for a deposit return scheme in a ‘post-
Covid’ context. 

 
3.50 Government have reassessed what a realistic timeline for 

implementation of a deposit return scheme looks like, ensuring 
that sufficient time is given for a successful roll-out of the scheme. 
They anticipate that the introduction of a deposit return scheme in 
England, Wales and Northern Ireland would be in late 2024 at the 
earliest. Updated information on the implementation timeline is 
provided in the consultation. 

 
3.51 Views are being sought on how a deposit return scheme will 

operate, for example, scheme design, scheme governance, 
implementation timelines and enforcement. DEFRA is seeking 
views from across the industry, as well as members of the public, 
on how the scheme will function to ensure it achieves the desired 
outcomes. 

 
3.52 The Consultation document covers ten major areas relating to a 

deposit return scheme. Of particular relevance to local authorities 
are the chapters covering the scope of the scheme, the scheme 
governance, return points and local authorities. Other areas 
covered include the collection targets, financial flows, labelling, 
monitoring and enforcement, the implementation timeline and the 
impact assessment.  

 
 Scope 
 
3.53 The Consultation sets out the scheme participants who will take 

on obligations under the deposit return scheme – namely 
producers, retailers, and the Scheme Administrator (Deposit 
Management Organisation or DMO). These obligations include 
requiring producers to sign up to the DMO and carry out reporting 
obligations, paying a producer registration fee to the DMO to fund 
the deposit return scheme, and placing a redeemable deposit on 
in-scope drinks containers they place on the market. Retailers will 
be required to accept all deposit return scheme containers 
returned to their store and ensure the deposit price is added to the 
purchase price of an in-scope drink at the point of purchase. 

 
3.54 It sets out what materials will be within the scope of a DRS. This 

will be based on materials and not the type of product and it is 
proposed that the scheme will include PET bottles, glass bottles 
and steel and aluminium cans. These will either be drinks 

Page 145



 
People and Communities Committee, 

Tuesday, 8th June, 2021 
 
 

 
 

C1924 
 
 

containers up to 3 litres for the ‘all in’ scheme or drinks containers 
under 750ml for the ‘on the go’ scheme. 

 
 Four options are proposed: 
 

1. Do Nothing 
2. All in (drinks containers up to 3 litres) 
3. On the go (drinks containers under 750ml) 
4. All in without glass 

 
 Welsh Government have stated a preference for an ‘all in’ system. 
 
3.55 As noted, at its meeting on 11 May 2021, Committee agreed to 

support an ‘All-in Scheme’ in relation to the size of drinks 
containers to be included within the Deposit Return Scheme.  

 
 Within the Consultation response, although we support the 

inclusion of all proposed materials, we highlight the fact that the 
Republic of Ireland is developing a deposit return scheme 
excluding glass, and that this has the potential to cause confusion 
and even fraudulent cross-border activity. We also suggest that 
consideration could be given to additional materials, for example 
cartons.  

 
 Targets 
 
3.56 There are proposals that legislation will set out targets for a 

proportion of drinks containers placed on the market to be 
collected for recycling. It is proposed that there should be an 
obligation placed on the DMO to achieve a 90% collection rate after 
three years from introduction. It will be the responsibility of the 
reprocessor to provide evidence how much has been recycled.  
The point at which material will be counted towards recycling 
targets will be when it reaches end of waste criteria. 

 
3.57 To ensure that all material collected through a deposit return 

scheme will be recycled, the governments propose that there 
should be a legal obligation on the Deposit Management 
Organisation to ensure that the material that is collected via a 
deposit return scheme is passed on to a reprocessor and evidence 
is provided of this. 

 
3.58 Within our response, we agree that in order to make the DRS 

system worthwhile it should achieve a high capture rate.  However 
we highlight that consideration may need to be given to defer the 
scheme, until the outcomes of EPR and the plastics tax are 
realised before making additional investment for a DRS. We also 
stress that equality issues should be considered, to ensure that no 
one is disadvantaged or discriminated against, in order to achieve 
high capture and collection rates for all materials.  

Page 146



 
People and Communities Committee, 

Tuesday, 8th June, 2021 
 
 

 
 

C1925 
 
 

 
 Scheme Governance 
 
3.59 The consultation outlines the role of the Deposit Management 

Organisation (DMO) whose role is to manage the operation of the 
deposit return scheme. The DMO will own the material returned by 
the consumers and be responsible for meeting the high collection 
targets set out in legislation and will be appointed via a competitive 
tender process. The consultation elaborates on how the DMO will 
be held accountable for the success of the scheme. The DMO will 
have to ensure that financial provisions are made available to 
make payments to local authorities and/or the Extended Producer 
Responsibility scheme administrator to fund the collection of 
deposit return scheme containers that are collected through local 
authority waste streams. 

 
3.60 Within our response, we stress the importance of including local 

authorities within the conversations and overall process. We also 
make reference to the digital trial which was recently conducted in 
Northern Ireland.   

 
 Financial Flows 
 
3.61 The consultation sets out proposals for the DMO to be funded via 

three revenue streams: material revenue, producer registration 
fees, and unredeemed deposits. 

 
3.62 It also discusses the approach to setting the deposit level (i.e., a 

maximum and minimum deposit level is set in secondary 
legislation with the DMO having flexibility to set the level within 
this threshold and may lead to variable deposit levels depending 
on the product), proposing that a fixed deposit level is not set in 
legislation but rather set out a minimum, and possibly maximum, 
deposit within the secondary legislation. This in theory will allow 
the DMO flexibility to set or change the deposit level in a way that 
influences behaviour change and increased recycling by 
consumers. 

 
3.63 Within our response, we reference Equality issues and stress the 

importance in designing a system that is accessible to everyone. 
We also highlight the annual Northern Ireland cost of cleaning up 
litter and illegal dumping and we suggest that a detailed Northern 
Ireland specific cost-benefit analysis would be vitally important in 
examining potential savings associated with litter reduction. 

  
3.64 With regards to the question on the minimum deposit level set in 

legislation, we propose 10p and highlight that the deposit should 
be sufficient to engage consumers but not be too much of a 
financial penalty for those unable to return the container. We 
would recommend that Government conduct further research on 

Page 147



 
People and Communities Committee, 

Tuesday, 8th June, 2021 
 
 

 
 

C1926 
 
 

the issue of multipacks but suggest that a variable deposit scheme 
could be implemented in order to minimise the multipack impact 
on consumers, especially those on lower incomes. 

 
 Return Points 
 
3.65 The Consultation sets out further details of the retailer options in 

the deposit return scheme, proposing that all retailers who sell in-
scope drinks containers will be obligated to accept returns of in-
scope material by hosting a return point. This will likely be via 
reverse vending machine or manual return points, but the 
regulations will be broad in nature to ensure alternative methods 
of return are not ruled out.  Requiring online retailers to be 
included in the scheme is discussed. 

 
3.66 The Consultation also discusses the potential for innovation in 

technology to be deployed in a deposit return scheme system and 
provides further detail on how this might support the return points 
provisions using smart phone applications allowing the electronic 
redemption of a deposit. This could mean that residents could 
continue to use their kerbside collection systems and reclaim their 
deposit and so cut out the need to take containers back to the 
shops with them.  

 
3.67 Within our response we highlight the importance of making the 

scheme as user friendly as possible, with minimal inconvenience 
involved for everyone participating. The concept of a digital 
scheme is interesting and could be further explored through larger 
scale trials.  

 
 Labelling 
 
3.68 The Consultation proposes mandatory labelling be legislated for 

as part of a DRS. We support this proposal as a means of 
minimising the potential for fraud.   

 
 Local Authorities and Local Councils 
 
3.69 The Consultation explores the impact a deposit return scheme will 

have on local authorities and the way in which containers in scope 
of the scheme will be treated when these containers still end up in 
local authority waste streams. It seeks views on three options for 
financially reimbursing local authorities for any DRS items they 
must deal with, in recycling, residual or litter. 

 
3.70 In our response, we highlight the need for a solution that 

maximises the potential return of DRS material and offers a fair 
system of payment to cover all the DRS material that councils 
collect (recycling, litter, and residual). However, under current 

Page 148



 
People and Communities Committee, 

Tuesday, 8th June, 2021 
 
 

 
 

C1927 
 
 

circumstances, there will probably be a reliance on MRFs to 
provide accurate data to councils.  

 
 Compliance, Monitoring and Enforcement 
 
3.71 The Consultation provides an overview of how the deposit return 

scheme will be monitored and enforced. Whilst some functions will 
fall to the environmental regulators in England, Wales and 
Northern Ireland, the governments consider there is a role for local 
authorities/Trading Standards to regulate the consumer-facing 
obligations that are placed on retailers. This is likened to functions 
undertaken in relation to the carrier bag tax. 

 
3.72 Within our response, we highlight the additional obligations 

placed on local council staff and note that this could be quite 
significant, particularly in the short term as the scheme is set up.   

 
 Implementation timetable 
 
3.73 The Consultation lists several activities required in advance of a 

DRS going live including:  
 

 2021 - Carrying out this second consultation, analysing the 
responses and publishing a Government response 

 2021 - Finalising the Impact Assessment 

 2021 - Securing the primary powers in the Environment Bill 

 2022 - Securing the secondary legislation required 

 2023 Appoint the DMO  

 2023 – 2024 Rollout of infrastructure and other mobilisation 
activities 

 
3.74 The governments currently anticipate that a DRS could launch in 

late 2024, subject to the outcome of this consultation and 
parliamentary passage of the Environment Bill. 

 
3.75 Within our response, we note that timeline seems very ambitious, 

and will need to take into account the lead-in times required by 
scheme participants, particularly where production or contracting 
changes are required. We also note that a number of key policy 
pieces are not in place in Northern Ireland, such as decisions on 
the future of recycling, ‘TEEP’ policy and a MRF code of practice; 
these will need to be agreed and published as soon as possible. 
We suggest that the introduction of the DRS could be deferred until 
the EPR policies have been implemented and the outcome of the 
plastics tax is better known. This would allow these policies and 
regulations to work and see if they deliver the desired increases in 
recycling before determining whether a DRS is needed. 

  

Page 149



 
People and Communities Committee, 

Tuesday, 8th June, 2021 
 
 

 
 

C1928 
 
 

 Approach to Impact Assessment 
 
3.76 Four options are included in the impact assessments: 
 

 Baseline - do nothing 

 An ‘All In’ system 

 An ‘On the Go’ system 

 An ‘All In’ system that does not include glass 
 
3.77 We note in our response that in the associated Impact 

Assessment, only limited data is available from the devolved 
administration. Also, if the digital solution is to be incorporated 
into the scheme design, this option should be fully evaluated as it 
is likely to substantially change the impacts/costs.   

 
3.78 We do not necessarily agree with the analysis presented on 

littering as there is unlikely to be a cost saving related to 
operational aspects of litter collection.  The impact assessment 
makes a direct correlation between the reduction in litter and cost 
savings in terms of manual sweeping and picking and emptying 
bins. We do not believe this is an accurate reflection as staff will 
be required to cover the same area to litter pick and bins will 
probably have to be emptied with the same frequency.   

 
 Financial and Resource Implications 
 
3.79 Whilst there are no current financial or resource implications 

associated in responding to these consultations. As stated above 
in terms of full net cost recovery under EPR, there are likely to be 
considerable financial implications upon implementation of these 
schemes in due course and the impacts for district councils will 
need to be clearly defined and recoverable in terms of net impact 
on ratepayers . 

 
 Equality or Good Relations Implications 
 
3.80 There are no equality or good relations implications in responding 

to the consultations.” 
 
 In accordance with the Council decision of 4th May, the Members agreed that the Chief 
Executive exercise her delegated authority to retrospectively adopt the consultation responses 
to Extended Producer Responsibility for Packaging and Introducing a Deposit Return Scheme 
in England, Wales and Northern Ireland.  
 
Proposal for naming new streets 
 
 The Members of the Committee recommended that, in accordance with the Council 
decision of 4th May, the Chief Executive exercise her delegated authority to approve the 
application for naming a new street in the City as set out below: 
 

Page 150



 
People and Communities Committee, 

Tuesday, 8th June, 2021 
 
 

 
 

C1929 
 
 

Proposed Name  Location Applicant 

Hampton Park Off Saintfield Road, BT7 Alan Patterson 
Design 

 
Pest control update 
 
 The Committee considered the following report:  
 

“1.0 Purpose of Report or Summary of main Issues 
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to provide Members with an update 

on the ongoing recovery of our pest control service and in 
particular the commencement of home visits and treatments.  
 

2.0 Recommendations 
 
2.1 The Members of the Committee are asked to recommend that, in 

accordance with the Council decision of 4th May 2021, the Chief 
Executive exercise her delegated authority to  

 

 note the progress made to date on the ongoing recovery of 
the pest control service and the steps being taken to 
address the remaining challenges. 

 
3.0 Main report 
 
3.1 Members will be aware of the significant impact the pandemic has 

had on front line services such as pest control. In the early stages 
of last year a number of pest control officers were furloughed as 
they were required to shield for various reasons. The service 
continued to deliver the sewer baiting programme throughout that 
time and residents were offered advice and information. The 
tenants of social housing were advised to contact their housing 
provider to obtain pest control services. 

 
3.2 We re-introduced the pest control service in September 2020, 

albeit in a very limited way. Risk assessments and the various 
control measures meant that very few home treatments could be 
carried out and only for the most vulnerable and where significant 
public health issues were identified. Most visits were restricted to 
external only, with officers providing advice and information. 

 
3.3 In recent months with transmission rates reducing and the easing 

of government restrictions the Pest Control team has been 
working with Corporate Health and Safety to carry out further risk 
assessments using the less than 2m template and to put in place 
additional safety measures to enable home treatments to resume 
at the beginning of June. The Trade Unions have been kept 
informed and the risk assessments have been agreed. 

 

Page 151



 
People and Communities Committee, 

Tuesday, 8th June, 2021 
 
 

 
 

C1930 
 
 

3.4 The proposed safe system of work will require more time for each 
visit and in between visits as officers have a list of questions to 
ask the householder before entering the property and they will be 
required to change their PPE between visits. 

 
3.5 The safety measures will impact on the number of treatments that 

can be completed in a day and there is the potential for a long 
waiting list to build up very quickly. This is a concern to both staff 
and the Trade Unions because of the negative impact this can have 
on customer perception of the service and subsequently on staff 
morale. In order to manage the waiting list it is proposed, in the 
first instance, to only carryout treatments in private rented sector 
and owner occupied property and to continue to refer the tenants 
of social housing to the Housing Executive and Housing 
Associations. This approach will be supported by sewer baiting, 
external assessments and drain testing for defects as required 
regardless of tenure.  

 
3.6 We have only recently started collecting information that enables 

us to breakdown service requests received by tenure and it is 
difficult therefore to determine the impact this approach will have 
on our capacity to meet demand. Also, we anticipate an initial 
surge in demand for treatments as we restart the service. We will 
keep the figures and waiting list under close review and will of 
course include treatments for social housing tenants as soon as 
there is capacity to do so. Members will be kept informed of any 
further changes. 

 
3.7 Home treatments are the priority; however, we are conscious the 

time of year for wasp nests is fast approaching and we are 
exploring options to recover this service, which remains 
suspended since last year. Members will be kept informed as this 
work progresses.  

 
 Financial and Resource Implications 
 
3.8 There are no additional financial implications associated with this 

report. 
 
 Equality or Good Relations Implications/ 
 Rural Needs Assessment 
 
3.9 There are no implications associated with this report.” 
 

 Several Members emphasised the need to get pest control services operational again 
as soon as it was safe to do so and thanked the officers for their quick response to incidents 
throughout the City during the pandemic.  
 
 During discussion the Members considered the role of the other statutory agencies and 
expressed concern that the Council appeared to be the public’s first point of contact with any 

Page 152



 
People and Communities Committee, 

Tuesday, 8th June, 2021 
 
 

 
 

C1931 
 
 

pest control issue, despite the fact that the NIHE and Housing Associations also offered a pest 
control service.  They also highlighted the need for preventative measures throughout the City 
and the need for a multiagency approach in this regard.  
 
 Following the suggestion of a Member, the Director of City Services agreed to liaise 
with the Customer Focus Programme Director to ascertain what role, if any, the Customer Hub 
could potentially play in logging potential requests for service and then referring the issue/area 
of concern to the appropriate  statutory agency.  She suggested that she would ask the 
Customer Focus Programme Director to update/e-mail the Members directly regarding 
whether this was possible. 
 
 The Members of the Committee recommended that, in accordance with the Council 
decision of 4th May, the Chief Executive exercise her delegated authority to grant to: 

 write to NIHE and Housing Associations requesting that they communicate 
their role to their tenants in regard to the pest control services that they 
offer; 

 establish if there was an existing Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) 
with the NIHE and Housing Associations.  If so, update accordingly or 
alternatively draft a new document with an update report to be submitted 
to a future meeting of the Committee;   

 write to Northern Ireland Water highlighting the issues and ask them to 
reaffirm their preventive role and multiagency approach going forward; and    

 establish if the Members could log complaints via the Customer Hub which 
could then be referred via the hub to the other statutory agencies.    

Committee/Strategic Issues 
 
Update on Community Planning 
and work of Living Here Board 
 
 The Committee considered the undernoted report: 
 

“1.0 Purpose of Report or Summary of main Issues 
 

1.1 The purpose of this report is to update Committee on the work 
being taken forward through Community Planning with a specific 
focus on the Living Here Board and its recent meeting held on 
Monday 17 May 2021. 

 
2.0 Recommendations 

 
2.1 The Members of the Committee are asked to recommend that, in 

accordance with the Council decision of 4th May, the Chief 
Executive exercise her delegated authority to note the: 

 
(i) Key areas of work currently being progressed by the 

Living Here Board (LHB), as outlined below. 
(ii) Alignment and synergies between the Board and the 

work of the Committee. 

Page 153



 
People and Communities Committee, 

Tuesday, 8th June, 2021 
 
 

 
 

C1932 
 
 

(iii) Planned process for refreshing the Belfast Agenda and 
the role of Elected Members in supporting this process. 

 
3.0 Main report 
 
3.1 Background 
 
 Members will be aware that the Community Planning Partnership 

(Partnership) was established in February 2018, under the 
auspices of the Local Government (NI) Act 2015, to improve the 
economic, social and environmental wellbeing by encouraging 
and enabling joined up planning and collaborative delivery across 
partners, as well as promoting and enabling innovation and 
sharing good practice.  In order to ensure that the vision and 
ambitions set out within the Belfast Agenda (community plan for 
the city) are translated into action and to mobilise city partners to 
support delivery, four ‘delivery focused boards’ have been formed 
to drive collaboration (i.e. City Development, Skills, Jobs and 
Education, Resilience and Sustainability and Living Here Board), 
as illustrated below: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3.2 Living Here Board  

 
 The LHB is co-Chaired by the Council’s Director of Neighbourhood 

Services and the Health and Social Care Board’s Assistant 
Director and Commissioning Lead for Belfast. The Board 
comprises Council officers and a range of its Community Planning 
Partners, including representation from the Statutory and VCSE 
sectors. The areas of collaborative focus being taken forward by 
the LHB, as set out below, clearly aligns with the remit of the 
Committee and seeks to support vulnerable people and 
communities as well as creating integrated approaches to 

Page 154



 
People and Communities Committee, 

Tuesday, 8th June, 2021 
 
 

 
 

C1933 
 
 

improving service provision and support within the city. The LHB 
work programme currently focuses on the following:  

 
(i) Addressing Health Inequalities with a specific focus on 

 

 Drugs, Alcohol and Mental Health 

 Avoidable winter deaths 

 Promoting Positive Emotional Wellbeing 
 

(ii) Community Recovery and Area Planning (including 
Multi-Agency Support Hub) 

(iii) Integrated, inter-agency approaches to early 
intervention including early years support and family 
programmes. 

 
 As the effects of the Covid-19 pandemic have begun to emerge, there 

is a need to understand how our city economy and communities are 
likely to be impacted, and what we need to focus on to rebuild in the 
coming months and years. Clearly, the pandemic is not over and 
there will need to be sustained efforts to protect the safety and 
health of our citizens, while at the same time balancing the need to 
stabilise and rebuild our economy and city. In this context, and as 
part of the review of the Belfast Agenda, there is a need to take stock 
and reassess the focus of Community Planning and the work of the 
Boards over the coming weeks and months. This is not to say that 
the ambitions and commitments set out within the Belfast Agenda 
should not remain at the core of our work. However, in order to 
address emerging challenges as a result of the pandemic, we may 
need to pivot our collective focus and seek to prioritise and 
accelerate key interventions and programmes.  

 
 Whilst the Committee will have previously discussed some of 

these areas, specifically, the intention is to move to a more 
standard approach to updating Members on the work programme 
of the respective Boards aligned to their scheduled meetings. A 
summary draft note and slide-deck from the recent LHB meeting 
(virtual) held on Monday 17 May 2021 is available for Members 
information. Key points for Members to note from the discussion 
include: 

 

3.3 
i Review of the Belfast Agenda and Role of the Boards 

 
The Board received a presentation outlining the planned co-design 
process and timeline for refreshing the Belfast Agenda and the 
development of an associated 4-year action plan. The diagram 
below outlines this process. 

Page 155



 
People and Communities Committee, 

Tuesday, 8th June, 2021 
 
 

 
 

C1934 
 
 

 

  
 It is important to note that Elected Members will be engaged at 

each stage of the review process through the All-Party Working 
Group on Community Planning. In addition, it is recommended that 
all Elected Members will have the opportunity to shape the priority 
framework and plans for the new 4-year period through Party 
Group briefings.  Elected Members will also be supported by our 
Marketing and Communications team who will provide ongoing 
support via a communications toolkit, to enable effective 
engagement with constituents, so that their voices are heard.  

 
 While the specifics regarding engagement events will be finalised 

with partners, it is expected that there will be a series of thematic 
and/ or local-area virtual workshops. This will provide Elected 
Members with a leading role within their communities, to help 
shape the city’s future plans. 

 

3.4 
ii Reaffirming the focus of the Living Here Board in the short-

term (6-18 months) 
 
 Given the impact of Covid on the city, its communities and its 

people, the Board agreed to undertake a focused planning session 
to consider specific priorities which Board members could 
coalesce around and bring collaborative gain to, over the next 6-
18 months to further support community recovery and feed into 
the Belfast Agenda Review process. The Board agreed to host the 
planning session in June 2021. 

 

3.5 Addressing Health Inequalities 
 

iii Complex Lives model 
 
 The Board received a presentation on the developing Complex 

Lives model for Belfast including the agreement of a ‘route map’ 
for the project built, on the themes of System Leadership, Frontline 
Delivery and System Enablers and the pragmatic approach being 
taken to implement action, which utilises existing services and 

Page 156



 
People and Communities Committee, 

Tuesday, 8th June, 2021 
 
 

 
 

C1935 
 
 

partnership working.  Board members noted the progress to date 
and timeline for the implementation of the model from 1 April 2022. 

 

3.6 
iv Promoting Positive Emotional Wellbeing Plan 

 
 Board members were briefed on planned activity within Council to 

integrate best practice approaches to promote positive emotional 
wellbeing across a range of services. This will act as a test for 
other organisations, with the sharing of lessons learned by 
Council. 

 

3.7 
v Belfast Warm and Well 

 
 The Board received a presentation following the completion of 

year 2 of the Belfast Warm and Well scheme, along with key 
considerations required in supporting its transition to mainstream 
delivery, including the opportunity to connect with and across 
other related work programmes including the Resilience and 
Sustainability Board’s ambition to eradicate fuel poverty. Board 
members agreed to continue supporting the promotion of the 
scheme with frontline staff and to consider a response to the draft 
Energy Strategy for Northern Ireland. 

 

3.8 Area Planning and Delivery 
 

vi Multi-Agency Support Hub 
 
 A presentation was made to the Board on the establishment of a 

multi-agency support hub within south Belfast, which aims to 
enable collective working with statutory partners to support 
vulnerable individuals and reduce levels of risk and vulnerability. 
Members will recall approving Council’s involvement within this 
pilot project in the Botanic DEA at the People and Communities 
meeting on 12 January 2021. Board members noted progress to 
date and highlighted the importance of linkages and synergies 
with the Complex Lives model project.   

 

3.9 
vii Belfast Area Outcomes Group – Combined Covid Response 

Approach 
 

 The Board received a presentation on behalf of the Belfast Area 
Outcomes Group (BAOG) which examined the approach taken to 
responding to the Covid-19 pandemic and the focus and nature of 
support provided across four critical anti-poverty priorities 
including support for families with children under two; digital 
poverty; flexible funding and healthy eating.  CPP partners 
committed to joint planning with BAOG on the development of a 
specific action plan to support children and young people and their 

Page 157



 
People and Communities Committee, 

Tuesday, 8th June, 2021 
 
 

 
 

C1936 
 
 

families to recover from the pandemic, with a view to adopt 
implementation of the plan.     

 

3.10 
viii Wider University and Lower Ormeau Intervention 

 
 Members will be aware that due to the significant and complex 

challenges in this area, in November 2019, the Council requested 
that Community Planning be used as a vehicle to bring key 
Statutory, Community and other partners together to develop an 
integrated and targeted approach and intervention(s) of scale for 
the wider university and Lower Ormeau area.  

 
 History has shown that there is no straightforward or single 

solution to the prevalent issues in the area. However, it is 
incumbant upon all partners to continue to demonstrate 
commitment, sustained effort and leadership to find solutions to 
improve the qualitiy of life for those that live in the area. In support 
of this work, in November 2020, the Council worked closely with 
the Department for Communities, Department for Finance and 
local stakeholders to bring forward a strategic insights programme 
which included a series of tailored workshops with community 
groups, residents, student representatives, landlords and local 
councillors. While the process has highlighted entrenched 
positions and ongoing tension between the constituent 
stakeholder groups, there is a general consensus amongst the 
majority that a reconfigured and long-term vision is required with 
a supporting implementation plan, alongside proactively 
addressing the immediate challenges.  

 
 Work is underway to establish a recalibrated and re-energised 

Inter-Agency Delivery Group with an action and outcome-based 
focus and supported by a strategic Ministerial Group who will 
consider potential policy and legislative changes which may be 
required. Suggested outcomes for the area include, but are not 
limited to: 

 

 Reduce anti-social behaviour,  

 Improve community cohesion,  

 Improve the physical and environmental appearance of the 
area,  

 Develop new and innovative methods of engaging citizens, 
to identify local priorities and solutions. 

 
 Members will note the interconnectedness of the above priorities, 

which are being undertaken through the LHB and how these align 
to Council’s efforts to lead the city recovery from Covid. 
Opportunities to further enhance synergies between work 
programmes within and across the various Board’s under the 
Community Planning Partnership, will continue to emerge as the 
Board reaffirms its priorities and supports the review of the Belfast 

Page 158



 
People and Communities Committee, 

Tuesday, 8th June, 2021 
 
 

 
 

C1937 
 
 

Agenda.  Regular progress updates of the LHB will be brought to 
the Community Planning All-Party Working Group and the People 
and Communities Committee going forward, providing the 
mechanism for informing and engaging members in relation to the 
Living Here work programme.  

 
3.11 Financial and Resource Implications 
 
 There are no direct financial implications arising from this report. 

Costs associated with the implementation and facilitation of the 
LHB are currently being met within existing council budgets. 

 
3.12 Equality or Good Relations Implications/ 
 Rural Needs Assessment 
 
 There are no Equality or Good Relations Implications and no Rural 

Needs Assessment required for the recommendations outlined 
above.” 

 
 The Members of the Committee noted:  

 the key areas of work currently being progressed by the Living Here Board 
(LHB),  

 the alignment and synergies between the Board and the work of the 
Committee; and 

 the proposed procedure for refreshing the Belfast Agenda and the role of 
Elected Members in supporting the process. 

Belfast Open Spaces Strategy - Delivery Plan 
 
 The Director of Neighbourhood Services provided the Members with a detailed update 
in respect of the Belfast Open Spaces Strategy (BOSS) and the proposed approach to 
implement the strategy through the development of Delivery Plans. 
 
 He reminded the Members that the new BOSS was an update of the previous Open 
Spaces Strategy – ‘Your City, Your Space’ which had been completed in 2005.  The Council 
had appointed AECOM to help prepare a new BOSS for the council area.  The BOSS, 
including the data collected during its preparation, had formed part of the evidence base for 
the Local Development Plan (LDP).  A public consultation had been carried out on the draft 
BOSS from June -September 2019, with an update and proposed amendments having been 
presented to the Strategic Policy and Resources Committee in March 2020.  As a result of the 
pandemic there had been a delay in finalising the publication of the BOSS. 
  
 The Members noted that the vision of the BOSS was that by 2035 ‘Belfast will have a 
well-connected, accessible network of high quality, sustainable open spaces recognised for 
the value and benefits they provide to everyone who lives, works in and visits our city.’ 
 
 The strategy outlined seven guiding strategic principles (SP), to ensure the council’s 
existing and new open spaces were fit for the future.  
 

Page 159



 
People and Communities Committee, 

Tuesday, 8th June, 2021 
 
 

 
 

C1938 
 
 

 SP1. Provide welcoming shared spaces 

 SP2. Improve connectivity 

 SP3. Improve health and wellbeing 

 SP4. Support place-making and enhance the built environment 

 SP5. Increase resilience to climate change 

 SP6. Protect and enhance the natural environment 

 SP7. Be celebrated and support learning 
 
 The Director advised that the strategy had identified a range of opportunities and 
headline actions aligned to the seven strategic principles above. These actions were currently 
underway or planned for the council’s open space network across the city in the next five 
years.  He detailed that over the coming months, officers from the CNS Department would 
work collaboratively with colleagues across the council to develop more focused thematic and 
geographically based (N, S, E, W and city wide) open space delivery plans. This work would 
include a review of the progress to date on the headline actions currently in the BOSS and the 
development of smart outcomes-based proposals for future actions.  
 
 Several Members welcomed and noted the importance of open spaces, stating that this 
had been particularly highlighted during the pandemic.  During discussion the importance of 
improving connectivity through connecting spaces (greenways), sustainable transport and 
accessible travel and linking this work with the Belfast Access Strategy and aligning it with the 
work of the Physical Programmes section was highlighted.   
 

 The Director of Neighbourhood Services referred to localised delivery plans and 
advised that it was anticipated that much of the work to develop these plans would be 
progressed through the Area Working Groups. 

 
 The Members of the Committee noted the final version of the Belfast Open Spaces 
Strategy and the proposed approach and next steps in implementing the strategy through the 
development of smart outcomes-based delivery plans. 
 
Belfast Healthy Cities 
 
 The Committee considered the undernoted report: 
 

“1.0 Purpose of Report or Summary of main Issues 
 
1.1 At the meeting of the People and Communities Committee on 9th 

March 2021, Members agreed to extend the current partnership 
agreement with Belfast Healthy Cities, until 30th September 2021 
to allow for the submission of the application for Phase VII of the 
WHO European Healthy Cities Network and the completion of a 
value for money review of partnership arrangements with Belfast 
Healthy Cities, who facilitate the city’s membership of the WHO 
European Healthy Cities Network. 

 
1.2 On 21st May BHC notified us that the City of Belfast has been 

designated in Phase VII thereby extended to April 2026.  Council 
Officers will work with BHC to ensure that the certificate is formally 
signed off by the incoming Lord Mayor over the coming weeks. 

Page 160



 
People and Communities Committee, 

Tuesday, 8th June, 2021 
 
 

 
 

C1939 
 
 

 
1.3 Belfast City Council are one of four core funders of Belfast Healthy 

Cities along with the Public Health Agency, Belfast Health and 
Social Care Trust and Northern Ireland Housing Executive. 
Belfast’s membership to the WHO European Healthy Cities 
Network is facilitated by Belfast Healthy Cities.  The CEOs of each 
of the four funding bodies will receive a copy of the final 
designation letter. 

 
1.4 The value for money review draft report has now been issued, on 

6th May 2021, to the core funding partners of Belfast Healthy Cities 
for review and comment. Overall, the findings outlined in the initial 
draft report do indicate that the collective investment in Belfast 
Healthy Cities represents ‘good value for money’ based on the 
returns the city receives in both profile and practice.  

 
1.5 Further engagement within, and across, each of the core funding 

partners is now required to collectively examine the content of the 
draft report. As such, and to ensure continuity of delivery during 
this period, it is recommended the current partnership agreement 
with Belfast Healthy Cities is extended until 31st March 2022. 

 
2.0 Recommendations 

 
2.1 The Members of the Committee are asked to recommend that, in 

accordance with the Council decision of 4th May 2021, the Chief 
Executive exercise her delegated authority to: 

 

 Note the content of the report 

 Agree to extend the current partnership agreement with 
Belfast Healthy Cities to 31st March 2022 

 Agree to a further report being brought to committee in the 
Autumn which will detail both the findings and 
recommendations from the final version of the value 
for money review as well as the four core funding partners 
plans for acting on/responding to the findings 
/recommendations. 

 
3.0 Main report 
 
 Key Issues 
 
3.1 At the meeting of the People and Communities Committee on 4th 

June 2019, Members agreed that a review be undertaken of the 
Department’s ongoing partnership agreements with a focus on 
alignment with the Belfast Agenda and value for money. Included 
within this review was the partnership agreement with Belfast 
Healthy Cities. 

 

Page 161



 
People and Communities Committee, 

Tuesday, 8th June, 2021 
 
 

 
 

C1940 
 
 

3.2 Further to this, at the meeting of the People and Communities 
Committee on 9th March 2021, Members approved an extension of 
the current partnership agreement with Belfast Healthy Cities, until 
30th September 2021 to allow for the completion of both the value 
for money review of partnership arrangements with Belfast 
Healthy Cities and to facilitate the application process for Phase 
VII of the WHO European Healthy Cities Network.  

 
3.3 Belfast’s membership to the WHO European Healthy Cities 

Network is facilitated by Belfast Healthy Cities, who are an 
independent partnership organisation, recognised as having 
charitable status by The Charity Commission for Northern Ireland. 
BHC is governed by a Board of Directors, elected annually and 
representing the public, university, voluntary and community 
sectors and funded by a range of partners including Council, 
Public Health Agency (PHA), Belfast Health and Social Care Trust 
(BHSCT) and the Northern Ireland Housing Executive (NIHE). 

 
3.4 Independent consultancy support, working on behalf of the 

funders collectively, has led on the value for money review 
process. The timeframe for the review has been negatively 
impacted by the Covid-19 pandemic, particularly given the high 
levels of engagement required to undertake such work. As such, 
the timescale for the completion of the review was extended to 
allow for full involvement from key stakeholders.   

 
3.5 A draft report has recently been submitted to the core funding 

partners. The draft report indicates the current level of collective 
funding to Belfast Healthy Cities represents good value for money 
based on the existing work programme and the return received to 
the city in both profile (regionally and internationally) and practice 
(partnership and action). Further engagement is now required 
within each of the core funding organisations, across the funding 
partnership, and with Belfast Healthy Cities.  

 
3.6 A report will be brought back to committee in Autumn 2021, 

providing greater detail on the review findings and 
recommendations, as well as the core funding partners collective 
response in terms of how these should/could be addressed going 
forward for members consideration and approval. 

 
3.7 In the interim, members are asked to approve an extension of the 

current partnership agreement with Belfast Healthy Cities, until 
31st March 2022, to allow for further discussion and engagement 
to take place and to ensure continuity of service during this time.  

 
  Financial and Resource Implications 

 
3.8 Extending the current partnership agreement with Belfast Healthy 

Cities as recommended, would have a financial implication of 

Page 162



 
People and Communities Committee, 

Tuesday, 8th June, 2021 
 
 

 
 

C1941 
 
 

£40,647. This has been included within the revenue estimates for 
2021/22 and does not represent any growth.  

 
 Equality or Good Relations Implications/ 
 Rural Needs Assessment 
 
3.9 There are no Equality or Good Relations Implications and no Rural 

Needs Assessment required for the recommendations outlined 
above.” 

 
 Following a query in regard to funding, the Director of Neighbourhood Services advised 
that Belfast City Council was just one of the funders and he assured the Member that the long-
term sustainability of the partnership would be considered in the Council’s value for money 
review. 
 
 In accordance with the Council decision of 4th May, the Members agreed that the Chief 
Executive exercise her delegated authority to agree:  
 

 to extend the current partnership agreement with Belfast Healthy Cities to 
31st March 2022; and  

 to a further report being submitted to committee in the Autumn which 
would detail both the findings and recommendations from the final version 
of the value for money review as well as the four core funding partners 
plans for acting on/responding to the findings/recommendations. 

 
Naming of New Park at Colin 
 
 The Director provided the Members with an update regarding the outcome of the 
naming process for the new park at Colin, which had previously been reported to the People 
and Communities Committee at its meeting on 13th April 2021. 
 
 He reminded the Members that the Council were currently working in partnership with 
the Urban Villages Initiative to develop a large scale ‘destination’ park in the Colin area of the 
city. The new park, which represented an investment of over £4m in the area, would include 
a new play park, pump track, education zone and extensive new pathways.  Work on the park 
was currently progressing well and it was anticipated that it would be completed by July.  As 
previously advised, a preliminary engagement exercise had been carried out with key local 
stakeholders to develop several options for a name for the new park, with the initial agreed 
options having been: 
 

 Páirc Nua Colin 

 Leap of Faith Park 

 Sherwood Park 

 Colin New Park 
 
 In addition, as agreed at last month’s meeting Páirc Nua Chollann had also been added 
to the proposed list.  
 
 The Director advised that the Council had used its new online consultation platform, 
“Your Say” to consult on the five options above between 10th May and 31st May 2021. Hard 

Page 163



 
People and Communities Committee, 

Tuesday, 8th June, 2021 
 
 

 
 

C1942 
 
 

copy questionnaires had also been circulated to key community stakeholders. The 
consultation had received a very strong uptake with over 900 responses received, the vast 
majority of which came from respondents within the BT17 postcode area and he drew the 
Members; attention to the results, as follows:  
 

 Páirc Nua Chollann- 42.4% (317 responses) 

 Leap of Faith Park- 23.8% (208) 

 Páirc Nua Colin- 15.7% (137) 

 Sherwood Park- 12.7% (111) 

 Colin New Park- 5.4% (47) 
 
 In accordance with the Council decision of 4th May, the Members agreed that the Chief 
Executive exercise her delegated authority to note the findings of the public consultation 
exercise on the name of the new park at Colin and approve the name of the new park in Colin 
as Páirc Nua Chollann.  
 
Motion - Recent Violence and Public Disorder 
 
 The Committee considered the undernoted report:  
 

“1.0 Purpose of Report or Summary of main Issues 
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to update members in relation to the 

Motion on Recent Violence and Public Disorder considered at the 
May meeting of committee and to outline how this would be 
facilitated, resourced and managed. 
 

2.0 Recommendations 
 
2.1 The Members of the Committee are asked to recommend that, in 

accordance with the Council decision of 4th May, the Chief 
Executive exercise her delegated authority to: 

 
i Note that the Motion will be considered at the next meeting 

of the Belfast Area Outcomes Group for CYP as the most 
appropriate forum of the relevant statutory agencies and 
third sector organisations to inform a consistent, young 
person led approach for future summer periods; 

 
ii note the recent engagement with BHSCT and DfC to discuss 

any future discretionary funding to support youth 
engagement and intervention and commitment to continue 
the collaborative, flexible, co-design model successfully 
delivered by the BAOG and Locality groups for CYP Covid 
response programme support; 

 
iii note ongoing arrangements to support continued, 

proactive, engagement with Trade Unions to ensure safety 
of our staff 

 

Page 164



 
People and Communities Committee, 

Tuesday, 8th June, 2021 
 
 

 
 

C1943 
 
 

iv note historic and ongoing engagement with Department of 
Engagement and Youth Service officials to support the 
ongoing process for the formation of a NI Youth Assembly; 
and to seek assurances that Youth Citizens' Assemblies will 
be considered as an engagement model to make 
recommendations for the city on addressing poverty, 
inequality, eradicating paramilitarism, integrating 
communities, expanding opportunity and tackling the 
climate crises 

 
3.0 Main report 
 
 Key Issues 
 
3.1 The Council, at its meeting on 4th May, considered the following 

motion which had been moved by Councillor Smyth and seconded 
by Councillor Mulholland. 

 
3.2 ‘This Council condemns the recent serious violence and public 

disorder that took place not only in Belfast, but across Northern 
Ireland.  It condemns paramilitarism, the use of violence for 
political ends and the exploitation of young people and working 
class communities.  We were deeply troubled to see images of 
children and young people involved in violence and deplore the 
risk of another generation seeing violence as a response to 
political frustrations. Whilst matters have thankfully settled over 
the past 2 weeks, we still believe that the underlying issues prevail 
and the threat of violence is near too far away from the surface in 
Northern Ireland. 

 
 As the main political body of this city, we have a moral and ethical 

duty to do everything we can to protect our citizens, particularly 
those young people at risk of being manipulated into street 
violence, as well as our duty of care to front line council staff 
carrying out daily essential services. We must also move away 
from simply offering condemnation and begin to look at solutions 
that will offer our young people hope and invest in their futures. 
This Council will: commit to supporting all elements of the Youth 
Service, including our own Belfast Youth Forum; and will convene 
an urgent meeting of the relevant statutory agencies and third 
sector organisations to develop a consistent, young person led 
approach for the coming summer period; engage with relevant 
departments to ensure that discretionary funding is made 
available to support youth engagement and intervention; engage 
with Trade Unions to ensure safety of our staff and; will support 
the ongoing process for the formation of a NI Youth Assembly; and 
seek assurances that Youth Citizens' Assemblies will 
be considered as an engagement model to make 
recommendations for the city on addressing poverty, inequality, 

Page 165



 
People and Communities Committee, 

Tuesday, 8th June, 2021 
 
 

 
 

C1944 
 
 

eradicating paramilitarism, integrating communities, expanding 
opportunity and tackling the climate crises.’ 

 
3.3 The Members of the Committee recommended that, in accordance 

with the Council decision of 4th May, the Chief Executive exercise 
her delegated authority to agree that a report on how this would be 
facilitated, resourced and managed be submitted to a future 
meeting. 

 
3.4 Council is committed to the work of the Belfast Youth Forum and 

continues to facilitate this with dedicated officer support and an 
agreed programme of joint BYF and P&C committee meetings 
where YF members present progress reports on their campaigns, 
outline any emerging issues and present recommendations in 
order to agree related action.  The next joint meeting of the BYF 
and P&C committee is 22nd June 2021.  Recruitment for the next 
cohort of members for the BYF will begin in September 2021. 

 
3.5 Officers meet with senior officials from the Youth Service in the 

city on a regular basis in order to discuss issues and agree 
collaborative action. We will continue to work with the EA Youth 
Service at both a city and neighbourhood level to support all 
elements of the Youth Service.    

 
3.6 Within Priorities for Youth, the policy document which prescribes 

EA Youth Service work, participation is a key objective. To support 
the development of the Youth Voice, Youth Services are working 
in partnership with district councils to develop council wide, 
voluntary representation by young people and have confirmed that 
this approach has been heavily influenced by the recognised good 
practice in the Belfast Youth Forum model.  We are currently 
working with Youth Services to agree how our Belfast Youth 
Forum can work collaboratively with this regional model.  The 
Youth Voice groups will form part of the participative structures 
across Northern Ireland and will be recognised by Government 
Departments as a key component in this area.  A network of the 
youth voice groups will be developed, with a conference held each 
year to discuss, share, support the issues and the work developed 
by the young people in each area.  We hope to host the 2021 
conference in Belfast in the autumn. 

 
3.7 We have also been engaging with the Head of the Children and 

Young People’s Strategy Team in the Department of Education on 
the broader Participation Network project which aims to support 
as many young people as possible to get their voice heard.  This 
includes plans for the formation of a NI Youth Assembly.  This 
work has been delayed due to Covid however we have indicated 
our interest in the Belfast Youth Forum supporting the Department 
in a genuine co-design process alongside Youth Voice groups in 
other councils and the broad range of local community led youth 

Page 166



 
People and Communities Committee, 

Tuesday, 8th June, 2021 
 
 

 
 

C1945 
 
 

forums and groups.  We have pointed to the Citizen Assembly 
model as a way to engage a broader range of voices on specific 
discussion topics.  We will also raise this with colleagues in the 
BCC Community Planning team to consider as an engagement 
methodology which would complement the views of the Belfast 
Youth Forum. 

  
3.8 Members will be aware of council’s historic and pro-active 

representation on the Belfast Area Outcomes Group which has 
been mandated by the regional Children and Young People 
Strategic Partnership to implement outcomes based planning for 
the Belfast Trust area. The membership of the Belfast Outcomes 
Group reflects that of the CYPSP with representation from 
statutory agencies and the voluntary and community sector. The 
Belfast Outcomes Group works to enable the improvement of 
support and services for children and young people in ways that 
ensure the participation and involvement of children, young 
people, families and communities in an integrated planning 
process.  

 
3.9 The Chair of the BAOG was invited to join the Living Here Board in 

order to support the achievement of the CYP priority objectives 
agreed in the Belfast Agenda and to improve the strength of the 
CYP voice in ongoing delivery. In recognition of BAOG as the key 
city partnership for CYP, the Board agreed that BAOG should lead 
on the design and delivery of a fully integrated, interagency 
approach to early intervention.  The BAOG have also led on our 
CYP Covid response programme for children and young people 
along with the Colin Locality group from the SEAOG to ensure full 
coverage across the council area.  The programme combined 
available funding from council, BHSCT and DfC and was co-
designed with voluntary and community group representatives to 
ensure it met evidenced need and was delivered locally.  

  
3.10 In late May 2021, the co-chairs of the Living Here Board met with 

representatives from the BAOG to consider the positive learning 
from this collaboratively planned and delivered response and to 
agree a process to develop future delivery action plans.  A senior 
representative from DfC was invited to the meeting in order to 
promote continuation of this collaborative, flexible and CYP 
informed approach to ensure alignment of any further available 
financial support. 

 
3.11 On that basis, it is recommended that the BAOG is the most 

appropriate partnership structure to provide a considered multi 
stakeholder response to the Motion.  The next meeting of the group 
is 15th June and the Motion will be considered as part of the 
agenda. 

 

Page 167



 
People and Communities Committee, 

Tuesday, 8th June, 2021 
 
 

 
 

C1946 
 
 

3.12 Given the timing of the recent Motion, it has not been possible to 
design any specific age appropriate, meaningful engagement 
sessions with children and young people in order to design a 
consistent youth led approach for the 2020 Summer period.  As 
noted, officers are working with colleagues in EA Youth Service 
and other agencies to consider how best to collaboratively plan for 
the coming summer period and to consider how to ensure a more 
consistent, youth led approach for following years. 

 
3.13 Colleagues in BCC Community Safety continue to participate in 

regular meetings with relevant key agencies including PSNI, EA 
Youth Service and Translink through the Citywide ASB Tasking 
group which covers West, South & East Belfast.  Currently the 
meeting is primarily an exchange of information around ASB 
Hotspot locations with some areas experiencing more issues that 
others. Given the increase in issues, there is a separate meeting 
focusing on North Belfast with the same remit. 

 
3.14 The Council regularly engages with the TU in both formal and 

informal ways at a corporate, departmental and service levels.   
Our TU engagement covers a range of issues, including risk 
assessments and staff safety and we work collectively in the 
consideration of staff related policy and procedures.  

 
3.15 Financial and Resource Implications 
 
 None. 
 
3.16 Equality or Good Relations Implications/ 
 Rural Needs Assessment 
 
 None.” 

 
 In accordance with the Council decision of 4th May, Members of the Committee agreed 
that the Chief Executive exercise her delegated authority to adopt the recommendations as 
detailed at section 2.1 of the report.    
 
 
 
 
 

Chairperson 

Page 168



           CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S DECISIONS, TAKEN UNDER DELEGATED 
AUTHORITY FOR THE PEOPLE AND COMMUNITIES COMMITTEE 

DATE OF MEETING: 
COMPILATION OF COMMITTEE 

RECOMMENDATIONS SENT TO CX:  
DEADLINE FOR CX’s COMMENTS: 

 

22nd June, 2021 
 
23rd June, 2021 
24th June, 2021 
 

 CX DECISION REGISTER TO BE PUBLISHED: 24th June, 2021              
 
FINAL DATE FOR CALL-IN (10am): 1st July, 2021 

 Topic Chief Executive’s Decision Subject 
to call-

in 

Belfast Youth Forum Agenda 

2a 'Heads Up' Mental Health 
Advocacy Toolkit 

In accordance with the Council decision of 4th May, the Chief Executive exercised her delegated 
authority to: 
 

 Note the overview on the ‘Heads Up’ Mental Health advocacy toolkit which launched on 
18th February 2021. 
 

Yes 

2b 'Minor Choices, Major Voices' 
Research 

In accordance with the Council decision of 4th May, the Chief Executive exercised her delegated 
authority to: 
 

 Note progress in relation to the current research undertaken by Belfast Youth Forum 
around diversity in Belfast, newly titled ‘Minor Choices, Major Voices’. 
 

 Recommend that the research is presented to the Belfast (D)PCSPs.  
 

 Recommend that consideration is given to how the Belfast Youth Forum could become 
involved in the (D)PCSPs. 
 

Yes 

2c Youth Champions In accordance with the Council decision of 4th May, the Chief Executive exercised her delegated 
authority to: 
 

 Recommend that each Political Party in Belfast City Council nominate a ‘Youth Champion’ 
who can liaise with Belfast Youth Forum on motions and matters relating to youth in the 
city as a mechanism to aid communication between Elected Members and BYF members. 
 

Yes 

P
age 169



2d Rebranding In accordance with the Council decision of 4th May, the Chief Executive exercised her delegated 
authority to: 
 

 Recommend that Belfast Youth Forum rebrand to become ‘Belfast City Youth Council’ in 
order to provide a better linkage and connection with Belfast City Council. 
 

 Agree that a Covid-19 compliant celebration event is organised alongside the rebranding and 
recruitment campaign to promote the previous work of the Belfast Youth Forum.   

 

Yes 

2e Belfast Youth Forum 
Recruitment 

In accordance with the Council decision of 4th May, the Chief Executive exercised her delegated 
authority to: 
 

 Note the time frame for the stand down of the current 2018-2021 Youth Forum and the 
recruitment of new 2021-2023 Youth Forum. 
 

Yes 

2f Transgender Community 
Support 

In accordance with the Council decision of 4th May, the Chief Executive exercised her delegated 
authority to: 
 

 Recommend that the Committee engage in a preliminary discussion with BYF members on 
how Belfast can work to become a more progressive and inclusive city for the Transgender 
community. 
 

Yes 

Please note that the agenda/reports associated with the decisions listed above can be accessed on the app and on the web, via the following 
link: Special P&C Committee - Youth Forum; Tuesday, 22nd June, 5.15pm  

P
age 170

https://minutes.belfastcity.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=166&MId=10317&Ver=4


C1947 
 

People and Communities Committee 
 

Tuesday, 22nd June, 2021 
 

 
 SPECIAL MEETING OF PEOPLE AND COMMUNITIES COMMITTEE 

 
 

Members present: Councillor Smyth (In the Chair); 
 Alderman Copeland; and   

Councillors Black, Bunting, de Faoite, Flynn, Magee, 
McAteer, McCusker and Mulholland. 

 
 In attendance: Mrs. C. Taggart, Neighbourhood Services Manager; 

Mrs. G. O’Hare, Community Development Officer;  
Mrs. L. McLernon, Democratic Services Officer; and  
Ms. K. McCrum, Democratic Services Officer. 

 
External attendance: 
 
Belfast Youth Forum:  Lucy Flannery (Vice Chair); 
   Tobi Adegoye; 
   John Kane; 
   Luke Patterson; and 
   Carter Wickham. 

 
 

Apologies 
 
 Apologies were reported on behalf of the Councillors Cobain, Baker, Michael Collins, 
Corr, Garrett, M. Kelly, McReynolds, Newton, Pankhurst and Verner.    
 

Declarations of Interest 
 
 No Declarations of Interest were recorded. 
 

Belfast Youth Forum Agenda 
 
 The Committee was advised that representatives from the Belfast Youth Forum were 
in attendance to provide an update in relation to the work of the Forum. 
 
 The Chairperson, on behalf of the Committee, welcomed the representatives to the 
meeting. 
 
'Heads Up' Mental Health Advocacy Toolkit – Carter Wickham 
 
 A representative of the Belfast Youth Forum (BYF) presented their 'Heads Up' Mental 
Health Advocacy Toolkit, which had been developed in partnership between BYF, NI Youth 
Forum and the Northern Ireland Commissioner for Children and Young People (NICCY), and 
launched in February, 2021. 
     
 He explained that the toolkit had been designed to help and support young people to 
take action and campaign on local mental health issues, and had come about as a result of 
the ‘Elephant in the Room’ and ‘Still Waiting’ reports.     

Page 171



 
Special People and Communities Committee, 

Tuesday, 22nd June, 2021 
 
 
 

C1948 
 

 
 The 4 key steps in organising a campaign were outlined, as was the importance of 
mental health self-care.  The Committee was advised that the toolkit also included a number 
of key facts about mental health and a wide variety of resources and activities to support 
groups on their campaign journey.     
 
 The Members of the Committee commended the development of the Toolkit, noting 
the additional stress and pressures that had emerged as a result of the Covid-19 pandemic, 
and the need to help both young people and adults articulate how they were feeling.    
 
 In response to questions about where the toolkit had been circulated, and what, if any, 
feedback had been received, the representative advised that copies had been circulated to 
various other forums, as well as individuals who had shown an interest, and was targeted 
towards youth groups and leaders, schools, the community and voluntary sector, as well as 
politicians.   
 
 The Neighbourhood Services Manager advised that feedback and information from 
groups and schools using the toolkit to manage their own campaigns would be used to inform 
the future work of the Forum, as well as to respond to the current ‘call for evidence’ as part of 
the Belfast Agenda review.   
 
 Following discussion, the Members of the Committee recommended that, in 
accordance with the Council decision of 4th May, the Chief Executive exercise her delegated 
authority to note the overview on the ‘Heads Up’ Mental Health advocacy toolkit which was 
launched on 18th February 2021. 
 
'Minor Choices, Major Voices' Research – Tobi Adegoye  
 
 A Youth Forum representative provided an overview of the results received from recent 
research looking at the experiences of Black, Asian and minority ethnic young people living In 
Belfast, titled ‘Minor Choices, Major Voices’.  She advised that over the past 2 years, members 
of the diversity sub-group had been involved in a number of visits and activities in order to 
better inform themselves on issues such as migration, immigration, refugee status, ethnicity, 
racism, culture, diversity and religion.    
 
 The Members of the Committee were advised that, whilst it had been their intention to 
gather information via face to face focus groups, Covid-19 related restrictions required the 
survey to move online, and despite widespread promotion, just 23 responses were received.   
 
 She confirmed that the survey featured four main themes: a sense of belonging, 
community safety, school life, and, changes you would like to see, and that the findings were 
being analysed by Forum members and Dr. Byrne at the University of Ulster.  Some initial data 
for the survey was presented:  
 

 39% of respondents were male, 57% were female and 4% preferred not to say; 

 46% stated that they followed Islam/Muslim beliefs, 26% followed Catholic 
beliefs, with the remaining categories split evenly (4%) between Protestant, 
Hindu, Jewish, Sikh, Buddhist, none, and those who preferred not to say; 

 44% described their ethnic background as Black African, 9% as black other, 
9% as South Asian, 9% Filipino and 9% mixed ethnic heritage;  

 96% stated that they were in full time education; 

Page 172



 
Special People and Communities Committee, 

Tuesday, 22nd June, 2021 
 
 
 

C1949 
 

 91% of people stated that they expressed their culture through what they eat, 
65% through faith, beliefs and practices and 61% through their spoken 
language; 

 70% felt that there were some opportunities in Belfast to express in a positive 
way their culture and tradition, 13% felt there were no opportunities and 4% felt 
there were a lot of opportunities i.e. Culture Night, Belfast Mela; 

 61% felt that there were opportunities within the community to contribute to the 
decision-making processes that effected their lives; 

 83% stated that if given the opportunity in the future, they would leave 
Belfast/Northern Ireland to live in another country.  Reasons for this included: 

- Feeling that they were not welcome and feeling like an outsider, despite 
being born here; 

- Not having the same opportunities in Belfast as in other countries; 
- Being at a disadvantage in securing employment due to the colour of 

their skin; 

 When asked what kind of place they wanted Belfast to be in the future, 
responses included: 
- A more accepting place which doesn’t revolve around the conflict of 

Protestants and Catholics and rather the various ethnicities and cultures; 
- A place where I don’t have to think if my outfit or general appearance will 

cause me to be subject to prejudice; 
- A lively and accepting place that has a focus on being progressive; 
- Somewhere that all nationalities can feel welcomed and feel free to walk 

anywhere without the fear of racism. 
 

 The representative advised that this would be just the first step in exploring the topic of 
diversity in Belfast and that it was hoped that the next cohort of Belfast Youth Forum members 
would supplement this research with some face to face focus groups in order to gather more 
in-depth qualitative data, with the ultimate aim of making Belfast a welcoming, safe and tolerant 
city for all young people, regardless of race or religion.   
 
 The Members of the Committee welcomed the research and suggested that, even with 
limited responses, it highlighted the challenges facing the city in terms of inclusivity for those 
from different ethnic and religious backgrounds.    
 
 Discussion ensued regarding the concerning number of young people who did not feel 
that they belonged, or were welcome in Belfast, and how diversity could be supported and 
celebrated.  It was pointed out that many cultural events were focused towards families, and 
that perhaps events specifically for young people were lacking.  The role of education in 
reducing racism and ignorance and was considered, as was parental influence.     
 
 The Members of the Committee and Youth Forum also discussed the benefits of 
presenting the information to Belfast’s Policing and Community Safety Partnerships 
((D)PCSPs), and whether it would be possible for BYF members to be represented on the 
Partnerships.   The Neighbourhood Services Manager agreed to explore the options available 
through the PCSP governance mechanisms alongside the Good Relations Manager, whilst 
asking that the Members remain mindful of the workload of the Youth Forum volunteers.   
 
 Following further discussion, the Members of the Committee recommended that, in 
accordance with the Council decision of 4th May, the Chief Executive exercise her delegated 
authority to: 

Page 173



 
Special People and Communities Committee, 

Tuesday, 22nd June, 2021 
 
 
 

C1950 
 

 Note progress in relation to the current research undertaken by Belfast Youth 
Forum around diversity in Belfast, newly titled ‘Minor Choices, Major Voices’. 

 Recommend that the research is presented to the Belfast (D)PCSPs.  

 Recommend that consideration is given to how the Belfast Youth Forum could 
become involved in the (D)PCSPs. 

Youth Champions – Luke Patterson  
 

The representative suggested that, while the Belfast Youth Forum was recognised as 
an important part of Belfast City Council’s youth structures and that this had been further 
strengthened by the joint People and Committees Committee and BYF meetings, members 
felt there was further potential to improve communications and cooperation between 
Councillors, officers and the Forum.  

 
He therefore brought forward the suggestion that each political party nominate a 

representative to take a leadership role in working and engaging with the Youth Forum on 
issues and/or motions which relate to young people.    

 
A number of the Members of the Committee spoke in support of the suggestion, and 

commented that, at times, Councillors had not communicated with the Forum as effectively as 
they could have.   It was also suggested that learning from the Older Persons Reference Group 
and their use of champions could be considered, as well as intergenerational work.   

 
The Neighbourhood Services Manager confirmed that, if agreed, staff would develop 

Terms of Reference to support the champion role, in consultation with the Members, and that 
nominations would be managed through Party Group Leaders.    

 
The Members of the Committee recommended that, in accordance with the Council 

decision of 4th May, the Chief Executive exercise her delegated authority to recommend that 
each Political Party in Belfast City Council nominate a ‘Youth Champion’ who could liaise with 
Belfast Youth Forum on motions and matters relating to youth in the city as a mechanism to 
aid communication between Elected Members and BYF members. 
 
Rebranding – Lucy Flannery  
 
 The representative asked the Members of the Committee to consider a proposal to 
rebrand the Belfast Youth Forum to become ‘Belfast City Youth Council’, in order to provide a 
better linkage and connection with Belfast City Council, subject to all legal issues and 
implications being agreed.   
 
 She advised that, with the emergence of several youth forums in the city which are 
organised at a neighbourhood level, BYF had the potential to make its position at a city level 
more distinct, in much the same way as the Northern Ireland Youth Assembly had recently 
done.   
 
 The Neighbourhood Services Manager added that the timeframe for the change would 
be aligned to the autumn recruitment of the new members, and include a communications plan 
which would credit the campaigns undertaken by the Belfast Youth Forum in the past.   
 
 A Member of the Committee suggested that the rebranding and recruitment offered the 
opportunity to arrange a celebration event in order to promote the previous work of the Belfast 

Page 174



 
Special People and Communities Committee, 

Tuesday, 22nd June, 2021 
 
 
 

C1951 
 

Youth Forum, subject to Covid-19 restrictions.  The Neighbourhood Services Manager advised 
that, if agreed, this could be built into the recruitment plan, and involve outgoing and new 
members, the Committee and Youth Champions, if so nominated by this stage.     
 

The Members of the Committee recommended that, in accordance with the Council 
decision of 4th May, the Chief Executive exercise her delegated authority to: 

 

 Recommend that Belfast Youth Forum rebrand to become ‘Belfast City Youth 
Council’ in order to provide a better linkage and connection with Belfast City 
Council. 

 Agree that a Covid-19 compliant celebration event is organised alongside the 
rebranding and recruitment campaign to promote the previous work of the 
Belfast Youth Forum.   

 
Belfast Youth Forum Recruitment – Lucy Flannery  
 
 The Committee was reminded that, at the January 2020 Special People and 
Communities Committee meeting, it had been agreed that the BYF recruitment process would 
be amended to begin in September and end in October in line with the academic year. 
 
 Furthermore, at the August 2020 meeting of the People and Communities Committee, 
it had been agreed that the term of the existing BYF members would be extended for another 
year, to end in September 2021, due to the impact of Covid-19. 
 
 The Youth Forum representative provided information on the District Electoral Areas 
represented by BYF members, and outlined their hope that the incoming members would be 
a representative group of young people from the city, not just geographically, but to include a 
diverse range of religions, races, genders, and sexualities, as well as those with disabilities, 
so that all young people could feel that they have representatives who are championing their 
voices with decision makers.  Elected Members were asked to promote the recruitment drive 
within their electoral areas, and encourage as many young people as possible to apply.    
 
 The Members of the Committee recommended that, in accordance with the Council 
decision of 4th May, the Chief Executive exercise her delegated authority to note the time 
frame for the stand down of the current 2018-2021 Youth Forum and the recruitment of new 
2021-2023 Youth Forum. 
 
Transgender Community Support – Carter Wickham  
 

A Youth Forum representative explained that the BYF were committing to actively 
better understand the issues affecting transgender young people and to liaise with the  
incoming members on creating an engagement plan which would set out how all future 
campaigns would actively seek to ensure that the voices of all young people were heard, 
including those of the transgender community.  

 
He advised the Members of the Committee that the only Gender Identity Clinic in 

Northern Ireland, Brackenburn, had reached capacity in 2018 at which point it had stopped 
accepting new patients, and, whilst the clinic had recently resumed services, the wait times 
were reported to be in the region of 4-5 years. 

   

Page 175



 
Special People and Communities Committee, 

Tuesday, 22nd June, 2021 
 
 
 

C1952 
 

He explained that high levels of depression, anxiety and suicidal thoughts were 
reported within the trans community and that the lack of access to appropriate healthcare was 
directly linked to suicide rates.  He added that the current system was effectively denying a 
section of the community access to public services and support.  He therefore called on the 
Council to actively involve the transgender community in research, consultations and 
proposals going forward.   

 
A number of the Members of the Committee voiced their disappointment and frustration 

that, as health services were resuming post Covid-19, there appeared to be little progress at 
the Brackenburn Clinic, and agreed that this was an important priority.   The Members 
discussed how best to support trans rights, and support the campaign for equality and equity 
in terms of public services.  A Member also made reference to funding provided by Belfast 
City Council to the Belfast Trans Resource Centre during the pandemic in order to support 
counselling services.   

 
Discussion took place regarding the need to eliminate ignorance through education, 

the need to understand others’ experience and to provide an accepting society.  A Member 
referenced a Department of Education report which had reviewed the experience of trans 
young people in schools, suggesting that LGB&T young people had the support of their peers, 
but often it was teachers and school policies that acted as barriers to how they wished to 
represent, for example, through uniform policies and changing facilities.   

 
The Members of the Committee discussed the detrimental impact that negative 

experiences could have on mental ill health and suicide amongst the trans community, and 
suggested that, whilst the Council did not have a role in wider health care issues, they did 
have a role to play in the visibility of public services and having a positive impact on 
communities.   
 

The Community Development Officer added that one of the recommendations from 
within the Youth Forum’s ‘Any Use’ report into relationship and sexuality education (RSE) in 
Belfast, was that rather than schools selecting the topics that they wished to cover within RSE, 
that there would be a standardised approach requiring schools to cover certain topics to 
ensure that young people were aware, and were given the opportunity to discuss different 
aspects of RSE.  Also, the report suggested that rather than bringing in external agencies, 
qualified teachers were used to deliver the programme, again to ensure standardisation of 
delivery.   

 
A Member confirmed that he had written to the Education Minister regarding the ‘Any 

Use’ report, asking for its recommendations to be reviewed, and asking whether commitment 
would be forthcoming for common core RSE.  He noted also that the issue had recently been 
raised in the Northern Ireland Assembly, as the topic had been raised within the 
recommendations of the Gillen review.  He advised that he would provide an update to a future 
meeting once he received a response.   
 

The Members of the Committee recommended that, in accordance with the Council 
decision of 4th May, the Chief Executive exercise her delegated authority to recommend that 
the Committee engage in a preliminary discussion with BYF members on how Belfast can 
work to become a more progressive and inclusive city for the Transgender community. 
 
 
 
 

Page 176



 
Special People and Communities Committee, 

Tuesday, 22nd June, 2021 
 
 
 

C1953 
 

Date of next Meeting 
 

 As this was the final joint meeting of the current Belfast Youth Forum members, prior 
to the recruitment drive in September, the Members of the Committee thanked the young 
people for their excellent work over the past 3 years.  Likewise, members of the BYF thanked 
the Committee for allowing the Forum the opportunity to present on a wide range of topics and 
for engaging in important conversations.   
 
 The Community Development Officer was also thanked for her contributions to the 
Forum in her time working in the post.    
 

The Members of the Committee noted that the next Special Joint meeting was 
scheduled to be held on Tuesday, 5th October at 5.15 p.m. 

 
 

 
 
 

Chairperson 
 

Page 177



This page is intentionally left blank



           CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S DECISIONS, TAKEN UNDER DELEGATED 
AUTHORITY FOR THE CITY GROWTH AND REGENERATION COMMITTEE 

DATE OF MEETING: 
COMPILATION OF COMMITTEE 

RECOMMENDATIONS SENT TO CX:  
CX’s COMMENTS RECEIVED: 

 

9th June, 2021 
 
11th June, 2021 
11th June, 2021 
 

FINAL CX DECISION REGISTER PUBLISHED: 11th June, 2021              
 
FINAL DATE FOR CALL-IN (10am): 18th June, 2021 

 Topic Chief Executive’s Decision Subject to call-in 

Request to Present 

2a Translink, Belfast Transport Hub - Weavers 
Cross update 

In accordance with the Council decision of 4th May, the Chief 
Executive exercised her delegated authority: 
 

 For Northern Ireland Transport Holding Company to 
present to the next meeting of the Committee on 11th 
August, 2021 on the Belfast Transport Hub and the 
wider Weavers Cross Regeneration Scheme. 

 

YES 

Regenerating Places & Improving Infrastructure 

3a Department for Communities  (DfC) Housing 
Supply Strategy: Call for Evidence 

In accordance with the Council decision of 4th May, the Chief 
Executive exercised her delegated authority to:  

 Agree that officers develop initial responses to the 
questions posed in the recent Housing Supply Strategy: 
Call for Evidence document that has been launched by 
DfC; 

 Agree that the draft response will subsequently be 
brought via Party Group Leaders given the closing date 
of 16th July for responses, with the final response 
brought back retrospectively to the Committee in 
August; 

 Note the ongoing work in respect of the city-wide 
strategic site assessment work and the proposal for a 
collaborative approach via the Community Planning 
Partnership City Development Board for a focused 
cross agency Delivery Group to co-ordinate the 

YES 

P
age 179

A
genda Item

 6d



identification and collation of information on public 
sector lands suitable for housing development; 

 Note that in the Call for Evidence response that points 

would be raised in relation to the possibility of a ring 

fenced fund for those areas with the highest 

need/deprivation, and in relation to the strategic site 

assessment work that the Council  investigate acquiring 

land including vesting, subject to funding availability, 

either directly or in partnership with DfC and 

subsequently issue Development Briefs in order to shape 

future development.; and 

 Note that an update on City Centre Living Waiting List 

would be requested from NIHE, to include geographical 

and demographic spread. 

 

3b A Bolder Vision Update In accordance with the Council decision of 4th May, the Chief 
Executive exercised her delegated authority to:  

 Note the appointment of a multi-disciplinary team and 
the timeline for the development of Phases 2 and 3 of 
the Bolder Vision Connectivity Study for Belfast. This 
work will include co-design workshops, the development 
of scenarios and interventions to bring forward the 
principles of the Bolder Vision, and the completion of 
the draft Strategy for public consultation in the autumn 
of 2021; and 

 Note that Members will be invited to engage in the 
Stakeholder and Planning Workshops as outlined within 
this report. 
 

YES 

3c Department for Infrastructure (DfI) - Roads 
Presentation to Special Committee 

In accordance with the Council decision of 4th May, the Chief 
Executive exercised her delegated authority to:  

1) Note the issues raised at the previous Committee in 
May, as well as in previous committees, that 
Members wish DfI representatives to address or 
respond to during, or in advance of, the 

YES 

P
age 180



Department’s attendance at Special Committee on 
23rd June; and 
  

2) Note that a letter has been issued to the Minister for 
Infrastructure setting out a list of issues and requests 
that Members had asked to be addressed or 
responded to during, or in advance of, the 
Department’s attendance at Special Committee on 
23rd June. 

 

3d 'The Status Quo is not an Option': Building a 
Sustainable Belfast - Invitation to Speak 

In accordance with the Council decision of 4th May, the Chief 
Executive exercised her delegated authority to:  

1) Agree that, in light of no Member of the Committee 
being able to participate in ‘The status quo is not an 
option’ event to be held on Thursday 24th June, the 
Chief Executive and the Strategic Director would 
discuss the attendance of an appropriate officer, if 
available; and 
 

2) Due to the time-frame of the event, agree, in 
accordance with Standing Order 47 (2) (b), that the 
decision would not be subject to call-in, on the basis 
that the decision was deemed to be a case of special 
urgency. 

 

NO 

Growing Business & the Economy 

4a Sunday Opening Hours In accordance with the Council decision of 4th May, the Chief 
Executive exercised her delegated authority to:  
 

 Approve a request from city business organisations to 
extend the current approach to Sunday opening for 
large retailers until 5th September 2021 in order to 
allow the businesses to bed in the operating 
restrictions following the re-opening and to re-
establish the vitality of the city centre, given the 
shorter opening hours on a Sunday. 
 

YES 

P
age 181



4b Just Eat Belfast Bikes Strategic Review In accordance with the Council decision of 4th May, the Chief 
Executive exercised her delegated authority to:  

 Approve the recommendations from the strategic 
review and priority actions including proposed phased 
expansion of docking stations. Specifically, 8 docking 
stations in 2022 and seven in 2023; 

 Agree in principle to the recommended 
expansion, and recommend that £450k of capital 
costs is considered as part the year end finance 
report consider by the Strategic Policy and Resources 
Committee at its next meeting in June. The revenue 
consequences of the expansion (£75k) will need to be 
provided for as part of the 2022/23 rate setting 
process; 

 Note the update of the Just Eat Belfast Bikes 
performance for Year 6 as outlined in Appendix D; 

 Agree that an equality screening would be undertaken 
in parallel with the roll out of the expansion, as 
outlined in the report, and the outcome reported back 
to the Committee;  

 Agree to include health inequalities as part of the 
scoring Matrix on Expansion; 

 Agree to lower the age of membership from 18 to 16; 

 Agree to add both levels of air pollution and access to 
car/van as per census data 2011/21 when updated to 
the Expansion Criteria; 

 Agree to write to the Education Minister to request 
support for the Belfast Bikes Scheme as a way to turn 
the curve on modal shift and the poor number of 
students cycling to post-primary schools; 

 Agree to investigate a mechanism to ensure that the 
Council can provide free/discounted access to young 
people; 

 Agree to engage with the Council’s youth forum and 
other youth fora in relation to free access for young 
people;  

 Note that the Council was in discussion regarding the 

YES 

P
age 182



relocation of the Royal Victoria Hospital Docking 
Station and that officers could engage with other 
Council’s regarding the location of boundary docking 
stations; and  

 Note that the potential for using the ‘Civic Dollar’ App 
as a reward scheme for Bike Users could be 
examined in the future, once the Pilot Scheme had 
been completed.   

4c Employability NI Update  In accordance with the Council decision of 4th May, the Chief 
Executive exercised her delegated authority to:  

 Agree the high-level outline of the Belfast Labour 
Market Partnership strategic assessment and action 
plan, and agree that this is submitted to Department 
for Communities to access funding, for an initial 18-
month period from September 2021; 

 Note that DfC would examine Partnership 
membership after the initial development phase (18 
months); and 

 Note that the 5 Belfast contractors in relation to the 
Work Ready Employability Services would be 
circulated to the Committee.   

 

YES 

Positioning Belfast to Compete 

5a Conference Support Scheme In accordance with the Council decision of 4th May, the Chief 
Executive exercised her delegated authority to:  

 Approve the proposed amendments to the Conference 
Support Scheme; and 

 Approve the annual budget of £200,000. 

YES 

5b Update on City Events Programme In accordance with the Council decision of 4th May, the Chief 
Executive exercised her delegated authority to:  

 Note and agree the proposed approach to the delivery of 
events in the remainder of 2021 including budget 
implications as set out at 3.17 and Appendix 1. This 

YES 

P
age 183



approach is subject to ongoing review in accordance 
with COVID 19 legislation and guidance;  

 Note and agree the proposal to take forward the date to 
recommence the direct delivery of city events to August 
2021. This will allow for the delivery of a market at City 
Hall over August bank holiday subject to compliance with 
health and safety requirements and confirmation of 
financial viability; and  

 Note that the previously agreed 2021 UEFA Super Cup 
Football event in August would also be included in the 
City Events Programme and a plan was in place to 
decorate/animate the City, in conjunction with the IFA, 
together with the Reception in the City Hall.   

 

5c Update on Dublin-Belfast Economic Corridor In accordance with the Council decision of 4th May, the Chief 
Executive exercised her delegated authority to:  

- Note the contents of this report and progress to date to 
develop the Dublin-Belfast Economic Corridor. 

 

YES 

5d Economic Strategy Approach In accordance with the Council decision of 4th May, the Chief 
Executive exercised her delegated authority to:  

 Note the proposed approach to the economic strategy 
for Belfast; and 

 Agree for Members to engage in the strategy 
development work in order to ensure alignment with 
emerging council priorities. 

 

YES 

5e Renewed Ambition Programme and Social, 
Economic and Environmental Impact of Real 
Estate and Regeneration Investment 

In accordance with the Council decision of 4th May, the Chief 
Executive exercised her delegated authority to:  

 Note the update on the Renewed Ambition 
Programme which is being delivered via a 
public/private partnership; 

YES 

P
age 184



 

 Approve Members participation in a forthcoming 
workshop, relating to research into the social, 
economic and environmental impact of real estate 
investment in the Belfast City Region; and  

 

 Agree that representatives from the Renewed 
Ambition Taskforce attend a future Committee meeting 
to update on activity and priority issues and seek 
Members views accordingly. 

 

Strategic & Operational Issues 

6a Committee Plan 21-22 In accordance with the Council decision of 4th May, the Chief 
Executive exercised her delegated authority to:  

(i) Approve the draft Committee Plan for 2021-22; 
 

(ii) Note that six monthly progress reports will be brought 
to Committee to oversee progress against 
commitments in the Committee Plan, as agreed at 
Strategic Policy and Resources Committee in October 
2019. 

 
(iii) Agree to transfer recurring programme budget from 

within the City Regeneration and Development 
Division into employee budget to enable the 
recruitment of 3 Regeneration Project Officers to 
deliver on key priorities as set out by this Committee 
and as included within the Recovery Framework.  
Committee to note that this does not represent any 
addition on the rate; and 
 

(iv) Note that the Motion on Disability Parking Scheme 
(Cllr Mulholland on behalf of Cllr McMullan, Jan21) 
would be examined in the future, and that officers 
would investigate if it could be considered as part of 
the Car Parking Strategy Review.   

 

YES 

P
age 185



6b Community Planning Update: City 

Development and Job, Skills and Education 

Boards 

In accordance with the Council decision of 4th May, the Chief 
Executive exercised her delegated authority to:  

(i) Note the on-going work of two of the Belfast Agenda 
Delivery Boards, namely, the Jobs, Skills and 
Education Board and the City Development Board; 

(ii) Note the alignment and synergies between the Boards 
and the work of the Committee; 

(iii) Note the potential for the Boards to bring collaborative 
focus to key city priorities and challenges and unlock 
delivery across partners; and 

(iv) Note the role and on-going opportunities for Elected 
Members to input and shape the work being taken 
forward through Community Planning Partnership, 
including the refresh of the Belfast Agenda and 
associated delivery plans, over the coming months and 
years.   

 

YES 

Issues Raised in Advance by Members 

7a Closure of Donegal Street for Belfast Pride 

(Cllr O'Hara to raise) 

In accordance with the Council decision of 4th May, the Chief 
Executive exercised her delegated authority to:  

 Note that officers would examine the proposal to 
close Donegal Street for a Belfast Pride Event 
once a request/events plan had been received. 

 

YES 

Please note that the agenda/reports associated with the decisions listed above can be accessed on the app and on the web, via the following 

link: Agenda for City Growth and Regeneration Committee on Wednesday, 9th June, 2021, 5.15 pm - Belfast City Council 
(www.internalminutes) 

 

  

P
age 186

http://www.internalminutes/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=165&MId=10241
http://www.internalminutes/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=165&MId=10241


 

 
 

D2018 
 
 

City Growth and Regeneration Committee 
 

Wednesday, 9th June, 2021 
 
 

REMOTE MEETING OF THE MEMBERS OF THE CITY GROWTH AND 
REGENERATION COMMITTEE 

 
 

 Members present: Councillor Murphy (Chairperson);  
  The High Sherriff, Councillor Long;  

  Aldermen Dorrian and Kingston; and  
  Councillors Beattie, Brooks, Donnelly, Ferguson,  
  Gormley, Hanvey, Heading, Howard, Hussey,  
  Lyons, Maskey,  McLaughlin, McMullan, O’Hara  
  and Spratt.   
 
 In attendance: Mr. A. Reid, Strategic Director of Place and Economy; 
  Mr. J. Greer, Director of Economic Development; 
  Mrs. C. Reynolds, Director of City Regeneration  
    and Development; 
  Ms. E. Henry, Senior Manager - Culture and Tourism;  
  Ms. L. Toland, Senior Manager - Economy; and 
  Ms. E. McGoldrick, Democratic Services Officer. 
 
 

Apologies 
 
 No apologies were reported. 
 

Chief Executive's decisions taken under Delegated Authority and Minutes 
 

 The minutes of the special meeting of 28th April, and the Chief Executive's 
decisions taken under Delegated Authority of 12th May were taken as read and signed 
as correct.  It was reported that those decisions had been adopted by the Council at its 
meeting on 1st June. 
 

Declarations of Interest 
 
 No Declarations of Interest were reported.   
 

Request to Present 
 
Translink, Belfast Transport Hub - Weavers Cross update 
 
 The Committee was reminded that Northern Ireland Transport Holding Company 
(NITHC) was working in collaboration with the Department for International Trade, the 
Northern Ireland Strategic Investment Board and Invest Northern Ireland to showcase 
the development opportunities Weavers Cross had to offer. Market engagement had 
commenced to identify the preferred method of appointing a potential private sector 
development partner for Weavers Cross regeneration scheme, with an online Developer 
Market Day Event taking place in November 2020.  

Page 187



 
City Growth and Regeneration Committee, 

Wednesday, 9th June, 2021 
 
 
 

 
 

D2019 
 
 

 
 It was reported that NITHC had commenced a Pre-Application Discussion for 
outline planning for mixed use development proposals at the Weavers Cross 
Regeneration Scheme and would like to attend the next meeting of the Committee on 
11th August in order update Members on its proposals. 

 
 The Members of the Committee recommended that, in accordance with the 
Council decision of 4th May, the Chief Executive exercise her delegated authority for 
Northern Ireland Transport Holding Company to present to the next meeting of the 
Committee on 11th August on the Belfast Transport Hub and the wider Weavers Cross 
Regeneration Scheme. 
 

Regenerating Places and Improving Infrastructure 
 
Department for Communities (DfC) Housing Supply Strategy: Call for Evidence 
 
 The Committee considered the undernoted report: 
 

“1.0 Purpose of Report or Summary of Main Issues 
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to inform Members of a DfC 

Housing ‘Call for Evidence’ exercise that has recently been 
launched to gather evidence, data and views on a wide range 
of high level issues to in developing a Housing Supply 
Strategy. 
 

2.0 Recommendations 
 
2.1 The Members of the Committee are asked to recommend that, 

in accordance with the Council decision of 4th May, the Chief 
Executive exercise her delegated authority to: 

 

 Agree that officers develop initial responses to the 
questions posed in the recent Housing Supply 
Strategy: Call for Evidence document that has been 
launched by DfC 

 Agree that the draft response will subsequently be 
brought via Party Group Leaders given the closing date 
of 16 July for responses, with the final response 
brought back retrospectively to CGR Committee in 
August. 

 Note the ongoing work in respect of the city-wide 
strategic site assessment work and the proposal for a 
collaborative approach via the Community Planning 
Partnership City Development Board for a focused 
cross agency Delivery Group to co-ordinate the 
identification and collation of information on public 
sector lands suitable for housing development.  

 

Page 188



 
City Growth and Regeneration Committee, 

Wednesday, 9th June, 2021 
 
 
 

 
 

D2020 
 
 

3.0 Main Report 
 
 Housing Supply Strategy: Call for Evidence 
 
3.1 Members will be aware that the Communities Minister 

announced in her statement to the Assembly on 3rd November 
2020 that officials were to commence work on the 
development of a fundamental Housing Supply Strategy 
(HSS), as a key part of the housing programme to help meet 
Programme for Government commitments to reduce housing 
stress and increase housing supply.  

 

3.2 On 19th May 2021, the Minister launched a public Call for 
Evidence to inform this new Housing Supply Strategy. A link 
to the Call for Evidence document is enclosed at Appendix 1.  

 
3.3 It is intended that the Housing Supply Strategy will provide a 

framework for delivery of the right volume and types of homes 
to meet changing patterns of demand, in the context of 
societal, environmental, and demographic change, and deliver 
on objective housing need.  

 
3.4 The following objectives of the Housing Supply Strategy have 

been identified: 
 

 Increase housing supply and affordable options across 
all tenures to meet current and future demand; 

 Reduce housing stress, homelessness and improve 
housing solutions for the most vulnerable; 

 Improve housing quality and sustainability; 

 Ensure the provision of housing options that 
contribute to the building and maintaining of thriving 
and inclusive communities; and 

 Support the transition to carbon neutrality by reducing 
whole-life carbon emissions from both new homes and 
existing homes. 

 
3.5 In total the project is to be delivered in six phases as follows: 
 
 Phase 1 - Pre-development work (completed) 
 Phase 2 - Call for Evidence and Research Review 
 Phase 3 - Engagement  
 Phase 4 - Data synthesis  
 Phase 5 - Triangulation of Evidence/Policy Options 
 Phase 6 - Consultation on Draft Housing Supply Strategy  
 
3.6 This second and current stage of the Call for Evidence 

process involves the gathering of robust evidence and views 
along with the identification of data gaps to assist in 

Page 189



 
City Growth and Regeneration Committee, 

Wednesday, 9th June, 2021 
 
 
 

 
 

D2021 
 
 

developing the direction of a Housing Supply Strategy. 
The Call for Evidence document considers a ‘whole system’ 
approach and sets out a number of questions across the 
theme of supply including land, planning and finance etc; 
place shaping; building communities; equality; poverty; 
climate change and sustainability; skills; innovation etc. 

 
3.7 There is an 8 week consultation period with a closing date of 

16th July 2021. It is open for anyone to respond with 
responses sought from a wide range of bodies both from 
within the housing and related sectors and more generally 
across society. A series of online workshops are also to run 
throughout the duration of the consultation.  

 
3.8 Subject to Member’s agreement, it is proposed that officers 

develop draft responses to the questions posed in the 
document and given that there are no July Committees, it is 
proposed that the draft response is brought via Party Group 
Leaders at a date to be confirmed. A final copy of the response 
will be brought back retrospectively to August CG&R  
Committee. Members can of course separately make their own 
submissions. In addition, it is understood that DfC intend to 
work with NILGA to organise information sessions for 
Members and Council Officers as appropriate. 

 
3.9 City Wide Strategic Site Assessments 
 
 Aligned with the Department’s work in developing a Housing 

Supply Strategy, Members will be aware that officers have 
been undertaking work to develop an approach for city wide 
strategic site assessments of public sector lands that may be 
suitable for housing. To date this work has included the 
collation of various data sets and the mapping of BCC lands, 
together with DfC and NIHE lands and an analysis of this as 
against the LDP Urban Capacity Study which identifies 
potential housing sites across the city. This has been further 
considered in the context of the annual Housing Monitor 
which includes residential planning approvals and sites zoned 
for housing or identified in the Urban Capacity Study.      

 
3.10 In addition, officers have been linking in with LPS who are 

undertaking a comprehensive Government Land & Property 
Register exercise to map and record all public sector lands 
across the province. Officers have also been working closely 
with NIHE to coalesce around site identification that they have 
been undertaking. DfC are also actively looking at lands 
suitable for housing development, including the potential for 
compulsory acquisition, and again officers have been liaising 
closely with DfC on this. Members will be aware that the recent 

Page 190



 
City Growth and Regeneration Committee, 

Wednesday, 9th June, 2021 
 
 
 

 
 

D2022 
 
 

Development Brief process for the city centre INW lands 
involved a joint BCC/DfC approach involving lands in the 
ownership of BCC and DfC – and potential for further joint 
working and site identification at other locations is being 
progressed.   

 
3.11 Whilst undertaking this city-wide strategic site assessment 

work it has however become apparent of the need to co-
ordinate with various parties given the parallel work being 
undertaken by LPS, DfC, NIHE and other bodies, in order to 
avoid duplication of effort.  Aside from the public sector led 
exercises there is other similar work being progressed by 
third parties including for example a ‘Gentle Densities 
Mapping’ exercise via QUB.   

 
3.12 It must be highlighted however that mapping of land 

ownership and site identification on its own does not 
necessarily translate into lands that are suitable for housing 
development.    There are a number of additional factors to be 
considered including access, ground conditions, title 
restrictions, potential for additional site assembly to scale up 
development etc. All of these would need to be considered on 
a site by site basis.   

 
3.13 Members are aware that housing led regeneration has been 

identified as one of the priorities of the recently restructured 
Community Planning Partnership: City Development Board. 
A separate report is going to this Committee with a summary 
in relation to the recent Board. This includes a brief update in 
relation to a subsequent agreement with the NIHE Chief 
Executive that a delivery task and finish subgroup would bring 
forward a collaborative approach to the collation and 
identification of public sector lands for housing. Given the 
synergies with work underway by other CPP partners and the 
linkages across community planning it is felt this approach 
will maximise efforts across partners and build on the body of 
work that officers have progressed to date, alongside the work 
being separately undertaken by LPS, NIHE and DfC. It is 
proposed that this delivery group includes representation 
from BCC, NIHE, DfC, LPS and would be co-ordinated through 
governance of the Community Planning Partnership – City 
Development Board.  NIHE have volunteered to chair this 
delivery group.   

 
3.14 Co-ordination of this work will help to create momentum and 

focus with partners that can seek to unlock greater potential 
through evaluation of specific sites and land assembly that 
maximises opportunities and delivers better overall 

Page 191



 
City Growth and Regeneration Committee, 

Wednesday, 9th June, 2021 
 
 
 

 
 

D2023 
 
 

outcomes, for example in terms of housing mix, health & 
wellbeing, employment, skills, energy efficiency. 

 
3.15 This work will also be very useful to inform the wider Housing 

Supply Strategy work as referenced above.   
 
3.16 Financial and Resource Implications 
 
 There are no finance or resource implications associated with 

this report. 
 
3.17 Equality or Good Relations Implications/Rural Needs 

Assessment 
 
 There are no Equality, Good Relations or Rural Needs 

implications associated with this report.” 
 
 During discussion, Members of the Committee suggested that the following 
additional points be added to the draft response: the possibility of a ring fenced fund for 
those areas with the highest need/deprivation; In relation to strategic site assessments, 
the Council to investigate acquiring land, including vesting of sites to put out a design 
brief, either on its own or together with DfC. The Director of City Regeneration and 
Development highlighted that this would need to be subject to availability of funding 
and that Council was also working currently with DfC in relation to the potential vesting of 
lands by DfC. 
 

 One Member also requested an update on City Centre Living Waiting List from the 
Northern Ireland Housing Executive, to include geographical and demographic spread. 
 
 The Members of the Committee recommended that, in accordance with the 
Council decision of 4th May, the Chief Executive exercise her delegated authority to: 
 

 Agree that officers develop initial responses to the questions posed 
in the recent Housing Supply Strategy: Call for Evidence document 
that had been launched by DfC; 

 Agree that the draft response would subsequently be brought via 
Party Group Leaders given the closing date of 16th July for 
responses, with the final response brought back retrospectively to 
the Committee in August.; 

 Note the ongoing work in respect of the city-wide strategic site 
assessment work and the proposal for a collaborative approach via 
the Community Planning Partnership City Development Board for 
a focused cross agency Delivery Group to co-ordinate the 
identification and collation of information on public sector lands 
suitable for housing development; 

 Note that, in the  Call for Evidence response, points would be 
raised in relation to the possibility of a ring fenced fund for those 
areas with the highest need/deprivation, and, in relation to the 
strategic site assessment work, that the Council  investigate 

Page 192



 
City Growth and Regeneration Committee, 

Wednesday, 9th June, 2021 
 
 
 

 
 

D2024 
 
 

acquiring land, including vesting, subject to funding availability, 
either directly or in partnership with DfC and subsequently issue 
Development Briefs in order to shape future development.; and 

 Note that an update on City Centre Living Waiting List would be 
requested from NIHE, to include geographical and demographic 
spread. 

 
A Bolder Vision Update 
 
 The Director of City Regeneration and Development reminded the Committee that 
it had received regular updates and provided approvals relating to the progression of the 
next phases of ‘A Bolder Vision’ City Centre Connectivity Study. At its meeting in April, 
Members received an update on the completion of a tender process that resulted in the 
appointment of a multidisciplinary team, led by the Jacobs Belfast office. 
 
 She advised that the Phase 1 work, A Bolder Vision for Belfast, which had been 
ratified by the Council in March 2020 and subsequently approved by the DfC and DfI 
Ministers, was an ambitious and transformational approach and involved a fundamental 
rethink of how streets and places were used to make them attractive, inclusive, 
accessible, healthy, and vibrant places.  
 
 She highlighted that there were four agreed Visioning Principles to inform future 
city centre development and infrastructure delivery: 
 

 Creating a healthy, shared, vibrant and sustainable environment 
that promoted wellbeing for all, inclusive growth and innovation; 

 Fundamentally changing the centre of Belfast to prioritise 
integrated walking, cycling and public transport and end the 
dominance of the car;  

 Providing lively, safe, and green streets linking inclusive shared 
spaces to promote resilience and enhance our built heritage; and 

 Removing severance and barriers to movement between the 
centre of Belfast and the surrounding communities to improve 
access for all.  

 
 She informed the Committee that the increased emphasis on public health and 
well-being, access to quality open space, sustainable transport and connections to 
services and access to amenities were key issues that came to the fore throughout 
COVID. There was an urgency therefore to respond to this changing landscape and it 
was intended that the next Phases of the Study would seek to seize these new 
opportunities and changes in public policy and citizen behaviours that would help drive 
change and enable the diversification of the city centre. 
 
 She provided a summary of Phases 2 and 3 of the Study which would roll out over 
the next 12 months. Initial work was underway for Phase 2 which would take place 
between May-September 2021 and would create the documentation for the public 
consultation in Phase 3. Key outputs in Phase 2 consist of: 
  

Page 193



 
City Growth and Regeneration Committee, 

Wednesday, 9th June, 2021 
 
 
 

 
 

D2025 
 
 

 

 Baseline and Vision Review; Benchmarking; 

 Stakeholder Engagement and Public Awareness Communications 
Plan; 

 Scenario planning and development of interventions, including the 
development of a multi-criteria assessment framework to assess 
the scenarios and the initial identification of short, medium and long 
term interventions for streets and places; 

 Draft Monitoring Strategy, Business Case and Strategic 
Environmental Assessment; and 

 Draft Strategy for public consultation. 
 
 The Director of City Regeneration and Development informed the Committee that 
the scenario planning would help prioritise and align major infrastructure projects and 
identify packages of potential initiatives that would continue the re-imagination of streets 
and spaces in the short term and support longer term changes.  
 
 She advised that, in advance of the public consultation, there would be focused 
co-design sessions consisting of a Visioning workshop and thematic workshops with 
cross-sector stakeholders, including Council Members, between mid-June to mid-July to 
shape the scenarios and interventions.  She highlighted that the purpose of these initial 
sessions would be to shape the draft Strategy document prior to the public consultation 
in the autumn and might take a hybrid approach online via an interactive platform, such 
as Mural or via webinars and Virtual Rooms. Subject to COVID guidelines, there might 
also be the opportunity to hold face-to-face sessions that were prebooked and would 
consist of a blend of virtual information and in-person interaction. 
 
 She pointed out that a Stakeholder Engagement and Public Awareness 
Communication Plan was also being developed and would be supported by both the 
Jacobs team and the Council, DfC and DfI Corporate Communications.  
 
 She reported that this work would link in with key Council strategies, including the 
Resilience Strategy, the Cultural Strategy and the Clean, Green, Inclusive and Safe 
Programme as well as major capital programmes, including the Belfast Streets Ahead, 
Belfast Rapid Transport Phase 2, and the Junctions Improvements work strands to ensure 
an holistic approach to addressing our issues through adequate infrastructure planning 
and provision. It would also consider major development planned for the city centre, as 
well as the criticality of connections with communities. 
 
 The Director of City Regeneration and Development advised that Phase 3 was 
scheduled to take place between September 2021-May 2022 and the key activity was the 
12-week public consultation programme which was envisaged to take place between 
September-December 2021.  
 
 In response to Members questions, the Director of City Regeneration and 
Development confirmed that the consultant Jacobs would be able to undertake a broad 
scope of work, and also advised that the Workshop could demonstrate ‘quick-wins’ to 
envisage what  the interventions might look like in the City.  
 

Page 194



 
City Growth and Regeneration Committee, 

Wednesday, 9th June, 2021 
 
 
 

 
 

D2026 
 
 

 During further discussion, Members raised concerns in relation to the timeline of 
expected developments and the need to incorporate existing plans into this work and the 
importance of interventions, such as the greening of the City Centre, together with the 
long term maintenance and ownership responsibilities of new types of public realm. 
The Director of City Regeneration and Development also provided further information in 
relation to the ongoing engagement with Business Groups including the Belfast Chamber.  
 
 The Members of the Committee recommended that, in accordance with the 
Council decision of 4th May, the Chief Executive exercise her delegated authority to: 

 

 Note the appointment of a multi-disciplinary team and the timeline 
for the development of Phases 2 and 3 of the Bolder Vision 
Connectivity Study for Belfast. This work would include co-design 
workshops, the development of scenarios and interventions to 
bring forward the principles of the Bolder Vision, and the 
completion of the draft Strategy for public consultation in the 
autumn of 2021; and 

 Note that Members would be invited to engage in the Stakeholder 
and Planning Workshops as outlined within this report. 

 
Department for Infrastructure (DfI) - Roads Presentation to Special Committee 
 
 In advance of the Special Meeting of 23rd June, at which the Committee had 
agreed to receive the presentations from DfI and Translink, the Committee was reminded 
that it had written to the Minister to raise the following points ahead of the presentations: 
 

 Request for the York Street Interchange Independent Assurance 
Review; 

 Convey that Belfast was missing a key opportunity given the total 
meterage of pop-up cycle lanes delivered during the pandemic at 
a time when other cities were making significant strides in capturing 
and seizing the uptake and shift in travel patterns; 

 The Committee called for an enhanced programme of safe cycling 
infrastructure, including pop-up provision to be brought forward at 
pace, while simultaneously ensuring that local issues and 
requirements are captured and incorporated within the design 
process; 

 Request that DfI provide their presentation and details of 
discussion in advance of the Special Committee;  

 Request that DfI have to hand for the Committee the relevant data, 
including the total meterage of safe cycle network delivered since 
2016, and information on the planned roll out of future schemes;  

 Request the attendance of Liz Loughran and Andrew Grieve at the 
Special Committee in anticipation of questions from Members on 
Walking and Cycling infrastructure provision; and 

 Request an update on the current status of e-scooter legislation. 
 
 It was reported that the Committee had also been provided with updates on the 
status of the DfC led Junctions Working Group. The Group had overseen the concept 

Page 195



 
City Growth and Regeneration Committee, 

Wednesday, 9th June, 2021 
 
 
 

 
 

D2027 
 
 

design work of key Inner Ring Junctions, including the Fredrick Street/Great Patrick Street 
Junction, the Clifton Gateway and the Shankill Gateway and the impetus remained with 
the DfI and DfC to bring these schemes forward to detailed design and delivery stage as 
a matter of priority. 
 
 In relation to the DfC Covid-19 Revitalisation Programme, it was reported that the 
focus remained on ensuring delivery of the agreed schemes within the timelines set out 
within the funding agreement. To ensure the achievement of the funding deadline, and 
critically to support the reopening of the city centre, these outstanding actions included: 

 

 Delivery of the necessary legislation and permits / license for works 
at Castle Place, Adelaide Street, Linenhall Street, Union Street, 
Bedford St, Church Lane and Brunswick St; and 

 Delivery of the agreed Civils works at Castle Place, Adelaide Street 
and Brunswick Street. 

 
 The Committee was informed that, in relation to the maintenance of the existing 
Public Realm Council, officers had previously raised with DfI and DfC, on various 
occasions, the issue of the standard of reinstatement of the public realm following utilities 
and maintenance works. Increasingly these works were not reinstated to the agreed 
specification or reinstated to match the existing surfacing in the area, but rather were 
patched with tarmacadam with little control or post works inspections. This approach had 
led to a gradual degradation of our public spaces and had a significant impact on the 
overall attractiveness of the city centre. 
 
 It was reported that the Council had also received recent correspondence from 
businesses within the Cathedral Quarter area following a recent audit which identified 
over 80 reinstatement patches that were completed in tarmacadam (Appendix 1).  
 
 The Members of the Committee recommended that, in accordance with the 
Council decision of 4th May, the Chief Executive exercise her delegated authority to: 
 

1. Note the issues raised at the previous Committee in May, as well 
as in previous committees, that Members wish DfI representatives 
to address or respond to during, or in advance of, the Department’s 
attendance at Special Committee on 23rd June; and 

 
2. Note that a letter has been issued to the Minister for Infrastructure 

setting out a list of issues and requests that Members had asked 
to be addressed or responded to during, or in advance of, the 
Department’s attendance at Special Committee on 23rd June. 

 
'The Status Quo is not an Option': Building a  
Sustainable Belfast - Invitation to Speak 
 
 The Strategic Director advised the Committee that the Chief Executive had 
received an invitation to speak at the following event: ‘The status quo is not an option’: 
Building a sustainable Belfast’ on 24th June, to be held via Zoom, hosted by The Town 

Page 196



 
City Growth and Regeneration Committee, 

Wednesday, 9th June, 2021 
 
 
 

 
 

D2028 
 
 

and Country Planning Association, Dr. R. Hearne, Queen’s University Belfast’s School of 
Natural and Built Environment and Participation and the Practice of Rights (PPR). 
 
 He advised that the event aimed to challenge the narrative around housing in 
contested spaces and the opportunity to speak at the event had been offered to the 
Chairperson and Deputy Chairperson, either of which could not attend, therefore, if any 
Member of the Committee wished to speak at the event, on behalf of the Council, the 
opportunity was available.  
 

After discussion, the Members of the Committee recommended that, in 
accordance with the Council decision of 4th May, the Chief Executive exercise her 
delegated authority to: 
 

1. Agree that, in light of no Member of the Committee being able to 
participate and speak at ‘The status quo is not an option’ event to 
be held on Thursday, 24th June, the Chief Executive and the 
Strategic Director would discuss the attendance of an appropriate 
officer, if available; and 

 
2. Due to the time-frame of the event, agree, in accordance with 

Standing Order 47 (2) (b), that the decision would not be subject to 
call-in, on the basis that the decision was deemed to be a case of 
special urgency. 

 
Growing Business and the Economy 

 
Sunday Opening Hours  
 
 The Committee was reminded that, at its meeting on 3rd March, it had agreed to 
the request from large retailers to support extended Sunday opening hours (in line with 
Northern Ireland Executive guidance) on a temporary basis, to 5th July, 2021, as part of 
the efforts to manage shopper volume and support social distancing.  
 
 Following the March meeting, officers sought to engage with a range of 
stakeholders including representatives from USDAW, Retail NI, Northern Ireland Retail 
Consortium, Belfast Chamber, BCCM, Destination CQ BID, Linen Quarter BID, Belfast 
One BID, Victoria Square, CastleCourt Shopping Centre, the Kennedy Centre, Sainsbury, 
Tesco and Lidl and the outcome was reported to Committee in April.  

 
 It was reported that Members would be aware that, in line with the Northern Ireland 
Executive’s approach as set out in the document “Moving Forward: the Executive’s 
Pathway out of Restrictions”, all nonessential retail was permitted to open from 30 April 
2021, with indoor hospitality permitted from 24th May, 2021. While most businesses were 
now operational, they were still required to put in place additional measures to support 
social distancing and manage the spread of the virus. 
 
 The Strategic Director advised that an initial request from the business 
organisations had been made to extend the current approach until the end of the Summer 
in order to allow the businesses to bed in the operating restrictions following the re-

Page 197



 
City Growth and Regeneration Committee, 

Wednesday, 9th June, 2021 
 
 
 

 
 

D2029 
 
 

opening and to re-establish the vitality of the city centre, given the shorter opening hours 
on a Sunday. This involved extending the current approach until 5th September, 2021. 
He pointed out that it was understood that the current restrictions on Sunday opening 
times did not have an impact on home deliveries, which meant that retailers could carry 
out deliveries outside of the standard Sunday opening hours (1pm-6pm). 
 
 During discussion, Members raised concerns in relation to the request for 
extended opening hours and the impact it would have on workers, together with the need 
for further consultation, if the extension was to be considered to continue past September.  
 

Proposal 
 

Moved by the High Sheriff, Councillor Long,  
Seconded by Councillor Hanvey, 
 
That the Members of the Committee agree to recommend that the Chief 
Executive exercises her delegated authority to approve a request from city 
business organisations to extend the current approach to Sunday opening 
for large retailers until 5th September, 2021.  

 
 Following a vote, seventeen Members voted for the amendment and two against 
and it was declared carried. 
 

The Members of the Committee recommended that, in accordance with the 
Council decision of 4th May, the Chief Executive exercises her delegated authority to:  
 

 Approve the request from city business organisations to extend the 
current approach to Sunday opening for large retailers until 5th 
September, 2021  
 

Just Eat Belfast Bikes Strategic Review 
 
 The Committee considered the following report and associated appendices: 
 

“1.0 Purpose of Report or Summary of main Issues 
 
1.1 To update Members on the outcomes of the Belfast Bikes 

strategic review process and provide a summary of the main 
recommendations. 

 
2.0 Recommendations 
 
2.1 The members of the Committee are asked to recommend that, 

in accordance with the Council decision of 4th May, the Chief 
Executive exercises her delegated authority to:  

 

 Approve the recommendations from the strategic 
review and priority actions including proposed phased 

Page 198



 
City Growth and Regeneration Committee, 

Wednesday, 9th June, 2021 
 
 
 

 
 

D2030 
 
 

expansion of docking stations. Specifically, 8 docking 
stations in 2022 and seven in 2023.  

 Agree in principle to the recommended expansion and 
recommend that the associated £525k investment is 
considered as part the year end finance report which is 
due to be considered at the next meeting of the 
Strategic Policy & Resources Committee. 

 Note the update of the Just Eat Belfast Bikes 
performance for Year 6 as outlined in Appendix D. 

 
3.0 Main report 
 
3.1 The scheme was launched in 2015 as part Belfast City 

Council’s physical investment programme. The Department 
for Regional Development provided initial capital funding for 
the scheme as part of their Active Travel Demonstration 
Projects budget. The scheme launched with a network of 30 
docking stations and 300 bikes. The scheme has been 
operated by NSL continually since inception using bikes and 
supporting infrastructure from Nextbike GmbH.  The scheme 
currently operates with 400 bikes and 48 docking stations. 

 
3.2 Performance 
 
 A breakdown of historic rental and associated revenue is 

contained at Appendix D. In summary the Belfast Bikes had 
65,000 rentals in the financial year 20/21, 137,000 in F/Y 19/20 
and 180,000 in F/Y 18/19. Members may be aware that in March 
2021 the Belfast Bikes had a record month with 28,903 rentals.  
Rental forecast for May is 18,491 based on daily average. 

 
3.3 Members will be aware that City Growth and Regeneration 

Committee agreed to undertake a comprehensive strategic 
review of the Just Eat Belfast Bikes scheme and make 
recommendations for the future management, operation and 
potential expansion of the scheme. Intelligent Transport 
Services were commissioned in May 2019 to carry out the 
strategic review of the scheme and a summary of the 
methodology is outlined below. 

 
Stages  Methodology & Approach  

Assessment of 
the current 
network 

Detailed analysis of the current scale, coverage 
and density of the network. Factors to be 
considered: 

 Station Location; 

 Usage of each station – Rentals and returns;  

 Capacity of the station too big or too small;  

Page 199



 
City Growth and Regeneration Committee, 

Wednesday, 9th June, 2021 
 
 
 

 
 

D2031 
 
 

 Network of stations (distance between 
stations); 

 Access to quality bicycle infrastructure; 

 Customer and operational feedback;  

 Contribution to the Belfast Agenda objectives. 

Review of the 
Scheme 
Objectives 

The review will carry out analysis to measure if the 
scheme is meeting the objectives set at project 
initiation.  

Review of 
operations  
 

The review will consider the following: 

 The current operation and management system;  

 Distribution and maintenance activities;  

 Infrastructure specification – terminals, bikes 
and docking points;   

 Security and vandalism including innovation in 
security and asset tracking;  

 Marketing of the scheme; and  

 App / website.  
 

Future Expansion  
 

The review will consider: 

 Existing scheme coverage and identify options 
for potential expansion  

 Risks and barriers to expansion  

 A business model for any future expansion 
(capital and revenue) 

 
Production of a prioritised, fully costed and phased 
expansion plan based on an assessment of 
options. 
 

Financial 
sustainability 

 A review of the procurement options for 
sponsorship and advertising in order to 
maximise income and streamline the process;  

 Review of the subscription and/or usage fees; 

 Consider alternative revenue sources - public 
funds & private investment;  

 Marketing of the scheme to promote growth in 
membership and usage. 

 
3.5 Active Travel Infrastructure 
 
 The consultant made several recommendations regarding the 

prioritisation of certain routes contained in Draft Belfast 
Bicycle Network Strategy that was published for consultation 
in January 2017. These are. 

 

Page 200



 
City Growth and Regeneration Committee, 

Wednesday, 9th June, 2021 
 
 
 

 
 

D2032 
 
 

 Route 6 - CASTLE JUNCTION (BELFAST) TO 
WHITEROCK ROAD (BELFAST) – 5.5KM; AND 
SHAW’S ROAD (BELFAST) – 7.7KM 

 Route 7 - CASTLE JUNCTION (BELFAST) TO 
FORTHRIVER ROAD (BELFAST) – 4.5KM; AND 
BALLYSILLAN ROAD (4.5KM) 

 Route 8 - CITY HALL (BELFAST) TO GRAY’S LANE 
(BELFAST) – 6.3KM; AND WHITEABBEY 
(NEWTOWNABBEY) – 10KM. 

 
3.6 Members will be aware that the Belfast Bicycle Network 

Strategy has not been finalised yet. 
 
3.7 In May 2017 the Council agreed a response to the DFI 

consultation on the Draft Belfast Bicycle Network Strategy, 
this response is contained at Appendix C. In summary Council 
agreed, 

 
 ‘The Council would request consideration is given to 

including a number of the main arterial route in city which 
service high density residential areas as part of the primary 
network. In particular, the Lisburn and Ormeau Roads suffer 
from heavy traffic congestion and the opportunity to develop 
high quality cycle infrastructure along these routes to 
encourage modal shift is paramount. In addition, the south 
and north of the city will not benefit from the Phase 1 of Belfast 
Rapid Transit therefore, it is considered that priority should be 
given to promoting other sustainable modes such as walking 
and cycling routes. 

 
 The Council would also propose the creation of a community 

greenway to the south west of the City from the City Centre 
along the M1 Motorway to connect with the Lagan Towpath 
and Sir Thomas and Lady Dixon Park. The proposed southern 
arm of the West Route extends from the Bog Meadows along 
the M1 motorway to Kennedy Way where it then travels west 
towards Andersonstown Leisure Centre. It is suggested that a 
new community greenway is developed so the route 
continues south alongside the motorway to connect with the 
Lagan Towpath.’ 

 
3.8 Stakeholder engagement and a public survey was carried out 

in August/September 2019 and an elected member’s 
workshop was held on the 27th August 2019. Further 
engagement with Members on the outcomes of the review 
were scheduled for March 2020 but were cancelled due to the 
Covid 19 lockdown.  

  

Page 201



 
City Growth and Regeneration Committee, 

Wednesday, 9th June, 2021 
 
 
 

 
 

D2033 
 
 

 
 The scope of the review considered the following steps: 
 

 Assessment of the current network 

 Review of scheme objectives 

 Review of operations 

 Future expansion 

 Financial sustainability. 
 
3.9 Key Findings  
 
 Assessment of the current network  
 
 The main findings from the assessment of the current network 

are as follows: 
 

 The scheme is generally meeting expectations of 
users, however the reliability of the service and 
maintenance of bikes are not considered consistent. 

 Network coverage is an issue for existing and 
potentially new users. There are gaps in the network 
and demand for expansion of the scheme is supported 
by the public survey and through elected 
member/stakeholder consultation. 

 Some stations experience low usage particularly in 
some parts of the north, west and east of the city. 
Developing a safe, convenient, and coherent cycling 
infrastructure should be a priority along with cycle 
promotion activities in these areas. Further detail of 
usage by station is available within the appended 
Strategic Review.  

 Low usage of stations may also be a result of an 
unsuitable location and should be considered for 
relocation or a reduction in size.  

 Vandalism is a widespread issue and various actions 
are proposed to tackle the issue such as CCTV, station 
relocation and continued PSNI/Community 
engagement.  Detail of the cost of vandalism is 
contained within Appendix E. 

 
3.10 Review of scheme objectives  
 
 The review concluded that the scheme was generally meeting 

objectives offering a low cost, sustainable option for travel in 
the city. However, there is a need to expand the network and 
promote cycling to ensure social inclusion and equality 
throughout the city. This must be considered as part of a wider 
active travel approach including supporting infrastructure. 

 

Page 202



 
City Growth and Regeneration Committee, 

Wednesday, 9th June, 2021 
 
 
 

 
 

D2034 
 
 

3.11 Review of operations 
 

 The general set up of operational facilities is good and 
is large enough to allow scheme expansion.  

 The maintenance of the bikes and docking stations is a 
major issue that needs to be addressed. At the time of 
the review, most of the bikes had been in service for 
over 5 years with investment in new stock required. 
Additional investment in stock has been made over the 
last 12 months.  

 Distribution of the bikes in the system needs to be 
improved, however it is recognised that this is difficult 
to achieve during peak hour traffic congestion.  

 Consideration should be given to newer technology 
and security improvements from Nextbike to ensure 
infrastructure and user experience can be improved in 
the future. Members will be aware that our bike stock 
was recently replaced via DfI funding. 

 Potentially explore a change to how the scheme is 
operated on the ground (such as floating bike engineer 
who could maintain bikes/stations in a more flexible 
way; for example in cooperation with local social 
enterprises) 

 
3.12 Future expansion 
 
 The expansion of the scheme and its findings are the result of 

extensive stakeholder engagement, public survey and 
engagement with elected members. A summary of findings is 
below. 

 

 There are gaps in the network along arterial routes and 
local centres in the North, West, South and East of the 
city. Investment in new stations should be carried out 
to increase network coverage and ensure social 
inclusion.  

 Additional capacity is needed in the northern section of 
the city centre to service the new Belfast UU campus 
and the Tribeca development and in the east to service 
the Sirocco development. This should be funded 
through developer contributions. 

 An assessment of the current network identified a 
number of existing stations which are under used and 
should be either relocated or reduced in size and used 
for expansion of new stations.  

 Requests have been made from neighbouring councils 
and expansion into adjoining areas should be 
considered through partnership funding.  

 

Page 203



 
City Growth and Regeneration Committee, 

Wednesday, 9th June, 2021 
 
 
 

 
 

D2035 
 
 

3.13 A recommendation is also made within the report relating to a 
matrix for the selection of new docking stations. The criteria 
for contained within the Site Expansion Matrix are detailed 
below. 

 

 Employment Destinations 

 Residential 

 Public Transport 

 Public Amenities 

 Resident Requests 

 Existing Usage at nearby stations 

 Gaps in Network 

 Survey Feedback 

 Cycle Infrastructure 

 Land that is either owned or managed by Belfast City 
Council or where express permission to situate a 
biking dock in already in place. 

 
3.14 A summary of future expansion, potential relocations and 

complementary measures are outlined by area and included 
below. Areas for expansion have been selected by identifying 
gaps in the network along with feedback from the public 
survey and elected member/stakeholder consultation. Further 
work will be needed to determine exact locations and consider 
those against the Site Expansion Matrix and it is proposed that 
this should be discussed and agreed through the Area 
Working Groups meetings. These proposals have been 
phased over a two-year period to take account of the 
significant lead time and resource requirement required for an 
expansion. The costs are based on analogous estimates from 
our previous expansions of the network. In some instances, 
site specific conditions can result in savings or additional 
expense. The cost of relocating docking stations is 
approximately £5,000, again this is subject to site specific 
variations. If docking stations can be relocated from low use 
areas this will result in significant savings.  

 
3.15 Members will also be aware that at is meeting on 12th May 

2021 it was agreed that an additional four Belfast bikes 
docking stations would be deployed using DFI Active Travel 
funding. This expansion highlighted the following four sites 

 

 Antrim Road, Waterworks 

 Lisnasharragh Leisure Centre 

 Olympia Leisure Centre 

 Kennedy Shopping Centre, 
  

Page 204



 
City Growth and Regeneration Committee, 

Wednesday, 9th June, 2021 
 
 
 

 
 

D2036 
 
 

 
3.16 Expansion – Timetable & Costs 
 
 North  
 
 There are currently four stations servicing the area located at 

Carlisle Circus, Mater Hospital, Girdwood community hub and 
Duncairn Centre.  

 
 New stations - It is proposed to expand the scheme to locate 

new stations along the Antrim Road, Shore Road, York Gate 
shopping Centre and the Duncrue estate. Translink have also 
been asked to include a new station as part of the York Street 
station redevelopment.  

 
 Phasing 
 

 2022 Yorkgate, Shore Road  

 2023 Antrim Road, Duncrue 
 
 Costing (North) 
 

Year Capital Revenue Total 

2022 £60,000 £10,000 £70,000 

2023 £60,000 £10,000 £70,000 

 
 Relocation of station - The station at Girdwood Hub has very 

low usage and high levels of vandalism. It is proposed that the 
station is relocated to one of the main arterial routes in the 
area.  

 
 Complementary Measures - There are also a number of 

stations in the area which have relatively low use therefore it 
is essential to develop safe, convenient and coherent cycling 
infrastructure as a priority such as Route 8 (identified in the 
draft Belfast Bicycle Network Plan) along with cycle 
promotion activities in these areas.  

 
3.17 West  
 
 There are currently four stations serving the west located at 

Servia Street, Twin Spires, Royal Hospital (Broadway 
entrance) and the Shankill Leisure Centre. 

 
 New Stations - It is proposed to expand the scheme to locate 

new stations along the Falls Road (St Marys 
College/Culturlann), Andersonstown Road, Springfield Road, 
Whiterock Road and Shankill Road/Woodvale Road.  

Page 205



 
City Growth and Regeneration Committee, 

Wednesday, 9th June, 2021 
 
 
 

 
 

D2037 
 
 

 
 Phasing 
 
 2022 – St. Mary’s College, Shankill Road 
 2023 – Springfield Road, Whiterock Road 
 
 Costing (West) 
 

Year Capital Revenue Total 

2022 £60,000 £10,000 £70,000 

2023 £60,000 £10,000 £70,000 

 
 Relocation - The station located at the Royal Victoria Hospital, 

Broadway entrance experiences very low usage. It is 
proposed to relocate this station within the hospital grounds 
to the entrance at Grosvenor Road. This was originally the 
preferred location, however it was ruled out as this entrance 
closes between 10pm to 6am daily and would prevent 
customers from returning the bikes securely to the docking 
station during these hours. There is now a close alternative in 
the area to return the bikes at Twin Spires.  The station at 
Servia Street also experiences very low use and high 
vandalism. It is proposed to move this station to the main 
arterial route along the Falls Road.  

 
 Complementary Measures - it is essential to develop safe, 

convenient and coherent cycling infrastructure as a priority 
such as Route 6 & 7 (identified in the draft Belfast Bicycle 
Network Plan) along with cycle promotion activities. The 
Glider route and the temporary cycle route on the Grosvenor 
have provided some initial improvements.   

 
3.18 South  
 
 There are currently 5 stations located along main arterial 

routes at the City Hospital, Lisburn Road, Stranmillis 
Roundabout, Ormeau Park, mid Ormeau and Rosetta 
roundabout.  

 
 New Stations - Gaps in the network exist and there is a strong 

demand indicated through the public survey. New stations are 
proposed for the following roads Lisburn Road, Malone Road, 
and upper Ormeau Road.  

 
 Phasing 
 
 2022 – Lisburn Road, Malone Road 
 2023 – Upper Ormeau Road 

Page 206



 
City Growth and Regeneration Committee, 

Wednesday, 9th June, 2021 
 
 
 

 
 

D2038 
 
 

 
 Costing (South) 
 

Year Capital Revenue Total 

2022 £60,000 £10,000 £70,000 

2023 £30,000 £5,000 £35,000 

 
3.19 Complementary Measures – The river provides good cycle 

infrastructure but linkages to the outer areas are required 
such as the Gasworks Bridge and Route 4. The draft Belfast 
Bicycle Network Plan ignores the main arterial routes in the 
south, however consideration should be given to dedicated 
cycling infrastructure along the main arterial routes to build 
on the cycling culture in these areas. 

 
3.20 East  
 
 There are currently 4 stations located Connswater Shopping 

centre, CS Lewis Square, Skainos, and Fraser Pass.  
 
 New Stations - Gaps in the network exist and there is a strong 

demand indicated through the public survey. New stations are 
proposed for the following areas Ravenhill road, Cregagh 
road, Ulster Rugby grounds, Castlereagh Road, Holywood 
Road, Belmont Road and Upper N’Ards Road.  

 
 Phasing 
 
 2022 – Castlereagh Road, Upper Newtownards Road 
 2023 – Creagh Road, Holywood Road 
  
 Costing (East) 
 

Year Capital Revenue Total 

2022 £60,000 £10,000 £70,000 

2023 £60,000 £10,000 £70,000 

 
 Complementary Measures – The stations at Skainos and 

Fraser Pass experience low usage. Cycle promotion initiatives 
and better linkages to cycle infrastructure would be beneficial.   

 
3.21 City centre, Queens Quarter and Titanic Quarter.  
 
 This area contains 30 docking station installed as part of 

Phase 1 with the addition of a station at All State.  
 

Page 207



 
City Growth and Regeneration Committee, 

Wednesday, 9th June, 2021 
 
 
 

 
 

D2039 
 
 

 New Stations – It is proposed to provide new stations at the 
Belfast UU campus, the Tribeca development and in the east 
to service the Sirocco development. This should be funded 
through developer contributions. 

 
 Relocation of Stations - The assessment of the network 

highlighted a number of these stations which are currently 
under used and could be considered for relocation. They are 
as follows: Cromac Square/St Georges Market – close 
alternative at the Waterfront and Alfred Street. Millfield – 
although the station is located outside the Belfast Met college 
it has low usage probably due to the poor cycling 
infrastructure in this area and the dominance of the road 
infrastructure. Carrick Hill also has low usage and should be 
kept under review.  

 
3.22 Cost Summary 
 

Year North West South East City 

Centre 

Total 

Revenue 

Total 

Capital 

2022 £70,000 £70,000 £70,000 £70,000 DC £40,000 £240,000 

2023 £70,000 £70,000 £35,000 £70,000 DC £35,000 £210,000 

 
3.23 Financial sustainability 
 
 The Belfast Bikes scheme receives income from the hire of 

bikes and sponsorship revenue. Based on the historic 
revenue from bike hire and the expected revenue from 
sponsors it is it is estimated for the financial year 21/22 that 
the Belfast Bikes scheme will require a subvention of £244,280 
to cover its cost of operation. This forecasted subvention was 
accounted for during the FY 21/22 rate setting process and is 
within Place & Economy Departmental annual budgets. 

 
3.24 A full list of the proposals is outlined in Section 5 of Appendix 

A and it provides more detail on the recommendations, 
timetable and the costs. This includes a 5-year programme of 
growth assuming funding availability with an estimation of the 
expected revenue derived from station expansion. It should be 
noted that the capital cost could be reduced if underused 
stations are relocated and used for further expansion.  

 
3.25 Revenue 
 
 The additional revenue that is received through the new 

docking stations is estimated at 15 X £5,548 - £83,220 (based 
on a 10 bike docking station). This revenue is offset by an 
additional management cost that ranges per station between 
£2,500 - £4,000 per annum, 15 x £4,000 - £60,000. Based on our 

Page 208



 
City Growth and Regeneration Committee, 

Wednesday, 9th June, 2021 
 
 
 

 
 

D2040 
 
 

experience an increase in docking stations and bikes will also 
have an associated increase in damage and theft costs.   

 
3.26 Vandalism 
 
 As highlighted through the Strategic Review vandalism has 

been a challenge for the Belfast Bikes Scheme. It should be 
noted that all public bike share schemes experience some 
levels of vandalism. For this reason, within the management 
contract a provision is made to cover the costs of vandalism. 
Unfortunately, that provision within the contract has been 
regularly exceeded with gross costs relating to damage and 
loss resulting from vandalism in the F/Y 20/21 being over 
£13,000. 

 
3.27 Sponsorship - The council has been successful in attracting 

two high profile sponsorship packages for 3 year terms since 
the launch of the scheme. The process to secure a sponsor 
has been carried out through a tender process on e-sourcing. 
It is recommended to use a lighter touch approach to tender 
for future renewal of the sponsorship contract. Resources 
should be allocated to warming up the market, communication 
activities and producing a high quality sponsorship pack.  

 
3.28 Developer contributions - Developer contributions should be 

considered where appropriate through planning agreements.  
 
3.29 Partnership funding - Joint funding bids should be considered 

with DfI and other government departments to expand the 
scheme as part of infrastructure, public realm and 
regeneration projects.   

 
3.30 Marketing - Improved marketing of the scheme and offering 

new products such as corporate accounts and membership 
benefits should be implemented.  

 
3.31 Tariff Review - It is not proposed to increase the subscription 

for annual users at present. The pay as you go level is also 
similar to other cities. It is proposed to offer free annual 
subscriptions to under 25’s in order to encourage cycling 
among the youth however this requires further analysis and 
consideration as to how compliance can be monitored given 
current operational model.  

 

 Notice of Motion – Update 
 
3.32 Rolloe 
 
 At the Council meeting on 2nd November 2020, Councillor 

Baker proposed a motion which was seconded by 

Page 209



 
City Growth and Regeneration Committee, 

Wednesday, 9th June, 2021 
 
 
 

 
 

D2041 
 
 

Councillor McLaughlin `to explore a pilot scheme to use 
Rolloe on Belfast bikes’ 

 
3.33 Officers are working with the company on the viability of pilot 

scheme and are awaiting further information from the 
company. Regular updates will be brought back to committee 
as this work develops.  

 
3.34 Free Access to under 25 users  
 
 Following a Notice of Motion from Councillor O’Hara the 

Committee agreed on 4th March 2020 to, to investigate. `as 
part of the current strategic review of the Belfast Bikes 
Scheme, consideration be given to granting free access to 
young people 25 years of age and under to the scheme.’ 

 
3.35 Officers continue to investigate how this proposal might be 

brought forward. A number of technical constraints, listed 
below, have restricted progress. 

 

 The current system and payment gateway used by the 
operator does not collect information on the users age. 
As a result, there is currently no mechanism to 
distinguish the age of the user.  

 GDPR  
 
3.36 Officers will continue to work with the operator to understand 

if these barriers can be overcome, or if other incentive-based 
alternatives can be developed. Anecdotally the operator and 
our consultants ITS have flagged other considerations about 
providing free provision. 

 

 Vandalism and theft can rise when bikes are free of 
charge, this has been a consistent finding from 
dockless bike share schemes. 

 The provision of free access is likely to negatively 
impact revenue and require an increased subvention 

 If free access increases the use of the bikes which is of 
course a positive, it could also reduce availability of 
bike stock  

 
3.37 Officers will continue to investigate options and further 

reports on progress will be brought back to committee.  
 
3.38 Financial & Resource Implications 
 
 Based on the historic revenue from bike hire and the expected 

revenue from sponsors it is it is estimated for the financial 
year 21/22 that the Belfast Bikes scheme will require a 

Page 210



 
City Growth and Regeneration Committee, 

Wednesday, 9th June, 2021 
 
 
 

 
 

D2042 
 
 

subvention of £244,280 to cover its cost of operation. This 
subvention was included in Place & Economy departmental 
estimates for the financial year 21/22.  

 

3.39 An investment of approximately £525,000 is required to fund 
the recommended expansion of the network. If the Committee 
is minded to agree in principle to the recommended 
expansion, the Committee will need to recommend to the 
Strategic Policy and Resources Committee that £450k of 
capital costs  is considered as part the year end finance report 
which is due to be considered at its June meeting. The 
revenue consequences of the expansion (£75k) will need to be 
provided for as part of the 2022/23 rate setting process.  

 
3.40 Equality or Good Relations Implications/Rural Needs 

Assessment 
 
 None.” 

 
 During discussion, Members raised the following issues: 
 

 Concerns in relation to the fairness and equality regarding the 
amount of docking station amounts across the city, and the impact 
it might have on health inequalities; 

 The need for equality screening on the proposed expansion of the 
scheme;  

 The Site Expansion Matrix bias towards existing cycle 
infrastructure areas;  

 The potential to lower the age limit of users from 18 to 16,  

 The lack of stations at the edge of city;  

 The potential for relocation and the renegotiation of existing 
stations with partners;  

 The Expansion Scheme to be kept as an expanse of the City 
Centre scheme;  

 The unnecessary politicising of the issue; 

 The Expansion Scheme could be examined by DEA’s not just 
quarters; 

 The potential for a system work around in relation to a free service 
for young people; 

 Free use of bikes for older people and those on benefits;  

 The impact of air pollution levels; 

 The poor number of students cycling to post-primary schools; and  

 The potential to use the ‘Civic Dollar’ App for future.  
 

 The Director of Economic Development advised that the relocation of Royal 
Victoria docking Station was being considered and that the Council could engage with 
other Council’s regarding potential boundary docking stations. He also confirmed that the 
docking station on page 59 of the report, under Phasing of East Belfast should read as 
‘Cregagh Road’.  

Page 211



 
City Growth and Regeneration Committee, 

Wednesday, 9th June, 2021 
 
 
 

 
 

D2043 
 
 

 
 During further discussion, the following suggestions from Members for the 
expansion of the scheme were accepted by the Committee: 
 

 An Equality Screening on the expansion of the scheme, to be 
undertaken in parallel with the roll out of the expansion and the 
outcome reported back to the Committee; 

 To lower the age of membership from 18 to 16;  

 In relation to the expansion criteria, add both levels of air pollution 
and access to car/van as per census data 2011/21 when updated; 

 Write to the Education Minister to request support for the Belfast 
Bikes Scheme as a way to turn the curve on modal shift and the 
poor number of students cycling to post-primary schools; 

 Find a mechanism to ensure that the Council could provide 
free/discounted access to young people; and 

 Engage with the Council’s and other Youth Fora regarding free 
access for young people.  

 
Proposal 1 

 
Moved by Councilllor McLaughlin 
Seconded by Councillor Beattie, 
 
That the Members of the Committee agree to recommend that the Chief 
Executive exercises her delegated authority to remove cycling 
infrastructure as part of the scoring matrix for expansion.  
 

 Following a vote, six Members voted for the amendment and twelve against and 
it was declared lost. 
 

Proposal 2 
 

Moved by Councillor McLaughlin 
Seconded by Councillor Beattie, 
 
That the Members of the Committee agree to recommend that the Chief 
Executive exercises her delegated authority to include health inequalities 
as part of the scoring matrix for expansion.  
 

 Following a vote, thirteen Members voted for the amendment and five against and 
it was declared carried. 
 
 The Members of the Committee recommended that, in accordance with the 
Council decision of 4th May, the Chief Executive exercises her delegated authority to:  
 

1. Approve the recommendations from the strategic review and 
priority actions including proposed phased expansion of docking 
stations. Specifically, 8 docking stations in 2022 and seven in 2023; 

Page 212



 
City Growth and Regeneration Committee, 

Wednesday, 9th June, 2021 
 
 
 

 
 

D2044 
 
 

2. Agree in principle to the recommended expansion and recommend 
that £450k of capital costs is considered as part the year end 
finance report consider by the Strategic Policy and Resources 
Committee at its next meeting in June. The revenue consequences 
of the expansion (£75k) will need to be provided for as part of the 
2022/23 rate setting process; 

3. Note the update of the Just Eat Belfast Bikes performance for Year 
6 as outlined in Appendix D; 

4. Agree that an equality screening would be undertaken in parallel 
with the roll out of the expansion, as outlined in the report, and the 
outcome reported back to the Committee;  

5. Agree to include health inequalities as part of the scoring matrix on 
expansion; 

6. Agree to lower the age of membership of users from 18 to 16; 
7. Agree to add both levels of air pollution and access to car/van as 

per census data 2011/21 when updated to the Expansion Criteria; 
8. Agree to write to the Education Minister to request support for the 

Belfast Bikes Scheme as a way to turn the curve on modal shift and 
the poor number of students cycling to post-primary schools; 

9. Agree to investigate a mechanism to ensure that the Council can 
provide free/discounted access to young people; 

10. Agree to engage with the Council’s youth forum and other youth 
fora in relation to free access for young people;  

11. Note that the Council was in discussion regarding the relocation of 
the Royal Victoria Hospital Docking Station and that officers could 
engage with other Council’s regarding the location of boundary 
docking stations; and  

12. Note that the potential for using the ‘Civic Dollar’ App as a reward 
scheme for Bike Users could be examined in the future, once the 
Pilot Scheme had been completed.   

 
Employability NI Update  
 
 The Committee considered the undernoted report: 
 

“1.0 Purpose of Report  
 
 The purpose of this report is to: 
 

 Update members on progress with the work of the 
Belfast Inclusive Labour Market Partnership (LMP) and 
seek approval of the emerging priorities to be 
considered as part of the action plan for 2021/22. 

 
2.0 Recommendations 
 
 The members of the Committee are asked to recommend that, 

in accordance with the Council decision of 4th May, the Chief 
Executive exercises her delegated authority to:  

Page 213



 
City Growth and Regeneration Committee, 

Wednesday, 9th June, 2021 
 
 
 

 
 

D2045 
 
 

 

 Agree the high-level outline of the Belfast Labour 
Market Partnership strategic assessment and action 
plan, and agree that this is submitted to Department for 
Communities to access funding, for an initial 18-month 
period from September 2021. 

 
3.0 Main report 
 
3.1 Belfast Labour Market Partnership 
 
 Members have previously been updated on the establishment 

of the Belfast Labour Market Partnership, under the banner of 
Employability NI.  The purpose of the partnership is to make 
employability and skills interventions more effective and 
support an inclusive approach to growth in the city.   

 
3.2 The partnership in Belfast is currently working on the 

18 month action plan that is to be submitted to Department for 
Communities (DfC) by the end of June 2021 and will support 
activity through to March 2023.  Initial indications suggest that 
DfC and the Department for the Economy (DfE) will provide a 
financial contribution of around £1.45 million pa to Belfast to 
carry out a series of agreed activities, as set out in the action 
plan.     

 
3.3 The strategic assessment has now been completed.  

This provides the intelligence to underpin decision-making 
and inform the priorities for action.  It takes cognisance of 
issues such as: 

 

 Supply-side perspective including an analysis of 
current structure and composition of labour market, 
taking account of short-term impacts arising from 
Covid-19 as well as long-term structural challenges 
around economic inactivity, long term unemployment 
and geo-spatial deprivation 

 An analysis of labour market demand including the 
short-term demand pinch-points (such as logistics, 
social care and construction), sectors experiencing a 
skills mismatch (such as digital) and opportunities that 
can be built upon (such as the green economy)  

 High-level mapping of provision including the 
performance of existing interventions and 
opportunities to improve outcomes for participants 
(more people into work; higher skills levels in 
vocationally-relevant areas) – including consider of 
how these interventions can support inclusive growth. 

 

Page 214



 
City Growth and Regeneration Committee, 

Wednesday, 9th June, 2021 
 
 
 

 
 

D2046 
 
 

3.4 Based on our recent engagement with DfC – and taking 
account of the current challenges in the labour market - 
officers have identified priority target groups, key 
interventions and underpinning data and intelligence needs.  
Our assessment suggests that this approach gives the best 
chance of seeing positive progress in the Belfast labour 
market over the 18-month period. 

 
3.5 Priority target groups 
 
 Based on the research and analysis, we have identified four 

priority target groups – detailed below.  We are in the process 
of considering the commensurate level of support for each of 
the groups, based on need.  We have categorised the groups 
as follows: 

 

 Quickly Back to Work: reducing the impact of Covid-19 
on those whose employment 

 was disrupted 

 Enabling Access: ensuring barriers are removed and 
pathways created for those who are long-term 
unemployed and economically inactive 

 No-one Left Behind: creating pathways to employment 
for disadvantaged people and communities; and 

 Catching Up: improving skills and qualifications 
through skill escalators for those in lower-paid work 
who wish to gain a better job. 

 
3.6 Key interventions 
 
 Members will be aware that the council is already committed 

to a significant programme of investment in employability and 
skills, focusing on educational underachievement, economic 
inactivity and skills development in new growth areas.  
The LMP will bring the existing programme of work together 
with activities being undertaken by partner organisations (FE 
college, DfE, DfC), looking at how these might be scaled up or 
how the effectiveness of their delivery might be improved.   

 
3.7 Some emerging interventions that have been proposed for 

consideration include: 
 

 Exploring transferable skills and employability 
‘passports’ that are recognised by employers as an 
alternative to existing qualification requirements at 
recruitment 

 Creating better ‘bridges’ to jobs and skills for young 
people completing training and education 

Page 215



 
City Growth and Regeneration Committee, 

Wednesday, 9th June, 2021 
 
 
 

 
 

D2047 
 
 

 Ensuring intensive engagement and ‘levelling up’ 
support is effective for those further back in the labour 
market both in terms of employment and self-
employment/business start-up; and creating joined-up 
employer engagement strategies to offer a ‘seamless’ 
package of support to employers 

 Enhanced, independent careers and education advice 
and guidance service for both adults and young 
people. 

 
3.8 The research undertaken identifies priority sectors for 

employability interventions including: 
 

 Sustainable construction, green economy and 
technology 

 Logistics & transport 

 Health & social care 

 Opportunities generated by Anchor institutions and 
Community Planning partners 

 Technology and professional services, including 
digital and financial services. 

 
3.9 Data and intelligence 
 
 One of the emerging priorities is a commitment to establishing 

a Labour Market Observatory.  This will serve a number of 
functions, namely:  

 

 Tracking demand-side issues to ensure 
employment/workforce demand is identified and a co-
ordinated approach is used to meet this demand; 
translating macro-economic data into better job 
matching 

 Tracking supply-side issues within the labour 
market such as the linkages between 
employment/unemployment and deprivation as well as 
barriers to accessing a job (e.g. childcare, skills) that 
will drive delivery and focus resources 

 Ensuring real-time intelligence on existing provision 
within the employability and skills ecosystem and 
creating solutions where gaps arise; using local level 
insights and engagement to make the delivery of 
existing interventions more effective 

 Reviewing progress of specific interventions on a 
regular basis to understand what is working and to 
share insights with partners 

 Co-designing interventions that can help move people 
back into work as quickly as possible – this will be 
particularly important for the ‘new unemployed’. 

Page 216



 
City Growth and Regeneration Committee, 

Wednesday, 9th June, 2021 
 
 
 

 
 

D2048 
 
 

 
3.10 Given that work is still be finalised on the action plan, it is 

proposed that a report is brought back to the August meeting 
of the City Growth and Regeneration Committee in order to 
update members on the details of the approved plan and to set 
out a timeline and delivery approach for key interventions.    

 
3.11 Financial and resource implications 
 
 No specific additional financial contribution required from the 

council at this point for Labour Market Partnerships.  DfC has 
confirmed that it will provide resource support for the 
management and administration of the partnerships, 
alongside budget for programme delivery.  Details of support 
available are currently being finalised.  In the interim, officers 
are working to re-focus existing staff resources to support this 
important programme of delivery. 

 
3.12 Equality implications/rural needs assessment 
 
 One of the key advantages of this approach is that it will 

enable us to target resources on specific groups, including 
those with particular access issues and barriers that currently 
prevent them from accessing training and employment 
opportunities.  Labour Market Partnerships will be established 
in all council areas.” 

 
 The Senior Manager – Economy provided a presentation on the Belfast Local 
Inclusive Labour Market Partnership (LMP). She explained the emerging strategic 
priorities from the supply-side intelligence and highlighted that groups would focus on the 
following themes: 
 

 Quickly Back to Work - Reducing the impact of Covid-19; 

 Catching Up - Improving skills and qualifications; 

 No-one Left Behind - Disadvantaged people and communities; 
and 

 Increasing Opportunities - LTU and economic inactivity. 
 
 She informed the Committee of the emerging sectoral focus from the demand-
side intelligence and explained further the sectors offering potential.  
 
 She summarised the issues with the current provision under each area of focus 
and described the emerging LMP priorities for the Year 1 Action Plan.  She advised that 
the next steps included: 
 

 A Draft action plan submitted to Department for Communities end 
June 2021; 

 A Department would review, evaluate and approve Summer 2021; 

 A more detailed Action Plan to be presented to August Committee; 

Page 217



 
City Growth and Regeneration Committee, 

Wednesday, 9th June, 2021 
 
 
 

 
 

D2049 
 
 

 A delivery timeframe to March 2023; and 

 Three year plans thereafter.  
  
 In relation to a query which had been raised at last month’s Committee regarding 
the suggestions to add representatives to the Belfast partnership. The Director of 
Economic Development confirmed that DfC would look at the Membership of the 
Partnership after the initial development phase had been completed, in approximately 
18 months.  
 
 In response to a question by a Member, the Senior Manager – Economy advised 
that details of the Work Ready Employability Services contractors for Belfast would be 
circulated to the Committee.  
 
 The Members of the Committee recommended that, in accordance with the 
Council decision of 4th May, the Chief Executive exercises her delegated authority to:  

 

 Agree the high-level outline of the Belfast Labour Market 
Partnership strategic assessment and action plan, and agree that 
this is submitted to Department for Communities to access funding, 
for an initial 18-month period from September 2021; 

 Note that DfC would examine Partnership membership after the 
initial development phase (18 months); and 

 Note that the 5 Belfast contractors in relation to the Work Ready 
Employability Services would be circulated to the Committee.   

 
Positioning Belfast to Compete 

 
Conference Support Scheme 
 
 The Committee considered the following report: 
 

“1.0 Purpose of Report or Summary of main Issues 
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to seek approval for amendments 

to the current Conference Support Scheme in order to ensure 
that Belfast can compete more effectively in the highly 
competitive international conference market.  

 
2.0 Recommendations 
 
2.1 The Members of the Committee are asked to recommend that, 

in accordance with the Council decision of 4 May, the Chief 
Executive exercise her delegated authority to: 

 

 Approve the proposed amendments to the Conference 
Support Scheme. 

 Approve the annual budget of £200,000. 
  

Page 218



 
City Growth and Regeneration Committee, 

Wednesday, 9th June, 2021 
 
 
 

 
 

D2050 
 
 

 
3.0 Main Report  
 
3.1 Belfast City Council works with Tourism Northern Ireland 

(TNI), Visit Belfast (VB) and a range of key strategic 
stakeholders to position Belfast as a destination of choice for 
Meetings, Incentive events, Conferences and Exhibitions 
(MICE). This business is lucrative, with the average MICE 
delegate being worth on average three times that of the leisure 
visitor. Business Tourism brings valuable business to Belfast 
during mid-week and shoulder season periods when there are 
less visitors and more available capacity.   

 
3.2 A report commissioned by Belfast City Council into the impact 

of Covid-19 reinforced that Business Tourism had contributed 
significantly to the city’s growth in recent years. However, this 
has also made the industry particularly vulnerable to the 
effects of the pandemic and unable to solely rely on adapting 
their business model to the domestic market to aid recovery. 

 
3.3 The viability of the expansion of accommodation in the city 

including 1200 new bedrooms had been based on the success 
of business tourism including assets such as ICC Belfast. This 
in turn brought wider spend into the visitor economy – taxis, 
restaurants, etc.  Belfast’s ability to compete in this market 
was in part due to the operation of a successful Conference 
Support Scheme, which sought to de-risk conferences 
choosing Belfast as their destination of choice.  This type of 
scheme is common practice in the global MICE industry.  
Belfast City Council and Tourism NI match fund the 
Conference Support Scheme for Belfast, to the level of 
£200,000 per partner, creating a fund of £400,000 per annum, 
which is administered by Visit Belfast.   

 
3.4 Conference support is critical for Belfast given we are still 

considered a ‘challenger’ destination in the MICE space. For a 
conference to relocate to Belfast compared to a city on the GB 
mainland, it will incur more costs such as venue hire, flights, 
increased transport costs for exhibitor set ups and the 
potential decrease in delegate numbers as additional travel is 
required, as opposed to delegates driving or using public 
transport.  

 
3.5 The scheme commenced in 2013 and in March 2017 the 

current model was established with Tourism NI being an equal 
funder with an investment £200,000 per year. In August 2019, 
Council agreed an extension of the scheme to run up to 2030 
in order to enable bidding for conferences that are planned 
several years in advance. 

Page 219



 
City Growth and Regeneration Committee, 

Wednesday, 9th June, 2021 
 
 
 

 
 

D2051 
 
 

 
3.6 By 31 March 2019, the Conference Subvention Scheme for 

Belfast had secured 101 conferences with funding of £1.6 
million, generating £97 million in Economic Impact - a clear 
indication of its critical role.  NISRA statistics for conferences 
and business tourism in Belfast for 2019 estimated a total 
economic impact of £70 million. 

 
3.7 The onset of COVID and the devastating impact on the MICE 

landscape, has intensified the need for a more flexible 
scheme.  70% of Belfast’s conference and meetings business 
is from the GB market and with a future post Brexit and Covid 
macro landscape, investment in this sector and market is 
essential to support recovery.  

 
3.8 Visit Belfast on behalf of the partners have worked throughout 

2020/21 to review support and current letters of offer for 
conferences in 2021, 2022 and 2023. Assistance was provided 
to conference organisers who were making decisions whether 
to move dates, go hybrid or virtual.  Belfast’s commitment to 
honouring support agreed in advance of the pandemic has 
resulted in the retention of the majority of conferences 
ensuring that even with new targets in place, economic benefit 
to the city will be delivered. Visit Belfast has worked with BCC 
and industry partners to retain 103 conferences due to take 
place in Belfast (2021 – 2028) worth £72.9m in potential 
economic impact for the city. 

 
3.9 Officers have investigated a number of options over the past 

12 months to ensure that the scheme can continue to deliver 
an excellent return on investment whilst being flexible enough 
to adapt to changing circumstances. This is necessary of 
Belfast is to continue to secure new business.   

 
3.10 Liaison with colleagues in GB and Ireland has been 

informative and we are aware of other competing destinations 
that have been reviewing and seeking to increase their 
Conference support – i.e. Failte Ireland will increase their ‘Per 
Delegate’ award from 10 Euros to 30 Euros basic support, 
further enhanced with additional monetary support based on 
a range of bonus point elements. This is under review with 
potential for further enhancement to basic 
support.  The pandemic has also resulted in a change in 
strategy for a number of UK cities away from international 
conferences to bidding for events closer at home, thereby the 
market is even more competitive than before. 

 
3.11 Whilst a realistic approach must be taken to setting new key 

performance indicators for a return on investment, this is the 

Page 220



 
City Growth and Regeneration Committee, 

Wednesday, 9th June, 2021 
 
 
 

 
 

D2052 
 
 

recommended approach to allow for stability that can then 
lead to renewed growth in future years. This risk is that 
without amendments to the scheme that business will be lost 
to the city that will have a greater detrimental effect on 
economic impact for the city, at a time when the tourism and 
hospitality industry is in crisis.  In addition to direct return on 
investment a number of non-monetary benefits should also be 
considered when reviewing the impact of the scheme. These 
include: 

 

 Destination Perception: A move to increase financial 
support for meetings and conferences will be 
positively viewed by Professional Conference 
Organisers (PCOs) where financial viability is now their 
paramount concern.  

 Corporate reputation for Belfast:  Meetings and 
Conferences not only generate economic impact but 
also position Belfast and Northern Ireland as leaders in 
specific sectors including Life Sciences and Fintech, 
linked to FDI and aligned to investment priorities of 
Belfast City Council and Invest NI. 

 
3.12 Working together with Tourism NI and other strategic 

partners, a number of options have been examined and it is 
recommended that the scheme should move to a model of £50 
per head conference subvention, to ensure that Belfast can 
compete more effectively on a national and international stage 
in the highly competitive conference market; thereby 
continuing to deliver a return on investment, and contribute to 
recovery, sustainability and growth. This replaces the current 
model where funding is granted based on a banding system 
aligned to economic impact. Economic impact is calculated by 
the number of delegates x bed nights per delegate = the total 
number of bed nights x the delegate spend per day = total 
economic benefit. As the proposed new model is still based 
on the primary input of number of delegates, economic impact 
remains the key consideration. However by having a clear per 
delegate rate increases transparency and is considered an 
easier sales tactic when positioning the city to compete and 
secure business.  

 
3.13 The table below illustrates the proposed conference 

subvention and resulting economic return from a £50 per head 
support for conferences with a minimum of 100 delegates and 
up to a maximum of £100,000. Support for larger conferences 
would be considered on a case by case basis.  Economic 
return is based on industry average of delegates staying for 3 
nights. 

 

Page 221



 
City Growth and Regeneration Committee, 

Wednesday, 9th June, 2021 
 
 
 

 
 

D2053 
 
 

 

Delegates Bed nights Economic Impact Per Delegate Scheme (£50) – 

Proposed 

Amount  ROI (1:29) 

100 300  £     146,682.00  £           5,000.00  29 

200 600  £     293,364.00  £         10,000.00  29 

300 900  £     440,046.00  £         15,000.00  29 

400 1,200  £     586,728.00  £         20,000.00  29 

500 1,500  £     733,410.00  £         25,000.00  29 

600 1,800  £     880,092.00  £         30,000.00  29 

700 2,100  £ 1,026,774.00  £         35,000.00  29 

800 2,400  £ 1,173,456.00  £         40,000.00  29 

900 2,700  £ 1,320,138.00  £         45,000.00  29 

1,000 3,000  £ 1,466,820.00  £         50,000.00  29 

2,000  6,000  £ 2,933,640.00  £      100,000.00  29 

 
 

3.14 In addition to driving economic impact for Belfast the scheme 
will move to delivering additional outcomes for funders and 
the destination.  Greater focus will be on how the event 
organiser will promote the destination in their marketing and 
where relevant, partnering on pre and post extender 
campaigns for international delegates.   This ensures the 
scheme will deliver mutual benefits. Consideration will also be 
given to sustainability and legacy. 

 
3.15 Council will work together with Tourism NI and Visit Belfast to 

agree and implement governance, monitoring and evaluation 
arrangements through a revised Service Level Agreement.  
As recovery progresses the Conference Support Scheme will 
be reviewed regularly. 

 
3.16 Financial & Resource Implications 
 
 £200,000 provided from within the existing Tourism, Culture, 

Heritage and Arts budget. 
 
3.17 Equality or Good Relations Implications/Rural Needs 

Assessment 
 
 None.” 

  

Page 222



 
City Growth and Regeneration Committee, 

Wednesday, 9th June, 2021 
 
 
 

 
 

D2054 
 
 

 
The Members of the Committee recommended that, in accordance with the Council 

decision of 4th May, the Chief Executive exercise her delegated authority to: 
 

 Approve the proposed amendments to the Conference Support 
Scheme; and 

 

 Approve the annual budget of £200,000. 
 
Update on City Events Programme 
 

The Committee considered the following report: 
 

“1.0 Purpose of Report  
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to set out: 

 

 Proposed updated approach to city events further to 
previous decision taken in January 2021 to suspend 
the direct delivery of events until September 2021.  

 
2.0 Recommendations 
 
2.1 The Members of the Committee are asked to recommend that, 

in accordance with the Council decision of 4 May, the Chief 
Executive exercise her delegated authority to: 

 

 Note and agree the proposed approach to the delivery 
of events in the remainder of 2021 including budget 
implications as set out at 3.17 and Appendix 1. This 
approach is subject to ongoing review in accordance 
with COVID 19 legislation and guidance.  

 Note and agree the proposal to take forward the date to 
recommence the direct delivery of city events to 
August 2021. This will allow for the delivery of a market 
at City Hall over August bank holiday subject to 
compliance with health and safety requirements and 
confirmation of financial viability. 

 
3.0 Main report 
 
3.1 Members will be aware that in January 2021, SP&R Committee 

agreed the recommendation that events delivered directly by 
Council should be suspended until September 2021. This did 
not prevent digital programmes or the delivery of Council 
funded activity where this complies with the most up to date 
legislation and guidance relating to COVID-19.  

 

Page 223



 
City Growth and Regeneration Committee, 

Wednesday, 9th June, 2021 
 
 
 

 
 

D2055 
 
 

3.2 On an annual basis, the Council’s City Events Unit delivers a 
series of large-scale public events, which are free to access 
by both citizens and visitors to the city, on behalf of Belfast 
City Council. The Tourism, Culture, Heritage and Arts Unit also 
support a number of annual programmes and activities. 
Committee will be aware that a ten-year Cultural Strategy for 
Belfast is currently being delivered. This strategy sets out 
long-term recommendations for events in the city including 
better strategic alignment across the Council in the design, 
delivery and funding of events.   

 
3.3 For 2021/22, the recommendation agreed was to continue to 

allocate budget to deliver and/or support specified events 
however to suspend any direct delivery to September 
onwards. 

 
3.4 The re-opening of the city, the easing of restrictions and the 

ongoing impact of Covid-19 has accelerated the need to 
consider the role of events in a wider programme of seasonal 
animation and recovery that seeks to: 

 

 Improve the cultural vibrancy of the city  

 Foster civic pride 

 Position the Belfast brand 

 Support the local culture, arts and events sectors 

 Deliver direct economic benefits 

 Support businesses 
 
3.5 The main focus of this report is in relation to the immediate 

requirement to agree an approach to Q2 and Q3 of the 2021/22 
financial year to ensure adequate planning and risk 
management. This includes reviewing current position to 
suspend direct delivery until September 2021.  

 
3.6 Proposed Approach 
 
 June/ July 2021 
 
 Following the further easing of restrictions on 24th May it will 

become clearer as to the outlook for city recovery in the high 
season months of June and July. However, for tourism and 
hospitality businesses recovery will also be dependent on a 
strong uptake from GB and Ireland markets as well domestic 
and local visitors to the city on daytrips or city breaks. Visit 
Belfast and Tourism NI both have activity planned to attract 
domestic visitors into the city including Tourism NI’s Embrace 
a Giant Spirit TV cycle for Belfast commencing 31st May. 
Other marketing activity had been subject to review and clarity 
over guidance relating to the common travel area. 

Page 224



 
City Growth and Regeneration Committee, 

Wednesday, 9th June, 2021 
 
 
 

 
 

D2056 
 
 

 
3.7 In addition to the marketing of the city, consideration is also 

being given to some level of street animation to support 
vibrancy of the city centre. Feedback to date from the sector 
has focussed on current lower levels of footfall Monday 
through Thursday and concerns over the outlook further into 
2021 and the need to sustain demand into the Autumn. Within 
the next number of weeks, it will become clearer as to whether 
hospitality in particular will improve across the week with 
restrictions lifting on eating in. However, if required and in line 
with ongoing restrictions animation activity and programming 
could be put in place over the summer months to support 
recovery.  

 
3.8 August 2021 
 
 August is traditionally a busy period for the city and the 

cultural sector with events including EastSide Arts Festival, 
Belfast Mela and August Féile. All of these events are 
intending to deliver activity on the ground in August. Whilst 
event organisers recognise that a return to 2019 will not be 
possible in terms of larger scale attendees at single events, an 
innovative approach is being taken to combine live 
programming with digital content. Activity is also being 
dispersed through extended timeframes and multiple 
locations.  

 
3.9 Given the likely landscape for August it is therefore proposed 

that the previous decision to suspend events until September 
2021 is reconsidered to allow for the market that normally 
takes place on the Spring bank holiday to be delivered on the 
August bank holiday. This will be subject to compliance with 
health and safety requirements and confirmation of financial 
viability. 

 
3.10 At present a number of other complementary initiatives are in 

development with Council working with the BIDs to take 
forward initiatives to support businesses and improve the 
overall city centre experience. Currently this includes a 
proposal for hubs in the city centre with seating and dressing 
to allow eating spaces for take away and street food offerings. 
This is to support existing businesses with no plans presently 
to provide an additional food offer. Subject to full compliance 
with guidance this could be further supported with animation 
activities including music.  

  

Page 225



 
City Growth and Regeneration Committee, 

Wednesday, 9th June, 2021 
 
 
 

 
 

D2057 
 
 

 
3.11 September-December 2021 
 
 Officers have been working to develop a potential cultural 

recovery programme including animation, events and festival 
activity for September – December 2021. 

 
3.12 To date a number of culture and arts organisations have 

indicated that they intend to deliver substantial activity at this 
time of year. This includes programmes that normally take 
place such as Culture Night (September), International Arts 
Festival (October) as well as other festivals rescheduling from 
earlier in the year such as Cathedral Quarter Arts Festival. 
There is therefore emerging a critical mass of activity that 
subject to ongoing restrictions would help drive domestic 
footfall as well as visitors from GB and Ireland.  

 
3.13 The programme would also include Belfast City Council direct 

delivery activity including the Maritime Festival in September, 
Freedom of the City music showcase in Oct/ Nov and a new 
approach to a Christmas seasonal programme. Council will 
also assume a more pro-active role in co-ordinating activity 
and this has been positively received following engagement 
with the cultural sector.  

 
3.14 It is therefore proposed that Council takes the following 

approach: 
 

 Deliver Cultural Recovery Programme as part of city re-
opening and recovery with focus on – ‘Culture is back’: 

 
o re-opening and re-stablishing venues and activities 
o Adapting and delivering new programming e.g. 

increased use of public spaces 
o Increased audience engagement including 

campaign to increase confidence and return to 
activity 

 

 Timing: 
 

o Development phase: June – July 2021 
o Launch August 2021 
o Critical mass of activity through seasonal 

programmes with 2 distinctive phases:  
 

• Autumn (September – mid Nov 2021) 
• Christmas (Mid-Nov to New Year) 

  

Page 226



 
City Growth and Regeneration Committee, 

Wednesday, 9th June, 2021 
 
 
 

 
 

D2058 
 
 

 

 Proposed approached: 
 

o Co-ordinated programme with Council operating a 
clash diary with partners across events, festivals 
and arts sector.  

o Overarching Marketing and Communications 
Campaign with implementation plan to include 
Council, Visit Belfast and cultural partners.  

o Additional animation and dressing to increase 
connectivity across the programme.  

o Dedicated music programme – aligned to UNESCO 
application and music recovery plans. 

o Dedicated hospitality initiatives - a food tourism 
recovery plan is being commissioned to be 
completed in July. Recommendations will be 
implemented in partnership with BIDs and local 
industry.  

 
3.15 New concepts for Christmas are currently in development and 

will be completed by June 2021. This lead in time is designed 
to ensure increased co-operation with other partners 
including BIDs, Castle Court, Victoria Square and Titanic 
Belfast. This alignment will maximise the impact of an overall 
city approach to Christmas in 2021. Building on 2020 there will 
also be opportunities to provide support to neighbourhood 
initiatives and ensure these are integrated into the overall 
Christmas programme.  

 
3.16 Remaining events in 2022 
 
 A future report will be presented in relation to St Patrick’s Day 

as development work is underway to look at a refreshed 
approach to this event from 2022 onwards. 

 
3.17 Financial and Resource Implications  
 
 The costs associated with the delivery of this programme is 

included in departmental budgets. Support for Marketing and 
Communications activity will be drawn down from existing 
allocation within revitalisation funding.  

 
3.18 Equality & Good Relations Implications  
 
 The proposed programme of events is open to all and as such 

have the potential to promote good relations and equality by 
bringing together people from a wide range of backgrounds. 
Events are part of the cultural strategy for Belfast that has 
been subject to EQIA.” 

Page 227



 
City Growth and Regeneration Committee, 

Wednesday, 9th June, 2021 
 
 
 

 
 

D2059 
 
 

 
 The Senior Manager - Culture and Tourism provided a presentation on the 
planned Autumn/Winter 2021 Events Programme. She explained the engagement that 
had been undertaken with the sector to discuss current plans and challenges relating 
to re-opening, and potential initiatives to support recovery. 
 
 She summarised the key events and dates for the recovery programme’s planned 
Festivals and Events and highlighted the ‘Belfestive’ Experience which had been 
planned for 20 – 21 November. She described the programme for the Christmas City 
Experience which was due to commence in November and continue into the New Year.  
She also summarised the intended approach for 2023.  
 
 During discussion, the Senior Manager provided further information in relation to 
the events which had been planned. She advised that the Council were awaiting 
confirmation from Belfast Pride for its intended summer events and that Belfast Mela had 
changed its model of events for this year to extend its programme to include a number of 
dates and locations.   
 
 In response to Members query, she confirmed that the previously agreed 2021 
UEFA Super Cup Football event should also be included in the report, as an up to date 
position had recently been received. She advised that a plan was in place to 
decorate/animate the City for the event, in conjunction with the IFA, together with the 
Reception in the City Hall.   
 
 The Members of the Committee recommended that, in accordance with the 
Council decision of 4th May, the Chief Executive exercise her delegated authority to: 
 

 Note and agree the proposed approach to the delivery of events in 
the remainder of 2021, including budget implications as set out at 
3.17 and Appendix 1. This approach was subject to ongoing review 
in accordance with COVID 19 legislation and guidance;  

 Note and agree the proposal to take forward the date to 
recommence the direct delivery of city events to August 2021. This 
would allow for the delivery of a market at City Hall over August 
bank holiday subject to compliance with health and safety 
requirements and confirmation of financial viability; and  

 Note that the previously agreed 2021 UEFA Super Cup Football 
event in August would also be included in the City Events 
Programme and a plan was in place to decorate/animate the City, 
in conjunction with the IFA, together with the Reception in the City 
Hall.   

 
Update on Dublin-Belfast Economic Corridor 
 
 The Committee was provided with an update on progress to date on work to 
support the development of the Dublin-Belfast Economic Corridor and next steps in 
developing the work programme to achieve the ambitions of the corridor partnership. 
 

Page 228



 
City Growth and Regeneration Committee, 

Wednesday, 9th June, 2021 
 
 
 

 
 

D2060 
 
 

 The Committee was reminded that, since the establishment of the partnership, 
partner councils had been working to shape its future direction and to find ways to work 
collaboratively to realise the potential benefits of the further development of the Corridor.  
  
 It was reported that, in 2019, Dublin City University and Ulster University were 
commissioned to carry out research on behalf of the councils to inform how the councils 
could collaborate for mutual benefit between the cities of Dublin and Belfast and the 
regions between. The report detailed the current economic performance of the Corridor 
and the prospects for the region based on current trends. The report also began the work 
of identifying potential areas for cooperation which could create a stronger trajectory for 
growth in priority areas, including Research and Development Skills, Tourism, 
Infrastructure, Trade and Investment.  
 
 It was explained that, since this initial research was undertaken, the global 
economy had been significantly impacted by the COVID-19 pandemic, resulting in 
monumental declines in levels of economic activity across the board. The pandemic had 
also had an impact on the speed of the partnership’s plans to support economic 
regeneration across the corridor area, however, the pandemic had highlighted the 
interdependencies across the area and reinforced the need for a coordinated commitment 
to enhancing the future economic potential of the corridor. Therefore, the councils had 
proceeded with the development of the partnership and agreed to put in place an official 
launch event, which took place on 24th March, to showcase the work undertaken to date, 
highlighting the councils commitment to driving inclusive economic growth across the 
area. 
 
 The Director of  Economic Development summarised the launch event and 
highlighted that the partnership was working to develop a plan of activity to progress the 
recommendations of the initial research, delivering against priority areas of work and 
identifying opportunities to access funding to support the development of the corridor.  
 
 Some of the key action/areas of work to be undertaken to achieve this included: 
 

 First meeting of the political advisory group would take place in 
June 2021. Representatives from the Council include Councillors 
Dorrian, Beattie and Hanvey. The aim of this initial meeting would 
be to provide the group with an outline work plan and seek input 
and strategic advice on the future direction of the corridor 
partnership;  

 Governance structures had been extended to include a business 
advisory group This group would provide advice and guidance to 
support the strategic direction of the partnership and provide 
invaluable private sector input. Members of the partnership were 
currently working to agree representation that includes an 
adequate sectoral spread and mix of both large businesses and 
SME’s, the first meeting was expected to take place in August;  

 A marketing and communications steering group would be put in 
place led by Fingal County Council. Work was underway to develop 
a marketing and comms plan for the partnership to continue to raise 
awareness of the area across multiple marketing channels, this 

Page 229



 
City Growth and Regeneration Committee, 

Wednesday, 9th June, 2021 
 
 
 

 
 

D2061 
 
 

would include ongoing engagement with businesses to develop 
case studies and the development and delivery of a series of 
webinars aligned to priority areas of work; 

 The Chief Executive group had identified that an initial priority focus 
should be on Research and Development, therefore a scoping 
exercise was being undertaken to identify existing Research and 
Development focussed delivery across the area and identify gaps 
in delivery and potential opportunities for collaborative 
interventions;  

 A number of meetings had taken place to date to identify future 
funding opportunities with organisations including SEUPB and the 
Shared Island Unit. The partnership was now working to further 
scope out these opportunities and would be developing proposals 
aligned to priority areas for collaboration to deliver on the work 
programme being developed; and 

 There had been agreement by the partnership to develop a 
strategy and action plan which reflected the needs and economic 
opportunities for the region and sets out clearly articulated “asks” 
and “interventions” that could be supported by central and local 
government as well as the private sector. The terms of reference 
for this piece of work was currently being developed, it was 
expected that this would be procured in July 2021. 

 
The Members of the Committee recommended that, in accordance with the 

Council decision of 4th May, the Chief Executive exercise her delegated authority to note 
the contents of this report and progress to date to develop the Dublin-Belfast Economic 
Corridor. 
 
Economic Strategy Approach 
 
 The Committee considered the undernoted report: 
 

“1.0 Purpose of Report or Summary of main Issues 
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to advise members of planned 

work on an economic vision and strategy for Belfast for the 
period to 2030, in line with emerging government policy, 
ensuring a focus on inclusion and levelling up and maximising 
the contribution of Belfast to the regional economy.  

 
2.0 Recommendations 

 
2.1 The members of the Committee are asked to recommend that, 

in accordance with the Council decision of 4th May, the Chief 
Executive exercises her delegated authority to: 

 

 Note the proposed approach to the economic strategy 
for Belfast 

Page 230



 
City Growth and Regeneration Committee, 

Wednesday, 9th June, 2021 
 
 
 

 
 

D2062 
 
 

 Agree for members to engage in the strategy 
development work in order to ensure alignment with 
emerging council priorities.  

 
3.0 Main report 
 
3.1 Members will be aware that the pandemic has had a significant 

impact on the global economy.  As places begin to emerge 
from operational restrictions, town and cities are considering 
how they can work most effectively to support businesses and 
individuals in the short-term while considering the longer-
term implications of changes to working practices and 
consumer behaviour on their infrastructure and environment.  

 
3.2 The changes have been well documented:  
 

 Increased focus on the use of technology across all 
sectors (and across wider consumer groups) 

 Reduction in traditional High Street retail with a 
resultant growth in online business  

 Growth in vacancies as a result of retail closures – with 
city centres most significantly impacted 

 Unprecedented levels of redundancies, with more than 
100,000 people across NI on furlough at its peak (20,000 
of whom were Belfast residents) 

 Doubling of unemployment – with more significant 
increases for young people 

 Consumer-focused businesses most significant 
impacted – particularly hospitality and retail – with job 
numbers unlikely to return to pre-Covid figures 

 Resilience of some sectors – including tech and digital, 
health and social care – and increased demand in new 
sectors – particularly transport and logistics and green 
tech/renewables. 

 
3.3 In response to these changes, the Northern Ireland Executive 

and the government departments have been working on a 
series of new policy approaches, in parallel with the Pathway 
to Recovery work that has driven the short-term recovery and 
rebuilding work.  These include: 

 

 10 X Economic Vision for a decade of innovation: this 
aspires to positioning Northern Ireland amongst the 
small advanced economies in the world, ensuring that 
the benefits of this change felt by everyone.  It aligns 
closely with commitments set out in the City Deal 
programme 

 Programme for Government: the NI Executive has 
recently consulted on the draft outcomes framework 

Page 231



 
City Growth and Regeneration Committee, 

Wednesday, 9th June, 2021 
 
 
 

 
 

D2063 
 
 

for the next Programme for Government.  Indicative 
outcomes include: 

  
o Everyone can reach their potential 
o Our economy is globally competitive, regionally 

balanced and carbon neutral 
o People want to live, work and visit here 
o We live and work sustainably, protecting the 

environment 
 

 Development of a new skills strategy: this new 
approach is grounded in work undertaken by the OECD 
over the last 2 years.  The consultation on the Strategy 
is to be released at the end of May 2021. It focuses on 
three priority approaches, namely: 

 
o Reducing skill imbalances and driving economic 

growth 
o Creating a culture of lifelong learning 
o Enhancing digital skills.   

 

 Employability NI: members have received a number of 
recent update reports on the establishment of Labour 
Market Partnerships (LMPs) in each council area, as a 
means of enhancing coordination on employability and 
skills interventions at a local level.  The LMPs are part 
of a wider approach to revamping provision – under the 
banner of Employability NI.  This is a cross-government 
approach involving, in particular, the Department for 
Communities (DfC) and the Department for the 
Economy (DfE). 

 
3.4 Meanwhile the UK government is pursuing a strong ‘levelling 

up’ agenda, through which it is making significant 
investments in initiatives that will address the current 
economic imbalances across the UK, particularly in 
terms of employment/unemployment, economic inactivity, 
disadvantage and deprivation and infrastructure investment.  
The emerging innovation strategy also presents opportunities 
to address long-running under-investment in R&D.  There are 
a number of live and imminent funding opportunities aimed 
addressing these issues.  There is a strong focus on place-
based interventions and this is likely to become an increasing 
feature of policy development as we move beyond the 
economic recovery approach.   

  
  

Page 232



 
City Growth and Regeneration Committee, 

Wednesday, 9th June, 2021 
 
 
 

 
 

D2064 
 
 

 
3.5 There are some common themes emerging from these pieces 

of work: 
 

 Commitment to inclusive economic growth (albeit that 
this is articulated in different ways in each of the 
documents) 

 Focus on those sectors in which the city/region has 
competitive advantage 

 Recognition of need for greater collaboration across 
government – as well as with private sector and those 
from the voluntary and community sector 

 Increasing focus on place-based interventions and 
solutions 

 Need to re-shape and sharpen the unique selling points 
of city and regional economies – and develop new go 
to market strategies in a post-Covid, post-Brexit 
operating environment.   

 
3.6 Members will also be aware of the work of the Innovation and 

Inclusive Growth Commission – the grouping of local and 
international experts that has been offering expertise and 
insights on how to generate inclusive economic growth in 
Belfast.  The Commission’s work picks up on many of these 
themes and, given its independence and the individual and 
collective intellect of the group, its draft final report directly 
calls out the need for timely and targeted government 
investment if Belfast is to achieve its potential.  

 
3.7 Like many cities, Belfast is now at a crossroads – not only in 

terms of how it rebuilds its physical fabric but also in terms of 
its business base, its economic ambition in this new 
environment, its cultural vibrancy and how attractive it is as a 
place to live and work and deliver on its aspiration to ‘build 
back better’.   

 
3.8 While the council has been working closely with government 

departments in the development of the new strategic 
approaches,  it is clear that there is a need to articulate the 
city’s strategy for inclusive economic growth over the next 
decade, focusing on how it can contribute to the delivery of 
regional ambitions and articulating its investment needs in its 
role as the regional economic driver.  This is important as we 
move into a new ‘phase’ of the Belfast Agenda, developing 
new stretch targets for the coming five year period in order to 
refocus efforts on achieving those long-term, partnership-
driven ambitions that continue to focus our collaborative 
working.   

 

Page 233



 
City Growth and Regeneration Committee, 

Wednesday, 9th June, 2021 
 
 
 

 
 

D2065 
 
 

3.9 The purpose of the strategy will be to set out the economic 
vision for the city up to the period 2030 and outline clear 
actions over the short, medium and long term in order to 
deliver on the vision.  The strategy will also take account of 
the role of the council and articulate actions or asks to be 
delivered by the council and its strategic partners in order to 
deliver sustainable and inclusive economic growth.  It will 
consider indicative investment levels required to bring 
forward headline objectives, strategic priorities and key 
actions so that these can inform our lobbying position with 
the various levels of government and help us to articulate the 
city position on and maximise access to resources from 
emerging funding opportunities such as Levelling Up, Shared 
Prosperity Fund and Peace Plus.   

 
3.10 One of the key elements of work that will need to be 

considered is how the city positions itself internationally.  Our 
International Relations Framework (which has now expired) 
focused activity on Belfast’s partner cities, making the case 
for a smaller number of relationships that run deep, rather 
than a multitude of superficial engagements.  A recent 
thinkpiece on this area that was used to contribute to the 
Innovation and Inclusive Growth Commission’s work drew on 
a series of interviews with senior government officials to 
present a number of recommendations that included: 

 

 Be strategic: there was a clear view of strategic growth 
sectors for the city (and wider city region) including 
cyber security, fin-tech, artificial intelligence, life 
sciences, health tech, advanced manufacturing and the 
creative arts. There was a desire for the city to resist 
spreading itself too thinly and to instead focus 
ruthlessly on those things which will make the most 
difference to Belfast’s economic future 

 Boost trade and investment: Targeted outreach to 
sectoral centres of excellence around the world can 
foster collaboration and bring economic dividends. 
The research proposed that the council should work 
with universities, industry leaders and Invest Northern 
Ireland to further build relationships with high growth 
sectors and their investors. It also noted the important 
of a sustained and coordinated programme of work to 
help change the perception of Belfast in key markets 
across the world   

 Be clear about the purpose: Belfast’s desire to build 
stronger outward-looking relationships was 
recognised in the research.  However, those 
interviewed noted that there was limited appetite for 
relationships for relationships’ sake. Rather, there was 

Page 234



 
City Growth and Regeneration Committee, 

Wednesday, 9th June, 2021 
 
 
 

 
 

D2066 
 
 

a desire to work on shared agendas or projects of 
mutual benefit 

 Value of approaching this as more than a council: there 
was widespread support for Belfast to take a stronger 
lead in relationship building across Ireland and the UK 
to further economic growth and prosperity, and those 
interviewed stressed the need for city actors to work 
collectively, rather than the council seeking to do this 
on its own. Stakeholders were also clear about the 
need for role clarity among partners – letting those best 
placed take the lead as appropriate 

 Time is of the essence: the research identified the need 
for Belfast to reposition itself in a post-Brexit world.  
There was praise for Invest Northern Ireland and others 
but a recognition that there was still some distance to 
go before Belfast/NI has the (domestic and 
international) profile and influence it needs to succeed.  

 
3.11 While Belfast City Council has a role to play – particularly in 

maximising existing city to city relationships – the research 
points towards the value of setting international engagement 
in the context of a wider economic strategy.  This means 
focusing on key sectors and markets aligned to Belfast’s 
unique selling points and assets and taking a partnership 
approach to promoting the city’s offer, with an understanding 
of the potential for return and the ability to follow through to 
deliver results.   There are a number of examples of how this 
currently happens: through sister city relationships, through 
our ‘Renewed Ambition’ partnership with public and private 
bodies across the city region and through emerging 
structures including the work of the Dublin-Belfast economic 
corridor.  It is proposed that the economic strategy considers 
how Belfast can take a place-based approach to trade and 
investment opportunities, in keeping with the emerging 
priorities set out in the 10X Economic Vision document.   

 
3.12 Although there is already a significant volume of research and 

data in place, it is proposed that the development approach 
for this strategy will involve a significant level of engagement 
with partners to ensure alignment with their agendas, 
maximise leverage and ensure buy-in for future 
collaborations. This will include engagement with elected 
members.  

 
3.13 Financial & Resource Implications 
 
 No specific financial or resource implications at this point.  

The work will be carried out within existing resources.  
 

Page 235



 
City Growth and Regeneration Committee, 

Wednesday, 9th June, 2021 
 
 
 

 
 

D2067 
 
 

3.14 Equality or Good Relations Implications/Rural Needs 
Assessment 

 
 Equality/good relations implications to be consider as part of 

the brief.” 
 
 The Members of the Committee recommended that, in accordance with the 
Council decision of 4th May, the Chief Executive exercise her delegated authority to: 
 

 Note the proposed approach to the economic strategy for Belfast; 
and 

 Agree for members to engage in the strategy development work in 
order to ensure alignment with emerging council priorities. 

 
Renewed Ambition Programme and Social, Economic  
and Environmental Impact of Real Estate Regeneration and Investment  
 
 The Committee was provided with an update on the Renewed Ambition 
Programme focusing on real estate investment, including ongoing research on the social, 
economic and environmental impact of real estate investment in the Belfast City Region. 
 
 The Committee was reminded that the Future City Centre (FCC) programme 
currently had six cross cutting pillars aimed at revitalising the city centre and creating a 
vibrant shared city centre where people would want to live, work and invest, but also 
enhancing connectivity with surrounding communities. 
 
 One of the key pillars within the FCC programme of work was ‘Position the City to 
Compete’, which seeks to build on the city’s reputation as a unique destination for 
investment, tourism, development and ultimately inclusive economic growth. 
 
 The Director of City Regeneration and Development advised that, in order to 
support both the recovery and longer term growth ambitions for the city as a whole, it was 
important that Belfast proactively promoted itself to the investment and real estate 
community. This required partnership working across the public and private sector to build 
awareness of the Belfast investment proposition and facilitate investor engagement to 
support delivery of regeneration projects across the city, projects which would create the 
economic and social infrastructure / assets that were needed for inclusive growth. 
 
 She reminded Members that the Council and other partners were involved in 
various activities to promote Belfast internationally. Showcasing Belfast to both the local 
and international real estate investment, development and occupier market was an 
important part of this jigsaw as we seek to attract investment into the city to drive the 
delivery of key regeneration projects, including housing and commercial developments 
which would help the Council  provide for sustainable inclusive growth in the city. 
 
 In addition, continuing to work in collaboration with Department for International 
Trade (DIT) and Invest NI to promote investment opportunities in Belfast was also critical. 
 

Page 236



 
City Growth and Regeneration Committee, 

Wednesday, 9th June, 2021 
 
 
 

 
 

D2068 
 
 

 In the past, the Council alongside a wider ‘Team Belfast’ made up of public/private 
partners had attended international real estate and investment events in order to promote 
the investment opportunity in the city as part of a wider ‘Position the City to Compete’ 
proposition. 
 
 The Director of City Regeneration and Development explained that, given the 
Covid-19 global pandemic, many of these events including MIPIM 2020 were cancelled. 
The Renewed Ambition Task Force was, however, keen that this should not preclude the 
continued promotion of Belfast as a place to invest, particularly given the need for 
continued growth at a time of economic downturn. It was also felt that it was important not 
to lose momentum on the strong collaborative approach across the wider Team Belfast 
partners with the need for a shared narrative and approach to positioning Belfast. It was 
therefore agreed to deliver a comprehensive initiative known as the Renewed Ambition 
Programme (RAP). This Programme aimed to position the Belfast City Region for real 
estate investment during 2020/21, with a view to reconsidering engagement at real estate 
and other investment events in future years. 
 
 She informed the Committee that the delivery of this Programme was via a 
Renewed Ambition Taskforce, chaired by Mr. J. O’Neill, Chief Executive of Belfast 
Harbour, with Lanyon Communications, a consultancy agency appointed to support 
delivery of the RAP. She advised that the Membership of the Taskforce included Council 
officers, BRCD representation, INI, and representatives from the developer, housing 
association and financial services organisations together with Belfast Chamber. 
 
 The Director of City Regeneration and Development provided an overview of 
Renewed Ambition Programme (RAP), a 5 pillared programme which focused on 
activities to ensure Belfast was positioned to continue to attract investment and deliver on 
inclusive growth.  
 
 The 5 pillars included: 
 

 Programme of Content aimed at the real estate audience, both 
here and further afield. There had been a number of activities 
showcasing the Belfast City Region for future real estate 
investment, also building upon opportunities on foot of the Belfast 
Region City Deal. This had included webinars and podcasts 
through channels such as Estate Gazette, Real Estate Live, Reed 
Midem, the Dept for International Trade (DIT) and Downing Street; 
 

 Programme of Engagement and Advocacy to facilitate two-way 
conversations with policy makers and showcase real estate 
opportunities to the investor community. This aimed to position the 
Belfast City Region positively and sought to identify and try to 
address barriers that investors, developers and occupiers might 
face when they considered Belfast as a destination. Work to date 
had included issuing joint public private partnership responses to 
key Government consultations such as Living with Water. Targeted 
engagement had also taken place with the Invest NI teams globally, 
the DIT, Downing Street - Investing in Cities event, the US 

Page 237



 
City Growth and Regeneration Committee, 

Wednesday, 9th June, 2021 
 
 
 

 
 

D2069 
 
 

Consulate and NI Bureau Washington to highlight investment 
opportunities in the Belfast City Region and sought to influence 
decision makers and international investors. Subject to Members 
agreement, it was proposed that representative members of the 
Renewed Ambition Taskforce attend a future Committee meeting 
to provide an overview of activity and priority issues and sought 
Members views accordingly; 

 

 Media and Stakeholder Engagement reinforcing positive 
messaging around Belfast’s investment proposition. This had 
involved editorials in sectoral publications, targeted conversations 
with key journalists, a revamp of the investinbelfast.com website 
and producing monthly newsletters highlighting the positive news 
stories in the Belfast City Region; 

 

 A shared access Repository was also created for the Renewed 
Ambition Programme partners, which facilitates sharing of data, 
marketing collateral and intel to help ensure consistent messaging 
and shared narrative was used by all partners when promoting the 
city region; and 

 

 Research aligned to the impact of real estate investment. To 
date this included two ongoing areas of research. Firstly, a Markets 
Insights piece which was nearing completion and included market 
commentary in terms of the Belfast City Region as a location and 
across all development asset classes; asset performance and 
comparison with other cities and sources of finance. This work 
would help provide a useful summary document for the Belfast 
investment proposition, particularly in the context of comparability 
with other similar cities. As set out below, the second piece of 
ongoing research sought to examine the wider social, economic 
and environmental impact of real estate investment, looking at 
developments in the Belfast City Region, as well as best practice 
elsewhere. 

 
 The Director of City Regeneration and Development provided a summary of the 
Social, Economic and Environmental Impact of Real Estate Investment Research. 
She explained that the main aim was to allow the Renewed Ambition partners, including 
the Council, and other BRCD Councils to better understand the wider economic, social 
and environmental impact resulting from real estate investment, and sought to ensure the 
maximum social and environmental impact was realised from such investment and 
development. The work should help inform the case for investment support, attract future 
investment and ensure that this investment has the most positive and inclusive impact on 
the city region. 
 
 She informed the Committee that it was important to maximise the potential of 
future real estate investment across many areas, including social and environmental 
impacts, jobs, public sector services, transport links, green spaces, carbon neutral 
buildings, etc. Whilst recognising that real estate investment could be viewed as one pillar 

Page 238



 
City Growth and Regeneration Committee, 

Wednesday, 9th June, 2021 
 
 
 

 
 

D2070 
 
 

of the success of a city region, this research sought to understand how benefits go beyond 
the traditional direct economic impacts to better contribute to the overall inclusive growth 
agenda. She highlighted that an objective of the work included an assessment of how 
best to achieve and measure environmental, social impact and inclusive growth impacts 
from investment and development. 
 
 She advised that a Members workshop was proposed in August to ensure 
Members input into the report and consider priority areas and the role that Council and its 
partners could play to maximise the impact of real estate investment and a final research 
report would be presented to Members at a future meeting. She highlighted that this 
research was commissioned via the Renewed Ambition Programme, although with a 
strong Council focus. 
 
 In response to query about forthcoming workshop for Members and potential for 
this to be merged with other stakeholders, the Director of City Regeneration and 
Development advised that this Workshop could potentially also include representatives 
from other sectors such as BRCD Council representatives, or with members of the 
Community Planning City Development Board.  
 

The Members of the Committee recommended that, in accordance with the Council 
decision of 4th May, the Chief Executive exercise her delegated authority to: 

 

 Note the update on the Renewed Ambition Programme which is 
being delivered via a public/private partnership; 

 

 Approve Members participation in a forthcoming workshop, relating 
to research into the social, economic and environmental impact of 
real estate investment in the Belfast City Region; and  

 

 Agree that representatives from the Renewed Ambition Taskforce 
attend a future Committee meeting to update on activity and priority 
issues and seek Members views accordingly. 

 
Strategic and Operational Issues 

 
Committee Plan 21-22  
 
 The Committee was reminded that, at the Strategic Policy and Resource 
Committee in March 2020, a new four year corporate plan had been agreed. In line with 
the corporate planning process, Committee Plans were due to be brought to in April 2020, 
however, due to the COVID pandemic, emergency planning procedures were 
implemented and corporate planning processes were suspended for 2020-21 to enable 
resources to be redirected to responding to the emergency response needs of the city. 
 
 It was reported that, to recommence the corporate planning processes, an Annual 
Corporate Delivery Plan 2021-22 had been drafted and was due to be brought to the 
Strategic Policy and Resource Committee for approval in June. The Corporate Annual 
Delivery Plan would reflect the in-year deliverables against the priorities agreed as part 

Page 239



 
City Growth and Regeneration Committee, 

Wednesday, 9th June, 2021 
 
 
 

 
 

D2071 
 
 

of the four year corporate plan, plus some additional priorities that have arisen in response 
to the pandemic. 
 
 The Strategic Director advised that the draft Committee Plan for 2021-22 (copy 
available here) followed the same structure and contains the commitments within the 
Corporate Delivery Plan which fell under the remit of the Committee, plus additional 
deliverables that had been agreed by the Committee, together with those relevant to the 
Standing Orders of the Committee. Whilst the Committee had a role to play across a 
number of the themes, the clear focus for the Committee was Inclusive Economic 
Recovery, with a number of key priorities that would help the people and businesses of 
Belfast continue to respond to, and recover from, the economic impact of the pandemic 
while also shaping the future development and sustainability of the city. Examples of this 
included: 

 

 Supporting the delivery of the Belfast Region City Deal, including 
the Destination Hub; 

 Supporting the city recovery and reopening, including the delivery 
of initiatives and programmes relating to the Department for 
Communities COVID19 Revitalisation Fund; 

 Leading on the Future City Centre Programme and its priority 
pillars across regeneration (including city centre living and 
connectivity/active travel); business and investment; culture and 
vibrancy; digital an innovation; positioning the city to compete and 
clean, green and safe; 

 Delivering on Inclusive Growth and recovery through employment 
initiatives, Employability NI, education-based youth support, 
promoting opportunities for developer contributions and social 
clauses, and supporting local businesses, cooperatives and social 
enterprises; 

 Working with key stakeholders to deliver on the priorities and 
projects within the Belfast City Centre Regeneration and 
Investment Strategy;  

 Working with key stakeholders to bring forward and maximise the 
regeneration and development of the city, including housing 
development opportunities, to support the city’s goals for a 
sustainable and inclusive city; 

 Continuing to deliver the Cultural Strategy ‘A City Imagining’ and 
develop the new 10 year Tourism recovery plan; 

 Championing city infrastructure improvements to ensure 
sustainability for the future success of the city; 

 Working with stakeholders to bring forward improved, sustainable 
connectivity and active travel across the city, including the City 
Centre Connectivity Study; 

 Continuing to progress the Dublin-Belfast Economic Corridor; and  

 Promoting and marketing the city to position Belfast as a location 
of choice for business, investment, tourism and education to 
support the city’s goals for a sustainable and inclusive city.  

 

Page 240

https://minutes.belfastcity.gov.uk/documents/s92142/Appendix%201%20Draft%20Committee%20plan%2021-22.pdf


 
City Growth and Regeneration Committee, 

Wednesday, 9th June, 2021 
 
 
 

 
 

D2072 
 
 

 The Strategic Director advised that overall progress report would be submitted to 
the Committee in October/November 2021 and a year-end report in April/May 2022. 
He highlighted that the Committee Plan would be delivered in accordance with the cash 
limit of £18,237,846 agreed by the Committee in February 2021.  
 
 He explained that, in order to deliver on the intensifying programme within the City 
Development and Regeneration Division, it was proposed to transfer the recurring 
programme budget into the staff budget to enable the recruitment of 3 additional 
Regeneration Project Officers (PO4). This additional resource was required to deliver on 
the key priorities as set out by this Committee and as included within the Recovery 
Framework, including priority areas within the Future City Centre Programme; working 
with partners to bring forward Connectivity and Sustainable and Active Travel including 
the City Centre Connectivity Study; targeted regeneration projects to help address 
dereliction and reimagination of the high street and working with partners to maximise the 
regeneration and inclusive growth potential of major developments across the city. 
He pointed out that this would be covered within the existing division budget and did not 
represent any impact on the rate. 
 
 During discussion, one Member questioned if the proposal in relation to the 
Disability Accreditation Parking Scheme, in the name of Councillor McMullan, considered 
by the Committee in January, could be considered under the refresh of Car Parking 
Strategy. The Strategic Director advised that the issue would be examined in the future, 
but a timeline could not be confirmed at this stage.   
 
 The Members of the Committee recommended that, in accordance with the 
Council decision of 4th May, the Chief Executive exercise her delegated authority to: 
 

 Approve the draft Committee Plan for 2021-22; 
 

 Note that six monthly progress reports will be brought to Committee 
to oversee progress against commitments in the Committee Plan, 
as agreed at Strategic Policy and Resources Committee in October 
2019;  

 

 Agree to transfer recurring programme budget from within the City 
Regeneration and Development Division into employee budget to 
enable the recruitment of 3 Regeneration Project Officers to deliver 
on key priorities as set out by this Committee and as included within 
the Recovery Framework.  Committee to note that this does not 
represent any addition on the rate; and 

 

 Note that the proposal on Disability Accreditation Parking Scheme 
under Issues Raised in Advance by Members (by Councillor 
Mulholland of Councillor McMullan, January 2021) would be 
examined in the future, and that officers will investigate if it could 
be considered as part of the Car Parking Strategy Review.   

  

Page 241



 
City Growth and Regeneration Committee, 

Wednesday, 9th June, 2021 
 
 
 

 
 

D2073 
 
 

 
Community Planning Update: City Development  
and Job, Skills and Education Boards 
 

The Committee considered the following report: 
 

“1.0 Purpose of Report or Summary of main Issues 
 
1.1 The purpose of the report is to provide Members with an 

update on community planning with a specific focus on the 
work being taken forward by the newly re-configured ‘Jobs, 
Skills and Education’ and ‘City Development’ Delivery Boards. 
 

2.0 Recommendations 
 
2.1 The Members of the Committee are asked to recommend that, 

in accordance with the Council decision of 4th May, the Chief 
Executive exercise her delegated authority to: 

 
(i) Note the on-going work of two of the Belfast Agenda 

Delivery Boards, namely, the Jobs, Skills and 
Education Board and the City Development Board 

(ii) Note the alignment and synergies between the 
Boards and the work of the Committee 

(iii) The potential for the Boards to bring collaborative 
focus to key city priorities and challenges and 
unlock delivery across partners. 

(iv) The role and on-going opportunities for Elected 
Members to input and shape the work being taken 
forward through Community Planning Partnership, 
including the refresh of the Belfast Agenda and 
associated delivery plans, over the coming months 
and years.   

 
3.0 Main report 
 
 Inaugural meeting of newly configured Boards 
 
3.1 Members will recall that in order to ensure that the vision and 

ambitions set out within the Belfast Agenda (community plan 
for the city) translated into action and mobilised city partners 
to support delivery, four cross-sectoral delivery Boards have 
been formed (City Development | Jobs, Skills and Education | 
Living Here | Resilience and Sustainability) under the 
auspices of the Community Planning Partnership. These 
delivery focused Boards have been established to drive 
enhanced collaboration across partners to address key 
challenges and priorities for the city and communities.   

 

Page 242



 
City Growth and Regeneration Committee, 

Wednesday, 9th June, 2021 
 
 
 

 
 

D2074 
 
 

3.2 As reported to Committee in May 2021, partners have agreed 
to reconfigure two of the Boards to align priorities and 
maximise the synergies and impact of their work.  
As highlighted, the focus of the two Boards - City 
Development and Jobs, Skills and Education – clearly aligns 
with the work of this Committee. Accordingly, the intention 
going forward will be to update the Committee on the work of 
the boards alongside specific engagement and input from 
elected Members and Parties through the All-Party 
Community Planning Working Group and Community 
Planning Partnership. Members should note that the newly 
reconfigured Boards met for the first time in April and May 
2021 respectively.  This report provides an update on the 
focus of the Boards and key activity underway.  

 
3.3 Jobs, Skills and Education Update 
 
 The Board considered and confirmed its priorities for the next 

12-24 months, as set out below and as reported to Committee 
in May, and committed to scheduling a specific action 
planning session in early July to develop and secure partner 
commitment to SMART action plan(s). Attached at Appendix 1 
for Members information is a copy of the agreed Programme 
Brief and Terms of Reference for the Board, the presentation 
slide-deck and draft action note from the recent Board 
meeting held on 6 May 2021.  Some specific points to note 
include: 

 

 Skills and Employability – The Employability NI 
Programme was set up in November 2018 within DfC’s 
Work and Wellbeing Division. It was established in 
recognition of the fact that there were several existing 
employability interventions coming to an end between 
2020 and 2022. It is a cross-government initiative (both 
regional and local government level) aimed at co-
designing and co-commissioning a sustainable 
employability offer providing a tailored level of support 
commensurate with need. At a local level DfC have 
constructed Local Inclusive Labour Market 
Partnerships in each of the eleven council areas. In 
Belfast the membership of the Local Inclusive Labour 
Market Partnership (LILMP) includes – Belfast 
Chamber, CBI, VCSE representation, FE Colleges, 
Invest NI, Advice Sector, BHSCT, DfC, DfE & Belfast 
City Council. 

  

Page 243



 
City Growth and Regeneration Committee, 

Wednesday, 9th June, 2021 
 
 
 

 
 

D2075 
 
 

 
The aim of the Partnership is to: 
 
‘help improve employability outcomes and labour 
market conditions locally by working through 
coordinated, collaborative, multi-agency partnerships, 
achieving regional objectives whilst being flexible to 
meet the needs presented by localised conditions and 
helping to connect employers with employees’ 
 
While the Local Inclusive Labour Market Partnership is 
a DfC partnership, governance for the work is through 
the Jobs, Skills & Education Board reporting to the 
Community Planning Partnership. A next action is for 
the Board is to review the Belfast Local Inclusive 
Labour Market Action plan which is currently in 
development. 
 

 Enterprise and Business Growth - Working to bring 
forward an integrated approach to supporting 
businesses, sustaining jobs and creating new 
employment opportunities in the city including arterial 
routes and key economic hubs 

 Educational Underachievement – ensuring the 
recommendations emerging from the Expert Panel 
on Education Underachievement established by 
the Education Minister can be accelerated and 
implemented within Belfast. Also maximising 
opportunities to deliver specific short-term 
interventions and scale up support to those who 
may need it. This includes, but not limited to, 
access to digital devices and helping improve 
digital literacy, working with schools to bring 
forward summer interventions such as summer 
schemes and educational support. 

 Tourism, Culture, Arts, Entertainment & Hospitality – 
Acknowledging the devastating impact upon the 
vitality and functionality of these sectors city partners 
will seek to protect and rebuild during our recovery 
from the Covid-19 Pandemic 

 UNESCO Learning City Network – commitment to 
review the opportunities presented by the city’s 
designation as UNESCO Learning City and seeking to 
align existing activities across partners and identify 
opportunities to collaborate and scale. A further report 
on this work will be brought forward for Committee 
consideration. 

  

Page 244



 
City Growth and Regeneration Committee, 

Wednesday, 9th June, 2021 
 
 
 

 
 

D2076 
 
 

 
3.4 City Development Update 
 
 The Board confirmed that its focus for the next 12-24 months 

would cover four core themes as set out below and have 
committed to an action planning workshop in early July to 
develop and secure partner commitment to SMART action 
plan(s). It is important to note that there has been significant 
work already underway and/or emerging across these themes 
as discussed at the recent Board meeting. Attached at 
Appendix 2 is the programme brief and presentation slidedeck 
from the Board meeting which provides some insight into the 
work underway.  

 
(i) City Regeneration and Investment 
(ii) Housing-Led Regeneration 

(iii) Future City Centre Programme 
(iv) Active Travel and Connectivity 

 
3.5 Also attached at Appendix 2 is a draft note from the Board 

information for Members information (NB. remains draft and 
subject to Board endorsement). Some specific points which 
we would highlight for Members information include:-  

 

 Further development in identifying opportunities to 
unlock public sector land assets to support housing 
development. Agreed, subsequent to the main CPP 
Board, to convene a Housing Implementation Group 
chaired by NIHE with representation from BCC, DfC, 
LPS. 

 Consensus on need to bring forward transportation 
plan for Belfast  

 Continued delivery of DFC Revitalisation Programme 
to support recovery from pandemic 

 Implementation of the DFI Blue and Green 
Infrastructure funding   

 Importance of engaging with developers in support of 
the work of the Board and to ensure inclusive growth. 
This will complement the cross-sectoral representation 
involved included the community and voluntary sector. 

 
 Review of the Belfast Agenda and Action Planning 
 
3.6 Members will be aware that work is about to commence to 

refresh the Belfast Agenda and the associated focus for the 
next 4-years. The diagram below outlines the process and 
timeline for this work.  

 

Page 245



 
City Growth and Regeneration Committee, 

Wednesday, 9th June, 2021 
 
 
 

 
 

D2077 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3.7 As the effects of the Covid-19 pandemic have begun to emerge, 

there is a need to understand how our city economy and 
communities are likely to be impacted by COVID-19, and what 
we need to focus on to rebuild in the coming months and years. 
Clearly, the pandemic is not over and there will need to be 
sustained efforts to protect the safety and health of our 
citizens, while at the same time balancing the need to stabilise 
and rebuild our economy and city. In this context, and as part of 
the review of the Belfast Agenda, there is a need to take stock 
and reassess the focus of Community Planning and the work 
of the Boards over the coming weeks and months. This is not 
to say that the ambitions and commitments set out within the 
Belfast Agenda should not remain at the core of our work. 
However, in order to address challenges that will continue to 
emerge as a result of the pandemic we may need to pivot our 
collective focus and seek to prioritise and accelerate key 
interventions and programmes.  

 
3.8 Role of Elected Members 
 
 Elected Members will be engaged at each stage of the review 

process through the All Party Working Group on Community 
Planning. In addition, it is recommended that all Elected 
Members will have the opportunity to shape the priority 
framework and plans for the new 4 year period through Party 
Group briefings.  In addition, Elected Members will also be 
supported by our Marketing and Communications team who 
will provide ongoing support via a communications toolkit to 
enable them to engage their constituents to make their voices 
heard.   

 

Page 246



 
City Growth and Regeneration Committee, 

Wednesday, 9th June, 2021 
 
 
 

 
 

D2078 
 
 

 The All Party Members Working Group will be a key platform 
for Members to have line-of-sight and input into the work 
being taken forward through Community Planning and the 
respective delivery boards.  Regular update reports will also 
be brought to Committee for consideration.  

  
3.9 Financial & Resource Implications 
 
 Any financial implications arising from this report will be 

covered from existing budgets. The review process will 
involve the participation of all community planning partners, 
who will need to commit their resources to the review process 
and the agreed action plans. 

 
3.10 Equality or Good Relations Implications/Rural Needs 

Assessment 
 
 There are no equality, good relations of rural need 

implications in this report.” 
 
 The Members of the Committee recommended that, in accordance with the 
Council decision of 4th May, the Chief Executive exercise her delegated authority to: 
 

 Note the on-going work of two of the Belfast Agenda Delivery 
Boards, namely, the Jobs, Skills and Education Board and the City 
Development Board; 

 Note the alignment and synergies between the Boards and the 
work of the Committee; 

 Note the potential for the Boards to bring collaborative focus to key 
city priorities and challenges and unlock delivery across partners; 
and 

 Note the role and on-going opportunities for Elected Members to 
input and shape the work being taken forward through Community 
Planning Partnership, including the refresh of the Belfast Agenda 
and associated delivery plans, over the coming months and years.   

 
Issues Raised in Advance by Members 

 
Closure of Donegall Street for Belfast Pride  
(Cllr O'Hara to raise) 
 

Councillor O’Hara outlined that he had been approached by a number of 
LGBTQI+ businesses and organisations that wished to host a Covid safe event for the 
community in 7 weeks, on the first Saturday in August. He explained that there was a 
likely need that the event would request the closure of Donegall Street and they sought 
support from Council to help make this happen and expedite the process.  

 

Page 247



 
City Growth and Regeneration Committee, 

Wednesday, 9th June, 2021 
 
 
 

 
 

D2079 
 
 

The Strategic Director advised that a request or details of the proposed event had 
not yet been received from the Group and the issue could be looked at, once it was 
received, to see what could be done.  
 
 The Members of the Committee recommended that, in accordance with the 
Council decision of 4th May, the Chief Executive exercise her delegated authority to: 
 

 note that officers would examine the proposal to close Donegall 
Street for a Belfast Pride Event once a request/events plan had 
been received from the organisers. 

 
 
 
 
 

Chairperson 

Page 248



           CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S DECISIONS, TAKEN UNDER DELEGATED 
AUTHORITY FOR THE CITY GROWTH AND REGENERATION COMMITTEE 

DATE OF MEETING: 
COMPILATION OF COMMITTEE 

RECOMMENDATIONS SENT TO CX:  
CX’s COMMENTS RECEIVED: 

 

23rd June, 2021 
 
24th June, 2021 
25th June, 2021 
 

FINAL CX DECISION REGISTER PUBLISHED: 25th June, 2021              
 
FINAL DATE FOR CALL-IN (10am): 2nd July, 2021 

 Topic Chief Executive’s Decision Subject 
to call-in 

Presentations 

2a Translink - Update on Low and Zero Emission 
Buses and New Ticketing System. 

 

The Members of the Committee recommended that, in accordance with the 
Council decision of 4th May, the Chief Executive exercise her delegated 
authority to note the information which had been provided and that, where 
relevant, Translink would provide further information on the issues raised. 
 

Yes 

2b Department for Infrastructure - Spring Report 

 

The Members of the Committee recommended that, in accordance with the 
Council decision of 4th May, the Chief Executive exercise her delegated 
authority to note the information which had been provided and that, where 
relevant, DfI Roads would provide further information on the issues raised. 

 

Yes 

Correspondence 

3a Correspondence - DfI The Members of the Committee recommended that, in accordance with the 
Council decision of 4th May, the Chief Executive exercise her delegated 
authority to note the following correspondence which had been received: 

 DfI Response - York Street Interchange Review and Belfast Cycle 
Network; and 

 DfI Roads Eastern Division Reply - Special Committee Queries of 
24th November 

Yes 

Please note that the agenda/reports associated with the decisions listed above can be accessed on the app and on the web, via the following 

link: Agenda for City Growth and Regeneration Committee on Wednesday, 23rd June, 2021, 5.15 pm (belfastcity.gov.uk) 

P
age 249

https://minutes.belfastcity.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?MId=10250&x=1


T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

 
 

D2080 
 
 

City Growth and Regeneration Committee 
 

Wednesday, 23rd June, 2021 
 
 

SPECIAL REMOTE MEETING OF THE MEMBERS OF THE  
CITY GROWTH AND REGENERATION COMMITTEE 

 
 

 Members present: Councillor Murphy (Chairperson);  
  The High Sherriff, Councillor Long;  

  Alderman Kingston; and  
  Councillors Beattie, Brooks, Donnelly, Ferguson,  
  Gormley, Hanvey, Heading, Howard, Hussey,  
  Lyons, Maskey,  McLaughlin, McMullan, O’Hara, 
  Spratt and Whyte.  
 
 In attendance: Mr. A. Reid, Strategic Director of Place and Economy; 
  Mrs. C. Reynolds, Director of City Regeneration  
    and Development; 
  Ms. D. Kelly, Programme Manager; and 
  Ms. E. McGoldrick, Democratic Services Officer. 
 
 

Apologies 
 
 An apology for the inability to attend was reported on behalf of Alderman Dorrian.  
 

Declarations of Interest 
 
 No Declarations of Interest were reported. 
 

Presentations 
 
Translink - Update on Low and Zero Emission Buses 
 
 The Chairperson welcomed representatives of Translink to the meeting: 
Ms. S. Simpson, Business Change Manager, Mr. G. Smyth, Public Affairs and Project 
Communications Officer; Mr. D. Graham, Business Change Manager- Future Ticketing; 
and Mr. W. McGookin, Head of Ticketing Technology.  
 
 Ms. Simpson provided a presentation on Decarbonising Public Transport in 
Northern Ireland. She explained Translink’s Climate Positive Strategy which detailed how 
it wished to achieve this responsibly by: 
 

 Achieving at least 50% reduction in Translink’s current emissions 
by 2030 in line with its Climate Action Pledge; 

 Placing Translink at the forefront in the journey towards zero 
emission public transportation, and for all its buses, trains and 
buildings to be Net Zero by 2040; 

 Metro services in Belfast will achieve this target by 2030; and 

Page 251



 
Special City Growth and Regeneration Committee, 

Wednesday, 23rd June, 2021 
 
 
 

 
 

D2081 
 
 

 Being Climate Positive by 2050, going beyond achieving net zero 
to create an environmental benefit by removing additional carbon 
dioxide from the environment while growing our business. 

 
 She described the ‘Framework To Achieve Climate Positive’ would be undertaken 
via the following priorities: Greener Vehicles (Bus Fleet Strategy, Rail Strategy, 
Supporting Systems); Greener Infrastructure (Energy Strategy and Sustainable 
Infrastructure); and Greener Business (Biodiversity, Circular Economy, Active Travel). 
 
 Ms. Simpson explained the Translink Fleet Strategy plans, with a migration to zero 
emissions fleet by to 2040. She described the Translink Zero Emissions Programme, 
which included how the battery electric vehicle (BEV) and hydrogen fuel cell electric 
vehicle (FCEV) systems would work and illustrated a comparison of the two options.  
 
 She confirmed that the key operational considerations in the allocation of zero-
emission fleet included: 
 

 Capital expenditure and running costs; 

 Infrastructure; 

 Vehicle capability, that is the range; 

 Climate change and air quality concerns; 

 Current demand and service levels, passenger growth and future 
demand targets; 

 Fleet age; 

 Regulatory standards with regard to accessibility, emissions, and 
safety; 

 Reducing traffic congestion; and 

 Complementing other bus projects.  
 
 She highlighted that the first 20 FCEVs would operate on the Antrim Road Corridor 
(Metro 1 services) and suggested that the route would benefit from improved bus speeds 
and journey times. 
 
 She pointed out that 80 BEVs would be used across the entire Belfast Metro 
network where practicable, with the full conversion of the Holywood Road, Castlereagh 
Road and Cregagh Road, with inner city centre locations benefiting from reduced 
emissions. 
 
 She also explained how the Zero-Emission Fleet would deliver economic, 
environmental, customer experience benefits and strategic direction.  
 
 Mr. Graham provided a presentation on the future of Translink’s Ticketing System.  
He described the £42.7 million investment project which would provide a bespoke solution 
via five phases of implementation. He explained the objectives of the system, as follows: 
 

 Connecting people and opportunities through its future ticketing 
system transformation to increase the use of public transport; 

 Updating - Replacing its obsolete ticketing equipment to collect 
fares revenue and record passenger journeys;  and  

Page 252



 
Special City Growth and Regeneration Committee, 

Wednesday, 23rd June, 2021 
 
 
 

 
 

D2082 
 
 

 Facilitating – Making it easier for passengers to buy and use their 
tickets, easier for Translink to sell its tickets. 

 
 He explained the next steps of the project included the replacement of rail 
handheld ticket machines in Summer 2021 (paper tickets and smartcard validations, 
credit and debit card acceptance - contactless and Chip and PIN, barcode validation - buy 
online, and the replacement of Metro on-bus ticket machines in Autumn 2021 - paper 
tickets and smartcard validations, contactless EMV acceptance on-buses which includes 
tap on only, flat fares, contactless bank card payments/mobile payments, and daily fare 
capping. 
 
 He explained the future of account based ticketing to “Turn up, Tap and Travel”, 
the current range of smartcards in use, and provided an example story of how account 
based ticketing would work and save the consumer time and money over a day of 
travelling.  
 
 During Members questions, the representatives explained further the anticipated 
timeline for the new vehicles to be in operation and their impact on emissions and 
renewable energy. It was reported that Translink intended to replace payment equipment 
across all of its fleet to enable card payments across the network and advised that they 
had met with Transport for London representatives to research best practice.  
 

Ms. Simpson drew Members attention to the Climate Positive Strategy Document 
which provided further detail on the electrification of their fleet and their green corporate 
vision. She pointed out that this was available to download on the Translink’s website. 
 
 During further discussion, Ms. Simpson advised that further feedback would be 
provided to the Committee in relation to its renewable energy model.  
 
 Mr. McGookin explained further the contactless payments. He confirmed that 
concessionary fares and discounted products currently available to consumers would 
remain. In relation to the recent issues regarding the mLink application on particular 
Android mobile phones, he advised that they were working with their supplier to resolve 
the problems.  
 
 After discussion, the Chairperson thanked the representatives for their attendance 
and they retired from the meeting. 
 

The Members of the Committee recommended that, in accordance with the 
Council decision of 4th May, the Chief Executive exercise her delegated authority to note 
the information which had been provided and that, where relevant, Translink would 
provide further information on the issues raised. 
 
Department for Infrastructure - Spring Report 
 
 The Chairperson introduced Mr. K. Monaghan, Eastern Divisional Roads 
Manager, Mr. M. McKendry, Belfast North Section Engineer, Mr. D. Williams, Belfast 
South Section Engineer, together with Ms. L. Loughran, Director of Transport Policy and 

Page 253



 
Special City Growth and Regeneration Committee, 

Wednesday, 23rd June, 2021 
 
 
 

 
 

D2083 
 
 

Mr. A. Grieve, Head of the Walking and Cycling Unit in the Department for Infrastructure, 
to the Committee and they were admitted to the meeting. 
 
 Ms. Loughran and Mr. Grieve provided a brief presentation on the Belfast Cycling 
Network and its programme ‘Making Belfast an Active City’ which had been published on 
4th June. She advised that the document followed a public consultation in 2017 and set 
out a blueprint for the development and operation of the cycling infrastructure in the city 
for the next ten years.  
 
 Mr. Grieve highlighted the plans to ensure walking, wheeling, cycling and public 
transport was a priority in the city centre, together with the development of quiet routes 
throughout the city and low traffic and family friendly neighbourhoods.  
 
 He advised that the Department had established a dedicated team to lead in the 
delivery of this Belfast Cycling Network which would have responsibility for setting out a 
delivery plan for the entire network and it was expected that this outline delivery plan 
would be published by Autumn 2021. 
 
 He pointed out that, in relation to the funding of the programme, it was intended 
that the budget would grow, year on year, with the majority of the spend being expedited 
in the later years, after design plans had been confirmed.  
 
 Ms. Loughran outlined the infrastructure plans for 2021/22 and highlighted the key 
partnership work that had taken place with the Council under the Blue and Green 
Infrastructure Fund projects. 
 
 Mr. Monaghan presented the Spring Report. He advised the period from March 
2020 had been unprecedented, caused by the impact of Covid-19, which had resulted in 
DfI contractors being unable to work from mid-March until around mid-May 2020, which 
had a knock on impact on its work programmes for the year. However, despite those 
challenges, the Roads Section had successfully delivered all of its planned programmes 
and services for 2020/21.  
 
 In relation to budgetary allocations, he advised that additional funds were being 
made available for walking and cycling, structural maintenance, safer routes to schools 
and traffic information and control.  
 
 He provided the Committee with updates on the main strategic transportation 
schemes for the city. 
 
 In relation to the York Street Interchange, he advised that delivery of the York 
Street Interchange scheme remained a high priority for the Department and highlighted 
the publication of the Public Inquiry Inspector’s Report and the Departmental Statement 
which had completed the statutory processes for the York Street Interchange with the 
exception of the Vesting of the required lands.  
 
 He reminded the Committee that the procurement process to award a contract for 
the detailed design phase of this scheme was halted in early 2017 as result of a legal 

Page 254



 
Special City Growth and Regeneration Committee, 

Wednesday, 23rd June, 2021 
 
 
 

 
 

D2084 
 
 

action. This legal action concluded in September 2019, with the award of contract being 
set aside. 
 
 He highlighted that the Minister recognised the strategic importance of the York 
Street Interchange. Its inclusion in the New Decade New Approach Agreement was a 
further indication of the significance of the project to economic and societal wellbeing and 
the Minister was determined to see it delivered. However, in order to ensure the scheme 
was future proofed and provided outcomes that best served the needs of those who used 
it and the local community who lived around it, the Minister had announced a short, sharp 
review of the York Street Interchange. 
 
 He confirmed that the Minister had accepted in full the six recommendations from 
that Review which were published on 26th March, 2021. As a result, further work was 
being carried out, particularly around place making and to maximise ambition in terms of 
what could be delivered for communities, connectivity and the wider living places agenda. 
He explained that it was proposed that this work would also take into account the further 
development of Bolder Belfast. The Strategic Advisory Group for the scheme would also 
be reconvened and the communications strategy updated to ensure local communities 
and other stakeholders were kept informed of future developments. The Minister had 
asked the consultants to report in the autumn of 2021 before deciding the next steps. 
 
 He provided Members with an update on the Tillysburn Park and Ride proposal, 
on vacant ground situated between the Holywood Road and Sydenham Bypass. 
He advised that the scheme was now progressing to the initial stages of planning 
application by beginning a Pre-Application Discussion (PAD).  
 
 The Committee was provided with an overview of the DfI Roads Programme of 
Works for 2020/21 for those projects and schemes that had been completed and were in 
progress, which included updates on minor works, maintenance of structures and 
inspections, network maintenance resurfacing and adoptions. He also summarised the 
updates to network traffic and street lighting, collision remedial schemes, traffic schemes 
and pedestrian measures and resident’s parking schemes.  
 
 Mr. Monaghan highlighted the work which had been completed in relation to the 
Safer Routes to School Scheme, which implemented 20mph part time speed limits, and 
advised that 12 had been programmed for the Eastern Area this year, and the scheme 
was anticipated to continue in following years.  
 
 During discussion, the representatives answered a range of questions in 
relation to:   
 

 The pedestrianisation of the City Centre and consultation; 

 Expansion of 20mph zones of Safer Routes to School Scheme; 

 The need for grass cutting; 

 The need for weed spraying, particularly in the City Centre, and 
contractor issues; 

 Future Glider Routes for North and South Belfast and the draft 
proposals; 

 Cycle Network deficit in North and West Belfast; 

Page 255



 
Special City Growth and Regeneration Committee, 

Wednesday, 23rd June, 2021 
 
 
 

 
 

D2085 
 
 

 Longer term funding for cycle network and its funding streams;  

 Cycle lane infrastructure considerations (width of 
roadway/curbs/bollards); 

 Implementation of SUDS policy and its integration into schemes; 

 Data and review of pop-up cycle lanes; 

 York Street Interchange timescales and its funding; 

 Accessibility for those with disabilities and the measurement of 
infrastructure; 

 20mph zones in the city centre and the pilot scheme; and 

 Unapproved tree removal at Adelaide Park and the potential for 
replanting.  

 
 In relation to the pedestrianisation of the City Centre, Mr. Monaghan encouraged 
Members to speak with the Bolder Vision Team to express their views.  
 
 He highlighted that there had been issues with its contractor for removing weeds, 
however an in-house team had been established to tackle high priority areas and if 
Members had any urgent suggestions to contact Mr. Williams or Mr. McKendry.  
 
 Regarding the Cycle Lane Network, Mr. Grieve advised that the programme of 
work would prioritise the city centre initially and address the deficit across the city in the 
longer term and they had been working with the West Belfast Partnership Board and its 
cycling group to take forward routes for development. He highlighted that they were also 
developing routes in the Collin Area. He advised that some areas of the city would be 
easier to develop in the earlier part of the scheme which would underpin further 
development across the city. He welcomed further discussion on the issues with Members 
of the Committee. In response to a question from a Member in relation to feedback on 
Pop-up Cycle Lanes in Sandy Row, he also advised that there would be a review of the 
lanes in Dublin Road and Grosvenor Road to ensure the impact was evaluated and 
considered for future lanes.  
 
 Ms. Loughran advised that, in relation to funding for the scheme, the anticipated 
multi-year budgets, subject to agreement by the Executive, would assist in the funding 
commitment to the expansion of the Cycle Network.  
 
 In terms of the measurement of accessibility infrastructure data, Mr. Monaghan 
suggested that the information of how the highways were used was collated which might 
assist with the Members request.  
 
 The Members drew the attention of the officers from DfI Roads to a number of 
other matters, a number of requests and suggestions which are set out hereunder: 

 

 Request for the Montgomery Road Link preliminary layout plans; 

 Suggestion for Harmony Lane and Bridge pedestrianisation/cycling 
link and resolution of its adoption issues; 

 Lower Shankill Community Association request to change the 
junction at Malvern Lane, close to Denmark Street Community 
Centre, to a mini roundabout; 

Page 256



 
Special City Growth and Regeneration Committee, 

Wednesday, 23rd June, 2021 
 
 
 

 
 

D2086 
 
 

 Junctions at Bilston Road/Crumlin Road – following DfI initial 
response from November, 2020 – suggestion to move traffic island 
further down the road;  

 A request for an update on the status of the dropped curbs at 
Hemsworth Court, Malvern Street;  

 Paisley Park entrance on Circular Road – the potential to remove 
car parking space to improve site lines;  

 Fortwilliam/M2 Slip Road onto Shore Road – request for bushes to 
be cut back; and 

 An update on the residents Car Parking Scheme Pilot in Iveagh 
Drive/Falls Road.  

 
 Mr. Monaghan provided an update on the issues raised and advised that, where 
relevant, action would be taken on these issues if it was deemed necessary after 
inspection, and a response would be provided. 
  
 After discussion, the Chairperson thanked the representatives for their attendance 
and they retired from the meeting. 
 

The Members of the Committee recommended that, in accordance with the 
Council decision of 4th May, the Chief Executive exercise her delegated authority to note 
the information which had been provided and that, where relevant, DfI Roads would 
provide further information on the issues raised. 
 

Correspondence - Department for Infrastructure 
 
 It was reported that the following correspondence had been received in response 
to the queries raised at the last Special Committee with the Department for Infrastructure 
(Roads) in November, together with a recent letter which had been sent on behalf of the 
Committee: 
 

 DfI Roads Eastern Division Reply to Special Committee of 
24th November; and 

 DfI Response - York Street Interchange Review and Belfast Cycle 
Network.  
 

The Members of the Committee recommended that, in accordance with the 
Council decision of 4th May, the Chief Executive exercise her delegated authority to note 
the correspondence which had been received.   
 
 
 
 
 

Chairperson 

Page 257



This page is intentionally left blank



           CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S DECISIONS, TAKEN UNDER DELEGATED 
AUTHORITY FOR THE LICENSING COMMITTEE 

DATE OF MEETING: 
COMPILATION OF COMMITTEE 

RECOMMENDATIONS SENT TO CX:  
DEADLINE FOR CX’s COMMENTS: 

 

16th June, 2021 
 
17th June, 2021 
18th June, 2021 
 

 CX DECISION REGISTER TO BE PUBLISHED: 18th June, 2021             
 
FINAL DATE FOR CALL-IN (10am): 25th June, 2021 

 

 Topic Chief Executive’s Decision Subject 
to call-in 

Delegated Matters 

2 (a) Houses in Multiple Occupation (HMO) 
Licenses Issued Under Delegated 
Authority 

In accordance with the Council decision of 4th May 2021, the Chief Executive 
exercised her delegated authority to note the applications that have been issued under 
the Scheme of Delegation. 
 

No 

Non-Delegated Matters 

3 (a) Application for Licence to operate an 
HMO for Flat 2, 26 Lawrence Street 

In accordance with the Council decision of 4th May 2021, the Chief Executive 
exercised her delegated authority to refuse the application. 

Yes 

3 (b) Application for the Provisional Grant of 
a 7-Day Annual Outdoor 
Entertainments Licence for Folktown, 
Castle Court Shopping Centre. 

In accordance with the Council decision of 4th May 2021, the Chief Executive 
exercised her delegated authority, subject to a satisfactory response from the NIFRS 
and all technical requirements being met, to: 

 approve the application for the provisional grant of the 7-Day Annual Outdoor 
Entertainments Licence.   

 provide delegated authority to the Director of Planning and Building Control, in 
consultation with the City Solicitor, to issue the licence once all necessary 
technical requirements relating to health, safety, welfare and amenity have been 
completed to the satisfaction of the Building Control Service. 

Yes 

3 (c) Application for the Grant of a 7-Day 
Annual Outdoor Entertainments 
Licence for Cargo by Vertigo, 9 Queens 
Road 
 
 

In accordance with the Council decision of 4th May 2021, the Chief Executive 
exercised her delegated authority, subject to no written representation being received, 
a satisfactory response from the PSNI and NIFRS and all technical requirements 
being met, to approve the application for the grant of the 7-Day Annual Outdoor 
Entertainments Licence.   

Yes 

P
age 259

A
genda Item

 6e



3 (d) Application for the Grant of a 14-Day 
Occasional Outdoor Entertainments 
Licence for Holy Cross Boys Pitch, Flax 
Street 

  

In accordance with the Council decision of 4th May 2021, the Chief Executive 
exercised her delegated authority, subject to no representations being received and all 
technical requirements being met, to approve the application for the grant of the 14-
Day Occasional Outdoor Entertainments Licence and for permission to provide 
entertainment to the hours after 11.00 pm as requested.   

Yes 

3 (e) Application to provide outdoor musical 
entertainment beyond 11.00 pm at Falls 
Park 

 

In accordance with the Council decision of 4th May 2021, the Chief Executive 
exercised her delegated authority, subject to a satisfactory response from the PSNI 
and all technical requirements being met, to agree that all 4 of the events should be 
permitted to take place beyond the standard hours of licence to 1.00 am.  

Yes 

3 (f) Consideration of Designating 
Resolutions for Street Trading Sites 

In accordance with the Council decision of 4 May 2021, the Chief Executive exercised 
her delegated authority to: 

(a) Refuse the proposal for a site to trade in hot and cold non-alcoholic beverages, 
confectionery, ice cream and cold food or similar commodities at 565 Upper 
Newtownards Road, on a private forecourt. 

 
(b) Approve the proposal for a site to trade in hot and cold food and non-alcoholic 

beverages at nighttime at the corner of North Road and Upper Newtownards 
Road, on land adjacent to Cyprus Avenue restaurant. 

 
(c) Approve the proposal for a site to trade in hot and cold non-alcoholic beverages, 

confectionery, ice cream and cold food or similar commodities at 65-69 Dublin 
Road, on private forecourt.  
 

(d) Refuse the proposal for a site to trade in hot and cold non-alcoholic beverages, 
confectionery, ice cream and cold food or similar commodities on the Comber 
Greenway at North Road bridge. 

 
Agree that Officers consider a policy framework to assess suitability of trading site 
requests on Greenway sites.   
 

Yes 

Please note that the agenda/reports associated with the decisions listed above can be accessed on the app and on the web, via the following 
link: Agenda for Licensing Committee, 16th June, 2021 at 5pm   

P
age 260

https://minutes.belfastcity.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=168&MId=10275&Ver=4


 

 
 

E863 

 

Licensing Committee 
 

Wednesday, 16th June, 2021 
 

MEETING OF THE MEMBERS OF THE LICENSING COMMITTEE 
HELD REMOTELY VIA MICROSOFT TEAMS 

 
 Members present: Councillor Donnelly (Chairperson); 
  Aldermen Rodgers, and Sandford; and  

Councillors Bradley, Bunting, Howard, Hutchinson,  
M. Kelly, T. Kelly, Magee, Magennis, McAteer,  
McCabe, McCullough, McCusker, McKeown,  
Mulholland and Smyth. 
 

 In attendance:    Ms. N. Largey, Divisional Solicitor; 
Mr. S. Hewitt, Building Control Manager; 

  Mr. K. Bloomfield, HMO Unit Manager;  
  Ms. C. Donnelly, Democratic Services Officer; and 
  Ms. K. McCrum, Democratic Services Officer.  
    

 

Apologies 
 
 An apology for inability to attend was received for Councillor Michael Collins.  
 

Minutes 
 
 The minutes of the meeting of 19th May were taken as read and signed as correct.  
It was reported that those minutes had been adopted by the Council at its meeting on 
1st June, subject to the omission of those matters in respect of which the Council had 
delegated its powers to the Committee. 
 

Declarations of Interest 

Councillor McCusker declared an interest in Item 3d, Application for the Grant of 
a 14-Day Occasional Outdoor Entertainments Licence for Holy Cross Boys Pitch, Flax 
Street, in that he was the applicant and was involved with the Ardoyne Association, the 
group organising the festival.  He left the meeting for the duration of the item. 

Councillor McCabe declared an interest in Item 3e, Application to provide outdoor 
musical entertainment beyond 11.00 p.m. at Falls Park, in that she was an employee of 
the applicant, Féile an Phobail.  She left the meeting for the duration of the item. 
 

Delegated Matters 
 

THE MEMBERS OF THE LICENSING COMMITTEE CONSIDERED THE 
FOLLOWING ITEMS IN ORDER TO MAKE RECOMMENDATIONS TO THE CHIEF 
EXECUTIVE IN PURSUANCE OF THE POWERS DELEGATED TO HER BY THE 

COUNCIL ON 4TH MAY, 2021 
  

Page 261



 
Licensing Committee, 

Wednesday, 16th June, 2021 
 
 
 

 
 

E864 
 

Houses in Multiple Occupation (HMO)  

Licenses Issued Under Delegated Authority 

 The Members of the Committee recommended that, in accordance with the 
Council decision of 4th May 2021, the Chief Executive exercise her delegated authority 
to note the applications that had been issued under the Scheme of Delegation. 
 

Non-Delegated Matters 
 
Application for Licence to operate  
an HMO for Flat 2, 26 Lawrence Street 
 
 The Members of the Committee considered the following application: 
 

“1.0 Purpose of Report or Summary of main Issues 
 
1.1 To consider an application for a Licence permitting the use of 

premises as a House in Multiple Occupation (HMO). 
 

Premises Application 
No. 

Applicant(s) Managing 
Agents 

Flat 2, 26 
Lawrence Street 
Belfast  
BT7 1LF 

8248 Mr Jonathan Murray CPS 
Property  

 
1.2 Members are reminded that licences are issued for a 5-year 

period with standard conditions. Where it is considered 
necessary to do so, the Committee can also impose special 
conditions.   

 
 Background 
 
1.3 The property had the benefit of an HMO license in the name of 

the previous owner.  
 
1.4 The previous licence pursuant to Section 28(2) of the Houses 

in Multiple Occupation Act (Northern Ireland) 2016 ‘2016 Act’ 
ceased to have effect on the 31st May 2019 when the property 
was purchased by Mr Jonathan Murray. If Mr Murray had 
applied for a new HMO licence before purchasing the property 
the existing licence would have been in place until his new 
licence application was determined. However he failed to do 
so. 

  
1.5 On the 12th February 2021 an HMO licence application was 

received from the owners of the accommodation.  As this 
was a new application the HMO Unit consulted with the 
Council’s  

 

Page 262



 
Licensing Committee, 

Wednesday, 16th June, 2021 
 
 
 

 
 

E865 
 

1.6 Planning Service who on the 19 March 2021 confirmed that a 
Certificate of Lawful Use or Development was granted with the 
planning reference LA04/2019/0636/LDE 

  
1.7 The applicant applied for a Temporary Exemption Notice ‘TEN’ 

pursuant to Section 15 of the 2016 Act which was granted on 
23 February 2021.  

 
1.8 Officer propose the refusal of the application on the grounds 

of overprovision and the applicant was advised accordingly. 
As the proposal is to refuse the licence application, such a 
determination falls outside of the scheme of delegation. 

 
2.0 Recommendations 
 
2.1 The Members of the Committee are asked to recommend that, 

in accordance with the Council decision of 4th May 2021, the 
Chief Executive exercise her delegated authority to either: 

 
(i) Grant the application, with or without any special 

conditions; or 
(ii) Refuse the application.  

 
2.2 If the application is refused, the applicant has a right of appeal 

to the County Court. Such an appeal must be lodged within 28 
days of formal notification of the decision. The licence will 
remain in place pending the appeal.   

 
3.0 Main report 
 
 Key Issues 
 
3.1 Pursuant to the 2016 Act, the Council may only grant a licence 

if it is satisfied that:  
 

a) the occupation of the living accommodation as an HMO 
would not constitute a breach of planning control; 

b) the owner, and any managing agent of it, are fit and 
proper persons;  

c) the proposed management arrangements are 
satisfactory; 

d) the granting of the licence will not result in 
overprovision of HMOs in the locality; 

e) the living accommodation is fit for human habitation 
and — 
 

(i) is suitable for occupation as an HMO by the 
number of persons to be specified in the licence, 
or 

(ii) can be made so suitable by including conditions in 
the licence. 

Page 263



 
Licensing Committee, 

Wednesday, 16th June, 2021 
 
 
 

 
 

E866 
 

 
3.2 As this is a new application the HMO Unit consulted with the 

Council’s Planning Service who on the 18 February 2021 
confirmed that a Certificate of Lawful Use or Development was 
granted with the planning reference LA04/2019/0636/LDE 

 
3.3 For the purpose of determining whether or not the granting of 

a licence would result in an overprovision of HMOs in the 
locality of the accommodation, and in order to ensure 
consistency as both a planning and licensing authority the 
locality was defined as being HMO Policy Area ‘HMO 2/22 
Botanic, Holylands and Rugby’ as defined in the document 
‘Houses in Multiple Occupation (HMOs) Subject Plan for 
Belfast City Council Area 2015. 

 
3.4 Legal Services has advised that there is a clear requirement in 

Section 8 of the 2016 Act upon the Council to be satisfied that 
the granting of a licence will not result in overprovision. 

 
3.5 On the date of assessment, 30 April 2021 there were a total of 

1120 licensed HMOs out of 2400 dwelling units in HMO policy 
area ‘HMO 2/22 Botanic, Holylands and Rugby’ which equates 
to 47% of the total dwelling units, which in turn exceeds the 
30% development limit as set out at Policy HMO 1. The 1120 
licensed HMOs have a capacity of 5227 persons.  

 
3.6 The total number of dwelling units in a Policy Area is 

measured by Ordnance Survey’s Pointer database. 
 
3.7 The Council must also consider the need for housing 

accommodation in the locality and the extent to which HMO 
accommodation is required to meet that need. 

 
3.8 In September 2017 The Housing Executive published the 

document ‘Housing Market Analysis Update – Belfast City 
Council Area’ which states ‘HMOs form an important element 
of the PRS, particularly for younger people on low incomes 
and for single people, under the age of 35, affected by the 
limitation of housing benefit to the shared room rate. 
Anecdotal evidence also indicates that this has been a popular 
sector with migrant workers.’ 

 
3.9 At the time of writing this report there were 66 properties 

advertised for let with 3 or more bedrooms on the website 
Property News in BT7 with a capacity of 260 bed spaces. 
It would therefore appear that there is sufficient supply of 
HMO accommodation in the area. 

  
3.10 The fact the use of the property as an HMO is permitted for 

planning purposes is a relevant consideration in determining 

Page 264



 
Licensing Committee, 

Wednesday, 16th June, 2021 
 
 
 

 
 

E867 
 

whether the grant of this licence will result in overprovision. 
There is an argument that it may not do so as the premises are 
already being used as an HMO.  

 
3.11 However it should be borne in mind that planning permission 

was granted on the basis that the use had been established 
for 5 or more years and was therefore immune to enforcement. 
No assessment of overprovision was made at that time.  Given 
the level of licensed HMO properties in this locality as set out 
above it would be highly unlikely that a planning application 
for a new HMO in the area would be successful as the 
thresholds in the 2015 Plan have been significantly exceeded. 

 
3.12 When considering the fitness of an applicant the Council must 

have regard to any offences concerning fraud/ dishonesty, 
violence, drugs, human trafficking, firearms, sexual offences, 
unlawful discrimination in, or in connection with, the carrying 
on of any business; or any provision of the law relating to 
housing or of landlord and tenant law. It also permits the 
Council to take into account any other matter which the 
council considers to be relevant. 

 
3.13 The NIHMO Unit has consulted with the following units within 

the Council’s City and Neighbourhood Services Department – 
 

(a) Environmental Protection Unit (‘EPU’) - who have 
confirmed that in relation to night-time noise there has 
been no relevant enforcement action required in 
respect of the HMO in the last 5 years, 

(b) Environmental Protection Unit (‘EPU’) - who have 
confirmed that in relation to day-time noise there has 
been no relevant enforcement action required in 
respect of the HMO in the last 5 years,   

(c) Public Health and Housing Unit (‘PHHU’) - who have 
confirmed that in relation to rubbish 
accumulation/filthy premises, there has been no 
relevant enforcement action required in respect of the 
HMO in the last 5 years,   

(d) Cleansing Enforcement (‘CE’) - who have confirmed 
that in relation to litter and waste, there has been no 
relevant enforcement action required in respect of the 
HMO in the last 5 years,   

 
 Fitness 
 
3.14 The applicants and managing agent have confirmed that they 

have not been convicted of any relevant offences as set out at 
paragraph 3.4 of this report.  

 

Page 265



 
Licensing Committee, 

Wednesday, 16th June, 2021 
 
 
 

 
 

E868 
 

3.15 The applicant or managing agent have not been convicted of 
any HMO related offences by the Council. The EPU, PHHU and 
CE, solely in respect of their statutory functions, have 
confirmed that there are no relevant, previous convictions in 
respect of the applicant, managing agent or occupants. Due 
to data protection issues which have recently arisen, PSNI 
have not been accepting or responding to notification of these 
applications. Officers are continuing to engage with PSNI to 
find a resolution to this issue. 

 
3.16 Officers are not aware of any other issue relevant to the 

Applicant’s fitness.  
 
 Attendance 
 
3.17 The applicant and/or their representatives will be available to 

discuss any matters relating to the licence application should 
they arise during your meeting.  

 
 Suitability of the premises 
 
3.18 An inspection of the premises was carried out by Officers from 

the Service on 7 April 2021 at which time it was established 
that the property meets the physical standards for an HMO. 

   
 Notice of proposed decision 
 
3.19 On the 21 May 2021, pursuant to Paragraph 9 of Schedule 2 of 

the Houses in Multiple Occupation Act (Northern Ireland) 2016, 
Officers issued a notice of proposed decision to the applicant 
setting out the terms of the proposed licence. 

 
3.20 The notice of proposed decision stated that the council 

proposed to refuse the licence.  
 
3.21 A statement of reasons for the proposal was included in the 

notice of proposed decision.  
 
 The statement of reasons outlined the following as the 

Council’s basis for refusal:- 
 
 Pursuant to section 12 of the Houses in Multiple Occupation 

Act (Northern Ireland) 2016 ‘2016 Act’ the Council is satisfied 
that the granting of the HMO licence will result in 
overprovision of HMO accommodation in the locality of the 
accommodation for the purpose of section 8(2)(d) of the 2016 
Act.  

 
 For the purpose of section 12(2) of the Act the Council has 

determined the locality as being HMO Policy Area ‘HMO 2/22 

Page 266



 
Licensing Committee, 

Wednesday, 16th June, 2021 
 
 
 

 
 

E869 
 

Botanic, Holylands and Rugby’ as defined in the document 
‘Houses in Multiple Occupation (HMOs) Subject Plan for 
Belfast City Council Area 2015 (the ‘2015 Plan’) 

 
 In making this decision the Council has had regard to – 
 

(a) the number and capacity of licensed HMOs in the 
locality 

 
(b) the need for housing accommodation in the locality 

and the extent to which HMO accommodation is 
required to meet that need 

 
 To inform the Council in its consideration of the above 

provisions, the Council has taken account of the 2015 Plan 
and in particular, Policy HMO 1 and Policy HMO 2.    

 
 On the date of assessment, 30 April 2021 there were a total of 

1120 licensed HMOs in HMO policy area ‘HMO 2/22 Botanic, 
Holylands and Rugby’ which equates to 47% of the total 
dwelling units, which in turn exceeds the 30% development 
limit as set out at Policy HMO 1.  

 
 The 1120 licensed HMOs have a capacity of 5227 persons. The 

total number of dwelling units in a Policy Area is measured by 
Ordnance Survey’s Pointer database.  

 
 Consequently, Officers believe that the granting of the HMO 

licence will result in overprovision of HMO accommodation in 
the locality of the accommodation for the purpose of section 
8(2)(d) of the 2016 Act. 

 
 Financial and Resource Implications 
 
3.22 None. The cost of assessing the application and officer 

inspections are provided for within existing budgets. 
 
 Equality and Good Relations Implications 
 
3.23 There are no equality or good relations issues associated with 

this report.” 
 
 The Chairperson then welcomed Mr. Hagan, agent, to the meeting.  Mr. Hagan 
thanked the Members of the Committee for allowing him to speak in support of the 
application, and raised the following points in that regard: 
 

- Of the approximately 220 HMOs managed by CPS in Belfast, only 1 was 
currently available for rent in the area, demonstrating a lack of supply; 
 

Page 267



 
Licensing Committee, 

Wednesday, 16th June, 2021 
 
 
 

 
 

E870 
 

- As stated within the paper, the HMO licence application was received on 
the 12th February 2021, and so, pursuant to Schedule 2, Paragraph 12 of 
the Houses in Multiple Occupation Act (Northern Ireland) 2016, ‘the council 
must decide whether to grant or refuse an application for an HMO licence 
before the end of the period of 3 months beginning with the date on which 
the council received it. If the council does not determine an application for 
an HMO licence before the end of the period mentioned in sub-paragraph 
(1) (or that period as extended), the applicant is to be treated as having 
been granted a licence in the terms applied for.’  As the Council neither 
determined the application within this time, nor applied for an extension, as 
of the 12th May, 2021, the applicant was entitled to be treated as having 
been granted the licence; 

 
- The basis of the proposed refusal, that granting of the HMO licence would 

result in overprovision of HMO accommodation in the locality, failed to take 
into consideration that the property first operated as an HMO before 2000, 
and up until 2019 continued to do so without any issue.  In addition, the 
property was recorded in the 2015 subject plan and therefore was included 
within the number of licensed HMOs in the policy area, “HMO 2/22 Botanic, 
Holylands and Rugby”.  As such, granting this licence could not be 
considered an increase in the number of existing HMOs.  Also, section 
8(2)(d) of the 2016 Act was not intended to have any effect in areas where 
overprovision already existed, and where the property had been operating 
as an HMO previously;   

 
- Whilst the existing licence ceased to have effect when the property was 

sold on 31st May, 2019, the purchaser was not advised by his solicitor that 
an application was required at this time as the property had an existing 
HMO registration that did not expire until July, 2021.  He added that a 
barrister had been instructed to further pursue this matter; 
 

- The Council agreed, in January, 2021, that all new applications received 
up to, and including, 1st March 2021, where the premises had 
previously operated as an HMO and had the benefit of planning permission 
and/or a certificate of lawful use or development (CLUD), would not be 
considered to result in overprovision.  The application in this case was 
submitted prior to 1st March, 2021, and was therefore eligible for 
consideration under this policy.   

 
 On the basis of these arguments, Mr. Hagan submitted that the proposed refusal 
was flawed, and requested that the application for a Licence permitting the use of Flat 2, 
26 Lawrence Street as a House in Multiple Occupation (HMO) should be granted.  He 
added that if the licence was refused, the applicant would appeal the decision to the 
County Court.   
 
 In response to queries from a number of the Members, the HMO Unit Manager 
clarified that the application in question was deemed to be a new application, rather than 
a renewal, as the previous HMO licence ceased to have effect when the property was 
purchased by the current owner and, for that reason, the Council was obliged to have 
regard to overprovision.  He also confirmed that the 3-month decision period referred to 

Page 268



 
Licensing Committee, 

Wednesday, 16th June, 2021 
 
 
 

 
 

E871 
 

by the agent came into effect when the application was deemed valid, meaning that all 
relevant documentation had been received, which in this case, was 16th April, 2021.   
 
 The Divisional Solicitor advised the Members of the Committee that everything 
they had heard were material considerations in reaching their decision. She also advised 
that, prior to making a decision, it was important to refer to the legislation which required 
that, when looking at the issue of provision, it was necessary to consider both the number 
of HMOs in an area, as well as need, therefore providing a two part test.  She also added 
that the Council’s decision of 20th January, 2021, ‘that all new applications due to expire 
1st March 2021, where the premises have previously operated as a HMO and have the 
benefit of planning permission and/or a certificate of lawful use or development (CLUD), 
would not be considered to result in overprovision.’ related to a limited number of renewal 
applications, and that the application in question was deemed to be a new application.    
 
 Having taken into account the information presented, the Members of the 
Committee recommended that, in accordance with the Council decision of 4th May 2021, 
the Chief Executive exercise her delegated authority to refuse the application. 
 

Entertainments Licences 
 

The Building Control Manager advised the Members that, given the current 
restrictions under the Health Protection (Coronavirus, Restrictions) Regulations, there 
remained significant uncertainty as to when live outdoor music events would be permitted 
and, if they were, whether mitigation measures would  be such that they would render the 
provision of the event unviable.  As a result, event organisers were reluctant to make a 
financial commitment for application costs or preparing event management information 
that would normally be provided to the Service prior to a report being brought to the 
Committee.   
 

He explained that, for those reasons, the following applications were being 
presented to Members for their consideration at this time in order to allow businesses to 
react to the changing circumstances, should restrictions be relaxed in the weeks ahead.   
 
Application for the Provisional Grant  
of a 7-Day Annual Outdoor Entertainments  
Licence for Folktown, Castle Court  
Shopping Centre. 
 
 The Building Control Manager explained that a provisional entertainments licence 
could be applied for and granted for premises which are to be, or are in the course of 
being, constructed, extended or altered if the Council was satisfied that the premises 
would, if completed in accordance with plans deposited, be such that it would grant the 
licence, subject to a Condition that it would be of no effect until confirmed by the Council. 
 
 The Members were advised that the applicant proposed to provide entertainment 
within a new outdoor area in the rear service yard of Castle Court Shopping Centre, which 
would have direct access from Bank Square, from Monday to Saturday between 12.00pm 
and 1.00am the following morning, and on Sundays from 12.30pm to midnight.   
 

Page 269



 
Licensing Committee, 

Wednesday, 16th June, 2021 
 
 
 

 
 

E872 
 

The Building Control Manager advised that no objections had been received to 
the public notice for the application, nor from the PSNI.  He also confirmed that a response 
from the NIFRS was yet to be received, however, there was time to address any technical 
issues with them prior to the licence being issued, should they be forthcoming.   
 
 He added that the applicant had produced proposals to mitigate the spread of 
Covid-19 which had in turn been provided to the Council’s Health and Safety Team for 
consideration, and that an acoustic report had been provided to the Environmental 
Protection Unit for evaluation.   
 
 In response to a query regarding the impact on two nearby churches, the 
applicant, Mr. Langsford, confirmed that consultation had taken place with the churches, 
one of which had indicated that the building had been sold.  He also confirmed that 
ongoing engagement would ensure that when services were running, the venue would 
not have entertainment available.  The Building Control Manager added that the acoustic 
report had made mention of a number of noise sensitive buildings in the area, and so staff 
would work with the applicant to ensure that sufficient engagement would take place. 
 
 Taking into account the information presented, the Members of the Committee 
recommended that, in accordance with the Council decision of 4th May 2021, the Chief 
Executive exercise her delegated authority, subject to a satisfactory response from the 
NIFRS and all technical requirements being met, to: 
 

 approve the application for the provisional grant of the 7-Day Annual 
Outdoor Entertainments Licence.   

 provide delegated authority to the Director of Planning and Building 
Control, in consultation with the City Solicitor, to issue the licence once 
all necessary technical requirements relating to health, safety, welfare 
and amenity had been completed to the satisfaction of the Building 
Control Service. 

 
Application for the Grant of a 7-Day  
Annual Outdoor Entertainments Licence  
for Cargo by Vertigo, 9 Queens Road 
 

Members of the Committee were asked to consider an application to provide 
outdoor entertainment to the side of Spud Murphy’s building at 9 Queens Road from 
Monday to Sunday between 11.30am and 11.00pm.   

 
The Building Control Manager confirmed that a public notice of the application 

had been placed, and, whilst no written representation had been lodged to date, the 28-
day statutory period had not yet expired.  He added that the Harbour Police had no 
objections to the application, however, a response from the PSNI was still to be received, 
as was an assessment from the NIFRS pending fire safety information being provided to 
them.  He confirmed that an acoustic report and proposals to mitigate the spread of Covid-
19 had been requested from the applicant.   

 
 Taking into account the information presented, the Members of the Committee 
recommended that, in accordance with the Council decision of 4th May 2021, the Chief 
Executive exercise her delegated authority, subject to no written representations being 

Page 270



 
Licensing Committee, 

Wednesday, 16th June, 2021 
 
 
 

 
 

E873 
 

received, a satisfactory response from the PSNI and NIFRS, and all technical 
requirements being met, to approve the application for the grant of the 7-Day Annual 
Outdoor Entertainments Licence.   
 
Application for the Grant of a 14-Day  
Occasional Outdoor Entertainments Licence  
for Holy Cross Boys Pitch, Flax Street 
 

The Members of the Committee were asked to consider an application for the 
grant of a 14-Day Occasional Outdoor Entertainments Licence and for permission to 
provide entertainment after 11.00 pm in respect of Holy Cross Boys Pitch on Friday, 20th  
August and Saturday, 21st August until 12 midnight, as part of a festival running from 
Tuesday, 10th August to Saturday, 21st August, 2021.   

 
 The Building Control Manager confirmed that, as this was the only Committee that 
could consider the matter prior to the event taking place, the application was being 
brought in advance of a number of technical matters being resolved.   
 
 He confirmed that a public notice had not yet been placed in the press, however, 
both the PSNI and NIFRS had been consulted and neither had submitted any objections, 
and both would be consulted again closer to the time of the event.   
 
 The Members were advised that Building Control staff would engage with the 
group in the lead up to the event to ensure that all documentation and technical 
information was in place, and an acoustic report would be requested to ensure that noise 
would not cause unreasonable disturbance to premises in the area.   It was also confirmed 
that the group would be required to produce a residents notification letter.   
 
 Taking into account the information presented, the Members of the Committee 
recommended that, in accordance with the Council decision of 4th May 2021, the Chief 
Executive exercise her delegated authority, subject to no representations being received 
and all technical requirements being met, to approve the application for the grant of the 
14-Day Occasional Outdoor Entertainments Licence and for permission to provide 
entertainment to the hours after 11.00 p.m. as requested.   
 
Application to provide outdoor musical 
entertainment beyond 11.00 pm at Falls Park 
 

The Members of the Committee were asked to consider a request from the 
organisers of Féile an Phobail to hold a festival event within Falls Park, running from 
Friday, 6th August to Sunday, 15th August, 2021, and to permit the entertainment which 
was planned to run beyond 11pm on up to four occasions reported to be 8th August, 13th 
August, 14th August and 15th August, up to 1.00 a.m.    
 
 The Building Control Manager confirmed that the organisers had not finalised the 
artists taking part in this year’s event, and that consultation with the PSNI had also not 
yet taken place.  He added that, should an easing of coronavirus restrictions permit 
events of this nature to take place, and once a revised event management plan was 
submitted, the Service would engage with the PSNI regarding the event.   

Page 271



 
Licensing Committee, 

Wednesday, 16th June, 2021 
 
 
 

 
 

E874 
 

 He also confirmed that an acoustic report would be requested and consulted upon 
with the Environmental Protection Unit.   
 
 The Members were made aware of 12 noise complaints that were received 
regarding the festival in 2019, the majority of which related to the volume of music and 
the finishing time of the dance event on 8th August.  The Building Control Manager 
confirmed that these complaints were brought to the attention of the event organisers at 
the time, and would be discussed further as part of their acoustic report in preparation for 
this year’s festival. He added that the organisers would be required to produce a suitable 
resident’s notification letter for distribution in the local area.   
 
 Taking into account the information presented, the Members of the Committee 
recommended that, in accordance with the Council decision of 4th May 2021, the Chief 
Executive exercise her delegated authority, subject to a satisfactory response from the 
PSNI and all technical requirements being met, to agree that all four of the events should 
be permitted to take place beyond the standard hours of licence to 1.00 a.m.  
 
Consideration of Designating 
Resolutions for Street Trading Sites 
 
 The Building Control Manger reminded the Committee that, at its meeting on 
18th November, 2020, approval had been granted to initiate the statutory process for the 
designation of seven new street trading sites across the City, which had been identified 
as a result of internal application or expressions of interest received from individuals 
wishing to trade from new sites.   
 
 He reported that three of those sites were presented in March, 2021, and the 
remaining four sites were now before the Committee for consideration.  He advised the 
Members that, in making any designating resolution, they may record any reasonable 
conditions that should be applied to any subsequent Street Trading Licence on any of the 
sites.  
 
 He advised that the designation process had involved seeking comments from 
interested parties and relevant statutory bodies, through public advertisement and 
consultation and that officers had consulted with the PSNI, Department for Infrastructure 
(Roads), Belfast City Centre Management Company for city centre sites, and local 
residents and businesses.   
 
 The Building Control Manager outlined the proposals, and highlighted comments 
which had been received from interested parties, for the following four sites: 
 

(a) 565 Upper Newtownards Road, on a private forecourt. 
(b) corner of North Road and Upper Newtownards Road, on land 

adjacent to Cyprus Avenue restaurant. 
(c) 65-69 Dublin Road, on private forecourt. 
(d) Comber Greenway at North Road bridge. 

 
 The Members of the Committee considered each proposal in turn and 
recommended that, in accordance with the Council decision of 4th May 2021, the Chief 
Executive exercise her delegated authority to: 

Page 272



 
Licensing Committee, 

Wednesday, 16th June, 2021 
 
 
 

 
 

E875 
 

 
(a) Refuse the proposal for a site to trade in hot and cold non-alcoholic 

beverages, confectionery, ice cream and cold food or similar commodities 
at 565 Upper Newtownards Road, on a private forecourt, on the basis of 
the PSNI and residents’ concerns regarding parking and access issues.  

 
(b) Approve the proposal for a site to trade in hot and cold food and non-

alcoholic beverages at night-time at the corner of North Road and Upper 
Newtownards Road, on land adjacent to Cyprus Avenue restaurant. 

 
(c) Approve the proposal for a site to trade in hot and cold non-alcoholic 

beverages, confectionery, ice cream and cold food or similar commodities 
at 65-69 Dublin Road, on private forecourt.  

 
(d) Refuse the proposal for a site to trade in hot and cold non-alcoholic 

beverages, confectionery, ice cream and cold food or similar commodities 
on the Comber Greenway at North Road bridge, due to a number of 
concerns, including the noise associated with the use of a generator and 
the related impact on the environment/wildlife, and trading sites detracting 
from the purpose of the greenway which should be a quiet space, free 
from noise and litter. 

 
Proposal 

 
Moved by Councillor Smyth, 
Seconded by Councillor M. Kelly, 

 
 That officers consider a policy framework to assess the suitability of 
street trading designation requests on Greenway sites.   

 
 
 
 
 

Chairperson 

Page 273



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S DECISIONS, TAKEN UNDER DELEGATED AUTHORITY FOR 
THE PLANNING COMMITTEE 

DATE OF MEETING: 
COMPILATION OF COMMITTEE 
RECOMMENDATIONS SENT TO CX:  
DEADLINE FOR CX’s COMMENTS: 
 

15th June, 2021 
 
16th June, 2021 
17th June, 2021 
 

 CX DECISION REGISTER TO BE PUBLISHED: 
17th June, 2021              
 
FINAL DATE FOR CALL-IN (10am): 24th June, 
2021 

Item no. Topic Chief Executive’s decision Subject to call in 

2 Committee Site Visit The Members noted that a site visit had been undertaken to the 
following site, on 3rd June:  
 

 LA04/2020/1363/F - 21 apartments and 3 retail units with 
ancillary lobby space, refuse storage, bicycle storage and 
amenity space between 173 Newtownards Road and 1-5 
Templemore Avenue 

 

No 

3 Planning Appeals Notified In accordance with the Council decision of 4th May, the Chief 
Executive exercised her delegated authority to:  
 

 note the receipt of correspondence in respect of a 
number of planning appeals which had been submitted to 
the Planning Appeals Commission, together with the 
outcomes of a range of hearings which had been 
considered by the Commission. 

 

Yes 

4 Planning Decisions Issued In accordance with the Council decision of 4th May, the Chief 
Executive exercised her delegated authority to:  
 

 note a list of decisions which had been taken under the 
delegated authority of the Strategic Director of Place and 
Economy, together with all other planning decisions 
which had been issued by the Planning Department 
between 10th May and 7th June, 2021. 

Yes 

P
age 275

A
genda Item

 6f



 

5 Vesting Orders In accordance with the Council decision of 4th May, the Chief 
Executive exercised her delegated authority to note that: 
 

 a Vesting Order in respect of which notice of application 
had been served on the Council by the Northern Ireland 
Housing Executive on 13th of March 2020, had, on 24th 
of May 2021, become operative at Lands at 167 to 175 
Broadway; and 

 the NIHE had notified the Council that it had applied to 
the Department for Communities for an order vesting 
lands at Alloa Street.  

 

Yes 

6 - Planning Applications (Please note that these are not subject 

to Call-in) 

 

a (Reconsidered item) LA04/2020/2200/F & 
LA04/2020/2201/DCA - Demolition of Nos. 27 to 37 
Linenhall Street and Nos. 8-10 Clarence Street and 
erection of seven storey office building at 8 -10 
Clarence Street 27-37 Linenhall Street and existing car 
park at the corner of Linenhall Street and Clarence 
Street 
 

In accordance with the Council decision of 4th May 2021, the 
Chief Executive exercised her delegated authority to refuse the 
application. 

No 

b (Reconsidered item) LA04/2020/1363/F - 21 
apartments and 3 retail units with ancillary lobby space, 
refuse storage, bicycle storage and amenity space 
between 173 Newtownards Road and 1-5 Templemore 
Avenue 
 

Following legal advice, the Chief Executive did not, at this stage, 
exercise her delegated authority to accept the recommendation. 

No 

c (Reconsidered Item) LA04/2020/1803/F - Change of 
use to House of Multiple Occupancy at 60 Springfield 
Road 
 

In accordance with the Council decision of 4th May 2021, the 
Chief Executive exercised her delegated authority to approve 
the application and to finalise the conditions. 
 

No 

d LA04/2020/1211/F - Mixed use regeneration scheme 
involving demolition of vacant buildings Hughes 
Christensen site; erection of 8No. Class B2 (light 
industrial) and Class B4 (storage/distribution) unit; 
extension to and subdivision of existing supermarket 
building to form 4. Class B4 units (existing retail use to 

In accordance with the Council decision of 4th May 2021, the 
Chief Executive exercised her delegated authority to approve 
the application and to finalise the conditions and the Section 76 
Agreement. 

No 

P
age 276



be discontinued); erection of replacement  
supermarket; provision of new accesses, road 
improvements; car parking, landscaping and associated 
site works. (Lynas Food Outlet building to be retained) 
at No 46 Montgomery Road (former  
Hughes Christensen site) and between nos 44 and 46 
Montgomery Road and no 41 Montgomery Road (Lidl) 
 

e LA04/2020/2071/F - Demolition of existing buildings 
and structures; and construction of 57 no. apartments 
with associated landscaping and car parking at 41-49 
Tate's Avenue Belfast 
 

In accordance with the Council decision of 4th May 2021, the 
Chief Executive exercised her delegated authority to approve 
the application and to finalise the conditions and the Section 76 
Agreement. 

No 

f LA04/2020/1158/F - Demolition of existing building and 
erection of 65 No Apartments including 20% social 
housing at 1-5 Redcar Street 
 

This item was withdrawn from the agenda. No 

g LA04/2020/1593/F - Refurbishment works to existing 
park, comprising: revised accesses from Jamaica Road 
and Old Park Road; extension of existing 3G pitch; 
refurbishment of existing flood lighting; a replacement 
405m2 GFA changing pavilion incorporating community 
facilities and a shelter for up to 101 spectators; new 
MUGA; new multi-use community event space; new 
street furniture, outdoor gym equipment and park 
lighting; new inclusive/multi-age playground; new 2.4m 
boundary fencing; rationalisation of existing path 
network including resurfacing; new SUDS pond/wetland 
wildlife area; landscape interventions including planting, 
woodland management, entrance improvements and all 
associated works at Marrowbone Millennium Park, 
Oldpark Road 

In accordance with the Council decision of 4th May 2021, the 

Chief Executive exercised her delegated authority to approve the 

application and to finalise the conditions. 

No 

h LA04/2020/0847/F & LA04/2020/1208/DCA - Partial  
demolition and redevelopment of existing buildings to 
provide 16 apartments, communal bin store and 
landscaped communal garden at 25-29 University Road 
 

In accordance with the Council decision of 4th May 2021, the 
Chief Executive exercised her delegated authority to defer 
consideration of the application to enable a site visit to be 
undertaken in order to allow the Members to acquaint 
themselves with the location and the proposals at first hand, 
particularly in relation to the area of Townscape Character and 
the Conservation area, the amenity space and the fire access. 

No 

P
age 277



 

i LA04/2020/0991/F - 3m high retaining wall and 
associated works at Colin Glen Forest Park 163 
Stewartstown Road on lands north of Colin Glen 
Community Allotments opposite nos 27-29 Colinglen 
Road and accessed off Colinglen Road (Retrospective) 

In accordance with the Council decision of 4th May 2021, the 
Chief Executive exercised her delegated authority to approve 
the application and to finalise the conditions. 

No 

j LA04/2020/2637/F - Single storey, stand-alone multi-
purpose building and associated site works at Cregagh 
Primary School, Mount Merrion Drive 
 

In accordance with the Council decision of 4th May 2021, the 
Chief Executive exercised her delegated authority to approve 
the application and to finalise the conditions. 
 

No 

k LA04/2021/0696/F – Development of 'Active Travel 
Hub', which includes the installation of a 9m x 2.5m 
shipping container, with modifications to accommodate 
an internal bike store, and a small office on hard 
standing adjacent to the car park and entrance to 
Whiterock Leisure Centre 
 

In accordance with the Council decision of 4th May 2021, the 
Chief Executive exercised her delegated authority to approve 
the application and to finalise the conditions. 

No 

l LA04/2021/0718/A - Mounted sign on face of a shipping 
container at Whiterock Leisure Centre 
 

In accordance with the Council decision of 4th May 2021, the 
Chief Executive exercised her delegated authority to approve 
the application and to finalise the conditions. 
 

No 

m (BCC app) LA04/2021/0735/F - Extension of public 
pavement area to create additional space for social 
distancing, to include sheltered structures, seating, 
planters and elements of incidental play on 8-83 
Adelaide Street 
 

In accordance with the Council decision of 4th May 2021, the 
Chief Executive exercised her delegated authority to approve 
the application and to finalise the conditions, subject to no 
objection from DFI Roads. 

No 

n (BCC app) LA04/2021/0544/F - Installation of 6 
projector units to create an interactive lighting 
installation along the hoarding of Brunswick Street on 5-
11 Brunswick Street (Temporary - 2 years) 
 

In accordance with the Council decision of 4th May 2021, the 
Chief Executive exercises her delegated authority to approve the 
application and to finalise the conditions. 

No 

o (BCC app) LA04/2021/0394/F - Floodlights (10m high) 
and ancillary equipment. Installation of scoreboard & 
water sprinkler  
system, replacement paths & fittings around bowling 
green at Balmoral Bowling Club 
 

In accordance with the Council decision of 4th May 2021, the 
Chief Executive exercised her delegated authority to approve 
the application and to finalise the conditions. 
 

No 

P
age 278



7 Miscellaneous  

7a Planning Performance Report 2020 - 21 and 
Improvement Plan 
 

In accordance with the Council decision of 4th May 2021, the 
Chief Executive exercised her delegated authority:  
 

 to note the reports; and  

 that a report would be submitted to a future meeting in 
respect of the change of process to planning 
enforcement in light of GDPR. 

 

Yes 

        Restricted Items  

8 a Restricted) Appointment of Director of Planning and 
Building Control 

In accordance with the Council decision of 4th May 2021, the 
Chief Executive exercised her delegated authority to note the 
appointment of Kate Bentley to the post of Director of Planning 
and Building Control. 
 

Yes 

 8 b (Restricted) Request for a Special Meeting In accordance with the Council decision of 4th May 2021, the 
Chief Executive exercised her delegated authority to agree to 
hold a remote Special Meeting on Thursday, 24 June, at 
1.00pm, with a pre-briefing at 12.30pm, for the purpose of 
considering the Chancery House application 
(LA04/2019/2653/F). 
 

Yes 

7 b Casement Park - Section 76 Consultation In accordance with the Council decision of 4th May 2021, the 
Chief Executive exercised her delegated authority to defer 
consideration of the item and to consider it at the Special 
Remote Meeting of the Members of the Committee, taking place 
on Thursday 24th June at 1pm; and that, in the meantime, a 
letter will be sent the Department for Infrastructure, urging them 
to share the contents of the Section 76 Agreement with the 
Mooreland and Owenvarragh Residents Association in order to 
help facilitate the consultation process. 
 

Yes 

Link for the agenda is here: https://minutes.belfastcity.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CId=167&Year=0 

 

P
age 279

https://minutes.belfastcity.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CId=167&Year=0


T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

 
 

F1234 
 
 

Planning Committee  
 

Tuesday, 15th June, 2021 
  
 

MEETING OF THE MEMBERS OF THE PLANNING COMMITTEE 
HELD REMOTELY VIA MICROSOFT TEAMS 

 
 

Members present: Councillor Carson (Chairperson); 
Councillors Brooks, Matt Collins,  
Garrett, Groogan, Hanvey, Hussey, 
Hutchinson, Maskey, McCullough, McMullan, 
Murphy and O’Hara. 
 

In attendance:  Mr. A. Reid, Strategic Director of Place and  
   Economy; 
Mr. E. Baker, Planning Manager  

       (Development Management); 
Ms. N. Largey, Divisional Solicitor; 
Ms. C. Donnelly, Democratic Services Officer; and 
Mrs. L. McLornan, Democratic Services Officer.  

 
 

Apologies 
 

 An apology for inability to attend was reported from Councillor Whyte. 
 

Minutes 
 
 The minutes of the meetings of 18th and 20th May were taken as read and signed 
as correct.  It was reported that those minutes had been adopted by the Council at its 
meeting on 1st June, subject to the omission of those matters in respect of which the 
Council had delegated its powers to the Committee. 
 

Declarations of Interest 
 
 Councillor Murphy declared an interest in Item 6g, namely LA04/2020/1593/F - 
Refurbishment works to Marrowbone Park, in that he had been involved with the project 
at different stages and had spoken with officers about the design of the scheme.  He left 
the meeting for the duration of the item and did not participate in the vote. 
 

Committee Site Visit 
 

The Members noted that a site visit had been undertaken to the following site, on 
3rd June:  
 

 LA04/2020/1363/F - 21 apartments and 3 retail units with ancillary lobby 
space, refuse storage, bicycle storage and amenity space between 173 
Newtownards Road and 1-5 Templemore Avenue. 

 
Planning Appeals Notified 

Page 281



 
Meeting of Planning Committee, 

Tuesday, 15th June, 2021 
 
 
 

 
 

F1235 
 
 

 
 The Members noted the receipt of correspondence in respect of a number of 
planning appeals which had been submitted to the Planning Appeals Commission, 
together with the outcomes of a range of hearings which had been considered by the 
Commission. 
 

Planning Decisions Issued 
 

 The Members noted a list of decisions which had been taken under the delegated 
authority of the Strategic Director of Place and Economy, together with all other planning 
decisions which had been issued by the Planning Department between 10th May and 
7th June. 
 

Vesting Orders 
 
 The Members noted that correspondence had been received from the Northern 
Ireland Housing Executive (NIHE), advising that: 
 

 a vesting Order had become operative on 24th May, 2021, in respect of 
Land at 167 to 175 Broadway, and that it was now within NIHE ownership; 
and 

 it had applied for a Vesting Order for Land at Alloa Street, between the 
former properties of 170/168 Manor Street and 49 Alloa Street. 

 
 The Members of the Committee agreed to recommend to the Chief Executive that 
they had no objections to the Orders. 
 

Miscellaneous 
 
Planning Performance Report 2020 - 21  
and Improvement Plan 
 
         The Planning Manager (Development Management) provided the Committee with 
a detailed overview of the Planning Service’s performance in 2020/2021.  He explained 
that the report provided statistics on the progress across the three statutory targets for 
major development applications, local development applications and enforcement 
cases.  It also provided information relating to performance against the Council’s 
corporate targets. 
  
            The Committee was advised that a total of 2,515 valid applications had been 
received between 1st April and 31st March 2021, which was an 8% decrease compared 
to the same period for the previous year.  Compared to the same period last year, he 
explained that the number of Local Applications which had been received was broadly 
similar while the number of Major applications was down 12%.  He highlighted to the 
Committee that “other development”, such as Certificates of Lawful Use Development 
and Discharge of Condition applications, were not included in statutory performance 
targets but currently made up 59% of applications received.   

Page 282



 
Meeting of Planning Committee, 

Tuesday, 15th June, 2021 
 
 
 

 
 

F1236 
 
 

He outlined that the Planning Service had received 77 Pre-Application 
Discussions (PADs), including 12 PADs for Major development and 65 for Local 
development. 29 PADs had been concluded, all for Local development. 

 
The Members were advised that 2,132 decisions were issued between 1st April 

2020 and 31st March 2021, which was 16% less than the same period in 2019/20.  95% 
of applications had been approved. 

 
The Planning Manager outlined that the Statutory target was that major planning 

applications were processed from the date valid to decision issued or withdrawal date 
within an average of 30 weeks. 

 
The Members were advised that 28 major applications had been received in the 

year 2020/2021, which was four fewer than the previous year.   The Planning Manager 
explained that 40 major applications had been processed during the period which was 
38% more than in the same period last year and the second highest since the Council 
became a Planning Authority in 2015.  He highlighted that performance was 44.2 weeks, 
slightly down on 37 weeks from the previous year, however, the regional average was 
61.8 weeks. 
  

He reported that 1,368 local applications were decided or withdrawn in the same 
period, which was 234 fewer than the same period last year. The Members were advised 
that, last year, the average processing time had been 14 weeks, whereas this year it was 
19 weeks, which was 4 weeks over the target of 15 weeks.  He explained that the regional 
average processing time was 17.8 weeks. 

 
The Members were advised that the largest number of local applications 

processed related to householder applications, such as domestic extensions, 
conservatories, loft conversions, garages and outbuildings.  He reported that there were 
676 householder applications received, which was a 26% increase on the previous year. 
He explained that it was reflective of a nationwide increase which was almost certainly 
linked to the pandemic and people’s desire for more accommodation. 

 
In relation to Statutory Consultee Performance, he reported that the Department 

for Infrastructure had established a Planning Forum which was examining ways to 
improve the role of statutory consultees in the planning application process. Belfast City 
Council was one of three councils on the Planning Forum representing local government. 

 
            In relation to enforcement, he explained that the Statutory target was that 70% of 
all enforcement cases were progressed to conclusion within 39 weeks of the receipt of 
complaint.  He advised the Members that the number of enforcement cases opened 
during 2020/21 was 443, which was a decrease of 54% over the previous year. The 
number of enforcement cases which had concluded during the period was 618, which 
was 23% less than the previous year.  He outlined that the two main reasons for closure 
were that no breach had occurred (26%) and that cases had been remedied or resolved 
(38%). 
 

In conclusion, he advised the Members that the performance for 2020/21 was 
inevitably impacted by the COVID-19 pandemic. He explained that, during Q1 and Q2, 

Page 283



 
Meeting of Planning Committee, 

Tuesday, 15th June, 2021 
 
 
 

 
 

F1237 
 
 

there was limited access to the office for staff, limited IT capacity for staff to work from 
home, representations which had submitted by post could not be considered, site visits 
could not be carried out and some staff were furloughed.  The Members were advised 
that this had reduced the number of applications, PADs and enforcement cases which 
could be processed and which had therefore increased overall processing times. 

 
However, despite those significant challenges, he reported that the Council’s 

Planning Service had adapted quickly and had been operating a full service (other than 
public access to planning reception) since the second half of Q2.  Notably, it had included 
the promotion of electronic submissions for applications and PADs.   

 
The pandemic had initially resulted in a backlog of enforcement complaints. He 

explained that the focus had been on clearing the backlog to improve the handling of new 
complaints. Whilst it had meant that the processing target had been missed for the first 
time since 2015, it had allowed the Service to reduce enforcement complaints to a more 
manageable level, which would have significant benefits moving forward. 
             

The Planning Manager detailed how the Service continued to work through and 
develop its Improvement Plan, with many actions completed and important new areas of 
work having been identified. The most significant area of improvement work related to 
the implementation of a new planning IT system to replace the outgoing Planning Portal. 
He advised that it would provide enhanced systems for processing planning applications 
and enforcement complaints, as well as a new public website interface. The new system 
would allow customers to submit online applications for the first time in Northern Ireland 
and it was expected to go live during the Spring of 2022. 

 
With regards to the review of the Council’s Planning Application Checklist, 

completed in February 2021, it had demonstrated that it had had a very positive impact 
on improving the quality of planning applications and processing times. The planning 
manager outlined that it had also started to shift the culture and attitude of customers 
towards submitting much better-quality planning application at the outset of the process.  
The Department had already confirmed that it would adopt that model through changes 
to the legislation to improve information requirements for new planning applications. The 
Planning Manager advised the Committee of the launch of Phase 3 of the Application 
Checklist in September 2021, when it would be applied to all applications except 
Householders, Adverts and minor Local applications, as well as new information 
requirements in relation to outline applications, telecommunications, employability and 
skills and front-loading draft S76 planning agreements for Major applications. 
 
 He outlined the new “FastTrack” process for the most straightforward applications 
and explained that it was already showing a positive impact on processing times.  He also 
explained that they continued to implement the enforcement audit recommendations with 
an impending relaunch of the enforcement service, new customer guidance and new 
Enforcement Operating Principles. 
  

A Member stated that she had concerns regarding the time that enforcement 
cases took and that it was extremely difficult to get information from officers in relation to 
updates in respect of such cases.  The Divisional Solicitor and the Planning Manager 
advised the Committee Members that, due to General Data Protection 

Page 284



 
Meeting of Planning Committee, 

Tuesday, 15th June, 2021 
 
 
 

 
 

F1238 
 
 

Regulation (GDPR) and the need to safeguard the investigation process, there were real 
limitations in terms of what information could be shared.  The Divisional Solicitor 
explained that a report would be submitted to a future meeting in respect of the change 
of process in relation to enforcement cases. 
 
            A number of Members stated that they wished to put on record their thanks to the 
staff in the Planning Service and in Democratic Services for the work which had been 
carried out in terms of meeting the targets and adapting to the significant challenges and 
changes which had been required in response to the pandemic. 
 

In accordance with the Council decision of 4th May 2021, the Chief Executive 
exercised her delegated authority:  
 

 to note the reports; and  

 that a report would be submitted to a future meeting in respect of the change of 
process to planning enforcement in light of GDPR. 

 
 

Restricted Items 

 

 The information contained in the reports associated with the following 
two items is restricted in accordance with Part 1 of Schedule 6 of the Local 
Government Act (Northern Ireland) 2014. 
 

 Resolved – That the Committee agrees to exclude the members of 
the Press and public from the meeting during discussion of these items 
as, due to the nature of the items, there would be a disclosure of exempt 
information as described in Section 42(4) and Section 6 of the Local 
Government Act (Northern Ireland) 2014. 

 
Appointment of the Director of Planning and Building Control 
 

The Members were advised that, following a rigorous selection process, Ms. Kate 
Bentley, had been appointed to the post of Director of Planning and Building Control. 
 
Request for a Special Meeting 
 

The Members of the Committee agreed to hold a remote Special Meeting on 
Thursday, 24 June at 1.00pm, for the purpose of considering the Chancery House 
application (LA04/2019/2653/F). 
 
Casement Park - Section 76 Consultation 

 
A Member expressed concern that Members had not been given long enough to 

consider the document which was over 200 pages. 
 
Moved by Councillor Collins 
Seconded by Councillor Hanvey and 
 

Page 285



 
Meeting of Planning Committee, 

Tuesday, 15th June, 2021 
 
 
 

 
 

F1239 
 
 

Resolved – That the Members agree to defer the item to the 
Special Meeting of the Members of the Committee, to take place on 
Thursday 24th June; and, in the meantime, that officers write to the 
Department for Infrastructure, urging them to share the contents of the 
Section 76 Agreement with local residents, in order to help facilitate the 
consultation process. 

 
Planning Applications 

 
THE MEMBERS OF THE PLANNING COMMITTEE CONSIDERED THE FOLLOWING 

ITEMS IN ORDER TO MAKE RECOMMENDATIONS TO THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE  
IN PURSUANCE OF THE POWERS DELEGATED TO HER BY THE COUNCIL  

ON 4TH MAY, 2021 
 

Withdrawn Item 
 

 The Members noted that the following application had been withdrawn from the 
agenda: 
 

 LA04/2020/1158/F - Demolition of existing building and erection of 65No 
Apartments including 20% social housing at 1-5 Redcar Street. 

 
LA04/2020/0847/F & LA04/2020/1208/DCA - Partial  
demolition and redevelopment of existing buildings  
to provide 16 apartments, communal bin store and  
landscaped communal garden at 25-29 University Road 
 
 Moved by Councillor Groogan 
 Seconded by Councillor O’Hara and 
 

 Resolved – That the Members of the Committee agree to recommend 
to the Chief Executive to defer consideration of the application to enable a 
site visit to be undertaken in order to allow the Members to acquaint 
themselves with the location and the proposals at first hand, particularly in 
relation to the Area of Townscape Character and the Conservation Area, the 
amenity space and the fire access. 

 
 The Members noted, as the application had not been presented, that all Members 
present at the next meeting, would be able to take part in the debate and vote on this 
item. 
 
(Reconsidered item) LA04/2020/2200/F &  
LA04/2020/2201/DCA - Demolition of Nos. 27 to 37  
Linenhall Street and Nos. 8-10 Clarence Street and  
erection of seven storey office building at  
8 -10 Clarence Street 27-37 Linenhall Street and  
existing car park at the corner of Linenhall Street  
and Clarence Street 
 

Page 286



 
Meeting of Planning Committee, 

Tuesday, 15th June, 2021 
 
 
 

 
 

F1240 
 
 

 The Principal Planning officer provided the Members with the details of the 
application. 
 

The Principal Planning officer reported that the application was scheduled for 
presentation to the Planning Committee on 17th April, 2021.  However, following the 
publication of the agenda for that meeting, the agent had requested that consideration of 
the application be deferred to allow for the submission of a viability assessment and an 
updated redline to enable further discussion in relation to public realm improvements.  At 
the April meeting, the Members had been asked to consider the request for a deferral but 
officers had highlighted that a viability assessment would not address the fundamental 
design issues with the proposal. At that meeting the Committee had resolved to defer 
consideration of the application, to allow the developer to submit additional information. 
 
 The Principal Planning officer explained that further information had been 
submitted on 7th May 2021, including: 
 

 Further justification of design and 3D visuals showing potential design 
amendments and a case presented to suggest the changes would be 
detrimental to the resultant character of the building and the area. 

 Confirmation sought as to the outcome of consultations in relation to 
public realmcontributions, as per the Developer Contribution 
Framework, and a reluctance to extend a red line in the absence of any 
demonstrated need for such improvements. 

 Confirmation that the developer was willing to enter into a Section 76 
Agreement to facilitate a contribution towards wider public realm 
improvement schemes within the area. 

 A letter from Savills, whereby it was argued that the buildings did not 
make a material contribution to the conservation area as their removal 
and appropriate replacement would not have an adverse effect on the 
area. It was claimed that efforts were made to market the site and the 
only interest was based on the demolition of the existing buildings and 
redevelopment. It was also claimed that the spaces within the existing 
buildings were deemed unsuitable, and what was felt as restricted 
access to two of the buildings made them unsuitable for modern office 
providers. 

 
He explained that officers remained of the opinion that: 
 

 any suggested design changes would be to the benefit of the overall 
character of the building, the appearance of the conservation area and 
would reduce the impact on the adjacent listed Ulster Hall; 

 a consultation response from DFC remained outstanding, however 
officers remained of the opinion that the red line should be extended to 
facilitate public realm improvements in the area immediately 
surrounding the proposed building. That was a standard requirement 
for such schemes within the city centre to mitigate the development 
and to enhance the character and appearance of the area; 

 it was considered that insufficient information had been submitted in 
terms of the overall viability of the scheme, and the merits for removing 

Page 287



 
Meeting of Planning Committee, 

Tuesday, 15th June, 2021 
 
 
 

 
 

F1241 
 
 

the existing buildings which Officers considered made a positive 
contribution to the character of the Linen Conservation Area.  Policy 
BH14 of PPS6 was clear that when a building made a positive 
contribution, the presumption was in favour of retention, and that the 
Council should have regard to the same broad criteria for the 
demolition of listed buildings (para 6.5 and policy BH 10). PPS6 Para 
6.5 reinforced the ethos that if the building made a contribution, then 
the presumption to retain and protect should only be relaxed under 
exceptional circumstances, including condition of the building, cost of 
repairing and maintaining, efforts made to retain the building and 
alternative proposals for the site. On balance, in the absence of what 
was considered to be sufficient information to justify the removal of the 
buildings and without an acceptable redevelopment proposal, it was 
the view of officers that the proposal was contrary to PPS6; and 

 there was insufficient evidence provided in relation to the marketing of 
the site, either in terms of selling or renting the existing buildings. 

 
The Members’ attention was drawn to the Late Items pack, whereby an objection 

had been received, concerned that the 3rd, 4th, 5th and 6th floor windows, on the western 
elevation, would prejudice the future development capacity of the adjacent site and that 
it was over-dominant in size and scale.  The Principal Planning officer advised the 
Members that it was not considered that the windows would significantly prejudice the 
development of the adjacent site however, the scale of the building was considered to be 
unacceptable and was one of the reasons for recommending refusal. 
 
 He also advised the Members that, immediately before the meeting had 
commenced, correspondence had been received from the Ulster Architectural Heritage 
Society (UAHS), stating that they supported the officers’ recommendation for refusal, as 
they believed it was contrary to the SPPS and PPS6. 
 

The Members were advised that the scale, height, massing, alignment and form 
of the building would have a detrimental impact upon the setting of a number of listed 
buildings, including the Ulster Hall.  The Principal Planning officer pointed out that HED 
objected to the proposal on the grounds of harm to the setting of listed buildings, which 
was contrary to Policy BH11 of Planning Policy Statement 6. 
 

The proposal included the demolition of two buildings, one on Clarence Street and 
one on Linenhall Street. The principle of demolition of the building on Linenhall Street, 
which made a positive contribution to the character of the Linen Conservation Area, was 
not acceptable and the proposed redevelopment scheme did not enhance the character 
and appearance of the area as it was of a scale and massing which was unsympathetic 
to the adjoining buildings and the characteristic built form of the area. Both the 
Conservation Officer and the Urban Design Officer objected to the proposal. 

 
He explained that the Council had a duty to adopt a precautionary principle and 

when considering demolition of a building which made a positive contribution to the 
character of a conservation area there should be clear and convincing evidence that all 
reasonable efforts had been made to sustain existing uses or find viable new uses, and 
that those efforts had failed. The onus, therefore, was on the applicant to provide detailed 

Page 288



 
Meeting of Planning Committee, 

Tuesday, 15th June, 2021 
 
 
 

 
 

F1242 
 
 

evidence in support of such claims.  He stated that officers remained of the view that the 
applicant had failed to provide such evidence. 
 

The Planning officer outlined that DAERA and NI Water had advised that, at 
present, the waste water treatment infrastructure did not have sufficient capacity to serve 
the proposed development and no acceptable, alternative solution had been proposed. 
However, for the reasons set out in the report, it was considered that the issue could be 
addressed by a suitably worded planning condition and a refusal reason on that issue 
was not considered appropriate. 
 
 The Chairperson then welcomed Mr. Stinson, agent, to the meeting.  Mr. Stinson 
advised the Committee that: 
 

 he was disappointed with the recommendation to refuse planning 
permission for a £13 million investment in the City Centre of 6,000 sq 
metres of Grade A office floorspace; 

 the building was separated from the main Ulster Hall by a small 
extension and was similar to the separation that existws between Ulster 
Hall and 21 Linenhall Street; 

 whilst the Ulster Hall was listed in its entirety, not all aspects of its setting 
were similar and the existing building heights on Linenhall Street 
resulted in a different context within which the building could still be 
appreciated. Para 9.31 of the officer report acknowledged that high-rise 
contemporary buildings had transformed the built context, and changed 
the overall context for listed buildings in the conservation area; 

 guidance had been given on how the relationship with the Ulster Hall 
impact could be addressed by amending the roof profile and introducing 
setbacks, however, it was considered that those features would result in 
a building that was uncharacteristic of that part of the Conservation Area 
as the characteristic uniformity and consistency of façade would be lost. 

 significant amendments had been made to the scale, form and mass of 
the building from the previous application; 

 the report stated that Linenhall Street and Adelaide Street were defined 
by large contemporary buildings, yet the officers considered that the 
building would dominate the immediate streetscape, suggesting that the 
building was significantly out of scale with the surrounding context. That 
could not be the case, as it was similar to the height of the building at 21 
Linenhall Street and was similar in width and form to other buildings 
along Linenhall Street and Adelaide Street; 

 the Councils Linen Quarter Vision Guidance identified the existing 
buildings as making a negative contribution to the area; 

 the interest for the site following the marketing was in the redevelopment 
of it; 

 the existing car park and associated advertising hoardings detracted 
from the conservation area.  The retention of those unlisted buildings 
removed the opportunity for the comprehensive redevelopment of the 
site and importantly the opportunity to enhance the Conservation Area 
was lost.  The proposed development realised the opportunity to 

Page 289



 
Meeting of Planning Committee, 

Tuesday, 15th June, 2021 
 
 
 

 
 

F1243 
 
 

enhance the Conservation Area, meeting the test set in legislation, and 
that should weigh significantly in the planning balance; 

 the officers report noted that a consultation from the Department for 
Communities was outstanding yet the officer opinion in the addendum 
report suggested that public realm improvements were required 
regardless of the DfC response; 

 the applicant was willing to make a contribution to public realm 
improvement schemes that the Linen Quarter BID was intending to bring 
forward for the area to ensure that any public realm was part of a 
coherent scheme for the Conservation Area and not one that was an 
isolated change at odds with the surrounding streets so that it would 
cause harm to, rather than enhance it; and 

 finally, they had met the legislative test to enhance the Conservation 
Area by removing the car park.  

 
 A Member queried how the current buildings were of architectural merit. 
 
 In response, Mr. G. Moore, Architect, advised that they did not feel that the 
buildings contributed positively to the Conservation Area and that the existing corner was 
a difficult site and was quite alien within the city centre. 

 
 The Principal Planning officer confirmed to the Members that the Linen 
Conservation Area Guide had identified the terraced façade for 
maintenance/enhancement, rather than a development opportunity, and that it had not 
been identified as making a negative or a positive contribution.  He advised the Members 
that the Conservation officer was of the view that the building did make a positive 
contribution to the character and appearance of the Conservation area. 
 
 The Members of the Committee recommended that, in accordance with the 
Council decision of 4th May 2021, the Chief Executive would exercise her delegated 
authority to refuse the application for the reasons detailed within the report. 
 
 (Councillor McCullough joined the meeting at this point in proceedings)  
 
(Reconsidered item)  LA04/2020/1363/F - 21 apartments  
and 3 retail units with ancillary lobby space, refuse  
storage, bicycle storage and amenity space between  
173 Newtownards Road and 1-5 Templemore Avenue 
 

The Principal Planning officer provided the Members with the details of the 
application for 21 apartments and three retail units within a single building which ranged 
from four to six storeys in height.  

 
She explained that the application was due to be considered by the Committee 

on 18th May but that it was deferred so that Members could gain an understanding of the 
context of the site through a site visit.  The Committee had undertaken a site visit on 3rd 
June. 

 

Page 290



 
Meeting of Planning Committee, 

Tuesday, 15th June, 2021 
 
 
 

 
 

F1244 
 
 

The Members were advised that the site was located within the development limits 
for Belfast in both the BUAP 2001 and the draft BMAP 2015. The site was within a housing 
action area in the BUAP and fell within the draft Templemore Avenue Area of Townscape 
Character. 

 
She reported that the main issues which had been considered in the analysis of 

the application included the principle of the proposal at that location; the design, layout 
and impact on the character and appearance of the area; the impact on residential 
amenity; impact on built heritage; access, parking, and transport; infrastructure capacity 
and impact on human health. 

 
While the principle of the proposal and the proposed use were considered 

acceptable, she explained that it would result in overdevelopment of the site and would 
be out of character with the area. She also advised the Members that the proposal was 
contrary to the SPPS and PPS 7, in that it would result in an overly dominant building 
which would cause unacceptable damage to the local character due to the height, scale, 
massing, thereby resulting in overdevelopment of the site. 

 
It was also reported that the proposal was contrary to draft BMAP Arterial Route 

Policy AR02, which stated that building heights and massing should be appropriate to the 
scale of the street and should generally be two to three storeys high.  The proposed 
amenity provision was inadequate and inappropriate and was therefore contrary to the 
SPPS and PPS7, in that the development would create undesirable living conditions for 
prospective residents.  The Members were advised that the proposal would impact on 
the setting of the listed buildings and, as a result, failed to comply with PPS 6. 

 
She outlined that the scheme was not subject to a Pre Application Discussion 

(PAD) and that the applicant did not take the opportunity during the process to address 
the issues raised. 
 

The Members were advised that 11 representations and a petition of support with 
682 signatures had been received to date.  She detailed that the points raised in the 
letters of support included that the proposal would help to regenerate the area; that the 
scale of the building should be approved as it was a gateway building on a brownfield site 
and would enhance the appearance of a derelict site; housing provision; economic and 
community benefits; and that Cornerstone Ltd’s work was of a high standard. 

 
In respect of the impact on parking and traffic, DfI Roads had expressed no 

objections. Rivers Agency had stated that they required additional information.  NI Water 
and Environmental Health had offered no objections. 
 

The Members were advised that, during the deferral period, the applicant had 
added an area for a temporary local art installation on the western elevation, in response 
to the Council’s concerns relating to the exposed blank façade of the six storey western 
elevation.  However, while art features could improve the aesthetic appearance of a 
building, she explained that, in this instance, it did not overcome the concerns as it did 
not address the scale of the gable and still represented overdevelopment of the site.  It 
was considered that the overall height, scale and massing of the building was over 

Page 291



 
Meeting of Planning Committee, 

Tuesday, 15th June, 2021 
 
 
 

 
 

F1245 
 
 

dominant and would result in a clear imbalance along both Templemore Avenue and 
Newtownards Road. 
 

The Principal Planning officer explained that the latest submission from the 
applicant included alterations to the ground floor layout, including a reduction in retail 
space; the provision of additional amenity space on the ground floor and in the form of 
private balconies to the rear of the two bedroom apartments, and that the design of the 
central apartments had been altered to open plan living/kitchen spaces in the central 
apartments to increase natural light.  As a result of those changes, the second refusal 
reason cited in the May 2021 planning committee report, referring to the lack of quality 
amenity space, could be removed. 
 
 Whilst the existing site was vacant, she advised the Members that it did not 
contribute to any special features of the area.  A six storey building of the proposed scale, 
height and massing was at odds with the two to three storey domestic scale character of 
the street and that the proposal was more akin to city centre development. 
 

The Members’ attention was draw to the Late Items pack.  The Principal Planning 
officer explained that HED had objected as it was contrary to Policy BH11 of Planning 
Policy Statement 6 and had offered further comments in relation to the views of the listed 
buildings which would be impacted by the proposal.  They stated that: 
 

 the immediate setting of St Patrick’s Church of Ireland would be impacted 
by the development in views along the Newtownards Road from both the 
East and West; 

 the wider setting of the other three churches – Westbourne, St Matthew’s 
and Megain Memorial would be impacted less so; 

 their spires would be obscured by the proposal from certain viewpoints, 
however it was generally accepted that in an urban context, views were 
dynamic rather than static; 

 the six-storey element would, if permitted, set a new precedent for building 
heights and that would diminish the character of the existing setting and 
would appear dominant; and 

 the four churches rose above the relatively low buildings as focal points, 
and contributed to the sense of place and were an important source of local 
identity. 

 
The Members were advised that the agent had been made aware of officers’ 

design concerns and had been advised that officers would be recommending refusal.  
The Principal Planning officer outlined that the agent did not amend the scheme but 
submitted a rebuttal to the issues raised by officers and consultees. 
 
 The Chairperson welcomed Mr. J. Martin, agent, and Mr. D. Jackson, managing 
Director of Cornerstone Construction NI.  Together, they advised the Members that: 
 

 the current site and the adjacent site were currently derelict and in need 
of regeneration; 

 the height restrictions mentioned in the draftBMAP were dropped on the 
adoption of BMAP and they had also not been carried forward into the 

Page 292



 
Meeting of Planning Committee, 

Tuesday, 15th June, 2021 
 
 
 

 
 

F1246 
 
 

latest draft plan strategy.  Whilst draftBMAP did have material weight, 
appeal decision 2016/A0202 stated that the draft BMAP urban design 
criteria should be afforded little weight if it was in compliance with BUAP; 

 BUAP encouraged new housing to stimulate urban renewal; 

 the Belfast Agenda included the aim of housing 66,000 additional 
occupants by 2035, with the new Local Development Plan aiming for 
37,000 new units in Belfast, and to reach that goal it was crucial that 
existing brownfield sites, particularly derelict ones, were allowed to 
increase density; 

 the western elevation had intentionally been left blank to allow for the 
future regeneration of no.171 Newtownards Road and to comply with 
Building Control Regulations; 

 there was no natural heritage to protect on site and the proposal was 
presented towards the Newtownards Road and stepped down towards 
the characteristic area of the ATC. The site was included in the ATC by 
default and detracted from the area. The current vacant site was a gap 
in the urban streetscape and detracted from the ATC and their proposal 
would help revive the important intersection; 

 the scale, massing and heights of the proposal had been carefully 
considered, with minor setbacks and contrasting materials all used to 
break the massing of the proposal whilst also keeping the footprint of the 
proposal feasible; 

 the planning report emphasised the residential nature of the area and 
the low buildings featured within it.  However, the surrounding 
development and extant site could not be ignored. The streetscape 
analysis, using VU.CITY clearly highlighted how the building sat within 
an area of taller buildings, yet they had been disregarded; 

 the committee report stated that the opinion of HED had not changed 
from the submission of the heritage statement which was untrue. In its 
initial consultation response HED stated that 2 or 3 storeys should be 
sought, and in its final response it stated it should be 4/5 storeys. It was 
evident that HED was not opposed to taller buildings, though they felt 
that the emphasis HED placed on a lower building height was misplaced; 

 the proposal did not detract from the nearby church spires, it sat 4metres 
below Westbourne’s Spire, 17metres below the spire of St Patrick’s and 
27metres below the spire of St Matthew’s; 

 Cornerstone’s approach was about finding the dark corners of the city, 
the parts that others overlooked, and to create projects which unlocked 
their potential and that the site in question, which was within walking 
distance of the city centre, had been overlooked for decades and was 
why their proposal for the site had been overwhelmingly supported by 
local residents; 

 all Councillors representing the Titanic DEA supported the application; 

 the site overlapped two wards, one sat within the 4% most deprived and 
the other the 8% most deprived in the NI Multiple Deprivation Index; 

 the project would be the first in the Northern Ireland to incorporate 
intentional community building into its model.  They had invested 
significantly in building Community Life, offering residents the 

Page 293



 
Meeting of Planning Committee, 

Tuesday, 15th June, 2021 
 
 
 

 
 

F1247 
 
 

opportunity to build relationships with those in the building and 
incentivise healthy, greener lifestyles; and 

 there was a big difference in planning permission being granted and 
sites actually being developed, and that they were not just chasing a 
green paper. 

 
A number of Members stated that, while they were sympathetic to the work and 

the ethos of the applicant, in terms of regenerating the area through the creation of much 
needed housing, they had to make their decisions in line with Planning Policy.  Further 
Members urged the applicants to ensure that their future proposals were compliant with 
planning policies at an early stage. 

 
In response, Mr. Martin explained that PPS7, in terms of the scale, height and 

massing of a building, was down to perception and that there was no written rule with 
exact numbers.  He stated that they felt that the application was in compliance with PPS7 
and that the planning officers had ignored the higher, surrounding buildings and had 
instead focussed on the single and two storey heights which were from a different era.  
Mr. Jackson added that, having spoken to numerous residents in the area, they had 
referred to the surrounding dereliction, boarded up buildings and paramilitary murals and 
that the site was in need of regeneration. 
 

In response to a question from a Member in respect of whether any of the 
apartments would be social housing, the applicant advised that they envisaged it as mixed 
tenure, with private and social housing together in one building.  They explained that they 
were in conversations with a housing association but that their first task was to have the 
planning permission agreed.  Mr. Jackson added that they had approached NIHE in 
relation to social housing for the proposal but, to their surprise, the area was not currently 
deemed to be an area of social housing need by the NIHE and that this needed to be 
rectified.   
 
 In response to a Member’s query regarding the limited amenity space for residents, 
the deputation advised the Committee that they intended that the residents would 
congregate within the public realm spaces.  They outlined to the Members that they had 
connected with the Smart Cities’ Civic Dollars scheme, which sought to connect people 
with the local community, encourage shopping with local retailers, encourage volunteering 
and the use of local parks, with incentives for anyone who did so. 
 

The Chairperson welcomed Ms. N. Golden, HED, to the meeting.  She clarified 
that the images that HED had submitted had demonstrated a four storey building which 
HED felt could fit comfortably on the site.  The application in front of the Members was a 
third taller.  She explained that HED believed that a four storey building, with a setback to 
five, would striking the right balance in terms of addressing the dereliction which currently 
existed there and the impact on the Listed Buildings.  She added that three storeys of 
commercial property was roughly equivalent to four storeys of residential.   
 

In response to a Member’s question, she clarified that the shoulder height of the 
Skainos building and the Masonic Hall would be the comfortable height in terms of Policy 
BH11.  She added that the scheme was not far from acceptable to them and, subject to 
changes, might be acceptable. 

Page 294



 
Meeting of Planning Committee, 

Tuesday, 15th June, 2021 
 
 
 

 
 

F1248 
 
 

 
The Cornerstone NI representatives stated that they had not been afforded the 

opportunity to resubmit or change their application and that if they could have made a four 
storey building viable, they would have done so.  They suggested that the Planning 
Committee should question what the City needed in areas of low value land as opposed 
to rigidly abiding by planning policies which could just be applied by planners. 

 
The Principal Planning officer, in response to the discussion between the applicant, 

the Members, HED and officers, explained that those were the types of conversations 
which should have taken place at PAD stage, upfront and before the application had been 
submitted.  She explained that the applicant was made aware, in early March, of the 
officers’ concerns with the scheme and that their recommendation would be for a refusal.  
She explained that the applicant had three months in which they could have proposed 
amendments and that they had used the deferral period to submit amendments to some, 
but not all, of the issues raised.  She added that the applicant had sent a rebuttal to the 
officers’ comments instead of amended plans.   

 
The Members were also advised that there was no indication within the planning 

application that it was for social housing. 
 
In response to a further Member’s query, the Planning Manager explained that the 

design context of the site was critical and that all sites were different in terms of the 
surrounding scale, height and massing, nearby listed buildings and individual character of 
an area. He explained that each design had to be considered within the specific context 
of the site. 

 
The Members of the Committee recommended that, in accordance with the 

Council decision of 4th May 2021, the Chief Executive would exercise her delegated 
authority to refuse the application and that she would use delegated authority to finalise 
the refusal reasons. 
   
(Reconsidered Item) LA04/2020/1803/F - Change of use  
to House of Multiple Occupancy at 60 Springfield Road 
 
 (Councillor McCullough left the meeting at this point in proceedings) 
 
 (Councillors Murphy and McMullan did not participate in the vote on this item as 
they had not been present when it had previously been presented to the Committee) 
  
 The Principal Planning officer reminded the Members that the application had 
been presented to the Committee on 15th December 2020, where it was deferred for 
further consideration of the roads issues.  At the meeting held on 16th March, the item 
was deferred for a second time, to request that DfI Roads would carry out a site visit. 
 

The Principal Planning officer explained that DFI Roads had visited the site on 
two occasions, on 13th May at 5pm and again on 26th May at 8.30pm.  She outlined that 
DfI Roads had considered the busiest time on the road network during the evening peak 
period to be between 4:30pm-6pm, and that the second visit, at 8.30pm, had allowed for 
the evening peak to pass and for residential parking to have been established. 

Page 295



 
Meeting of Planning Committee, 

Tuesday, 15th June, 2021 
 
 
 

 
 

F1249 
 
 

 
The Members were advised of that DfI Roads position remained unchanged, and 

it had raised no objection to the proposal.  It was the Department’s position that the 
proposal would not ‘prejudice road safety or significantly inconvenience the flow of traffic’. 

 
She reminded the Members that, in respect of the principle of the proposal at that 

location, the application site fell within an HMO Development Node as designated within 
the HMO Subject Plan for Belfast (2015). She reported that Policy HM0 3 stated that 
planning permission would only be granted along the frontages of designated HMO 
Development Nodes, providing it did not include HMO development at ground floor level 
within a designated commercial node or shopping area. As the site was not within a 
designated commercial node or shopping area, the ground floor was not required to be 
commercial or shopping. The proposal was also in line with Policy HMO 6 as the criteria 
within that policy were either met or were not relevant. 

 
The Members of the Committee recommended that, in accordance with the 

Council decision of 4th May 2021, the Chief Executive would exercise her delegated 
authority to approve the application and to finalise the conditions. 
 
LA04/2020/1211/F - Mixed use regeneration scheme  
involving demolition of vacant buildings Hughes Christensen 
site; erection of 8No. Class B2 (light industrial) and Class B4  
(storage/distribution) unit; extension to and subdivision of  
existing supermarket building to form 4. Class B4 units  
(existing retail use to be discontinued); erection of  
replacement supermarket; provision of new accesses,  
road improvements; car parking, landscaping and  
associated site works. (Lynas Food Outlet building  
to be retained) at No 46 Montgomery Road (former  
Hughes Christensen site) and between nos 44 and  
46 Montgomery Road and no 41 Montgomery Road (Lidl) 
 
 The Principal Planning officer provided the Members with an overview of the major 
application which comprised two sites either side of Montgomery Road and adjacent to 
the Castlereagh Road.   
 

He advised the Members of the key issues in the assessment of the proposal, 
which included the principle of a major foodstore at that location; the loss of existing 
industrial land; design and layout considerations; impact on amenity / character of the 
area; impact on transport and other infrastructure and impact on the natural environment. 
 

The Members were advised that the proposal constituted an increase of 397sqm 
of convenience and 198sqm of comparison floorspace on the existing store, which was 
to be relocated from its current location to the factory site to the north.  The Principal 
planning officer explained that the site was outside any designated retail centres identified 
within both the BUAP and dBMAP. 

 

Page 296



 
Meeting of Planning Committee, 

Tuesday, 15th June, 2021 
 
 
 

 
 

F1250 
 
 

He reported that, following assessment of the economic information, on balance, 
it was considered that the majority of trade would be drawn from unprotected locations 
and, as such, the scale of impact on protected centres was not likely to be significant. 

 
At the time of writing the report, there were no sites available that could facilitate 

the proposal, largely due to the size of store proposed, and it therefore met the sequential 
test. 

 
It was felt that the proposal would provide regeneration benefits in terms of 

restoring a vacant site to active economic use. He advised that it might provide substantial 
community benefits, including in terms of job creation and improved built form and 
associated public realm, if all the business units were to become operational on an 
ongoing basis. 

 
The agent had indicated that the proposal would result in the following economic 

impacts: 

 the construction costs of the entire project will be around £8million, which 
would be a significant benefit to the local construction industry; 

 the proposed store would support 13 new jobs; 

 the proposed Class B2 & B4 units had the potential to create 87 full time 
equivalent positions; 

 there would be an increase in rates revenue for the Council of around 
£300,000+ per annum. 

 
In order to secure the retention of business/industrial use at the site and to offset 

the loss of such uses in substitution for the proposed retail use, it was fundamental that 
the conversion works of the existing Lidl building were provided prior to the new 
supermarket use commencing. As highlighted in the BCC LDP response, it was 
necessary to secure that by planning agreement under Section 76 of the Planning Act. 
He added that it was also considered necessary to restrict permitted development use 
rights for the business/industrial units, in order that the Council could retain control of 
operations at the site and to maintain appropriate amenity via planning condition. 
 

The Members were advised that all consultees had responded with no objections, 
apart from Invest NI who had not yet responded, despite numerous reminders having 
been issued.  

 
The Members’ attention was drawn to the Late Items pack, whereby the Council’s 

Economic Development Unit had no objection.  A response had also been received from 
the DFI Economics Branch, who had considered the “Development Appraisal and Viability 
Report” and the “Retail impact, Need and Assessment”.  The Principal Planning officer 
summarised their response and added that the Council’s Estates Valuer had considered 
the issues and that an independent review of the retail figures had been undertaken by 
the Council’s LDP team. 
 

He reported that Environmental Health had made comments in relation to the 
Construction Management Plan, in terms of hours of construction, and that DFI Roads 
had responded to advise that Condition 19 was no longer necessary and, after discussion 
with the agent in regards to Conditions 20-23, officers were awaiting final conditions from 

Page 297



 
Meeting of Planning Committee, 

Tuesday, 15th June, 2021 
 
 
 

 
 

F1251 
 
 

Roads and could be amended following receipt of response. Delegated authority was 
therefore requested to finalise all conditions. 
 

One objection had been received in relation to traffic and associated issues.  He 
advised that DFI Roads had no objections in relation to those issues and, accordingly, 
any impacts were considered acceptable. 
 

The Members of the Committee recommended that, in accordance with the 
Council decision of 4th May 2021, the Chief Executive would exercise her delegated 
authority to approve the application, to finalise the wording of conditions and to enter into 
a planning agreement under S76 of the Planning Act, subject to no new substantive 
planning issues being raised by consultees and third parties. 

 
LA04/2020/2071/F - Demolition of existing buildings  
and structures; and construction of 57 no. apartments  
with associated landscaping and car parking at 41-49  
Tate's Avenue Belfast 
 

The Senior Planning officer drew the Members’ attention to the Late Items Pack, 
where a letter had been received from Environmental Consultants providing further 
information on gas mitigation and points of clarification in response to Environmental 
Health concerns. He explained that the Environmental Health Department had since 
advised that it was content with the mitigation measures proposed. 
 

The Members were also advised that the Social Housing element of the Section 76 
Agreement had been omitted from the Committee Report.  He outlined that a Section 76 
clause would be applied, requiring 100% social housing provision which had meant a 
subsequent reduction in parking standards. 
 

The Members were provided with the details of the application.  They were 
advised of the key issues which had been considered during the assessment of the 
proposed development, including the acceptability of residential use at that location; 
demolition in an Area of Townscape Character (ATC); impact on the character and 
appearance of the ATC; Scale, Massing and Design; open space provision; traffic and 
parking; contamination; flooding and drainage; wastewater treatment and developer 
obligations. 
 

The Senior Planning officer explained that the principle of demolition of the 
existing buildings and new residential development was acceptable given the extant 
permission on the site.  The Members were advised that the additional 8 units proposed 
were located within the main block and had resulted in additional floorspace on the upper 
floor above the approved rear annex. The location of the additional mass ensured there 
would be no detrimental visual impact when viewed from the street.  The minor elevation 
changes to the Tates Avenue elevation ensured that the proposal continued to enhance 
the character of the ATC. 
 

He outlined that any additional windows were located so that separation distances 
and screening provided by the parts of the proposed building would ensure that there 
would be no impact on the amenity of neighbouring properties.  He added that the removal 

Page 298



 
Meeting of Planning Committee, 

Tuesday, 15th June, 2021 
 
 
 

 
 

F1252 
 
 

of the balconies and expanses of glazing also improved the relationship with the adjacent 
properties, particularly those to either side on Tates Avenue. 
 

In relation to car parking, he advised that 30 spaces were proposed in the 
basement, whereas 73 spaces had been proposed in the extant permission. He outlined 
that the reduction in spaces had been agreed between planners, DFI Roads and the 
planning agent, in light of the fact that the apartments would be social housing, where it 
was widely accepted that uptake of parking spaces was significantly less.  A parking 
survey had been carried out which considered the uptake of car parking in similar sized 
social housing sites and had taken into account on-street parking availability (not on 
Tate’s Avenue) as well as the site’s proximity to the amenities on the Lisburn Road.  A 
Travel Plan was also proposed including green travel measures such as Travel Cards for 
three years, a cycle user scheme and a subsidy towards a Car Club.  He advised that 
DFI had advised that it was now content with the Travel Plan. 
 

He reported that a response from NI Water was outstanding in relation to the 
capacity within the receiving wastewater treatment works. In the interim, and as a 
precaution, a condition had been proposed that would ensure that no development was 
carried out until such times as capacity became available. 
 

The Members were advised that no objections had been received from third 
parties and that the Pre-Community Consultation Report submitted demonstrated that the 
applicant had carried out their duty under Section 27 of the Planning Act (NI) 2011 to 
consult the community in advance of submitting an application. 
 
 The proposal was assessed against paragraphs 4.23-4.29 of the SPPS and Policy 
QD1 of PPS7.  He advised that the design of the proposed apartments fronting onto Tates 
Avenue were traditional in appearance, in keeping with the built form of the immediate 
surrounding properties.  He reported that the height of the new buildings followed the 
pattern of the existing streetscape in relation to the eaves/ridge height, window/door 
openings and building line. A more traditional design had been adopted along the Tates 
Avenue elevation to respect the established vernacular and that relationship was 
considered appropriate in the context of the street scene on Tates Avenue. 
 

He outlined that there were more windows in the front elevation than the previous 
approval, which strengthened the vertical emphasis, arguably producing a more 
traditional solid:void ratio more in keeping with the area.  Dormer windows were also 
proposed on the upper floor to match the original dormers found within the draft ATC. 

 
The Members were advised that it was considered that the stepped heights 

proposed on Tates Avenue was in keeping with the sloping nature of the site and 
generally accorded with the height of the existing built form of the area. 

 
He explained that the proposal had been assessed against Policy OS2 of 

Planning Policy Statement 8 which stated that an area of at least 3,000 square metres 
(10% of the site area) should be given over to communal open space.  He advised the 
Members that the area of open space provision amounted to approximately 1,000 square 
metres.  He clarified that Creating Places stated that “In the case of apartment or flat 
developments, or 1 and 2 bedroomed houses on small urban infill sites, private communal 

Page 299



 
Meeting of Planning Committee, 

Tuesday, 15th June, 2021 
 
 
 

 
 

F1253 
 
 

open space would be acceptable in the form of landscaped areas, courtyards or roof 
gardens, from a minimum of 10 sq m per unit to around 30 sq m per unit.”  He advised 
the Members that it was considered that the site was an urban infill site and, when the 
lower standard was applied, the level of communal amenity space would be 570 square 
metres. The proposed amenity provision was approximately 820 square metres and was 
therefore considered acceptable. 
 
 The Chairperson welcomed Mr. P. Stinson, agent, to the meeting.  He confirmed 
that: 
 

 the permission remained extant, having been granted in 2019; 

 the proposal would comprise 31 active elderly units, along with 26 
general needs units, and that an agreement in principle had been 
reached with a housing association; and 

 they welcomed the recommendation that the social housing element 
would be included within he Section 76 Agreement. 

 
 In response to a Member’s questions regarding the reduced number of car parking 
spaces, Mr. Stinson advised the Members that the decrease would mean that the 
construction would take less time and that the use of parking in social housing was 
significantly less than with other housing developments.  In addition to the availability of 
on street parking nearby and the Green Travel Measures, DFI Roads were content with 
the results of the Travel Survey. 
 
 In response to a further question, the Senior Planning officer outlined that DFI 
Roads had verbally agreed to the measures proposed but that they were awaiting a final 
response.  In relation to the outstanding Rivers Agency response, he explained that there 
was an extant approval on the site but that officers were awaiting a formal response.    
 
 The Members of the Committee recommended that, in accordance with the 
Council decision of 4th May 2021, the Chief Executive would exercise her delegated 
authority to approve the application and to finalise the conditions and the Section 76 
Agreement. 
 
LA04/2020/1593/F - Refurbishment works to existing park,  
comprising: revised accesses from Jamaica Road and  
Old Park Road; extension of existing 3G pitch;  
refurbishment of existing flood lighting; a replacement  
405m2 GFA changing pavilion incorporating community  
facilities and a shelter for up to 101 spectators;  
new MUGA; new multi-use community event space;  
new street furniture, outdoor gym equipment  
and park lighting; new inclusive/multi-age playground;  
new 2.4m boundary fencing; rationalisation of existing  
path network including resurfacing; new SUDS pond/ 
wetland wildlife area; landscape interventions including 
planting, woodland management, entrance improvements  
and all associated works at Marrowbone Millennium Park,  
Oldpark Road 

Page 300



 
Meeting of Planning Committee, 

Tuesday, 15th June, 2021 
 
 
 

 
 

F1254 
 
 

 
 (Councillor Murphy, having declared an interest in this item, left the meeting for 
the duration of the item and did not participate in the vote.) 
 
 The Principal Planning officer presented the details of the Belfast City Council 
application to the Members. 
 
 The key issues which had been considered during its assessment included the 
principle of use on the site; the design and layout; the impact on amenity and character 
of the area; impact on natural and built heritage; access, movement, parking, transport 
and road safety; flood risk; landscaping and other environmental matters. 
 
 He outlined that the site was located within an existing public park facility and was 
identified as an “Area of Existing Open Space” within (Draft) Belfast Metropolitan Area 
Plan (BMAP) 2004 and BMAP 2015 and, “Lands reserved for Landscape Amenity or 
Recreation use” in the Belfast Urban Area Plan 2001 (BUAP). The application site was 
also within a Local Landscape Policy Area (LLPA) as per (Draft) BMAP 2004. 
 
 The Members were advised that the proposal had been assessed against and 
was considered to comply with the SPPS, BUAP 2001, Draft BMAP 2015, Planning Policy 
Statement 2, Planning Policy Statement 3, Planning Policy Statement 6, Planning Policy 
Statement 8, and Planning Policy Statement 15. 
 

He reported that Environmental Health, Northern Ireland Water, BCC Tree 
Officers, BCC Parks and Recreation, DFI Roads Service, DFI Rivers Agency, Historic 
Environment Division (Historic Monuments), DAERA Water Management Unit, DAERA 
Regulation Unit and DAERA Natural Environment Division had raised no issues of 
concern, subject to conditions. 
 
 A Member asked for further information regarding the new inclusive, multi-age 
playground and whether it included a Changing Places facility.  The Planning Manager 
advised the Members that while those were not planning considerations that he would 
ask the Physical Programmes Department to provide the Member with further information 
in relation to the facilities which were to be included. 
 
 The Members of the Committee recommended that, in accordance with the 
Council decision of 4th May 2021, the Chief Executive would exercise her delegated 
authority to approve the application and to finalise the wording of conditions. 
 
LA04/2020/0991/F - 3m high retaining wall and associated  
works at Colin Glen Forest Park 163 Stewartstown Road on  
lands north of Colin Glen Community Allotments opposite  
nos 27-29 Colinglen Road and accessed off Colinglen Road  
(Retrospective) 
 
 (Councillor Murphy returned to the meeting at this point in proceedings) 
 
 The Members were provided with the details of the application which was in 
receipt of Council funding. 

Page 301



 
Meeting of Planning Committee, 

Tuesday, 15th June, 2021 
 
 
 

 
 

F1255 
 
 

 
The retrospective application was for a retaining wall to facilitate the new 

Toboggan run development at the Forest Park. The Members were reminded that 
planning permission for the Toboggan run development had been granted in April 2019 
(Ref: LA04/2018/2784/F). 

 
The Members were advised that the site was currently designated as existing 

open space in the adopted Belfast Urban Area Plan (BUAP) 2001 and Draft BMAP. The 
use as open space would remain as existing with the retaining wall located along the 
approved Toboggan run. 

 
The NIEA, Rivers Agency, and the Tree and Landscape team had been consulted. 

The Members were advised that NIEA had sought further information and, following the 
submission of this, had no concerns. The other consultees had no objections. 
 
 The Members of the Committee recommended that, in accordance with the 
Council decision of 4th May 2021, the Chief Executive would exercise her delegated 
authority to approve the application and to finalise the conditions. 
 
LA04/2020/2637/F - Single storey, stand-alone multi- 
purpose building and associated site works at Cregagh  
Primary School, Mount Merrion Drive 
 
 The Members considered the details of the Primary School application whereby 
the Council would be providing funding for the proposal. 
 

The Members were advised that the multi-purpose building would be a single 
storey with a flat roof and would comprise of two main rooms approx. 60sqm and 20sqm. 
Toilets and a storage area would be incorporated within the building. The associated site 
works included several raised planting beds and an area to be used as an outdoor 
playground for children. 

 
The application had been neighbour notified and advertised in the local press and 

no letters of representation were received. 
 

Environmental Health had been consulted and was content with the proposal, 
subject to an informative being placed on the decision relating to contaminated land.  DfI 
Roads had also been consulted and had offered no objection to the proposal. 
 

The Members noted that it had been assessed against and was considered to 
comply with the BUAP, Draft BMAP, and the SPPS, Addendum to PPS 6 and PPS 8. 

 
The Members of the Committee recommended that, in accordance with the 

Council decision of 4th May 2021, the Chief Executive would exercise her delegated 
authority to approve the application and to finalise the conditions. 
 
LA04/2021/0696/F - Development of 'Active Travel Hub',  
which includes the installation of a 9m x 2.5m shipping  
container, with modifications to accommodate an internal  

Page 302



 
Meeting of Planning Committee, 

Tuesday, 15th June, 2021 
 
 
 

 
 

F1256 
 
 

bike store, and a small office on hard standing adjacent  
to the car park and entrance to Whiterock Leisure Centre 
 
 The Members were provided with the details of the application, whereby the 
Council was the landowner. The proposal was in association with the under-noted 
proposal for a mounted sign on a shipping container, under reference LA04/2021/0718/A. 
 

The proposed site was situated within Whiterock Leisure Centre and was 
designated as lands reserved for landscape, amenity or recreation use in the BUAP and 
as existing open space within both versions dBMAP and an urban landscape wedge.   
 

The Members were advised that the proposals would complement the existing 
Leisure Centre and its recreational use and would comply with the relevant policy and 
area designations. 
 

DFI Roads and Environmental Health had been consulted and had no objections 
and that no third party representations had been received. 
 

The Members of the Committee recommended that, in accordance with the 
Council decision of 4th May 2021, the Chief Executive would exercise her delegated 
authority to approve the application and to finalise the conditions. 
 
LA04/2021/0718/A - Mounted sign on face of a shipping  
container at Whiterock Leisure Centre 
 
 The Members were provided with the details of the application, whereby the 
Council was the landowner. The proposal was in association with the above-noted 
proposal for an active travel hub, under reference LA04/2021/0696/F. 
 

The proposed site was situated within Whiterock Leisure Centre and was 
designated as lands reserved for landscape, amenity or recreation use in the BUAP and 
as existing open space within both versions dBMAP and an urban landscape wedge.   

 
The Members noted that the proposed advertisement would respect the amenity 

of the surrounding area and would not prejudice public safety.  DFI Roads had been 
consulted and had no objections and no third party representations had been received. 

 
The Members of the Committee recommended that, in accordance with the 

Council decision of 4th May 2021, the Chief Executive would exercise her delegated 
authority to approve the application and to finalise the conditions. 
 
LA04/2021/0735/F - Extension of public pavement area to  
create additional space for social distancing, to include  
sheltered structures, seating, planters and elements of  
incidental play on 8-83 Adelaide Street 
 
 The Members were provided with the details of the Belfast City Council application 
for temporary planning permission, of two years, for the extension of the public pavement 
area. 

Page 303



 
Meeting of Planning Committee, 

Tuesday, 15th June, 2021 
 
 
 

 
 

F1257 
 
 

 
The site was located within the Linen Conservation Area and, overall, the proposal 

was thought to preserve the character and appearance of the area and would not be 
detrimental to the setting of nearby listed buildings, the amenity of neighbouring 
properties or harmful to highway safety. 

 
The application had been neighbour notified and had been advertised in the local 

press.  An objection had been received from the Department of Economy, raising concern 
over accessibility and loss of amenity. 
 

The Historic Environment Division (HED), Environmental Health and the 
Conservation and Heritage officer had been consulted and offered no objections. Whilst 
there was an outstanding consultation response from DFI Roads, it had indicated there 
was no objection in principle, subject to detailed design drawings which were currently 
being reviewed by Roads. 
 
 The Members’ attention was drawn to the Late Items report, where 
correspondence had been received from the Department for Communities, requesting 
further information on the footpath finishes and the management of street furniture.  The 
Members were advised that the full specification was detailed on the plans and that the 
Council would maintain and manage all street furniture. 
 

A Member stated that she found it surprising that the Department for the Economy 
had objected to the proposal. 
 
 The Members of the Committee recommended that, in accordance with the 
Council decision of 4th May 2021, the Chief Executive would exercise her delegated 
authority to approve the application and to finalise the conditions, subject to no objection 
from DFI Roads. 
 
LA04/2021/0544/F - Installation of 6 projector units to  
create an interactive lighting installation along the  
hoarding of Brunswick Street on 5-11 Brunswick Street 
 
 The Members were provided with the details of the Belfast City Council application 
for a temporary period of two years. It formed part of a citywide lighting strategy, 
undertaken by the Council, to create more welcoming, vibrant and safer places. 
 

The site was located within Belfast City Centre Conservation Area and, overall, 
the proposal was thought to enhance the character and appearance of the area and 
would not be detrimental to the amenity of neighbouring properties or harmful to highway 
safety. 

 
The application had been neighbour notified and advertised in the local press and 

no comments were received. DFI Roads and Environmental Health had been consulted 
and had offered no objections to the proposal.  

 

Page 304



 
Meeting of Planning Committee, 

Tuesday, 15th June, 2021 
 
 
 

 
 

F1258 
 
 

Whilst a consultation response from the Council’s Conservation and Heritage 
officer was outstanding, it was not considered that it presented any issue of principle, as 
the proposal was similar to other projector units that had already been approved in the  
Conservation Area, under references LA04/2019/2385/F and LA04/2019/2386/F. 
 

The proposal had been assessed against, and was considered to comply with, 
the SPPS, BUAP, Draft BMAP, PPS3 and PPS6. 

 
 The Members of the Committee recommend that, in accordance with the Council 
decision of 4th May 2021, the Chief Executive would exercise her delegated authority to 
approve the application and to finalise the conditions. 
 
LA04/2021/0394/F - Floodlights (10m high) and ancillary  
equipment. Installation of scoreboard & water sprinkler  
system, replacement paths & fittings around bowling  
green at Balmoral Bowling Club 
 
 The Members were advised of the details of the Belfast City Council application. 
 
 The Members noted that the proposal involved the upgrade of an existing facility 
which would accord with one of the core planning objectives of the SPPS, to improve 
health and well-being.  The proposal complied with Policy OS7 of PPS8. 
 

Environmental Health was satisfied that the predicted level of light would not be 
obtrusive. DAERA Natural Environment Division was satisfied the floodlights would not 
harm bat or badger activity in the vegetated borders.  Northern Ireland Electricity (NIE) 
had initially advised that they had concerns that the floodlights might interfere with nearby 
overhead lines, however the applicant had been in discussions with NIE who had since 
confirmed that the proposal met the clearance distances. On that basis, no issue was 
raised. 
 

No third party representations had been received. 
 

The Members of the Committee recommended that, in accordance with the 
Council decision of 4th May 2021, the Chief Executive would exercise her delegated 
authority to approve the application and to finalise the conditions. 
 
 
 
 

Chairperson 

Page 305



This page is intentionally left blank



 CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S DECISIONS, TAKEN UNDER DELEGATED AUTHORITY FOR 
THE PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 

DATE OF MEETING: 
COMPILATION OF COMMITTEE 
RECOMMENDATIONS SENT TO CX:  
DEADLINE FOR CX’s COMMENTS: 
 

24th June, 2021 
 
25th June, 2021 
28th June, 2021 
 

 CX DECISION REGISTER TO BE PUBLISHED: 28th June, 2021              
 
FINAL DATE FOR CALL-IN (10am): 5th July, 2021 

Item 

no. 

Topic Chief Executive’s Decision Subject to call 
in 

3a Casement Park – Section 76 

Consultation 

In accordance with the Council decision of 4th May 2021, the Chief Executive 
exercised her delegated authority to offer no objection to the proposed Section 76 
Agreement, as set out in the Department’s letter of 10th June 2021, subject to the 
changes recommended in respect of the Travel Plan Co-Ordinator Duties, set out in 
the Late Items pack regarding litter and anti-social behaviour, and to respond to any 
further changes to the proposed S76 Planning Agreement, provided that those 
changes were of a minor or technical nature. 
 

Yes 

3b Advance Notice of Listings In accordance with the Council decision of 4th May 2021, the Chief Executive 
exercised her delegated authority to offer no objection to the proposed listing of the 
following 11 boundary markers at: 
 
●Kensington Road, Tullycarnet, Belfast 
●Grosvenor Grammar School, Marina Park, Belfast 
●Orangfield Presbyterian Church, 464 Castlereagh Road, Belfast 
●Ladas Way/Ladas Park, Belfast 
●Glenside Bridge, Belmont Road, Belfast 
●84 Castlehill Road, Belfast 
●Near St Molua’s Church, Upper Newtownards Road, Belfast 
●Near ‘The Weir’, 276 Malone Road, Belfast 
●Outside 593-595 Falls Road, Belfast 
●Horse Shoe Bend, Crumlin Road, Ligoneil, Belfast 
●622 Ballysillan Road, Belfast 

Yes 

P
age 307



 

3c NILGA 2021 NILGA Local Planning 
Programme 

In accordance with the Council decision of 4th May 2021, the Chief Executive 
exercised her delegated authority to note the NILGA 2021 Elected Member 
Planning Training Programme; and approve the attendance of the Chair, Deputy 
Chair and up to one other Member of the Committee, or their nominees, to 
participate in the Programme. 

Yes 

3d Request for a Special Meeting 
 

In accordance with the Council decision of 4th May 2021, the Chief Executive 
exercised her delegated authority to hold a Special, in-person meeting of the 
Planning Committee, at a date and time in August to be agreed in consultation with 
the Chairperson. 

Yes 

3e Issue Raised in Advance by a 

Member - Cllr Groogan 

In accordance with the Council decision of 4th May 2021, the Chief Executive 

exercised her delegated authority to send a letter to Turley Planning, reminding 

them of their obligations at meetings of the Planning Committee and of the required 

professional conduct. 

Yes 

2 Planning Applications (Please note that these are not subject to Call-in) 

a LA04/2020/1353/F - Erection of 
additional roof top plant, ventilation 
and ductwork (retrospective) at 12 - 
30 Wellington Place and 42 - 46 
Upper Queen Street  

In accordance with the Council decision of 4th May 2021, the Chief Executive 
exercised her delegated authority to approve the application, subject to conditions, 
including a time bound condition to remedy the current situation on site. The Chief 
Executive, or her nominee, would finalise the conditions. 

No 

b (Reconsidered Item) 
LA04/2019/2653/F - Demolition of 
existing property and erection of a 
9-storey building (overall height 
37m) comprising a ground floor 
retail unit together with cycle 
parking and plant areas: and 8 
floors of grade A office 
accommodation at Chancery 
House, 88 Victoria Street 

In accordance with the Council decision of 4th May 2021, the Chief Executive 
exercised her delegated authority to be minded to approve the application, subject 
to the following conditions which were discussed during the restricted section of the 
meeting: 
 

1. that a formal consultation be undertaken with objectors in relation to 
the restricted matters;  

2. that the proposed Section 76 Planning Agreement be drafted in 
consultation with those who spoke in relation to the restricted report; 
and 

3. that the application would be brought back to the Members of the 
Planning Committee for final agreement, to include the outcome of 
the formal consultation referenced above and presentation of the 
draft Section 76 Planning Agreement before a final decision is 
taken. 

No 

Link for the agenda is here: https://minutes.belfastcity.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CId=167&Year=0 

P
age 308

https://minutes.belfastcity.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CId=167&Year=0


 

 
 

F1259 
 

Planning Committee  
 

Thursday, 24th June, 2021 
  
 

SPECIAL MEETING OF THE MEMBERS OF THE PLANNING COMMITTEE 
HELD REMOTELY VIA MICROSOFT TEAMS 

 
 

Members present: Councillor Carson (Chairperson); 
Councillors Brooks, Matt Collins,  
Garrett, Groogan, Hanvey, Hussey, 
Hutchinson, Maskey, McCullough, McMullan, 
Murphy, O’Hara and Whyte. 
 

In attendance:  Mr. A. Reid, Strategic Director for Place and Economy; 
   Mr. E. Baker, Planning Manager  
       (Development Management); 

Ms. N. Largey, Divisional Solicitor; 
Ms. E. McGoldrick, Democratic Services Officer; and 
Mrs. L. McLornan, Democratic Services Officer.  

 
 

Apologies 
 

 No apologies were reported. 
 

Declarations of Interest 
 
 Councillor Whyte declared an interest in item 2a, 12 - 30 Wellington Place and 42 
- 46 Upper Queen Street, in that he was previously employed by and retained a beneficial 
interest in a company which provided consultancy services to the company which owned 
the building.  He left the meeting for the duration of the discussion on the item and did not 
participate in the vote. 
 
 Councillor McCullough also declared an interest in item 2a, as a Member of his 
family worked for PwC, the tenant of the building.  He left the meeting for the duration of 
the discussion and did not participate in the vote. 
 
 Councillor Hussey declared an interest in Item 2b, Chancery House, in that he 
was a Member of the Bar Library, who had lodged an objection to the application, and so 
he left the meeting and did not participate in the vote. 
 

Miscellaneous Items 
 
Casement Park - Section 76 Consultation 
 
 The Members considered the undernoted report: 
 

“1.0 Purpose of Report and Summary of Main Issues 
 
1.1 This report was originally scheduled for consideration at the 

meeting of the Planning Committee members on 15 June. 

Page 309



 
Special Meeting of Planning Committee, 

Thursday, 24th June, 2021 
 
 
 

 
 

F1260 
 

However, it was deferred to give Members more time to 
consider the report and documentation. It was also agreed to 
request that the Department for Infrastructure engages with 
local residents on the proposed S76 planning agreement. 
Officers have since put this request to the Department. 
The Department has also been invited to attend the meeting of 
the Planning Committee members on 24 June 2021 to field any 
questions that Members may have about the proposed S76 and 
process.  

 
1.2 The original report to the 15 June meeting is reproduced 

below. 
 
1.3 The Council has received correspondence from the 

Department for Infrastructure (the Department) in relation to 
planning application LA04/2017/0474/F for the redevelopment 
of Casement Park to provide a new stadium. The proposal is of 
regional significance and the application is being dealt with by 
the Department rather than Belfast City Council. 

 
1.4 In accordance with Section 76(3) of The Planning (Northern 

Ireland) Act 2011, the Department is consulting the Council, 
seeking its comments on the draft Section 76 Planning 
Agreement (S76) negotiated with the applicant, Ulster Gaelic 
Athletics Association (GAA). The draft S76 includes clauses 
relating to the appointment of a Stadium Manager, Travel Plan 
Co-ordinator, Event Safety Manager, Event Management 
Group and Traffic Management Contractors. There are also 
clauses regarding economic requirements for employment 
and ongoing monitoring. 

 
2.0 Recommendation 
 
2.1 It is recommended that the Chief Executive, or her nominated 

officer, uses her delegated authority to offer no objection to 
the proposed S76 as set out in the Department’s letter of 
10 June 2021 and respond to any further changes to the 
proposed S76 Planning Agreement, provided that those 
changes are of a minor or technical nature.  

 
3.0 Main Report 
 
 Background 
 
3.1 The Council has received correspondence from the 

Department in relation to planning application 
LA04/2017/0474/F for the redevelopment of Casement Park to 
provide a new stadium (see Appendix 1). The proposal is of 
regional significance and the application is being dealt with by 
the Department rather than Belfast City Council. 

Page 310



 
Special Meeting of Planning Committee, 

Thursday, 24th June, 2021 
 
 
 

 
 

F1261 
 

The Department is formally consulting the Council, seeking its 
views on the proposed S76 (see Appendix 2). The Department 
has given the Council six weeks to respond i.e. by 22 July 2021, 
hence reporting this matter to the Committee as a late item. 

 
3.2 The Council provided its substantive consultation response to 

the planning application in August 2017. The Planning 
Committee offered no objection to the application but made the 
following specific comments: 

 

 Further detailed cross sections through the entire site 
and surrounding properties were recommended 

 Further images to demonstrate impact on the skyline 
and key views were recommended 

 Greater certainty around travel, transport and traffic 
should be provided. 

 
3.3 The application was considered by the Planning Committee 

again in September 2019 following reconsultation. 
The Committee agreed to provide no further comments but 
that the Director of Planning and Building Control would write 
to the Department and recommend that the residents’ 
association known as MORA be given the opportunity to meet 
the Department and discuss their concerns. 

 
3.4 A final consultation was undertaken in February 2020 in 

relation to technical information regarding traffic and access. 
As the additional information was limited, the matter was dealt 
with under delegated powers with no further comment 
provided. 

 
3.5 The Department subsequently issued a Notice of Opinion in 

November 2020 advising of its intention to grant planning 
permission and listing the proposed conditions. The Planning 
Service responded to the Notice of Opinion advising that the 
Council is content for the Department to proceed with 
determination of the planning application.  

 
3.6 The Department further consulted the Council on 17 May 2021 

regarding proposed changes to conditions 14 and 36. 
The Department was seeking the Council’s agreement to these 
changes so that the drafting of the S76 could be finalised.  

 
3.7 The proposed changes were presented to the Committee in 

May 2021. No objections were offered and it was also agreed 
that delegated authority is given to officers to respond to any 
further changes to the proposed conditions, provided that 
those changes are of a minor or technical nature.  

 

Page 311



 
Special Meeting of Planning Committee, 

Thursday, 24th June, 2021 
 
 
 

 
 

F1262 
 

3.8 The current consultation relates to the Department’s draft S76. 
The obligations contained in the draft S76 are as follows: 

 

 Appointment of a Stadium Manager; 

 Appointment of a Travel Plan Co-Ordinator; 

 Appointment of an Event Safety Manager; 

 Appointment of an Event Management Group; 

 Appointment of a Traffic Management Contractors; 

 Economic Development (clauses requiring at least 46 
Long-term unemployed and at least 27 apprentices to 
be employed in the construction of the development);  

 Submission of an Annual Performance Report, and; 

 Payment of an annual Service Contribution to the 
Department. 

 The draft agreement also sets out at Annex 7, the 
Resident Representative Appointment process to the 
Event Management Group. 

 
3.9 Additional documents attached as annexes to the draft S76 

and referred to in the above clauses (see Appendix 2) include: 
 

 The Event Management Plan 

 The draft Decision Notice 

 Sustainable Travel Plan 

 List of Travel Plan Co-ordinator duties 
 
3.10 It is considered that the the draft S76 addresses the key issues 

for a development of this scale including event management, 
traffic management, sustainable transport, sustainable 
employment and ongoing monitoring. 

 
3.11 Officers consider that the clauses are in principle appropriate, 

reasonable and necessary to ensure a satisfactory form of 
development. It should be for the Department’s legal advisors 
to advise of the appropriateness of the precise wording of the 
S76. 

 
3.12 It is recommended that the Chief Executive, or her nominated 

officer, uses her delegated authority to offers no objection to 
the proposed S76 as set out in the Department’s letter of 
10 June 2021, and respond to any further changes to the 
proposed S76 Planning Agreement, provided that those 
changes are of a minor or technical nature. 

 
4.0 Finance and Resource Implications 
 
4.1 None identified. 
 
 
 

Page 312



 
Special Meeting of Planning Committee, 

Thursday, 24th June, 2021 
 
 
 

 
 

F1263 
 

5.0 Equality or Good Relations Implications/ 
 Rural Needs Assessment 
 
5.1 None identified.” 

 
 The Members’ attention was drawn to the Late Items pack.  The Planning 
Manager explained that, following the meeting on 15th June, officers had written to the 
Department for Infrastructure, requesting that it would share the draft Section 76 
Agreement with residents to seek their views.  Officers had also asked a representative 
from DFI to attend the meeting on 24th June to answer any technical or procedural 
questions that Members might have had around the proposed Section 76 agreement. 
 

The Members were advised that the Department had responded on 21st June 
and advised that it would not be consulting the public on the proposed Section 76 
Agreement and that it had fulfilled its consultation duties in relation to the application in 
accordance with legislative requirements. The Department outlined that it had no 
objection to the Council seeking views from the public.  Unfortunately, due to other 
commitments, the Department was unable to attend the meeting. 
 
 The Planning Manager reported that the proposed Section 76 Agreement and the 
associated procedures had been considered by the Planning Service, Health and Safety 
(which was responsible for Safety Certificates for sporting venues), Building Control 
(which was responsible for large scale entertainment events) and Legal Services.  He 
explained that it was considered that the proposed arrangements, including those relating 
to how local representatives were selected to sit on the Event Management Group were 
reasonable. In addition to local residents and businesses being represented, those 
statutory agencies responsible for safety at and around the venue were also proposed to 
be members of the Group. 
 

He outlined that a proposed amendment was suggested in relation to the Travel 
Plan Co-Ordinator Duties, set out in Annex 6 of the Agreement.  In terms of litter and anti-
social behaviour, the draft currently stated that the Travel Plan Co-Ordinator (‘TPC’) 
would be “required to deliver appropriate proposals as agreed with Belfast City Council 
to address these issues”.  It was recommended that this would be revised as follows: 
 

“The TPC will be responsible for putting in place arrangements to effectively 
deal with litter and any other anti-social behaviour associated with the 
operation of the venue in consultation with the EMG subject to any 
reasonable advice or requirements imposed by the Council in writing.” 
 
The Members were advised that, in relation to the substantive issue regarding 

public consultation, Legal Services noted that the legislation had clearly set out how it 
expected Planning Authorities to carry out public consultation in the course of determining 
a planning application. There was an express requirement for DfI to consult with a Council 
where it intended to enter into a Section 76 Agreement in its district, which was in addition 
to the standard consultation requirements.  In that context it was considered that 
embarking upon a non-statutory public consultation without any established process in 
place by which to do and in circumstances where the decision maker itself had carried 
out a consultation process, would leave the Council highly susceptible to legal challenge 

Page 313



 
Special Meeting of Planning Committee, 

Thursday, 24th June, 2021 
 
 
 

 
 

F1264 
 

from both from the planning applicant and those dissatisfied with the consultation process 
devised by Council.  
 
 A Member stated that they had concerns in light of the fact that DFI would not be 
consulting the residents on the Section 76 Agreement, and that DFI had not been able to 
attend the meeting in order to discuss concerns.  He highlighted concerns with parking 
and the Event Management Plan.  He suggested that the Members could defer 
consideration of the Section 76 Agreement in order to request that a representative from 
DFI would attend a future meeting in order to discuss his concerns. 
 
 Further Members stated that the process had taken a significant period of time to 
date and that they were content with the contents of the Section 76 Agreement.  
 
 In response to further comments, the Planning Manager and the Divisional 
Solicitor advised the Members that they could submit separate comments to the 
consultation as elected representatives or as a Political Party. 
 
 The Members of the Committee recommended that, in accordance with the 
Council decision of 4th May 2021, the Chief Executive would exercise her delegated 
authority to: 
 

 offer no objection to the proposed Section 76 Planning Agreement, as 
set out in the Department’s letter of 10th June 2021, subject to the 
proposed amendment in relation to the Travel Plan Co-Ordinator Duties 
as set out in the Late Items report; and  

 to respond to any further changes to the proposed Planning Agreement, 
provided that they were of a minor or technical nature. 

 
Listing of Various Structures 
 

The Planning Manager outlined that correspondence had been received from the 
Historic Environment Division (HED) regarding the proposed listing of 11 no. boundary 
markers.  He explained that Article 80 (3) of the Planning Act (NI) 2011 required that HED 
consulted with the Council before placing any building on the statutory list of buildings of 
special architectural or historic interest.  The Members were advised that the Department, 
based on the completion of detailed surveys, was considering the listing of the following 
11 boundary markers at: 

 

 Kensington Road, Tullycarnet, Belfast 

 Grosvenor Grammar School, Marina Park, Belfast 

 Orangfield Presbyterian Church, 464 Castlereagh Road, Belfast 

 Ladas Way/Ladas Park, Belfast 

 Glenside Bridge, Belmont Road, Belfast 

 84 Castlehill Road, Belfast 

 Near St Molua’s Church, Upper Newtownards Road, Belfast 

 Near ‘The Weir’, 276 Malone Road, Belfast 

 Outside 593-595 Falls Road, Belfast 

 Horse Shoe Bend, Crumlin Road, Ligoneil, Belfast; and 

 622 Ballysillan Road, Belfast. 
 

Page 314



 
Special Meeting of Planning Committee, 

Thursday, 24th June, 2021 
 
 
 

 
 

F1265 
 

The Members of the Committee recommended that, in accordance with the 
Council decision of 4th May 2021, the Chief Executive would exercise her delegated 
authority to offer no objection to the proposed listing of the structures.  
 
Planning Committee Training 
 
 The Members considered the undernoted report: 
 

“1.0 Purpose of Report and Summary of Main Issues 
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to advise the Committee of 

NILGA’s 2021 Planning Training Programme for elected 
members (Appendix 1, available on mod.gov); seek permission 
for up to three Planning Committee members to participate in 
the full programme. 

 
2.0 Recommendation 
 
2.1 The Committee is asked to: 
 

 note the appended NILGA 2021 elected member 
Planning Training Programme; and  

 approve the attendance of the Chair, Deputy Chair and 
up to one other member of the Planning Committee, or 
their nominees, to participate in the Programme. 

 
3.0 Main Report 
 
3.1 NILGA 2019 Planning Training Programme Invitation 
 
 NILGA has designed a regional elected member development 

programme for implementation during 2021/22 following on 
from the 2018 and 2019 programmes. The programme builds 
on the NILGA training initiative co-designed with the elected 
member development groups and the Regional Working 
Group. 

 
3.2 The overall NILGA elected member development programme 

includes a strand in respect of a Local Planning Programme 
for elected members, a copy of which is set out at Appendix 
One. NILGA has commissioned the seven module programme, 
which will run from September 2021 into March 2022 based on 
the experience form the previous experience and feedback. 
Each module will be held on a Friday afternoon with a 
proposed study trip in March 2022. At this stage the venue for 
the training has not been confirmed. 

 
3.3 The programme will be interactive in nature and have 

previously been delivered by a pool of planning practitioners. 
The programme will include short presentations; discussions; 

Page 315



 
Special Meeting of Planning Committee, 

Thursday, 24th June, 2021 
 
 
 

 
 

F1266 
 

case studies and benchmarking practice in other jurisdictions; 
workshops with role play; question & answer sessions; and 
the optional site visit. 

 
3.4 A pre-requisite for the enrolment in the programme is that 

elected members who are nominated to attend must be in a 
position to complete all seven modules. Elected members who 
successfully complete the full programme, to a satisfactory 
standard, will be accredited with an endorsed Institute of 
Leadership and Management (ILM) development award. 

 
3.5 Finance and Resource Implications 
 
 The projected training costs associated with this report (£300-

475 per participant and potential additional optional Study 
Visit cost) can be met from existing training budgets. 

 
 Equality or Good Relations Implications/ 
 Rural Needs Assessment 
 
3.6 There are no equality or good relations implications 

associated with this report.” 
 
 The Members of the Committee agreed to endorse the recommendations within 
the report. 
 
Request for a Special Meeting 
 
 The Members considered the undernoted report: 
 

“1.0 Purpose of Report or Summary of main Issues 
 
1.1 Members of the Planning Committee are asked to agree to 

hold a Special, in-person, Planning Committee meeting in 
August to consider planning application LA04/2019/1540/F 
proposed Centralised Anaerobic Digestion facility at Dargan 
Road. 

 
2.0 Recommendations 
 
2.1 That Members agree to hold a Special, in-person meeting, at a 

date and time in August to be agreed in consultation with the 
Chairperson.  

 
3.0 Background 
 
3.1 LA04/2019/1540/F - Centralised Anaerobic Digestion (CAD) 

plant to include a bunded tank farm, (6no. digester tanks, 2no. 
buffer tanks. 1no. storage tank and associated pump rooms), 
biogas holder, biogas conditioning system, temperature 

Page 316

http://www.internalminutes/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=167&MID=9745#AI56208
http://www.internalminutes/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=167&MID=9745#AI56208
http://www.internalminutes/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=167&MID=9745#AI56208
http://www.internalminutes/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=167&MID=9745#AI56208


 
Special Meeting of Planning Committee, 

Thursday, 24th June, 2021 
 
 
 

 
 

F1267 
 

control system, waste-water treatment plant (WWTP), motor 
circuit control room building, hot/cold water recovery system, 
feedstock reception and digestate treatment building, product 
storage building, odour control system and associated tanks, 
emergency gas flare, back-up boiler, administration/office 
building, car parking, 3no. Weighbridges, fire water tank and 
pump house, pipelines to existing combined heat and power 
(CHP) plant engines, switchgear earth bunding, 3no. accesses 
to existing Giant's Park Service road infrastructure and 
ancillary plant/site on lands to the northwest of existing 
Belfast City Council Waste Transfer Station, 2a Dargan Road 

 
3.2 Members will be aware that, under the current decision 

making arrangements, as agreed by the Council on 4th May 
2021, ‘for those decisions in respect of which the Chief 
Executive has a conflict of interest or which have a political 
sensitivity, she may decline to exercise delegated authority. 
Such decisions will be deferred until governance 
arrangements can be resumed or if necessary due to urgency 
through a physically convened meeting.’ 

 
3.3 Following a request from the applicant, the Chief Executive, in 

consultation with the Strategic Director of Place and 
Economy, has agreed that a Special, in-person, meeting will 
be held to consider the aforementioned planning application.  

 
3.4 As background, the application was submitted in June 2019 

and first brought to the Committee for its consideration in 
August 2020, where it was deferred, due to a late objection 
having been received and for the Committee to undertake a 
site visit. The application was brought back to the Committee 
in January 2021 and was deferred again, to allow a Non-
Mandatory Pre-Determination Hearing, which was held in 
February 2021. The application was brought back to 
Committee again in April 2021, where the Committee resolved 
for Planning Officers to consider proposals to refuse planning 
permission. 

 
3.5 Members of the Planning Committee are asked to agree to 

hold a Special, in-person, meeting in August to consider the 
application. It is proposed that the time and date for the 
meeting will be agreed in consultation with the Chairperson. 

 
3.6 The Planning Committee has two meeting dates scheduled in 

August.  Given that there are no meetings in July, there is 
likely to be a high volume of applications which are required 
to be considered on the meeting on Tuesday, 17th August.  

 
3.7 A Design and Conservation Member Training Workshop is 

currently scheduled to take place on Thursday, 19th August.  

Page 317

http://www.internalminutes/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=167&MID=9745#AI56208
http://www.internalminutes/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=167&MID=9745#AI56208
http://www.internalminutes/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=167&MID=9745#AI56208
http://www.internalminutes/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=167&MID=9745#AI56208
http://www.internalminutes/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=167&MID=9745#AI56208
http://www.internalminutes/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=167&MID=9745#AI56208
http://www.internalminutes/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=167&MID=9745#AI56208
http://www.internalminutes/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=167&MID=9745#AI56208
http://www.internalminutes/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=167&MID=9745#AI56208
http://www.internalminutes/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=167&MID=9745#AI56208
http://www.internalminutes/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=167&MID=9745#AI56208


 
Special Meeting of Planning Committee, 

Thursday, 24th June, 2021 
 
 
 

 
 

F1268 
 

It is also felt that, if any applications cannot be considered due 
to time pressure on Tuesday 17th August, the Thursday can 
be used as a reserve meeting if necessary. Officers are 
therefore exploring the potential to hold the Special, in-
person, meeting on another date. 

 
 Financial & Resource Implications 
 
3.8 None identified. 
 
 Equality or Good Relations Implications/ 
 Rural Needs Assessment 
 
3.9 None identified.” 

 
 The Planning Manager advised that the planning application for the CAD facility 
(LA04/2019/1540/F) would now likely be heard on Thursday 19th August 2021, being the 
reserve day for the Planning Committee. However, Members’ agreement was being 
sought for an additional meeting date in the event that it was required. 
 
 The Members of the Committee agreed to endorse the recommendations within 
the report. 
 
Issue Raised in Advance by a Member –  
Cllr Groogan  
 
 Councillor Groogan advised the Members that, at the meeting held on 15th June, 
a Planning Agent had made an inappropriate remark which appeared to have been made 
in reaction to her asking a question. 
 
 The Members of the Committee agreed to recommend that, in accordance with 
the Council decision of 4th May 2021, the Chief Executive, or her nominated officer, would 
exercise her delegated authority to send a letter to Turley Planning, reminding them that 
asking questions was an essential part of role the Members of the Planning Committee in 
order to scrutinise each planning application, and that agents should be mindful of their 
professional conduct at meetings. 
 

Planning Applications 
 
THE MEMBERS OF THE PLANNING COMMITTEE CONSIDERED THE FOLLOWING 

ITEM IN ORDER TO MAKE RECOMMENDATIONS TO THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE  
IN PURSUANCE OF THE POWERS DELEGATED TO HER BY THE COUNCIL  

ON 4TH MAY, 2021 
 
LA04/2020/1353/F - Erection of additional roof  
top plant, ventilation and ductwork (retrospective) at  
12 - 30 Wellington Place and 42 - 46 Upper Queen Street 

 
(Councillors McCullough and Whyte, having declared an interest in the item, left the 

meeting for the duration of the item and did not participate in the vote) 

Page 318



 
Special Meeting of Planning Committee, 

Thursday, 24th June, 2021 
 
 
 

 
 

F1269 
 

 
 The Principal Planning officer provided the Members with the details of the 
retrospective application.  She reminded the Members that the full application was 
previously considered by the Planning Committee on 15th December, 2020. The 
Members were advised that the key issues were the impact on the setting of nearby Listed 
Buildings and the character and appearance of the Conservation Area. She outlined that 
both Historic Environment Division (HED) and the Council’s Conservation Officer had 
expressed concerns and that the application was recommended for refusal.  At that 
meeting, the Committee had deferred the application to allow for further discussion of 
alternative options for the plant/plant screen.  
 

She explained that several meetings had been held between the applicant/agent, 
architects, HED, the Conservation Officer and the Planning Officers, and that the overall 
design of the proposal had evolved from the initial proposal, with all viable options for the 
plant having been considered.  The Members were advised that discussions had taken 
place to achieve a proposal which would serve the purpose required for the applicant and 
the tenants of the building, while minimising any potential impact on the setting of nearby 
listed buildings and the Belfast City Centre Conservation Area. 
 

The amendments to the original proposal included the following changes to the 
right-hand side of the pediment (of the Listed Scottish Provident building facing Donegall 
Square West): 

 

 the 3.1m high aluminium screen had been removed; 

 the Air Handling Unit (AHU) had been lowered and moved 1.5m 
away from Donegall Sq East, closer to the internal courtyard; 

 the high level (upper) duct from the AHU had been removed and 
repositioned lower at 

 roof level, reducing the overall height; and 

 the ducts had been moved away from Donegall Sq East, closer to 
the courtyard. 

 
The following change had also been included to the left-hand side of the pediment: 

 

 the high level (upper) duct from the second AHU, adjacent to 
Wellington Street, had been removed and repositioned and now 
ran behind the AHU rather than in front. 

 
The Principal Planning Officer reported that HED had been heavily involved in 

discussions with the agent and had played a major part in informing the amendments. 
She explained that HED’s main concern was the impact of the proposals on the setting 
of the Listed Scottish Provident Building and that HED had since advised that they were 
content with the proposals to remove the intrusive screen to the rooftop and also the 
proposed relocation of ductwork and a moveable / collapsible edge protection system. 
The Members were advised that HED’s final response had indicated that the proposal to 
remove the upper duct of the plant located to the left hand side of the Scottish Provident 
Building pediment was also welcomed. 
 

The Members were advised that the agent had provided additional information to 
HED including an image and CGI showing the mitigated impact of the removal of the 

Page 319



 
Special Meeting of Planning Committee, 

Thursday, 24th June, 2021 
 
 
 

 
 

F1270 
 

upper duct on the Scottish Provident Building. HED had confirmed that they accepted 
that the removal of the upper duct would reduce the visual clutter of the roofscape of the 
application site, lessening the visual impact of the new roof on the backdrop of the 
Scottish Provident Building. She reported that, following on-site discussions with the 
agent, HED had noted that the relocation of the AHU plant could not be accommodated 
due to the complexities of the duct sizes, layout and existing service risers within the 
building.  In conclusion, HED recognised that the overall impact of the plant had been 
substantially softened and that the proposal had been greatly improved. HED clarified 
that extensive options had been explored and exhausted and that the current application 
illustrated the best realistic option considering the retrospective nature of the application. 
 
 The Conservation Officer had also welcomed that the plant/screen had been 
reduced to limit the impact on the historic buildings roof line, and that the plant/screen to 
the right hand side of the pediment had been greatly reduced to the point where it would 
be barely visible when viewed from within the grounds to the front of the City Hall and 
Donegal Square East. However, the Conservation Officer advised that the plant to the 
left hand side of the pediment remained prominently visible and would in their opinion, 
negatively impact on the setting of the Scottish Provident Building when viewed from 
Donegall Square East and within the grounds to the front of the City Hall. The 
Conservation Officer concluded that there would be an unavoidable negative impact, no 
matter how minimal as a result of the proposals but that it was recognised that the 
proposal had evolved positively from what existed and that all viable options had been 
explored to mitigate against the visual impact of the plant (including the AHU). The 
Conservation Officer noted that justification had been provided for the AHU remaining in 
its current location and appreciated the efforts made in producing a solution to what would 
be considered as a betterment to what currently existed. 
 

The Principal Planning officer reported that there was little room to move the plant 
in a practical or operational sense and an added complication was that a crane could not 
now reach the unit and that it would have to be manually jacked and skidded over the 
roof, which provided a significant health and safety risk, and such works would take 4-5 
weeks to complete.  It was reported that that part of the building would need to be closed 
down to facilitate the works. 

 
She outlined that, in considering all the information, together with the updated 

responses from both HED and the Conservation officer, Planning officers considered the 
proposal, on balance, to be acceptable.  She explained that it represented a significant 
improvement to what currently existed on the roof top of the building. 
 

The Members were advised that, having regard to the advice from HED, whilst it 
was considered that the proposal was not fully compliant with Policy BH11 of PPS 6, it 
was considered that all practicable options had been considered and that the setting of 
the Listed Scottish Provident building would not be unacceptably harmed or 
compromised.  

 
Whilst the proposal would fail to preserve or enhance the character or appearance 

of the Conservation Area, contrary to Policy BH12, she explained that the impact would 
not be significant. The Members were advised that the policy tests must be considered in 
the round, having regard to the economic considerations associated with the occupation 
of the office building for which the proposed plant would serve and the practicalities of 

Page 320



 
Special Meeting of Planning Committee, 

Thursday, 24th June, 2021 
 
 
 

 
 

F1271 
 

servicing this building. In that context, the proposal was also considered acceptable 
having regard to Section 104 of the Planning Act (Northern Ireland) 2011. 
 
 She outlined that the officers’ recommendation to approve the application 
included a time bound condition requiring the applicant to complete the works in 
accordance with the approved plans within six months of the date of the permission. 
 
 The Chairperson welcomed Mr. M. Gordon, agent, to the meeting.  He advised 
the Committee Members that he wished to put on record his thanks to the Planning 
officers and to Ms. N. Donnelly, HED, for the opportunity to work through the issues with 
them. He added that, if approved today, the applicant intended to undertake the works 
almost immediately. 
 
 A Member queried why the original planning permission had not been adhered to 
and why it had been breached.  Mr. Gordon explained that the plant design had only been 
finalised after the planning permission was granted.  PwC, as the occupier, required very 
high performance requirements for a building which would be operational 24/7, and 
unfortunately they were constrained by the limited space available on the roof and there 
were certain areas where the plant had to be located.  He advised that he was aware that 
the situation was not satisfactory and that lesson had been learned throughout the 
process.  He advised the Members that the applicant had attempted to minimise the 
negative impacts as much as possible. 
 
 In response to a Member’s question in respect of the retrospective application, 
Ms. Donnelly, HED, advised that they looked at retrospective applications with the 
knowledge that they had already been built.  She outlined that, in HED's view, they would 
unlikely be able to sustain an objection to the proposal in the event of an appeal to the 
Planning Appeals Commission. Whilst the proposal did not quite comply with policy, they 
were mindful that the agent had taken steps to address the screen and the upper duct.  
She explained that their remaining concerns were around the Air Handling Unit and that 
it was disappointing that the plant top was built prior to their input but that HED recognised 
that the overall impact of the plant had been substantially softened and that the proposal 
had been greatly improved.  
 

Accordingly, the Chairperson put the officer’s recommendation, that, in 
accordance with the Council decision of 4th May 2021, the Chief Executive would 
exercise her delegated authority to approve the application, subject to conditions, 
including a time bound condition to remedy the current situation on site and that she 
would finalise the conditions.  On a vote, eight Members voted for the proposal and four 
against and it was declared carried. 
 
LA04/2019/2653/F - Demolition of existing property  
and erection of a 9 storey building (overall height 37m)  
comprising a ground floor retail unit together with cycle  
parking and plant areas: and 8 floors of grade A office  
accommodation at Chancery House, 88 Victoria Street 
 
 (Councillors McCullough and Whyte re-joined the meeting at this point) 
 
 

Page 321



 
Special Meeting of Planning Committee, 

Thursday, 24th June, 2021 
 
 
 

 
 

F1272 
 

(Councillor Hussey, having declared an interest in the item, left the meeting 
for the duration of the item and did not participate in the vote) 

 
 The Planning Manager reminded the Members that the application had been due 
to be considered by the Planning Committee in April 2021.  However, the Committee had 
deferred the application because Members had been unable to access all the relevant 
documents through the Planning Portal. The application was then scheduled to be 
considered by the Committee in May 2021, however, it was withdrawn from the agenda 
in light of further information having been received from the applicant. 
 
 The Members were advised that the application sought full planning permission 
for the construction of new 9 storey (37m tall) building comprising of ground floor retail 
space with 8 floors of Grade A office space above. The existing building had since been 
demolished under the terms of a previous planning permission which meant that the 
previous permission was extant in perpetuity. The current application followed Pre-
Application Discussions with officers. 
 

The Members were advised that the site already benefitted from an extant 
planning permission for the erection of a seven storey office building (Z/2011/0380/F) with 
retail use on the ground floor and offices above. The principle of retail and office 
development had already been established and was acceptable at the city centre 
location. The Planning Manager advised that the proposal would support jobs and 
contribute to the economy. 
 

He outlined the main issues which had been considered in the assessment of the 
proposal, including: 

 

 the principle of office and retail uses at that location 

 the demolition of the existing building; 

 the impact on the character and appearance of the area and ATC; 

 the impact upon the setting of nearby listed buildings;  

 the impact on amenity;  

 water infrastructure and flood risk; and  

 access and parking. 
 

He provided the Members with views of the following Listed Buildings which were 
in proximity to the site: 

 

 Old Town Hall (Grade B1) 

 Royal Courts of Justice (Grade A) 

 Nos. 161 – 163 Victoria Street and No. 2 Gloucester Street (Grade B1) 

 Former Northern Bank 108 – 110 Victoria Street (Grade B2) 

 Albert Clock Queen’s Square (Grade A) 
 

He outlined that the site was located within the development limits for the city, as 
designated within the BUAP, dBMAP 2004 and 2015 and was within the proposed 
Victoria & Oxford Street Area of Townscape Character (ATC). 
 

Page 322



 
Special Meeting of Planning Committee, 

Thursday, 24th June, 2021 
 
 
 

 
 

F1273 
 

 In terms of its relationship with neighbouring buildings, it was considered that the 
impacts on outlook and natural light would not be significantly greater than those arising 
from the extant permission. 
 

He reported that HED had advised that the scale and design of the proposal had 
the potential to adversely impact on the setting of nearby listed buildings. However, 
officers considered that the scale and design of the building to be appropriate to its 
context, which included several substantial buildings in the area, and that the setting of 
listed buildings would not be harmed. 
 

The Members were advised that the proposal had been assessed against the 
SPPS, PPS 3: Access, Movement and Parking, PPS 4: Planning and Economic 
Development, PPS 6: Planning, Archaeology and the Built Heritage and Addendum, 
Areas of Townscape Character, PPS 15 Planning and Flood Risk. 

 
 The Planning Manager reported that there were additional confidential issues to 
consider which would be discussed with the Committee Members later in the meeting.   

 
He reported that objections had been received from third parties, citing issues 

around the excessive scale of the building, adverse impact on surrounding buildings and 
site access. 

 
The Bar Library Service objected to the scale and height of proposal and the 

potential impacts on neighbouring buildings, both listed and non-listed buildings.  They 
also raised concern with respect to loss of light/privacy and proposed glazing on the party 
boundary wall.   

 
Similarly, the Law Society of Northern Ireland objected on heritage grounds. A 

report had been provided by Stelfox Conservation Consultants on behalf of the Law 
Society. The objection indicated that the proposal was in breach of planning policies for 
ATCs and raised concerns regarding excessive size and height, and that the proposal 
would have an adverse impact on surrounding buildings. referred to policies set out in 
PPS 6 and indicated that the proposal failed to satisfy policy. It also referred to the draft 
designation of the Victoria Street/Oxford Street ATC and the adverse impact of the 
proposal on the ATC.  It also assessed the potential impacts the proposal would have on 
the surrounding area and neighbouring listed buildings. The Law Society also had 
concerns about the impact of construction traffic and service deliveries on objectors’ 
properties and the impact of construction works on surrounding buildings. 

 
The Northern Ireland Courts and Tribunal Service had lodged concerns that the 

proposal was in breach of planning policies for ATCs; the excessive size and height would 
have an adverse impact on surrounding buildings; the impact of construction works on 
the structural stability of the Old Town Hall.  
 

Belfast Civic Trust objected to the height of the building and the choice of 
construction materials. They believed that the proposal was too high and wanted red brick 
to be used within the construction. 
 

The Members were advised that DfI Roads, NI Water, Rivers Agency and the 
NIEA had all been consulted and had no objection to the proposal. 

Page 323



 
Special Meeting of Planning Committee, 

Thursday, 24th June, 2021 
 
 
 

 
 

F1274 
 

 
 The Chairperson welcomed Mr. G. Rolston, Clyde Shanks, who was representing 
Mr. D. Mulholland, Chief Executive of the Bar of Northern Ireland.  He outlined to the 
Members that:  
 

 they had raised concerns regarding the assessment of the height and 
scale of the proposal compared to how the approved 7 storey building 
was assessed; 

 the accuracy of the information which had been used by the Council to 
compare the height of the 9 storey building to the previously approved 
building; 

 it was a fundamental principle of the planning process that decision 
makers should behave consistently and, particularly so, where there had 
been no material change in policy since a previous decision; 

 where officers proposed to depart from a previous decision, there should 
be robust planning reasons for doing so and should eb clearly explained; 

 it was referenced in the committee report that a seven storey building 
was approved in August 2015, however, whilst approval was ultimately 
granted, the application had been submitted as an eight storey building; 

 during the process of the approved application, HED had considered the 
eight storey proposal unacceptable, under BH11 of PPS6, for reasons 
of the impact of the height, scale and massing of the proposed building 
on surrounding listed buildings; 

 the Councils’ Conservation officer agreed that an eight storey building 
would have an unacceptable impact on its surroundings; 

 the Planning officers had agreed with HED and insisted that the height 
of the building was reduced to seven storeys with the top two storeys to 
be set back and the applicant agreed to that; 

 that was the context in which the current application must be considered; 

 there was a conflict between the Planning officers’ position in August 
2015, where an eight storey was not considered acceptable on the site, 
and the current position, where a nine storey building was being 
recommended for approval; 

 they could find no justification for the change in position given there had 
not been a change in planning policy; 

 it was notable that HED had queried the Council’s position in regards to 
the nine storey building; 

 the Conservation officer still objected to the nine storey building which 
was consistent with their position during the processing of the approved 
planning application; 

 it would not be fair or reasonable for the current application to be 
approved in the absence of addressing the clear inconsistency between 
the processing of the two applications, and would leave it vulnerable to 
challenge; 

 they had concerns in respect of the measurements in the Committee 
report, whereby the seven storey building had a height of 28.7metres, 
with the plant hidden at the back of the roof and not visible from 
pedestrian level, and that the difference between the extant and the 
proposed building height was not 5.5metres but, in fact, 8.3metres; 

Page 324



 
Special Meeting of Planning Committee, 

Thursday, 24th June, 2021 
 
 
 

 
 

F1275 
 

 the CGI image shown by officers of the approved building was not the 
correct image, it showed a six storey building with a single recessed 
storey on top, when the approved building was a five storey building with 
two recessed storeys on top; 

 they agreed with HED and the Conservation officer that the proposal was 
an unacceptable increase in height in respect of its immediate 
neighbours, the Bar Library, Law Society House and the listed Old Town 
Hall, and that the recommendation to approve the nine storey building 
was inconsistent with the position of Planning officers through the 
processing and determination of the approved seven storey building. 

 
The Chairperson then welcomed Ms. A. Wiggam, Turley, who were the agent for 

the application. She advised the Members that: 
 

 Conservation was about managing change and that buildings had to 
respond to the changing context around them in order to remain 
sustainable, contemporary and attractive; 

 the application site had the benefit of an implemented planning 
permission for a seven storey office building at 31.5metres in height;   

 the design responded to the immediate context of the site and its 
surroundings, and would improve the setting of the Old Town Hall 
through the development of a high quality design which defined the 
location with a building which added vibrancy to the important nodal 
point; 

 the contrast in scale, massing and the choice of materials between 
the Old Town Hall and the proposed development would allow the 
Old Town Hall to be read separately and ensure that the building 
retained its dominance onto Victoria Street, due to its proportions, 
materials and architectural detailing; 

 the proposals would provide 4,086 square metres of Grade A 
office/retail accommodation and would assist in addressing an 
identified need in the market place to serve indigenous businesses 
which were expanding and wanted to make the transition from a 
serviced office accommodation to a small office floor plate within the 
city centre; 

 it was estimated that, during the construction period, 150 jobs could 
be created over the 18 month build period and, once completed, the 
development could accommodate between 250 – 300 office workers, 
whose expenditure would assist in supporting retail and service 
outlets in the city centre; 

 the proposal was not reliant on funding from third parties and 
therefore could commence quickly following the grant of planning 
permission; and 

 there were no technical or environmental constraints that would 
preclude the redevelopment of the site, and the proposals largely 
accorded with current planning policy and with the Council’s City 
Centre Investment Plan. 

 
 A Member requested clarity regarding the difference in approach by officers in 
relation to what was deemed an acceptable height of the extant proposal and the current 

Page 325



 
Special Meeting of Planning Committee, 

Thursday, 24th June, 2021 
 
 
 

 
 

F1276 
 

proposal, which was taller.  The Planning Manager advised the Members that the 
architectural approach to the current proposal was quite different to the extant design.  He 
stated that the current proposal was a more lightweight and elegant design that would sit 
more comfortably with the nearby listed buildings, as it was a more restrained backdrop 
building than the current approval. 
 
 A Member requested information from officers as to how the application met 
planning policy when policy stated that seven storeys was the maximum.  The Planning 
Manager advised the Members that if something was contrary to planning policy, the 
Planning Authiority was still required to demonstrate that there would be demonstrable 
harm to the public interest resulting from the proposal.  The policy was to provide guidance 
on what may or may not be acceptable in the interest of the preservation of the character 
and appearance of the draft Area of Townscape Character.  He outlined that officers felt 
that there would be no overriding harm to the public interest because of the way that the 
building had been designed. 
 
 The information contained in the appendices associated with the item were 
restricted in accordance with Part 1 of Schedule 6 of the Local Government Act 
(Northern Ireland) 2014.  
 

 Resolved – That the Committee agrees to exclude the members of the 
Press and public from the Committee meeting during discussion of the 
items as, due to the nature of the items, there would be a disclosure of 
exempt information as described in Section 42(4) and Section 6 of the 
Local Government Act (NI) 2014. 

 
 The Planning Manager provided the Committee Members with the issues which 
had been addressed within the restricted report and the appendices which had been 
circulated. 
 
 The Members received deputations from both objectors and the applicant in 
relation to the restricted report. 
  

 Resolved – That the Committee agreed to re-admit the members of the 
Press and public to the Committee meeting. 

 
 Moved by Councillor Groogan 
 Seconded by Councillor Collins 
 

 That, in accordance with the Council decision of 4th May 2021, the Chief 
Executive exercises her delegated authority to refuse the application due to 
the inappropriate scale, height and massing of the building, which would be 
harmful to the setting of the Listed Buildings contrary to Policy BH11 of PPS6; 
and was harmful to the character of the draft Area of Townscape Character, 
contrary to the PPS6 Addendum. 

 
 On a vote, five Members voted for the proposal and eight against and it was 
declared lost. 
 

Page 326



 
Special Meeting of Planning Committee, 

Thursday, 24th June, 2021 
 
 
 

 
 

F1277 
 

 Accordingly, the Chairperson put the officer’s recommendation, that, in 
accordance with the Council decision of 4th May 2021, the Chief Executive be minded to 
approve the application, subject to the following conditions which were discussed during 
the restricted section of the meeting: 
 

1. that formal consultation be undertaken with objectors in relation to the 
restricted matters;  

2. that the proposed Section 76 Planning Agreement be drafted in 
consultation with those who spoke in relation to the restricted report; 
and 

3. that the application would be brought back to the Members of the 
Planning Committee for final agreement, to include the outcome of 
the formal consultation referenced above and presentation of the draft 
Section 76 Planning Agreement before a final decision is taken. 

 
 On a vote, eight Members voted for the proposal and five against and it was 
accordingly declared carried. 
 
 
 
 

Chairperson 

Page 327



This page is intentionally left blank



Transfer of Regeneration Powers to Local Authorities 
 
“The economic impact caused by Covid-19 has had a devastating impact on many of our 
businesses and it is essential Council has the necessary powers and funding to support the 
rebuilding of our local economy. 
 
The new councils formed in 2015 were designed to be larger and more powerful, and since 
then Belfast City Council has demonstrated its competence and capability. Successfully 
undertaking planning and local economic development functions and delivering vital services. 
 
One of the key levers that Councils were promised, and is now needed, is the power of 
regeneration. Place shaping is increasingly becoming a critical part of the recovery process, 
especially in an environment where places will be different and there is a need of local 
solutions. Obtaining control of regeneration powers will also complement the Local 
Development Plans and our community planning framework. 
 
In recognition of the consultation on Programme for Government, Investment Strategy and 
Budget, lobbying by NILGA and other stakeholders, we call on this council to write to The 
Executive Office and the Department for Communities for the transfer of full regeneration 
powers and associated resources to local authorities as a matter of priority.” 
 
 
Proposer:  Councillor McReynolds 
 
Seconder:  Councillor Hanvey 
 
 
 

To be debated by the Council 

 
 

Page 329

Agenda Item 7a



This page is intentionally left blank



Paid Leave for Miscarriage 

“The Council recognises the emotional trauma and loss suffered by parents as a result of 
stillbirths and miscarriages. 

The Council also notes a growing number of employers across the UK and Ireland are offering 
paid leave to employees who have experienced or been affected by early pregnancy loss and 
miscarriage. 

As such Council will bring forward compassionate, fair, and progressive proposals for 
bereavement leave to provide leave for miscarriage and for stillbirth so employees who have 
been impacted do not have to use sick or annual holiday leave.”  

 
Proposer:  Councillor Michelle Kelly 
 
Seconder:  Councillor Mulholland 
 
 

To be referred, without debate, to the Strategic Policy and Resources Committee 
 

Page 331

Agenda Item 7b



This page is intentionally left blank



Her Majesty The Queen’s Platinum Jubilee 

  

This Council, 

Acknowledges the unique achievement of Her Majesty The Queen as our longest serving 

monarch in history, hails her life of service to our nation, to the Commonwealth and to many 

aspects of international life, and agrees to organise a programme of events celebrating her 

Platinum Jubilee in 2022, including a funding programme for events organised by local 

communities across the city, as permitted by Covid restrictions at that time. 

  

Proposed by: Councillor Sarah Bunting 

  

Seconded by: Councillor Gareth Spratt 

  

 

To be referred, without debate, to the Strategic Policy and Resources Committee 

 

 

Page 333

Agenda Item 7c



This page is intentionally left blank



Marking the Centenary of the Ulster Memorial Tower 

  

“This Council notes that this November marks the centenary of the opening of the Ulster 

Memorial Tower, on 19th November 1921, near Thiepval in France, as a lasting tribute to the 

men of Ulster who served and who gave their lives during the First World War.  

  

Its position, opposite Thiepval Wood, is a particular reminder of the Officers and Men of the 

36th (Ulster) Division who fell during the Battle of the Somme, and is a specific tribute to the 

Division’s heroic charge on the opening day of that great offensive. 

  

This Council notes the various historic connections between the Ulster Memorial Tower and 

Belfast City Council and agrees to include recognition of this connection in our Centenary 

programme this year.” 

 

  

Proposer:  Alderman Kingston 

 

Seconder: Councillor Pankhurst 

  

 

To be referred, without debate, to the Strategic Policy and Resources Committee 

 

 

Page 335

Agenda Item 7d



This page is intentionally left blank



Chat Bench and Tackling Loneliness 
 
“This Council notes that the challenges of loneliness and how this has been compounded 
during the pandemic. Loneliness is now endemic across Northern Ireland. 88% of people in 
N.I. say loneliness has become a bigger problem since the beginning of the Covid-19 
pandemic. 1 in 3 people in N.I. are ‘more often lonely’ and chronic loneliness affects 1 in 20 
people. 
 
This Council further notes the recent British Red Cross N.I report – The longest Year: Life 
under local restrictions, has called on the Executive to take urgent action to tackle loneliness 
and states that N.I remains the only part of the UK without a governmental loneliness strategy. 
70 organisations including NICVA have also called for an urgent strategy to be brought 
forward. 
 
This Council can do something tangible to tackle isolation and loneliness by agreeing to 
consider the repurposing of 2 council owned benches as ‘Happy to Chat Benches’. One of 
these is situated in the grounds of City Hall and the other in the Titanic quarter.  Many Councils 
across the UK including some in N.I. have introduced chat benches to help break down the 
barriers of social isolation and to get people talking. 
 
This Council also calls on the Minister for Health to initiate the development of a Northern 
Ireland Loneliness Strategy in partnership with other relevant Executive colleagues.” 
 
 
 
Proposer:  Councillor Howard 
 
Seconder:  Councillor de Faoite 
 
 
 

To be referred, without debate, to the Strategic Policy and Resources Committee 

Page 337

Agenda Item 7e



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 Minutes of the Council
	cu010621m

	6a Strategic Policy and Resources Committee
	pr180621

	6b Ad Hoc Committee
	e'230421 - Standards and Business Committee - Draft Terms of Reference

	6c People and Communities Committee
	pc080621
	Chief Executive Decisions for P&C Committee of 22nd June 2021
	pc220621s

	6d City Growth and Regeneration Committee
	cgr 090621
	2, Chief Executive Decisions for Special City Growth and Regeneration Committee of 23 June 2021
	cgr 230621sp

	6e Licensing Committee
	Li160621

	6f Planning Committee
	pla150621
	CX Decisions Register Planning 240621
	pla240621s

	7a Transfer of Regeneration Powers to Local Authorities
	7b Paid Leave for Miscarriage
	7c Her Majesty The Queen's Platinum Jubilee
	7d Marking the Centenary of the Ulster Memorial Tower
	7e Chat Bench and Tackling Loneliness

